
 City Council  
Agenda 

City Hall 
225 Fifth Street 

Springfield, Oregon 97477 
541.726.3700 

Online at www.springfield-or.gov 

 
The meeting location is wheelchair-accessible.  For the hearing-impaired, an interpreter can be provided with 48 
hours notice prior to the meeting.  For meetings in the Council Meeting Room, a “Personal PA Receiver” for the 

hearing impaired is available.  To arrange for these services, call 541.726.3700.   
Meetings will end prior to 10:00 p.m. unless extended by a vote of the Council. 

 
All proceedings before the City Council are recorded. 

 
March 4, 2013 

_____________________________ 
 

5:30 p.m. Executive Session 
Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h), ORS 40.225,  

ORS 192.660(2)(f), and ORS 192.501(1) 
Jesse Maine Room 

_____________________________ 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___,  
Woodrow ___, and Brew___. 
 
1. Glenwood Refinement Plan LUBA Appeal. 

[Mary Bridget Smith]        (30 Minutes) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
_____________________________ 

 
6:00 p.m. Work Session 

Jesse Maine Room 
_____________________________ 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___,  
Woodrow ___, and Brew___. 

 

 

City Manager: 
Gino Grimaldi 
City Recorder: 
Amy Sowa 541.726.3700 

Mayor  
Christine Lundberg 
 
City Council 
Sean VanGordon, Ward 1 
Hillary Wylie, Ward 2 
Sheri Moore, Ward 3 
Dave Ralston, Ward 4 
Marilee Woodrow, Ward 5 
Bob Brew, Ward 6 



Council Agenda 
March 4, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 

 
1. 2014-2018 Capital Improvement Program, A Community Reinvestment Plan. 

[Jeff Paschall]         (30 Minutes) 
 

2. Wastewater System Capacity, Management, Operations, and Maintenance Discussion. 
[Ron Bittler/Brian Conlon]        (30 Minutes) 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

____________________________ 
 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
Council Meeting Room 

_____________________________ 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___,  
Woodrow ___, and Brew___. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT 
 
1. Employee Recognition: Thelma Barone, 10 Years of Service. 

[Gino Grimaldi]         (05 Minutes) 
 

2. 2012 Groundwater Guardians Presentation. 
[Linda Pauly]         (05 Minutes) 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Claims 
 
2. Minutes 
 

a. February 11, 2013 – Work Session 
b. February 19, 2013 – Work Session 
c. February 19, 2013 – Regular Meeting 

 
3. Resolutions 
 
4. Ordinances 
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 1 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE 
TO IMPLEMENT THE SPRINGFIELD 2030 REFINEMENT PLAN RESIDENTIAL LAND USE AND 
HOUSING ELEMENT LAND USE EFFICIENCY MEASURES, PHASE 1, BY AMENDING AND/OR 
ADDING SECTION 3.2-100 BASE ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 3.2-205 ESTABLISHMENT OF 
RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 3.2-210 SCHEDULE OF USE CATEGORIES; 
SECTION 3.2-215 BASE ZONE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; SECTION 3.2-605 



Council Agenda 
March 4, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF MIXED-USE ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 3.3-825 ADDITIONAL 
PROVISIONS; SECTION 4.7-100 SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; SECTION 4.7-140 
SITING DUPLEXES IN ALL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS; SECTION 4.7-142 DESIGN STANDARDS 
FOR DUPLEXES AND ATTACHED SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS; SECTION 4.7-155 GROUP 
CARE FACILITIES; SECTION 4.7-233 SMALL LOT RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS; TABLE 5-4.1 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS; SECTION  5.12-120 TENTATIVE 
PLAN SUBDIVISION SUBMITTALS; SECTION 5.12-130 TENTATIVE PLAN CONDITIONS; AND 
SECTION 6.1-110 MEANING OF SPECIFIC WORDS AND TERMS; AND ADOPTING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
 

b. ORDINANCE NO. 2 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 
CHAPTER 5, PUBLIC PROTECTION, CONTROL OF DOGS AND OTHER ANIMALS, MAKING IT A 
VIOLATION OF THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE TO INITIATE A FALSE REPORT OR TO 
PROVIDE AN UNSWORN FALSIFICATION TO AN ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER. 

 
5. Other Routine Matters 
 

a. Liquor License Application for New China Sun, located at 3260 Gateway Street, Springfield, Oregon. 
b. Liquor License Application for Goodfella’s Lounge, located at 117 South 14th Street, Springfield, Oregon. 
c. Liquor License Application for J.X. Pop, Located at 525 West Centennial Blvd, Springfield, Oregon. 
d. Approve First Amendment to Asset Management System Replacement Project Contract (C587) with 

Autodesk, Inc. and Authorize and Direct the City Manager to Execute the Amendment on Behalf of the 
City. 

 
MOTION: APPROVE/REJECT THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request to speak cards are available at both 

entrances.  Please present cards to City Recorder.  Speakers may not yield their time 
to others. 

 
1. Master Fees and Charges Schedule. 

[Bob Duey]          (10 Minutes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 3 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGFIELD AMENDINGARTICLE 1, TABLE 3-A STRUCTUAL PERMIT FEES; TABLE 3-B 
ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES; TABLE 3-C PLUMBING PERMIT FEES; TABLE 3-D MECHANICAL 
PERMIT FEES; TABLE 3-F OTHER INSPECTION AND FEES OF THE “SPRINGFIELD BUILDING 
SAFETY CODE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE” OF THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT & PUBLIC 
WORKS DEPARTMENT; COMMNITY SERVICES DIVISION “BUILDING SAFETY CODES”. 
 
NO ACTION REQUESTED. FIRST READING ONLY. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 1 – A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGFIELD ADOPTING A  MASTER FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE FOR FEES, CHARGES,  
RATES, PERMITS AND LICENSES AS ESTABLISHED BY THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE. 
 
NO ACTION REQUESTED AT THIS TIME. 



Council Agenda 
March 4, 2013 
Page 4 
 
 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE - Limited to 20 minutes.  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request 

to Speak cards are available at both entrances.  Please present cards 
to City Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 

 
COUNCIL RESPONSE 
 
CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS 
 
BIDS 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
1. Committee Appointments 
 
2. Business from Council 
 

a. Committee Reports 
 

b. Other Business 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Work Session 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Jeff Paschall/DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 726-1674 
 Estimated Time: 30 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Maintain and Improve 
Infrastructure and 
Facilities 

 
ITEM TITLE: 2014-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM, A COMMUNITY 

REINVESTMENT PLAN 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 
Review and provide direction for the recommended five-year Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP). 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

 
The City of Springfield’s 2014-2018 CIP – A Community Reinvestment Plan, has 
been drafted by staff, reviewed by the Planning Commission (February 5, 2013 and 
February 20, 2013), and is now being forwarded to the City Council for their 
review and comments prior to a Public Hearing at the March 18, 2013 regular 
session. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1:     Council Briefing Memorandum. 
Attachment 2:     Draft 2014-2018 Capital Improvement Program 
Attachment 3:     Planning Commission Approval Document 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

 
 

The draft City of Springfield 2014-2018 CIP, A Community Reinvestment Plan, 
was reviewed at the Planning Commission’s February 5, 2013 work session 
meeting.  The Commission voted to recommend Council approval of the plan at 
their February 20, 2013 meeting. 
 
The CIP attempts to balance the use of scarce capital construction funds with the 
long list of infrastructure needs for our community. It is not a document with 
budget authority, but it serves as a guide for programming funds and planning the 
annual workload of Development and Public Works staff. 
 
There are a few new projects proposed in the next five years of programmed 
funding, and we have completed several projects from previous year’s capital plans 
and staff is making significant headway on several of the projects from last year’s 
plan. These items are detailed in the attached Council Briefing Memorandum. 
 

 



M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield   

Attachment 1 – Page 1 of  4 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 2/24/2013  

To: Gino Grimaldi, City Manager COUNCIL 

From: Len Goodwin, Development and Public Works 
Director 
Jeff Paschall, P.E., Supervising Civil Engineer 

BRIEFING 
MEMORANDUM 

Subject: 2014-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM, A COMMUNITY 
REINVESTMENT PLAN 

 

ISSUE: The draft of the City of Springfield’s 2014-2018 Capital Improvement Program – A 
Community Reinvestment Plan (CIP)has been completed by staff, reviewed by the Planning 
Commission (February 5, 2013 and February 20, 2013), and is now being forwarded to the City 
Council for their review and comments prior to a Public Hearing at the March 18, 2013 regular 
session. 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities 
Maintaining and adopting an annual CIP is integral to implementing several Council Goals, but 
it is critical to maintaining and improving City owned infrastructure and facilities, or identifying 
new infrastructure needs as the City grows.  The CIP identifies the facilities concepts that may 
reasonably be expected to be required in the next five years, refines those concepts, and provides 
a priority list of projects.  The CIP is also a key tool for allocating available capital funding to 
the highest priority projects. 

BACKGROUND:   
The City of Springfield’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a five-year Community 
Reinvestment Plan that describes the near-term program for funding and construction of City 
public facilities.  A fundamental purpose of the CIP is to facilitate the efficient use of limited 
capital resources. The underlying concept is to program, for future expenditure, all reasonably 
available sources of revenue.  Since projected revenue is significantly less than the needs 
identified in the City’s infrastructure facilities plans, the CIP is also a vehicle to facilitate 
reconciliation, in the near term, of the competing priorities for scarce capital resources. 
 
The CIP is updated annually and is an intermediate step in a process that originates with long 
term planning activities that anticipate the need for public facilities at least 20 years into the 
future, and concludes with the adoption of the annual Capital Budget to appropriate funds for the 
ultimate construction of those facilities.  The cost of operation is separately included in the 
City’s operating budget. The CIP identifies the facilities concepts that may reasonably be 
expected to be required in the next five years, refines those concepts, and provides a priority list 
of projects.  Priority projects are selected from the long list of needed capital improvements 
identified in the various master plans and refinement plans adopted by the City Council.  
Traditionally, the principal constraint applied in developing the CIP is the realistic availability of 
financial resources to fund a project.  
 
Over the last year the construction of the first phase of the Jasper Trunk Line Extension has been 
completed and construction of the second phase is well under way.  The completion of the first 
two phases will open up the Jasper/Natron area to development by providing gravity sewer 
service. This summer, “A” Street and Thurston Road are set to be overlayed with $1.2 million in 
federal Surface Transportation Program funding.    In addition, work continues on several 



   

Attachment 1 – Page 2 of  4 

rehabilitation and upgrade projects, as well as the stormwater quality projects.   
 
The public input process for the CIP began in November when citizens, organizations, and City 
staff were asked to suggest projects for consideration in the CIP.  Staff reviewed and prioritized 
the projects, assembling a draft CIP the Planning Commission reviewed at their February 5, 
2013 work session and voted to forward to the Council at their February 20, 2013 meeting. After 
the Council reviews the CIP at work session, it is scheduled for a public hearing and adoption 
March 18, 2013. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
The 2014-2018 CIP includes those projects that are currently in the Capital Budget and in 
various stages of planning, design, and construction.  In addition, the CIP includes descriptions 
of projects that have been identified through various facilities planning efforts but do not 
currently have complete funding identified.  These projects are aimed at improving 
neighborhoods, providing for economic growth, improving traffic safety, mobility and access, 
complying with environmental standards, and maintaining the existing city infrastructure.  The 
following is a list of the most significant projects in the CIP and currently budgeted: 
 
Sewer Wet Weather Flow Abatement – The City continues to make the 
repair/rehabilitation/replacement of older wastewater pipes throughout the City to reduce 
leakage of ground water into the system a high priority in the Capital Improvement Program.  In 
2010, The City completed rehabilitation of the basins identified in the Wet Weather Flow 
Management Plan (WWFMP) adopted in 2001 by the City and the Metropolitan Wastewater 
Management Commission (MWMC).  Additionally, the City will have completed all of the 
identified rehabilitation in the 2008 Wastewater Master Plan by the end of the current fiscal 
year.    
 
Rather than update the WWFMP, the City, in conjunction with MWMC, is moving to a Capacity 
Management Operations and Maintenance (CMOM) program to remain in line with both State 
and Federal regulations.   This program may, in the future, identify additional preservation 
needs, as may an update to the Local Wastewater Management Plan.  
 
Jasper Trunk Sewer Extension – The Jasper Trunk Sewer Extension will provide sewer service 
to the Jasper/Natron urban growth area that is currently not serviced.  The City Council has 
made this a priority project to promote development and community growth.  In FY 2012 the 
project was divided into four separate construction contracts.  Construction on the first phase is 
complete, and construction on the second phase is underway with completion anticipated in the 
first quarter of FY 2014.  Construction of the first phase allowed for the decommissioning of the 
Lucerne Meadows Pump Station, which was due for major upgrades, and construction of the 
second phase will allow for the decommissioning of two more pump stations.  Additionally, the 
design for the final phases of the project, and acquisition of necessary easements will be 
complete by the end of FY 2013.  Funding for the project was secured through the issuance of 
revenue bonds in 2009. 
 
Franklin Boulevard Sanitary Sewer System Expansion – The expansion of the Franklin 
Boulevard Trunk Sewer extends the Glenwood wastewater system from the end of the existing 
trunk line in Franklin Boulevard south to the Urban Growth Boundary.  The City Council has 
made the redevelopment of Glenwood and the reconstruction of Franklin Boulevard a priority to 
promote development and community growth.  The City has recently applied for funding to 
begin construction of the roadway project, elevating the priority for the sewer extension project.  
Funding to begin the planning and design phase was programmed and budgeted in FY 2013.  It 
is proposed that construction funding be programmed for FY 2014 to ensure the sewer extension 



   

Attachment 1 – Page 3 of  4 

project is progressing ahead of any street construction work.  Funding for the project is secured 
through wastewater user fee collections.  
 
Franklin Boulevard Reconstruction – The City has secured $1.2 million in a combination of 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), Springfield Economic Development Agency 
(SEDA), Transportation System Development Charges (SDC), and Lane Transit District (LTD) 
funds to complete the required documentation under the National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA) prior to project development and delivery.  The NEPA process is recently underway, 
with the first step to clarify design elements and potential environmental impacts in order to 
reach agreement with Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and ODOT on the necessary 
level of environmental documentation.  In the coming months Council will be asked to support a 
‘build alternative’ that will likely be evaluated as either an Environmental Assessment (EA) or a 
Categorical Exclusion (CE).  The CE is much less expensive and time consuming than the EA, 
but may not be realistic based on the community’s values and goals for this project.  The 
Franklin concept endorsed by Council in 2008 envisions sections of improved arterial and 
sections of a multi-way boulevard treatment that includes access lanes and parking adjacent to 
the arterial.  Project elements include roundabout intersections, median control, relocated EmX 
station platforms, space preserved for future dedicated EmX guideways, and provision of high 
quality bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  The City has recently made application to the Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program (2015-2018 STIP) for $6 million, and will match that with 
a $3.5 to $5 million Oregon Transportation Infrastructure Bank loan to complete a Phase 1 
improvement from the Franklin/McVey intersection to a logical termini to the west.  
Construction is anticipated in 2016. 
 
Over-Under Channel Pipe Replacement – The Over-Under Channel is part of the City’s 
stormwater system serving mid-Springfield from 5th to 28th Streets and from Main Street to 
Highway 126.  The name of the Channel comes from the configuration of the system where 
stormwater is collected and conveyed in both an open channel and in a large pipe located under 
and adjacent to the channel.  A portion of the piped system, from the east side of Silke Field to 
the outfall of the system into the Q Street Channel at Moffitt School, is a corrugated metal arch 
pipe (CMP) installed in the late 1950’s and early 1960’s.  Staff has found that this CMP has 
reached the end of its useful life and is showing signs of corrosion and minor failures.  In FY 
2011, the City Council approved funding to design a replacement pipe system and identify the 
amount of additional funds needed for construction.  Staff has been gathering data and will hire a 
consultant to evaluate the drainage basin and make recommendations for rehabilitating or 
upgrading the Over-Under Channel Pipe in FY 2013.  It is anticipated that project design will 
begin in FY 2014.  
 
South 2nd Sewer Replacement  The City has begun work on a sewer replacement project in S. 
2nd Street as a result of a Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) experienced this past summer.  
Through a detailed evaluation of the existing sewer line, it was determined that replacement was 
the best course of action.  
 
Asset Management System Replacement Project – Replace failing Geographic Information 
Systems (GIS) and Facilities Management (FM) systems that manage electronic inventories of 
City infrastructure and provide reliable and well integrated information for asset management 
and mapping functions.  Functions serve activities such as planning, designing, constructing, 
maintaining, reporting, accounting, forecasting and operating City facilities, i.e., managing City 
facilities valued at approximately one billion dollars. Current phases of the project (wastewater 
and stormwater facilities information integration) are advancing under budget and on schedule to 
be completed FY13.  Should sufficient funds become available staff will request authorization to 
complete the Street Integration Phase.   



   

Attachment 1 – Page 4 of  4 

 
In addition to the above major projects, several other projects are also already budgeted and 
scheduled, including:  the Mill Race Stormwater Facility, Booth Kelly Drainage, and the 
restoration of the Lower Mill Race and Mill Race Outfalls. 
 
For the 2014-2018 CIP, a five-year outlook, one of the most significant aspects is the projection 
of a continued uncertainty in funding for street preservation projects.  The absence of regular 
street preservation activities in the CIP and capital and operating budgets has resulted in, a sharp 
decline in the condition of the local street system.  This has led the City to embark on a public 
outreach and education program to communicate the serious cost implications of deferring 
maintenance and preservation activities that had routinely been a part of both the operation and 
capital budget to maintain our $400 million (2008 value) transportation asset.  Staff is now 
engaged in an effort to develop and present revenue alternatives to the Council to recover from a 
period of deferred maintenance and preservation before end of life cycle of the asset.  Once a 
street segment reaches the end of its useful life it can no longer be preserved and must be 
reconstructed or allowed to completely deteriorate.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The CIP does not carry budget authority.  It is, however a valuable planning tool used to 
guide staff, the Budget Committee, and the City Council in creating the annual budget.  
Future maintenance impacts of projects are estimated where possible. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: The Council is requested to review and provide consensus 
for the recommended five-year CIP. The CIP, as modified by any Council input, will be 
brought back to the Council for public comment and adoption at their March 18, 2013, 
regular meeting. 
 

 



The City of Springfield, Oregon
Capital Improvement Program

A Community Reinvestment Plan 2014-2018

Attachment 2-1



 
 

   

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................... 1 
 
 
SECTION I   CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

CIP Goals ........................................................................................................................... 8 
CIP Project Development and Review Process ................................................................. 8 
Types of Capital Needs ...................................................................................................... 9 
Project Selection Resources .............................................................................................. 9 
Facilities Plans 

Wastewater Master Plan ..................................................................................... 9 
Stormwater Facilities Master Plan ..................................................................... 10 
Building and Facilities Preservation and Maintenance Work ............................ 11 

  Urban Renewal Plans ...................................................................................................... 12 
Land Use Plans 

Public Facilities and Services Plan ...................................................................... 12 
TransPlan ........................................................................................................... 13 
Refinement Plans ............................................................................................... 13  

 
 
SECTION II  FUNDING 

Capital Project Funding ................................................................................................... 17 
Systems Development Charges ...................................................................................... 18 
External Revenue Sources ............................................................................................... 19 
Other Revenues .............................................................................................................. 20 
City Accounting Funds Used for Capital Resources ........................................................ 20 

 
 
SECTION III  FINANCIAL SUMMARIES 

Financial Summaries—All Programs ............................................................................... 24 
 
 

SECTION IV   PROJECTS 
Projects Table of Contents .............................................................................................. 25 
Master Project Map ........................................................................................................ 26 

 
 
APPENDIX A 

Matrices ........................................................................................................................ 175 
 

Attachment 2-2



 
 

   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
INTRODUCTION 

The City of Springfield’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a five‐year Community Reinvestment Plan 
that  describes  the  near‐term  program  for  funding  and  construction  of  City  public  facilities.    A 
fundamental  purpose  of  the  CIP  is  to  facilitate  the  efficient  use  of  limited  capital  resources.  The 
underlying concept  is  to program,  for  future expenditure, all  reasonably available sources of  revenue. 
Since projected revenue is significantly less than the needs identified in the City’s infrastructure facilities 
plans,  the  CIP  is  used  as  the  vehicle  to  facilitate  reconciliation,  in  the  near  term,  of  the  competing 
priorities for scarce capital resources. 

The CIP  is updated  annually  and  is  an  intermediate  step  in  a process  that originates with  long  term 
planning  activities  that  anticipate  the need  for public  facilities  at  least  20  years  into  the  future,  and 
concludes  with  the  adoption  of  the  annual  Capital  Budget  to  appropriate  funds  for  the  ultimate 
construction  of  those  facilities.    The  cost  of  operation  is  separately  included  in  the  City’s  operating 
budget. The CIP identifies the facilities concepts that may reasonably be expected to be required in the 
next  five  years,  refines  those  concepts,  and  provides  a  priority  list  of  projects.    Priority  projects  are 
selected  from the  long  list of needed capital  improvements  identified  in  the various master plans and 
refinement  plans  adopted  by  the  City  Council.    Traditionally,  the  principal  constraint  applied  in 
developing the CIP is the realistic availability of financial resources to fund a project.  

Once included in the CIP, the next step is to prepare the City’s annual Capital Budget which draws from 
the first year of the CIP, with such modifications as are necessary or prudent to respond to  immediate 
concerns and the often fluid nature of funding opportunities.   In preparation of the capital budget  it  is 
important to consider not only the immediate availability of financial resources, but also the availability 
of  resources  to manage  design  and  construction.  This may mean  staff  resources  to  conduct  those 
activities  in house, or staff resources to manage consultants who take on responsibility for design and 
construction management. A successful capital budget must be mindful of budgeting only those projects 
or project phases that the City has the staff resources to deliver.   The Development and Public Works 
Department  maintains  two  capital  project  delivery  groups,  one  for  the  delivery  of  local  projects 
presented  in  this  document  and  the  second  for  delivery  of  regional  projects  for  the Metropolitan 
Wastewater  Management  Commission  capital  improvement  program.    At  present  the  local  capital 
projects and regional capital projects groups coordinate project management and support resources.  As 
part of the reorganization and merger of the Development Services and Public Works Departments an 
Infrastructure Planner was added to the capital projects group to leverage the advancement of current 
high priority capital needs.  

The 2014‐2018 CIP includes those projects that are currently in the Capital Budget and in various stages 
of planning, design, and construction.    In addition,  the CIP  includes descriptions of projects  that have 
been  identified  through various  facilities planning efforts but do not currently have complete  funding 
identified.    These  projects  are  aimed  at  improving  neighborhoods,  providing  for  economic  growth, 

Attachment 2-3



improving traffic safety, mobility and access, complying with environmental standards, and maintaining 
the existing city infrastructure.   

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW 

The public  input process  for  the CIP  typically begins  in October when citizens, organizations, and City 
staff are asked to suggest projects for consideration  in the CIP.   The Planning Commission and the City 
Council then review the draft CIP and a public hearing is held prior to Council adoption.  

 OCTOBER: CIP PROJECT REVIEW PROCESS STARTS 
 OCTOBER: CAPITAL PROJECT REQUESTS GO TO PUBLIC AND CITY DEPARTMENTS 
 NOVEMBER/DECEMBER: PUBLISH INTERNAL DRAFT CIP 
 NOVEMBER TO JANUARY: BEGIN INTERNAL DRAFT CIP REVIEW 
 FEBRUARY: PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEWS DRAFT CIP 
 MARCH: CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION REVIEW AND PUBLIC HEARING ON DRAFT CIP 
 APRIL:  CAPITAL  BUDGET PRESENTED TO BUDGET COMMITTEE  

The  City’s  final  commitment  to  spend  public  funds  occurs  through  the  annual  City  budget  process. 
Although the CIP is the starting point for the annual Capital Budget, the projects actually budgeted each 
year can vary somewhat from those proposed in the CIP.   

PROJECT CATEGORIZATION 

Projects  in the CIP are grouped first by the relevant  infrastructure system (stormwater, transportation, 
wastewater, buildings and  facilities, and miscellaneous) and then by the status of project  funding. For 
historical  purposes,  the  CIP  also  includes  projects  that  have  been  completed  within  the  past  year.  
Project  funding  includes  four  categories:  In  Process,  Funding  Programmed,  Funding  Partially 
Programmed  and  Funding Not  Programmed.    In  Process  are  those  projects  that  are  currently  in  the 
Capital  Improvement  Program,  in  the  Capital  Budget,  and  in  planning,  design  and/or  construction.  
Funding  Programmed  is  the  category  of  those  highest  priority  projects  for which most  or  all  of  the 
funding has been clearly  identified, and the City has taken appropriate steps to make sure the funding 
will be available in a timely fashion.   Partially funded projects are those higher priority projects where a 
portion  of  the  funding  has  been  identified  but  additional  funding  is  needed  before  the  project  can 
proceed.    Projects  that  do  not  have  any  funding  programmed  are multiple  levels  of  existing  priority 
projects with funding sources that are presently unknown.  The proposed CIP reflects prioritizations by 
staff based on a set of objective criteria designed  to maximize  the efficiency of using available capital 
resources. The criteria shown in Appendix A provide clarity on how prioritization decisions are made. 

The following is a list of the City’s most significant projects in the CIP: 

Sewer  Wet  Weather  Flow  Abatement  –  The  City  continues  to  make  the 
repair/rehabilitation/replacement of older wastewater pipes  throughout  the City  to reduce  leakage of 
ground water into the system as a high priority in the Capital Improvement Program.  In 2010, The City 
completed rehabilitation of the basins identified in the Wet Weather Flow Management Plan (WWFMP) 

Attachment 2-4



     
 

adopted  in  2001  by  the  City  and  the Metropolitan Wastewater Management  Commission  (MWMC).    
Additionally,  the City will have  completed  all of  the  identified  rehabilitation  in  the 2008 Wastewater 
Master Plan by the end of the current fiscal year.    

 

Rather  than  update  the  WWFMP,  the  City,  in  conjunction  with  MWMC,  is  moving  to  a  Capacity 
Management Operations  and Maintenance  (CMOM)  program  to  remain  in  line with  both  State  and 
Federal regulations.   This program may, in the future, identify additional preservation needs, as may an 
update to the Local Wastewater Management Plan.  

South 2nd  Sewer Replacement  ‐‐  The City has begun work on  a  sewer  replacement project  in  S. 2nd 
Street as a result of a Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) experienced this past summer, and work continues 
on several sewer upgrade projects and the Jasper Trunk Sewer Extension with completion expected  in 
mid‐2013. 

  
Jasper  Trunk  Sewer  Extension  –  The  Jasper  Trunk  Sewer  Extension will  provide  sewer  service  to  the 
Jasper/Natron urban growth area that is currently not serviced.  The City Council has made this a priority 
project to promote development and community growth.  In FY 2012 the project was divided into four 
separate construction contracts.   Construction on the first phase  is complete, and construction on the 
second phase is underway with completion anticipated in the first quarter of FY 2014.  Construction of 
the first phase allowed for the decommissioning of the Lucerne Meadows Pump Station, which was due 
for major upgrades, and construction of  the  second phase will allow  for  the decommissioning of  two 
more  pump  stations.   Additionally,  the  design  for  the  final  phases  of  the  project,  and  acquisition  of 
necessary  easements will be  complete by  the  end of  FY 2013.    Funding  for  the project was  secured 
through the issuance of revenue bonds in 2009. 
 
Franklin Boulevard Sanitary Sewer System Expansion – The expansion of  the Franklin Boulevard Trunk 
Sewer  extends  the Glenwood wastewater  system  from  the  end of  the  existing  trunk  line  in  Franklin 
Boulevard  south  to  the Urban Growth  Boundary.    The  City  Council  has made  the  redevelopment  of 
Glenwood  and  the  reconstruction  of  Franklin  Boulevard  a  priority  to  promote  development  and 
community  growth.    The  City has  recently  applied  for  funding  to begin  construction of  the  roadway 
project, elevating the priority for the sewer extension project.  Funding to begin the planning and design 
phase  was  programmed  and  budgeted  in  FY  2013.    It  is  proposed  that  construction  funding  be 
programmed  for  FY  2014  to  ensure  the  sewer  extension  project  is  progressing  ahead  of  any  street 
construction work.  Funding for the project is secured through wastewater user fee collections.  
 
Franklin Boulevard Reconstruction – The City has secured $1.2 million in a combination of Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (MPO), Springfield Economic Development Agency (SEDA), Transportation System 
Development Charges (SDC), and Lane Transit District (LTD) funds to complete the required 
documentation under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) prior to project development and 
delivery.  The NEPA process is recently underway, with the first step to clarify design elements and 

Attachment 2-5



potential environmental impacts in order to reach agreement with Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) and ODOT on the necessary level of environmental documentation.  In the coming months 
Council will be asked to support a ‘build alternative’ that will likely be evaluated as either an 
Environmental Assessment (EA) or a Categorical Exclusion (CE).  The CE is much less expensive and time 
consuming than the EA, but may not be realistic based on the community’s values and goals for this 
project.  The Franklin concept endorsed by Council in 2008 envisions sections of improved arterial and 
sections of a multi‐way boulevard treatment that includes access lanes and parking adjacent to the 
arterial.  Project elements include roundabout intersections, median control, relocated EmX station 
platforms, space preserved for future dedicated EmX guideways, and provision of high quality bicycle 
and pedestrian facilities.  The City has recently made application to the Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program (2015‐2018 STIP) for $6 million, and will match that with a $3.5 to $5 million 
Oregon Transportation Infrastructure Bank loan to complete a Phase 1 improvement from the 
Franklin/McVey intersection to a logical termini to the west.  Construction is anticipated in 2016.     

Over‐Under  Channel  Pipe  Replacement  –  The  Over‐Under  Channel  is  part  of  the  City’s  stormwater 
system  serving mid‐Springfield  from 5th  to 28th  Streets  and  from Main  Street  to Highway 126.   The 
name of  the Channel comes  from  the configuration of  the system where stormwater  is collected and 
conveyed  in both an open channel and  in a  large pipe  located under and adjacent  to  the channel.   A 
portion of  the piped  system,  from  the east  side of Silke Field  to  the outfall of  the  system  into  the Q 
Street Channel at Moffitt School, is a corrugated metal arch pipe (CMP) installed in the late 1950’s and 
early 1960’s.  Staff has found that this CMP has reached the end of its useful life and is showing signs of 
corrosion and minor  failures.    In FY 2011,  the City Council approved  funding  to design a  replacement 
pipe  system  and  identify  the  amount  of  additional  funds  needed  for  construction.    Staff  has  been 
gathering data and will hire a consultant to evaluate the drainage basin and make recommendations for 
rehabilitating or upgrading the Over‐Under Channel Pipe in FY 2013.  It is anticipated that project design 
will begin in FY 2014.   

FINANCING 

There are limited sources of funding for capital activity. The principal sources include revenues derived 
from user  fees or  those  taxes  (such as  fuel  taxes) which  function  like user  fees. By Council direction, 
these are preferentially devoted to preservation of existing  infrastructure. The second major source  is 
Systems  Development  Charges  (SDC),  which  are  designed  to  recover,  from  development,  the  cost 
impact that development has on  infrastructure, both existing and needed to meet the future demands 
of  development. A  large  portion  of  these  revenues must,  by  law,  be  devoted  to  capacity  increasing 
capital activity. Only  that portion of SDC  revenue which  is derived  from a  reimbursement  fee may be 
expended for preservation of existing infrastructure. Council has taken steps to temporarily reduce SDC 
revenues  in an attempt  to provide  local economic stimulus. A  third major source of capital  funding  is 
external contributions,  in  the  form of  intergovernmental grants or  loans, payments by developers  for 
specific improvements, and assessments of benefitted property owners, also for specific improvements. 
Other  sources  such as  revenue  leveraged by  tax  increment  financing  in  the City’s  two urban  renewal 
districts, and revenue from internally generated charges also play a role (at present a minor one).  

Attachment 2-6



     
 

In addition to fund direct project construction, Local Wastewater and Drainage SDC revenues fund debt 
service payments for bonds sold to fund prior projects. These projects include both those that increased 
capacity as well as smaller preservation projects as part of continuing preservation programs.  The City 
sold local wastewater revenue bonds in March, 2009 to fund Environmental Protection Agency ordered 
sanitary  sewer  rehabilitation  work  and  the  Jasper  Trunk  Line  Extension.    The  City  also  sold  storm 
drainage revenue bonds in October, 2010 to fund several major stormwater initiatives, and a number of 
capital projects related to the City’s obligation to address stormwater quality, permitting and threatened 
fish impacts.1  It is anticipated by the end of the first quarter of FY 2014 that the 2009 wastewater bond 
proceeds will have been spent.  When the bonds were sold, the expectation was to complete the more 
than  40,000  linear  feet  of  rehabilitation  required  in  the  2001 WWFMP  and  the  Jasper  Trunk  Line 
Extension. However, as a result of the favorable bidding climate occasion by the recent recession, over 
85,000  linear  feet of  sanitary  sewer pipe  rehabilitation was  completed,  as well  as  the  installation of 
11,150 linear feet of sanitary sewer upgrades, and 11,100 linear feet of the Jasper Trunk Line Extension.  
With  the number of high priority projects accomplished with  the  initial bond proceeds,  future bonds 
sales  can be postponed beyond 2014, unless Council  finds  it necessary  to elevate  the priority of  the 
remaining projects driven by growth and community development. 

Capital preservation activities on  the City’s  street  system have been greatly  curtailed over  the past 5 
years as current revenue streams have been insufficient to support these activities. Significant cuts were 
made  in both FY 2009 and FY 2010, with no preservation projects occurring on the  local street system 
except those funded through State or Federal grant programs.  With the initiation in FY 2012 of a right of 
way use fee for the storm and sanitary utilities a small transfer of funding for street capital projects has 
been made  possible  through  2016;  however  a  continued  shortfall  in  funding  for  transportation  and 
street projects  is projected.    For  the  2014‐2018 CIP,  a  five‐year outlook, one of  the most  significant 
aspects  is  the projection of  a  continued uncertainty  in  funding  for  street preservation projects.    The 
absence  of  regular  street  preservation  activities  in  the  CIP  and  capital  and  operating  budgets  has 
resulted in, a sharp decline in the condition of the local street system.  This has led  the City to embark 
on a public outreach and education program to communicate the serious cost implications of deferring 
maintenance and preservation activities that had routinely been a part of both the operation and capital 
budget to maintain our $400 million (2008 value) transportation asset.  Staff is now engaged in an effort 
to  develop  and  present  revenue  alternatives  to  the  Council  to  recover  from  a  period  of  deferred 
maintenance and preservation before end of life cycle of the asset.  Once a street segment reaches the 
end of its useful life it can no longer be preserved and must be reconstructed or allowed to completely 
deteriorate.   

A second significant aspect of the funding scenario  is the continuing  imbalance between user fees and 
SDCs as sources of capital funding. City staff has documented that in many cases user fees are funding a 
disproportionate share of capital projects.   This condition continued even with the full  implementation 
of the revised local sewer and storm drainage SDCs that went into effect January 1, 2011 as a result of 
updated  facilities  plans  for  this  infrastructure  as  a  result  of  the  sluggish  improvement  in  current 
economic conditions..  These plans identify significant new capital project and financing needs, and the 
                                                            
1 For bonding purposes, the local wastewater and stormwater utilities are combined into a single sewer utility. 

Attachment 2-7



SDC methodologies  and  charges were  updated  to  reflect  new  projects  and  costs.    Even  though  the 
increases in SDC rates tend to restore a proper balance between user fees and SDCs as a revenue source 
for infrastructure financing, SDCs are designed to build up reserves of funding to permit construction of 
larger  projects  that  typically  provide  capacity  for  community  growth  and  development,  not  provide 
immediate resources. The build‐up of SDC reserves has been slowed due  to continued sluggishness  in 
the economy and new development, and the previously mentioned decision to temporarily reduce SDCs  
as an attempt at local economic stuimulus. In the last couple of years, we have seen the reverse trend of 
the SDC  reserves diminishing,  increasing  the number of programs and projects  that can no  longer be 
sustained by the SDC funds    

External  sources,  such  as  intergovernmental  grants,  or  developer  or  benefitted  property  owner 
contributions, are an important, but highly volatile funding source. Generally they do not form the basis 
for concluding a project can be funded, but rather when such funding sources develop, can be a trigger 
to  increase  the priority of  a project. Recently,  the City has had  some  success  in developing  external 
funding  for  isolated  projects,  such  as  the Mill  Race  Restoration,  ‘A’  Street  Overlay,  Thurston  Road 
Overlay,  and  the Glenwood  Connector  Path.  Future  success  is  highly  dependent  upon  the  fiscal  and 
monetary policies of other levels of government. For example, the current Congressional prohibition on 
the practice of “earmarking” funds has reduced the possibility of securing direct appropriations from the 
Congress, but may positively affect the ability of the City to secure federal grants. 

There are a number of projects added to the CIP for which there are no identified funding sources. 
Because of limited revenues, even many of the projects traditionally listed in the CIP cannot be funded 
during the next five years.  These projects are shown in the CIP to make it possible for the Council and 
the public to better understand the scope of the City’s infrastructure need and compare that need to 
the resources presently available, and provide the basis for developing long‐term capital financing 
strategies. 

Following is a chart showing annual project funding needs and resources. 

 

Attachment 2-8



     
 

 

CONCLUSION 

The Capital Improvement Program serves as a guide for the City’s needed improvements.  It is shaped by 
citizen  input,  the best professional  judgment of  staff and outside experts, and estimates of  the City’s 
projected financial resources. The CIP is subject to annual review and revision. The direction provided by 
this document helps the City of Springfield target its resources to capital improvements which best serve 
the  needs  of  the  citizens  of  Springfield.    The  CIP  is  available  on  the  web  for  public  viewing  at 
http://www.springfield‐or.gov/Pubworks/CIP_Program.htm.  

   

Attachment 2-9



SECTION I   CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
CIP GOALS 

The goals of the CIP include: 

1) Providing a balanced program for capital improvements given reasonably anticipated funding 
over a five‐year or greater planning period and identifying the extent to which resources can 
meet capital needs; 

2) Improving neighborhoods;  
3) Providing for economic and community growth;  
4) Improving safety, access, and mobility of transportation modes;  
5) Complying with environmental standards and improving environmental quality;  
6) Maintaining the existing City infrastructure; and   
7) Protect public health and safety. 

CIP PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW PROCESS 

Capital  improvements must  be  consistent with  the Metropolitan  Area General  Comprehensive  Plan, 
including  the  Public  Facilities  and  Services  Plan  and  TransPlan  (the  transportation  element  of  the 
Comprehensive Plan), and all other Council adopted plans and policies. The relevant plans are listed in a 
subsequent section of this report.   

In general, all Capital Projects included in the CIP meet one or more of the following criteria: 

1) Project addresses State or Federal  laws or regulations to eliminate or reduce the potential  for 
environmental  degradation  or  health  hazards  or  to  address  issues  that  affect  the  safety  and 
general welfare of the community. 

2) Project maintains  existing  assets,  extends  the  useful  life  of  assets,  or  improves  or  expands 
infrastructure to facilitate community development and/or improve operations. 

3) Project  responds  to  requests  from  citizens,  neighborhood  groups,  advisory  committees,  or 
government bodies, and provides a public benefit. 

4) Project is included in local and/or regional infrastructure plans. 

Once the need for a capital improvement has been determined, those improvements are evaluated with 
a project prioritization matrix (Appendix A) that has been developed for evaluating and ranking projects 
within each system to prioritize programming of scarce capital funding.   In the adopted CIP only those 
capital  improvements which  are  funded within  the  current  projections  for  the  appropriate  revenue 
streams are considered adopted.   Projects  for which  the  funding  is not  identified or programmed are 
shown  strictly  for  informational  purposes  only.  Historically,  the  CIP  has  not  attempted  to  consider 
whether or not the City has the operating resources (either staff or funding for consultants to manage 
projects), necessary to advance a particular project. 

Attachment 2-10



     
 

TYPES OF CAPITAL NEED  

Rehabilitation & Preservation of Existing Capital Assets  

The CIP reflects the broad direction of the City Council as set forth in the Financial Management Policies 
to preserve existing capital assets before they fall into disrepair and require expensive rehabilitation or 
replacement. Preservation  is an  important  tool used  to protect or extend a City asset’s useful  life.    If 
preservation doesn’t happen on a regular basis, the asset will deteriorate prematurely and its benefit to 
the  community will  be  lost.  In  that  event  reconstruction may  be  required.  Reconstruction  costs  are 
frequently multiple times the cost of preservation and maintenance, particularly for street surfaces.  

Rehabilitation is necessary for some capital assets and the City must demonstrate fiscal responsibility by 
planning  for  this  need.    Inclusion  of  these  projects  in  the  CIP  is  a  necessary  task  to  plan  for  that 
rehabilitation. 

New Capital Facilities and Capacity Enhancements 

As the City reaches outward into the Urban Growth Boundary or anticipates infill or increased density of 
development  in  the city  limits,  the need  to plan  for expansion of capital assets and provide  safe and 
efficient  capital  facilities  increases. New  streets are necessary  to provide  for  the movement of goods 
and people and access to property in developing areas. In addition, wastewater and stormwater systems 
are necessary  to protect water quality and  the environment  in order  to preserve  the health, welfare, 
and safety of the community. 

PROJECT SELECTION RESOURCES 

The following is a list of various plans with descriptive summaries that guide the decisions made about 
CIP project choice. The City draws a distinction between facilities plans, which focus on facility needs 
and how systems function, and land use plans, which provide more general guidance.  General guidance 
can inform the development of facilities plans, and can constrain facility development to conform to the 
policy set of the land use planning document. (TransPlan is somewhat of an exception to these 
distinctions, since it is a land use plan that also serves as a facilities plan and does contain specific 
project guidance.) 

FACILITIES PLANS 

Wastewater Master Plan (2008) 

The City of Springfield provides wastewater collection and conveyance services by way of a system of 
pipelines  and  pump  stations  that  it  owns  and  operates.    Along with  the  City  of  Eugene,  Springfield 
discharges  to  a  regional  collection  and  treatment  system  owned  by  the Metropolitan Wastewater 
Management Commission  (MWMC).   Springfield’s Wastewater Master Plan provides an assessment of 
existing and  future needs  for  the City’s collection  system.   Because  the City’s  system connects  to  the 
regional system, the Master Plan must consider and reflect results of the MWMC’s Wet Weather Flow 
Management Plan (WWFMP), which  identifies system maintenance and rehabilitation activities for the 
wastewater collection and treatment facilities  in the Eugene‐Springfield metropolitan area.   Therefore, 

Attachment 2-11



Springfield’s plan provides a local solution for existing and future needs within the context of the similar 
regional solution. 

The Master  Plan  is  intended  to  identify  existing  and  future  capacity  constraints,  determine  capacity 
requirements and identify system improvements necessary to meet the City’s projected population and 
employment growth  through  the 2025 planning year.   The Department of Environmental Quality has 
issued  a  National  Pollutant  Discharge  Elimination  System  (NPDES)  permit  (#102486)  for  Springfield, 
Eugene and MWMC, which  includes conditions under which  treated wastewater can be discharged  to 
the Willamette River. Included in those conditions is a requirement that Springfield, Eugene and MWMC 
fully implement a wet weather flow management strategy to comply with the State’s Bacteria Standard, 
which  prohibits  storm  related  overflows.  The  standard  states  that  no  untreated wastewater  can  be 
discharged  to  the waters of  the State or US, except under  the  following conditions;  for  flows greater 
than those occurring for the 24‐hour duration, 1 in 5‐year winter and 1 in 10‐year summer storms. These 
conditions  formed  the baseline assumptions  for overflow avoidance  in  this plan and were  consistent 
with  the  assumptions  of  the WWFMP, which  included  a  number  flow  reduction  projects  that were 
completed before the December 31, 2009 regulatory deadline. 

Subsequent  to  the  development  and  completion  of  the  WWFMP,  the  Oregon  Department  of 
Environmental Quality, in response to an objection from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), is 
no longer permitted to include the exceptions for untreated wastewater discharges as provided by the 
State’s  Bacteria  Standard.  DEQ  is  currently  placing  a  prohibition  on  all  overflows  from  wastewater 
conveyance systems and associated pump stations. All NPDES permits issued beginning in August 2009 
must  contain  the  prohibition.  This  regulatory  change  places  additional  burden  on  the  conveyance 
system operation and maintenance to eliminate all wet weather related overflows.   The NPDES permit 
for  the  regional wastewater  treatment  plant  is  scheduled  for  renewal  in  2013  and will  contain  the 
prohibition of all overflows absent a change of policy from EPA.  

Stormwater Facilities Master Plan (2008) 

In 2008,  the City Council adopted a  comprehensive Stormwater Facilities Master Plan  (SWFMP).   The 
purpose of  this document  is  to provide a guide  to plan  for more comprehensive, efficient, and multi‐
objective management of the City’s stormwater system.   The majority of the City’s stormwater runoff 
drains  through  an  integrated network of pipes  and open  channels, discharging  either  directly  to  the 
main  stem Willamette or McKenzie Rivers or  through outfalls  to a  tributary of either of  those  rivers.  
Prior  to  the  SWFMP,  the City  typically designed  and  constructed  facilities  for  treating  and  conveying 
stormwater runoff on an individual development or site‐by‐site basis.  In addition, as is typical for nearly 
all cities, most of the City’s stormwater collection and conveyance system was historically designed and 
built with the sole objective of addressing flooding issues.   

Most of  the major portions of  the City’s stormwater drainage system  infrastructure were built during 
the  1960s  and  as development  increased,  the  system was  retrofitted with  extensions  and  additions. 
Most of the main conveyance system was not upsized to facilitate the  increased flows associated with 
full City build out.   

Attachment 2-12



     
 

The City also has a Council‐adopted Stormwater Management Plan which establishes goals, policies and 
implementation actions to address water quality and management of the stormwater system, including 
open waterways within the City’s jurisdiction.  This plan is required and approved by the Department of 
Environmental  Quality  as  part  of  its  issuance  and management  of  the  City’s  stormwater  discharge 
permit. Additionally, the Willamette River and McKenzie River (a tributary to the Willamette River) are 
listed on  the State’s 303(d)  list  indicating  that water quality  standards  for  specific pollutants  in  these 
streams  are  currently  not  being  met.    The  City  must  address  Total  Maximum  Daily  Load  (TMDL) 
limitations  on  the  level  of  certain  pollutants  (temperature,  bacteria,  and  mercury)  through 
implementation of the Stormwater Management Plan and the TMDL Implementation Plan.  These plans 
and  requirements  impact  the  nature  and  design  of  capital  projects  that  are  constructed  to manage 
stormwater. 

Building & Facilities Preservation and Maintenance Work Plan (2011) 

This plan  identifies and addresses  capital  improvement needs at City owned buildings,  including: City 
Hall, Springfield Justice Center, Springfield Museum, fire stations, Public Works maintenance buildings, 
and  the Depot.  The Plan, which  is  in  its  first year of development, derives  from a  report prepared  in 
2006  by  the  consulting  firm  DLR  Group.  That  report  provided  a  snapshot  of  repairs  and  asset 
preservation  improvements  that  are  immediately evident,  and which have been deferred  for  various 
reasons,  together with  ongoing maintenance  needs  and  necessary  replacement  of  building  systems 
expected to reach the end of their useful life during the next 30 years. 

The City continues  to  face several critical building/facilities operations, maintenance and preservation 
issues.    The  DLR  Buildings  Condition  Report  (DLR)  identified  $600K  deferred/backlog  facilities  repair 
needs and $300K ongoing annual maintenance/preservation needs. In FY 2009, the City implemented an 
Internal Building Preservation Charge and programmed $300k  for ongoing preservation and $200k  to 
start addressing the backlog projects, and $300k is anticipated for the FY 2013 budget.  The first priority 
of staff charged with this capital program was to develop the City Buildings/Facilities Work Plan inclusive 
of  all  City  Fire  Stations,  City  Hall,  Springfield  Justice  Center,  Public  Works  maintenance  facilities, 
Springfield Depot, Carter Building. This 5‐year work plan is reviewed and updated annually, and used as 
the basis for project budgeting each fiscal year.   

Additionally,  there  are  other  project  management  responsibilities  related  to  public  buildings  and 
facilities maintenance  and  preservations  that  have  been  identified  through  previously  adopted  CIP 
documents, such as preservation projects at the Depot and Booth Kelly and demolition of the Carpenter 
shed and gun range at Booth Kelly.  Any future building needs such as new fire station construction will 
be addressed through the CIP process. 

   

Attachment 2-13



URBAN RENEWAL PLANS 

Downtown Urban Renewal Plan (2007) 

The primary goal of the Downtown Urban Renewal Plan is to assist in the revitalization of business and 
elimination of blight  in the downtown area.   The Downtown Urban Renewal Plan has projects  listed to 
obtain these goals.  The plan’s projects include: 

 Improvements to streets, sidewalks, bike ways and pathways; 
 Improvements to water, storm and sanitary sewer infrastructure; 
 Improve the visual appearance of the downtown area; 
 Improve and expand the existing public parking facilities; 
 Financial assistance to rehabilitate existing properties and encourage new construction; 
 Acquisition and disposal of land for public improvements. 

Glenwood Urban Renewal Plan (1999, updated 2004) 

The primary goal of the Glenwood Urban Renewal Plan is to eliminate blighting influences found in the 
Renewal Area.  The Glenwood Urban Renewal Plan has projects listed to obtain these goals.  The plan’s 
projects include: 

 Promote private development and redevelopment; 
 Rehabilitate building stock; 
 Improvements to streets, sidewalks, bike ways, pathways, streetscapes, parks, and open spaces; 
 Utility improvements; 
 Parking; 
 Public facilities; 
 Housing; 
 Public signage and community gateway entrance improvements. 

LAND USE PLANS 

Public Facilities and Services Plan 

The Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP) is an element of the Eugene‐Springfield Metropolitan Area 
General Plan (Metro Plan). It is the element which identifies significant facilities in general terms and 
confirms that those facilities are consistent with the planning policies set out in the Metro Plan. The 
projects identified in the PFSP are generally a subset of the projects contained in the various facilities 
plans. The PFSP does not identify transportation projects, which are covered in TransPlan, but does 
identify wastewater and stormwater projects, among others. The PFSP does not, nor should it, identify 
every project; it includes only those projects identified as significant on the basis of definitions set forth 
in the PFSP. 

 

 

Attachment 2-14



     
 

TransPlan (2002) 

The Eugene‐Springfield Metropolitan Area Transportation Plan (TransPlan) is the transportation element 
of the Eugene‐Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan. While adopted as a refinement to MetroPlan, 
and  therefore  technically  a  land  use  plan,  TransPlan  is  also  intended  as  a  system  facilities  plan  that 
guides  local  and  regional  transportation  system planning  and development  in  the  Eugene‐Springfield 
metropolitan area. TransPlan also serves as the City’s facilities plan as well as its transportation system 
plan, or TSP for identifying projects needed to meet the transportation demand of residents over a 20‐
year planning horizon while addressing transportation issues and making changes that can contribute to 
improvements  in  the  region’s  quality  of  life  and  economic  vitality.    In  addition  to  roadway  facilities, 
TransPlan also calls for significant increases in the amount and convenience of transit service, increases 
in the amount of bikeways and sidewalks, and an expansion of the existing program of transportation 
demand management (TDM) travel incentives. TransPlan is a jointly adopted document that serves as a 
local  transportation  system plan  for both  Springfield  and  Eugene.        In 2011,  Springfield  and Eugene 
adopted  separate  urban  growth  boundaries.      One  outcome  of  that  action  is  that  the  City  is  now 
developing a new Springfield‐specific Transportation System Plan  (TSP) as part of  implementation of a 
City stand alone urban growth boundary.  The current TransPlan will remain in force until the new TSP is 
adopted by Council and acknowledged by the State, which is anticipated to occur in calendar 2012.   The 
CIP  includes a project describing  the costs and  resources available  to Springfield  to complete  the TSP 
Project.  The  TransPlan  theme,  ‘Improving  Our  Transportation  Choices’,  reflects  the  plan’s  focus  to 
provide citizens with a range of safe, convenient, and efficient transportation options characterized by 
smooth connections between modes.  TransPlan strives to support the need to diversify transportation 
choices,  while  avoiding  reliance  on  any  one  transportation  mode  or  method  of  managing  the 
transportation system.   TransPlan establishes the framework upon which all public agencies can make 
consistent and coordinated planning decisions regarding inter‐ and intra‐jurisdictional transportation.   

Refinement Plans 

Downtown Refinement Plan (1986, updated 2005) 

The primary goal of the Springfield Downtown Refinement Plan is to provide goals and policies through 
which downtown Springfield may become a more vital and attractive place to shop, conduct business, 
and recreate.  Goals were set forth to guide this revitalization.  These goals are: 

 Create a pedestrian and transit friendly downtown; 
 Preserve the past; 
 Reconnect to key natural resource features; 
 Encourage evening activity in the downtown; 
 Create new opportunities for office, commercial, residential, civic, and mixed uses; 
 Ensure adequate parking; 

Attachment 2-15



 Create civic gathering places; 
 Create downtown partnerships; 
 Identify catalyst projects; 
 Create a positive identity for downtown. 

East Kelly Butte Neighborhood Plan (1992) 

The primary goal of  the East Kelly Butte Neighborhood Plan  is  to address  the concerns of  the citizens 
living within the East Kelly Butte Neighborhood.  Goals were set to address these concerns.  The goals of 
the neighborhood plan are: 

 Encourage a variety of land uses and housing opportunities; 
 Provide a safe and effective transportation system; 
 Provide and maintain public facilities and services; 
 Improve the character and identity of the neighborhood.  

East Main Refinement Plan (1988) 

The primary goal of the East Main Refinement Plan is to address the concerns of the citizens living within 
the East Main Refinement Plan Neighborhood.  Goals were set to address these concerns.  The goals of 
the refinement plan are: 

 Provide affordable housing for all segments of the population; 
 Allow flexibility for large vacant areas that are surrounded by mixed uses; 
 Provide for commercial centers which meet the needs of the community; 
 Encourage additional industrial development which is compatible with surrounding uses; 
 Enhance and develop the natural and built environment; 
 Develop recreational facilities which fill the needs of the area; 
 Create a safe and efficient street system; 
 Provide safe, efficient and convenient bicycle facilities. 

Gateway Refinement Plan (1992) 

The primary goal of the Gateway Refinement Plan is to refine and augment the Eugene‐Springfield 
Metropolitan Area General Plan to provide specificity for site‐specific land use decisions, and to identify 
the near and long‐term public facilities needs to support development and livability of the area.  This 
plan incorporates goals and policies, controls and design standards in areas where protections need to 
be stringent.  These elements are: 

 Community and Economic Development; 
 Residential; 
 Commercial; 
 Industrial; 

   

Attachment 2-16



     
 

 Natural Assets, Open Space/Scenic Areas, and Recreation; 
 Historic Resources; 
 Transportation; and 
 Public Facilities. 

Glenwood Refinement Plan (1999, updated 2012) 

The primary goal of the Phase I Glenwood Refinement Plan Update was to facilitate redevelopment in 
Springfield.   The plan establishes a preferred outcome for the Glenwood Riverfront based on the 
successful implementation of the Plan’s vision, policies, and standards.  The plan identifies the density, 
mix, type, and location of housing, employment land, and public open space and the required level of 
public facilities to support projected demand.  The community vision for Glenwood is articulated in the 
following goal statements: 

o Improve public connections to the Willamette River. 
o Establish inviting public spaces, including parks, plazas, and multi‐use paths. 
o Encourage aesthetically pleasing, sustainable buildings and sites that are context‐sensitive and 

oriented to human activity.  
o Provide opportunities for the installation, display, and creation of public art. 
o Allow for a mix of uses suitable to the unique development opportunities in Glenwood. 
o Provide opportunities for the development of a variety of housing types to meet the needs of a 

range of households. 
o Facilitate opportunities for businesses to provide goods and services to local, regional, 

statewide, national, and international markets. 
o Restore, enhance, and protect the ecological function of natural resources, and increase public 

awareness of these resources. 
o Protect the public from potential natural and manmade hazards. 
o Celebrate Glenwood’s contributions to the region’s historic development. 
o Enhance the transportation system to improve safety, convenience, and movement for all 

modes of travel, including vehicles, trains, public transit, bicycles, and pedestrians. 
o Provide a full range of urban public facilities and services for redevelopment and new 

development. 
o Facilitate redevelopment while addressing the consequences of change to existing residents and 

businesses.  
 
Mid‐Springfield Refinement Plan (1986) 

The primary goal of  the Mid‐Springfield Refinement Plan  is  to assign  site‐specific plan designations  in 
areas designated “Mixed‐Use” on the Metro Plan Diagram and to recognize the needs of industrial and 
commercial  land uses  and  to  resolve  conflicts with  residential neighbors.   Goals were  set  to  address 
these concerns.  The goals of the refinement plan are: 

 Maximize industrial development potential of industrial designated land; 
 Encourage functional commercial development on commercially designated land along Main 
and 42nd Streets; 

 Preserve the integrity of residentially designated areas; 
 Provide a safe and efficient transportation system; 

Attachment 2-17



 Provide a means to implement the goals and policies of this refinement plan. 

Q Street Refinement Plan (1987) 

The primary goal of  the Q Street Refinement Plan  is  to guide  land use decisions  in  the Q Street area.  
Land use decisions will be made  to  follow certain goals.   The majority of the goals  for the refinement 
plan are: 

 Provide vacant and re‐developable land to allow for commercial development; 
 Encourage commercial shopping centers where safe and efficient vehicular access can be 
provided; 

 Participate in efforts to maintain and enhance existing residential neighborhoods and attract 
medium and high density residential developments; 

 Implement mitigating measures for noise, dust, and traffic impacts to residential areas; 
 Encourage private and public recreational facilities in high density areas; 
 Buffer multiple family development from single family development and residential land from 
commercial land through site plan review; 

 Work with Willamalane to provide adequate park and recreational facilities to residents; 
 Discourage through truck traffic in residentially designated areas; 
 Encourage bicycle path into the design of recreational and new residential facilities.

   

Attachment 2-18



 

     
 

SECTION II  FUNDING 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDING 

There  are  limited  sources  of  funding  for  capital  activity.  The  principal  sources  include  1)  revenues 
derived  from  user  fees  or  those  taxes  (such  as  fuel  taxes) which  function  like  user  fees;  2)  Systems 
Development Charges  (SDCs), which are designed  to  recover  from development  the  cost  impact  that 
development has on public  infrastructure; 3) external contributions,  in  the  form of  intergovernmental 
grants  or  loans,  payments  by  developers  for  specific  improvements,  and  assessments  of  benefitted 
property owners, also for specific improvements; and 4) other sources such as revenue leveraged by tax 
increment  financing  in  the City’s  two urban  renewal districts, and  revenue  from  internally generated 
charges, which at present play a minor role in capital project funding. The City of Springfield’s accounts 
for  these  four  revenue  sources are  in  special  revenue or enterprise  funds,  such as  the Street Capital 
Fund, Systems Development Charges funds, and the Wastewater and Drainage Capital funds. The funds 
used by the City to record and account for capital funding are listed following this discussion, along with 
the limitations imposed by local, state, or federal laws associated with the funding source.   

USER FEES 

Each of the three public infrastructure systems (streets, sanitary sewers, and storm drainage) is funded 
by  fees  paid  by  those who use  the  system.  In  the  case of  the  local wastewater  and  storm drainage 
systems those fees are directly billed to users.  In the case of the transportation system those fees are 
collected  in  the  form of  taxes on motor  fuel  at both  the  state  and  local  level,  and by  state  fees  for 
licensing and registration of drivers and vehicles, as well as weight mile taxes  imposed on the trucking 
industry. 

City Council policy calls for a portion of those fees, in excess of that required for current operation of the 
systems, to be devoted to preservation of the existing systems.  However, in the past several years it has 
been  necessary  to  devote  some  portion  of  those  revenues  to  fund  expansion  of  the  system,  either 
through direct funding of capital activity or by funding debt service on revenue bonds. To date, the City 
has  issued revenue bonds  in 2009 to fund  local wastewater capital activity, and  in 2010 to fund storm 
drainage capital projects. As discussed earlier, the  level of capital activity has produced circumstances 
which have  led  to substantial  increases  in user  fees  for both systems, and created concerns  that user 
fees might be bearing a disproportionate share of the burden of capital activity.  

The  continued  sluggishness  in  the economic  recovery  led Council  to begin  reducing SDCs assessed  to 
private  development  projects  from  50%  to  100%  based  on  the  type  of  development.    Given  the 
continuation of the current economic conditions and adopted SDC reductions has  led to SDC revenues 
missing  targets. With  these conditions existing users of  the systems will continue  to bear most of  the 
costs  associated with  expanding  and upgrading  those  systems.    It  is  also  important  to note  that  the 
Council has discussed a further debt issue in FY 2014 to fund local wastewater needs. 

Attachment 2-19



 

   

For the 2014‐2018 CIP, a second source of concern  is the projection of a continual decrease  in funding 
for street preservation projects.   State and  local  fuel  tax  revenues continue  to decline because of  the 
current recession and increased fuel efficiency that reduces revenue even in the face of increased miles 
traveled.   While  the Council has  increased storm drainage and  local wastewater  fees  to maintain and 
enhance the level of preservation for those systems, the City no longer has the authority to increase its 
local  fuel  tax. While  the  State  Legislature  approved  an  increase  in  the  State  fuel  tax  that  became 
effective on January 1, 2011, the City does not expect that the increased revenue it will receive from the 
State will be  sufficient  to  reverse  the  trend of declining  revenues  to support  the City’s  transportation 
system.  

In  2011,  the  City  Council  approved  a  new  revenue  source  for  capital  activities  in  the  transportation 
system; a Right‐of‐Way Use Fee for the Local Wastewater and Stormwater Utilities. This right of way use 
fee  of  three  percent  of  gross  revenues  will  fund  ongoing  operations  and  maintenance  of  the 
transportation system and may provide some limited funding for preservation activity. 

SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT CHARGES  

The second major source of capital funding is Systems Development Charges (SDCs). These are charges 
imposed  on  development  to  provide  funding  to  assure  that  the  City  can  fund  the  cost  of  the 
infrastructure needed to serve that  level of development. There are several types of SDCs that can be 
used for capital projects. One of the SDC funds is the “Old” SDCs, which were funds collected under SDC 
laws in effect prior to 1991, and have different restrictions on use than the current SDC funds.   

These  charges are  calculated based upon a methodology which must be adopted by  the Council and 
which must  conform  to  State  law.  The  process  involves  two  separate  components.  The  first  is  an 
improvement  fee  which  is  based  on  a  determination  of  which  capital  projects  are  needed  to 
accommodate  growth,  the  amount  of  additional  capacity  that  is  created  by  those  projects,  and  a 
determination of the unit cost of additional capacity calculated by dividing the sum of project costs by 
the  sum  of  the  capacity  created.  The  second  component,  a  reimbursement  fee,  is  calculated  by 
determining the value of the existing system, the amount of capacity available  in that system, and the 
value of a unit of capacity. If the system has existing capacity, then development can be charged a fee 
based  upon  the  units  of  existing  capacity  development  will  require.  These  charges  are  increased 
annually based on documented increase in the Cost of Construction Index.  

Unfortunately,  the  facilities  plans which  are  used  to  derive  the  projects  to  be  constructed  and  the 
capacity created by those projects (which dated from the 1970s), had been significantly out of date for 
both  local wastewater  and  storm  drainage.   As  a  result,  fees  collected were  far  below  the  amount, 
permissible under  the  statutes, which were needed  to construct  improvement projects.    In 2008,  the 
City did update  those  two  facilities plans and moved  in 2009  to update  the SDCs. While  that process 
resulted  in  substantial  increases  in  fees,  the decline  in development  activity has  resulted  in minimal 
increases  in  SDC  revenue.    In addition, because of  the economic downturn,  the Council deferred  the 
increases as  they applied  to one and  two  family  residential  construction until  the  fall of 2010, when 

Attachment 2-20



 

     
 

Council  implemented a series of  incremental  increases with the full fees becoming effective January 1, 
2011.  

While the Transportation project  list was much more current, having  last been updated  in 2000,  it did 
not reflect significant price escalation during the current decade.  At the same time that Council updated 
the project lists for the other infrastructure systems, it also updated the costs on the transportation list, 
leading to a substantial increase in SDCs.  As with the local wastewater and storm drainage systems, the 
recession,  and  Council  deferral  of  residential  increases,  has  reduced  the  revenue  impact  of  those 
increases.  The  Council  has  discussed  the  potential  need  to  review  the  Transportation  project  list 
following completion of the current effort to develop a Springfield‐specific TSP. It  is also  likely that the 
Transportation SDC methodology may be reviewed and updated at that time, since it was not updated in 
2009. 

In  July 2009,  the City Council approved a new  revenue  source  for capital activities  in  the  stormwater 
system; a Stormwater Reimbursement SDC fee.  This fee is new for Springfield and provides a payment 
from new users to the City to pay for a portion of the excess capacity in the stormwater system that was 
provided when  the existing system was constructed.   Reimbursement SDC’s are  less constrained  than 
Improvement  SDC’s because  they  can be used  for maintenance of  the existing  system  as well  as  for 
funding new expansion projects.   

EXTERNAL REVENUE SOURCES 

These  sources  include  both  intergovernmental  grants  and  loans  as well  as  contributions  by  private 
individuals to the cost of infrastructure either through assessments imposed by the City or voluntarily as 
part of a proposal  to develop property  in  the City.  In many cases  these  sources of  revenue, however 
derived, are accompanied by restrictions on their use.  

The  City  regularly  receives  allocations  of  transportation  funding  from  Federal  programs.  The 
Metropolitan  Policy  Organization  (MPO)  acting  through  its  Metropolitan  Policy  Committee  (MPC) 
allocates Federal formula funds to its member jurisdictions for planning, preservation and construction 
projects on portions of  the  transportation  system  that are  regionally  significant.  In addition,  the City 
regularly seeks Federal funding directly through efforts focused on the Oregon congressional delegation.  
The City was instrumental in securing over $20 million in Federal funding to modernize the interchange 
at I‐5 and Beltline Road. Most recently, the City received almost $1.2 million in Federal funding through 
the Surface Transportation Program, which  is  funding  two overlay projects  in FY 2013.    In addition  to 
Federal transportation grants the City has received significant transportation funding from Lane County 
in past years, although the County’s fiscal condition makes receipt of future grants unlikely. 

The  local wastewater system also benefits from a variety of Federal programs, most notably the Clean 
Water State Revolving Fund (a program funded by Federal dollars). In recent years, however, Federal aid 
for local wastewater activity has declined sharply. 

Private contributions toward capital funding also are available, but generally in restricted circumstances. 
In order  to  facilitate provision of  services  to a new development, a developer  can make a  significant 

Attachment 2-21



 

   

contribution  to a particular project when  it  is needed  for  the development  in question when  the City 
does  not  have  the  financial  resources  to  construct  the  project  in  circumstances which  fit with  the 
developer’s  timetable. Lastly,  individual citizens  sometimes contribute  in  the  form of assessments  for 
specific projects which benefit their properties. This is done through the creation of a local improvement 
district (LID),  including all of the benefitted properties. The cost of the project  is then assessed against 
those properties on a proportionate basis.   The 2010 Cherokee  LID  sewer project  is  the most  recent 
example of improvement district financing in the City. 

OTHER REVENUES 

There are  two other alternative  revenue  sources available  for  capital project  funding. The  first  is  tax 
increment financing through the two urban renewal districts created by the City – one in Glenwood and 
one  in Downtown.  In  an  urban  renewal district  additional  taxes  resulting  from  increases  in  assessed 
value are  sequestered and made available  to  the district, which  then uses  those  revenues  to  support 
debt  service  on  urban  renewal  bonds  used  to  finance  projects within  the  district.   At  this  point  the 
revenues  of  either  district  have  not  risen  to  the  level  deemed  adequate  to  support  bond  issuance. 
Nonetheless, that may occur within the period of the CIP, hence some of those projects are included. 

The second alternative revenue source is an internal charge which is assessed against City departments’ 
operating Budgets to provide funding for preservation and rehabilitation of City buildings and structures.   

CITY ACCOUNTING FUNDS USED FOR CAPITAL RESOURCES 

USER FEE/TAX FUNDS 

Street Capital Fund 

Purpose:    To  account  for  operation,  maintenance,  and  construction  of  the  City’s  streets  and 
transportation system.   This includes the City’s pavement preservation program, signal operations, and 
street  light  replacement  and maintenance.    Revenues  are  generated  from  a  three‐cent  local motor 

vehicle fuel tax and a State fuel tax.  

Restrictions: Use  of  these  funds  is  restricted  to  activities within  public  rights  of way  by  the Oregon 
Constitution. 

Wastewater Capital Bond 

Purpose:  To account for the construction of capital facilities which are identified within the Wastewater 
Master  Plan  as  requiring  rehabilitation  of  the  existing  system  or  expansion  to  support  growth  and 
development.  Bond proceeds provide the financing for the expenditures of this fund. 

Restrictions:    Funding  provided  by  bond  proceeds,  including  interest  earnings,  are  restricted  by  the 
terms of the bond contract developed at the time of the bond sale. 

Attachment 2-22



 

     
 

Wastewater Capital Fund 

Purpose:    To  account  for  the  operation,  construction,  and  maintenance  of  the  City’s  wastewater 
collection system.   Wastewater user  fee collections provide  the  financing  for  the expenditures of  this 
fund. 

Restrictions:  As allowed under state statute, the proceeds of the user fees are retained in the fund for 
planning, constructing, maintaining and operating the wastewater collection system. 

Stormwater Capital Fund 

Purpose:    To  account  for  the  operation,  construction,  and  maintenance  of  the  City’s  stormwater 
collection  and  treatment  system.    Stormwater  user  fee  collections  provide  the  financing  for  the 
expenditures of this fund. 

Restrictions:  As allowed under state statute, the proceeds of the user fees are retained in the fund for 
planning, constructing, maintaining, and operating the stormwater collection and treatment system. 

SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT CHARGE (SDCS) FUNDS 

Local Wastewater Systems Development Charge Reimbursement Capital Projects Fund 

Purpose:    To  account  for  available  capacity within  the  existing wastewater  collection  system  that  is 
attributable to growth.  Financing is provided by a SDC levied against developing properties.   

Restrictions:    Wastewater  Reimbursement  SDCs  are  restricted  for  use  capital  maintenance  or 
construction on the wastewater collection system. 

Local Wastewater Systems Development Charge Improvement Capital Projects Fund 

Purpose:    To  account  for  construction  of  the  growth  related  portion  of  capacity‐enhancing  capital 
projects.  Financing is provided by a SDC levied against developing properties.   

Restrictions:  Expenditures of Wastewater  Improvement  SDCs  are  restricted  by  state  law  to  capacity‐
enhancing projects for the wastewater system. 

Stormwater Systems Development Reimbursement Capital Projects Fund 

Purpose:  To account for available capacity within the existing stormwater system that is attributable to 
growth.  Financing is provided by a SDC levied against developing properties.   

Restrictions:    Stormwater  Reimbursement  SDCs  are  restricted  for  use  on  capital  maintenance  or 
construction on the stormwater collection system. 

Stormwater Systems Development Improvement Capital Projects Fund 

Purpose:    To  account  for  construction  of  the  growth  related  portion  of  capacity‐enhancing  capital 
projects.  Financing is provided by a SDC levied against developing properties.   

Attachment 2-23



 

   

Restrictions:  Expenditures  of  Stormwater  Improvement  SDCs  are  restricted  by  state  law  to  capacity‐
enhancing projects for the stormwater system. 

Transportation Systems Development Reimbursement Capital Projects Fund 

Purpose:  To account for available capacity within the existing transportation system that is attributable 
to growth.  Financing is provided by a SDC levied against developing properties.   

Restrictions:  Transportation  Reimbursement  SDCs  are  restricted  for  use  on  capital maintenance  or 
construction on the transportation system. 

Transportation Systems Development Improvement Capital Projects Fund 

Purpose:    To  account  for  construction  of  the  growth  related  portion  of  capacity‐enhancing  capital 
projects.  Financing is provided by a SDC levied against developing properties.   

Restrictions: Expenditures of Transportation Improvement SDCs are restricted by state  law to capacity‐
enhancing projects for the transportation systems. 

EXTERNAL CONTRIBUTION FUNDS 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund 

Purpose:   To account for Federal grant revenues received for the primary purpose of advancing capital 
projects that primarily benefit low income persons. 

Restrictions:   CDBG  funds,  including  interest earnings, must meet  the  Federal  government  criteria of 
benefiting  low  to moderate  income  individual’s  needs,  eliminating  slums  and  blight,  and  addressing 
urgent needs. 

Development Projects Fund 

Purpose:    To  account  for  county,  State  and  Federal  grants  awarded  to  the  City  for  the  purpose  of 
preserving or enhancing City facilities.  This fund also accounts for funds donated by developers toward 
the construction of capital projects directly affected by the particular development. 

Restrictions:   Funding  is usually project specific and must only be spent towards those capital projects 
for which they were collected. 

Special Assessments Capital Project Fund 

Purpose:  To account for the interim financing and related costs of construction for public improvements 
which  primarily  benefit  adjacent  property  owners  of  the  subject  capital  project.    Revenues  are 
generated through special assessments being levied against the benefiting properties. 

Restrictions:  State law restricts assessments to the specific improvement constructed. 

 

Attachment 2-24



 

     
 

OTHER FUNDS 

Springfield Economic Development Agency (SEDA) Funds 

Purpose:   To account  for  funds collected and set aside within Urban Renewal Districts as defined and 
adopted by the City Council.  

Restrictions:    Funds  collected  within  the  specified  Urban  Renewal  District  and  set  aside  for  capital 
projects are restricted for use on capital projects benefiting the Urban Renewal District. 

Booth Kelly Fund 

Purpose:   To  account  for  revenues  received  from  rents  and  leases  at  the Booth Kelly Center.   These 
funds are set aside for Capital Improvement projects that improve the Booth Kelly Center. 

Building Preservation Fund 

Purpose:    To  account  for  funds  collected  and  set  aside  for maintenance  and  improvements  to  City 
owned buildings and facilities. 

 

Attachment 2-25



 SECTION III   FINANCIAL SUMMARIES 
 

 
Attachment 2-26



 

 

SECTION IV    PROJECTS 

SYSTEM  PAGE 

ALL PROJECTS MAP ............................................................................................................ 26 
UNDERSTANDING THE PROJECT SHEETS .................................................................................. 27 
STORMWATER 

Overview ..................................................................................................................................... 28 
Project Map and Legend ............................................................................................................. 29 
Summary of Projects ................................................................................................................... 30 
Constructed Projects ................................................................................................................... 34 
In Process Projects ...................................................................................................................... 35 
Funding Programmed ................................................................................................................. 43 
Partially Programmed ................................................................................................................. 52 
Funding Not Programmed .......................................................................................................... 63 
 

TRANSPORTATION 
Overview ..................................................................................................................................... 67 
Project Map and Legend ............................................................................................................. 68 
Summary of Projects  .................................................................................................................. 69 
In Process Projects ...................................................................................................................... 74 
Funding Programmed ................................................................................................................. 80 
Partially Programmed ................................................................................................................. 82 
Funding Not Programmed .......................................................................................................... 93 
 
WASTEWATER 
Overview ................................................................................................................................... 115 
Project Map and Legend ........................................................................................................... 116 
Summary of Projects  ................................................................................................................ 117 
Constructed Projects ................................................................................................................. 120 
In Process Projects .................................................................................................................... 121 
Funding Programmed ............................................................................................................... 125 
Funding Not Programmed ........................................................................................................ 132 

BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY 
Overview ................................................................................................................................... 144 
Project Map and Legend ........................................................................................................... 145 
Summary of Projects  ................................................................................................................ 146 
In Process Projects .................................................................................................................... 148 
Funding Programmed ............................................................................................................... 150 
Funding Not Programmed ........................................................................................................ 156 

MISCELLANEOUS 
Overview  .................................................................................................................................. 168 
Summary of Projects  ................................................................................................................ 169 

   

Attachment 2-27



Attachment 2-28



 

   

UNDERSTANDING THE PROJECT SHEETS 

Once projects are  identified and selected  for  inclusion  in  the Capital  Improvement Program, a project 
page  is created for the project.   The project page  includes  important  information about a project such 
as:    project  description,  justification,  driver,  trigger,  and  status.    This  information  is  important  for 
conveying and tracking details as each project moves from conception to construction.  The following is 
a list and description of these elements: 

Project Description – This is a description or early scope for a project.  Many times this description will 
be very broad as  it may be taken from a master plan or refinement plan and most  likely  in conceptual 
form.  The actual scope of a project is generally refined through the various phases of project planning, 
design and delivery. 

Project  Justification – This element explains why  the project  is an  identified capital need, and may be 
refined  over  time  as  a  project  moves  from  project  planning  to  design  to  bid  and  construction.  
Justification  includes  meeting  regulatory  requirements,  correcting  existing  deficiencies,  or  periodic 
preservation to maintain an asset and offset the need for costly repairs or replacement in the future. 

Project Driver – The project driver is usually relevant to the specific project.  Typical drivers include the 
need  to accommodate  future growth,  regulatory  requirements, or  the need  to maintain public health 
and  safety.    This  element  helps  explain why  a  project  is  included within  the  Capital  Improvements 
Program. 

Project Trigger – The project trigger is also relevant to the specific project.  Triggers can be completion 
of  a  previous  capital  improvement,  development  within  a  certain  region  of  the  City,  or  necessary 
preservation activities as identified through various asset management tools. 

Project Status – Status describes the current stage of the Project, e.g. Planning, design, or construction. 

Specific Plans/Policies related to this Project – This  is a  list of the various Council Goals, master plans, 
refinement plans, adopted policies, and/or reports that relate to a project. 

Improvement SDC Eligibility – Some projects are eligible to receive SDC funding; however most projects 
are not eligible for 100% SDC funding.  If eligible, this element gives the percent of the total project cost 
eligible for improvement SDCs funds. 

Expenditure Schedule – Lists various project activities and estimates the timing and cost to accomplish 
the project activity. 

Operational  Impact  –  Estimates  the  financial  impact  by  fiscal  year  to  the  operating  budget  upon 
completion of  the capital  improvement.   This can be a positive or negative number as  some projects 
improve existing  facilities  reducing  the operations and maintenance  impact while  the addition of new 
infrastructure will increase operations and maintenance costs due to adding one or more new assets to 
the City inventory. 

Funding Source – Describes how and when a project will/needs  to be  funded and  the  source of  that 
funding (e.g. bonds, capital funds, SDCs, grants).   

Attachment 2-29



 

 

STORMWATER  

Overview  

Stormwater projects fall into several categories: 

Stormwater Studies – These projects  typically  fund  the study of an area  to provide  for a  future water 
quality  feature  or  system  expansion.    Projects may  include  studies  for  improving water  quality  in  a 
drainage way, work providing data for future Federal funding, or exploring how to improve the existing 
system.    Current  examples  of  studies  in  the  CIP  are  the  Facility Master  Plan  update  and  the  UGB 
Expansion Area Facility Planning. 

Stormwater  Rehab/Improvements  –  These  projects  typically  provide  upgrades  to  the  City’s  existing 
stormwater system or  the removal of  inactive or potentially unsafe storm  lines.   Projects may  include 
the repair and upsizing of storm  lines, or the addition of storm  lines to reduce  localized flooding.   The 
Over‐Under Channel Pipe Replacement and Improvements and the 59th, Aster, and Daisy Street projects 
fall into this category. 

Capacity Enhancement – These projects typically provide additional capacity to the existing stormwater 
system.   These  types of  improvements may  include an additional detention pond, detention  facilities 
and offline water quality treatment facilities.  Current examples of capacity enhancement in the CIP are 
the South 67th Street and “S” and “T” Street Drainage Projects. 

Restoration – These projects  typically  involve restoring streams and waterways.   Projects may  include 
repairing channel deterioration, providing access for fish passage, or improving flow capacity.  Examples 
of necessary restoration projects include Island Park, Jasper Slough, and Gray Creek/72nd Street. 

New Facilities ‐ These projects typically add new capacity to the system by constructing new stormwater 
facilities as a result of or in anticipation of new development.  Projects may include storm lines built as 
part of a new subdivision, and extension of storm trunk main lines.

Project Maps 
Completed 
SW1  Mill Race Restoration 
In Process 
SW2  59th, Aster, and Daisy Street 
SW3  Island Park 
SW4  Lower Mill Race / Mill Race Outfalls 
SW5  Mill Race Stormwater Facility  
SW6  Booth Kelly Drainage 
SW7  Over‐Under Channel Pipe Replacement 

& Improvements  
SW17  Glenwood Blvd Bridge Drainage 
Improvements  
SW19  Jasper/Natron Drainage 
Funding Programmed 
SW8  Drainage Repair 
SW13  SCS Channel 6 FIRM Update 
SW14  Mill Race FIRM 
SW15  High Banks Road (42nd St.) Dike Study 

SW18  ”S” and “T” Streets Drainage 
SW20   Channel 6 
SW21  Cedar Creek Intake Reconstruction 
SW22  Woodstave Removal 
SW23  Irving Slough Headgate to Outfalls  
SW24  South 67th Street 
SW25  Glenwood  
SW26  North Willamette Heights  
SW27  Jasper Slough 
SW28  Gray Creek/72nd Street  
SW29  Corporate Way Pond 
Funding Not Programmed 
SW32  I‐5 N. Gateway/Sports Way Channel 
SW33  “Q” Street Channel 
SW34  Maple Island Slough  
   

Attachment 2-30



Attachment 2-31



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Stormwater Capital Projects Total Total Total Total Total Total Total

  Mill Race Restoration 3,500$      -              -             -         -           -          3,500    
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) 350$          -                -               -           -           -           350         

Land Match -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Federal Funds (420) 3,150$       -                -               -           -           -           3,150      

  59th, Aster, & Daisy Street 350$         100         1,850      -         -           -          2,300    
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) 298$          -                -               -           -           -           298         
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds 52$            100           1,850        -           -           -           2,002      
Other -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

  Island Park  $      2,000                 - -             -         -           -          2,000    
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) 257$          -                -               -           -           -           257         
Revenue Bonds (425) 1,743$       -                -               -           -           -           1,743      

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

  Lower Mill Race 1,110$      -              -             -         -           -          1,110    
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) 1,085$       -                -               -           -           -           1,085      

Federal Funds (420) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

MWMC Sponsorship 25$            -                -               -           -           -           25           

Mill Race Stormwater Facility 1,850$      152         -             -         -           -          2,002    
Capital Fund (425) -$               152           -               -           -           -           152         

Improvement SDCs (440) 83$            -                -               -           -           -           83           
Revenue Bonds (425) 1,767$       -                -               -           -           -           1,767      

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

  Booth Kelly Drainage 360$         -              -             -         -           -          360       
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) 310$          -                -               -           -           -           310         

Booth Kelly (618) 50$            -                -               -           -           -           50           

  Over-Under Channel 1,128$      772         1,700      -         -           -          3,600    
Capital Fund (425) -$               772           140           -           -           -           912         

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Reimbursement SDCs (441) -$               -                -               -           -           -           

Revenue Bonds (425) 1,128$       -                -               -           -           -           1,128      
Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                1,560        -           -           -           1,560      

Glenwood Blvd Bridge Drainage Imp 50$           -              -             -         -           -          50         
Capital Fund (425) 50$            -                -               -           -           -           50           

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

In Construction

In Process

Attachment 2-32



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Stormwater Capital Projects Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
  Jasper-Natron 720$         -              2,280      2,000 -           -          5,000    

Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Revenue Bonds (425) 720$          -                -               -           -           -           720         
Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                2,280        2,000   -           -           4,280      

  Drainage Repair 150$         200         200         200    200      200      1,150    
Capital Fund (425) 150$          200           200           161      67        200       978         

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Reimbursement SDCs (441) -$               -                -               39        133      -           172         

  Metro Waterways Study 50$           50           50           -         -           -          150       
Capital Fund (425) 25$            25             25             -           -           -           75           

Improvement SDCs (440) 25$            25             25             -           -           -           75           
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Reimbursement SDCs (441) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

  Channel Improvement 59$           100         100         100    100      100      559       
Capital Fund (425) 37$            78             78             78        78        78         427         

Improvement SDCs (440) 2$              2               2               2          2          2           12           
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Reimbursement SDCs (441) 20$            20             20             20        20        20         120         

  MS4 Permit Requirements 30$           30           30           30      30        30        180       
Capital Fund (425) 15$            15             15             15        15        15         90           

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Reimbursement SDCs (441) 15$            15             15             15        15        15         90           

  Riparian Land Management 26$           30           47           47      47        47        243       
Capital Fund (425) 10$            13             30             30        30        30         143         

Improvement SDCs (440) 1$              2               2               2          2          2           10           
Reimbursement SDCs (441) 15$            15             15             15        15        15         90           

Other -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

  Channel 6 FIRM 20$           -              -             -         -           -          20         
Capital Fund (425) 20$            -               -           -           -           20           

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Reimbursement SDCs (441) -                 -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

  Mill Race FIRM 20$           -              -             -         -           -          20         
Capital Fund (425) 20$            -                -               -           -           -           20           

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Reimbursement SDCs (441) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

  42nd St. Dike Study 50$           -              -             -         -           -          50         
Capital Fund (425) 50$            -                -               -           -           -           50           

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Reimbursement SDCs (441) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Funding Programmed

Attachment 2-33



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Stormwater Capital Projects Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
  Facility Master Plan Update 200$         -              -             -         -           -          200       

Capital Fund (425) 100$          -                -               -           -           -           100         
Improvement SDCs (440) 100$          -                -               -           -           -           100         

Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

  S & T Drainage -$              150         450         -         -           -          600       
Capital Fund (425) -$               76             250           -           -           -           326         

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Reimbursement SDCs (441) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               74             200           -           -           -           274         

  Channel 6 500$         -              1,000      -         -           -          1,500    
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) 18$            -                -               -           -           -           18           
Revenue Bonds (425) 482$          -                -               -           -           -           482         

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                1,000        -           -           -           1,000      

  Cedar Creek 500$         -              -             100    -           -          600       
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) 500$          -                -               -           -           -           500         

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               100      -           -           100         

  Woodstave Removal -$              -              -             50      150      150      350       
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               50        -           -           50           

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                -               -           150      150       300         

  Irving Slough Headwaters -$              -              416         1,966 -           -          2,382    
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                290           345      -           -           635         

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                126           1,621   -           -           1,747      

  South 67th Street -$              325         -             -         -           -          325       
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               325           -               -           -           -           325         

  Glenwood -$              2,000      2,000      2,000 -           -          6,000    
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                35             175      -           -           210         
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

SEDA Funds (429) -$               2,000        1,965        1,825   -           -           5,790      

  North Willamette Heights 8$             52           -             -         -           -          60         
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) 8$              -                -               -           -           -           8             
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               52             -               -           -           -           52           

Partial Funding Programmed

Attachment 2-34



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Stormwater Capital Projects Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
  Jasper Slough 50$           10           -             -         -           -          60         

Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Improvement SDCs (440) 50$            -                -               -           -           -           50           

Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               10             -               -           -           -           10           

  Gray Creek - 72nd Street -$              -              3,000      3,000 -           -          6,000    
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               29        -           -           29           
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                3,000        2,971   -           -           5,971      

  Corporate Way Pond 35$           175         -             -         -           -          210       
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Other (420) 35$            -               -           -           -           35           

Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               175           -               -           -           -           175         

  UGB Expansion Area Facility -$              100         -             -         -           -          100       
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Reimbursement SDCs (441) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               100           -               -           -           -           100         

  I-5 N. Gateway/Sports Way Channel -$              -              105         440    -           -          545       
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               -                105           440      -           -           545         

  "Q" Street Channel -$              100         100         100    100      100      500       
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               100           100           100      100      100       500         

  Maple Island Slough -$              550         -             -         -           -          550       
Capital Fund (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Improvement SDCs (440) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             
Revenue Bonds (425) -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Unspecified Stormwater Funds -$               550           -               -           -           -           550         

  Annual Totals 12,766$    5,395      13,828    10,033 627      627      43,275  
Capital Fund (425) 477$          1,331        1,028        679      190      323       4,028      

Improvement SDCs (440) 842$          29             64             208      4          4           1,150      
Reimbursement SDCs (441) 50$            50.00        50             89        183      50         472         

Revenue Bonds (425) 8,085$       -                -               -           -           -           8,085      
Federal Funds (420) 3,150$       -                -               -           -           -           3,150      

SEDA Funds (429) -$               2,000        1,965        1,825   -           -           5,790      
Land Match -$               -                -               -           -           -           -             

Booth Kelly (618) 50$            -                -               -           -           -           50           
MWMC Sponsorship 25$            -                -               -           -           -           25           

Other (420) 35$            -                -               -           -           -           35           
Unspecified Stormwater Funds 52$           1,986      10,721    7,232 250      250      20,491  

Funding Not Programmed

Attachment 2-35



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 830001

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Mill Race Restoration 12.7%
Map ID-SW 1

Project Driver:  
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 3,550$     3,500$    50$         
  Other -$             
Total 3,550$     3,500$   50$        -$           -$           -$            -$            -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 35$          5$           5$           5$           5$           5$           5$            5
  Personnel Costs 350$        50$        50$        50$        50$        50$         50$         50
Total 385$        55$        55$        55$        55$        55$         55$         55$             

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 350$        350$       
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 3,150$     3,150$    
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Land Match -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 3,500$     3,500$   -$           -$           -$           -$            -$            -$                

Phase II under construction with scheduled completion in Spring 2013

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Phase I: Move inlet upstream to improve flow; rehabilitate former river channel to carry flow and 
connect to existing Mill Race near current inlet; rehabilitate downstream channel. Phase II: lower elevation of inlet to Gorrie 
Creek. Reconfigure Mill Pond to create a meandering channel with a 12-foot wide low flow channel and 15-foot wide high 
flow benches, similar to the upper Mill Race. The channel between the F Street Bridge and the Mill Pond inlet will be 
narrowed. The channel in the pond will have a higher riparian terrace alongside each bank, and seasonal wetland ponds 
will be created.  The proposed three seasonal wetland ponds have a total surface area of three acres and connections at 
the upstream and downstream ends.  At each point, the inlet is designed to be at the channel invert elevation with the 
outlet.  A rock weir is proposed at each pond outlet to prevent head cuts into the ponds.
Justification:  Improve water quality on existing drainage way; provide habitat restoration; provide aesthetic environmental
amenities in downtown; support redevelopment of downtown.

Increase water quality along the Mill Race

Attachment 2-36



Stormwater Funding Programmed: Partial
Account # 850191

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

59th, Aster, and Daisy Street 9.5%
Map ID-SW 2

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 250$        50$         100$       100$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,800$     200$       1,600$    
  Other 250$        15$        85$        150$      
Total 2,300$     65$        385$      1,850$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs (5)$           1$          (1)$         (1)$         (1)$         (1)$          (1)$         (1)$              
Total (5)$           1$          (1)$         (1)$         (1)$         (1)$          (1)$         (1)$              

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 298$        298$       
  Unspecified 2,002$     52$        100$      1,850$   
Total 2,300$     350$      100$      1,850$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Phase 1 of this project is to install 350 feet of 42 inch storm sewer in the area of South 59th Street 
and Aster Street.  Phase 2 will be to install additional parallel stormwater pipe in Daisy Street to provide additional 
capacity.

Capacity issue, minimize risk and liability, and an opportunity to reduce maintenance costs.  Additional 
capacity will minimize liability and risk from flooding.  
Phase I in progress with construction planned for Summer 2013.  Phase II deferred pending funding.

Justification: This project will complete a piped storm system for the Mountain Gate area drainage.  The current system 
now consists of a piped system in the unimproved Aster Street Right-of-Way that outfalls into a open ditch in a wetland 
area.  The wetland then drains back into a piped system.  The open ditch does not have the capacity to convey stormwater
from large rain events creating a flooding situation over South 59 Street and adjoining properties.  Phase II Daisy St. 
parallel pipe will be needed to provide capacity through the system to the 48th St. channel

Citizen complaints, localized flooding and development impacts.  The Stormwater Facilities Master 
Plan prioritized this project for completion in 2010.

Attachment 2-37



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850221

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Island Park 12.7%
Map ID-SW 3

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan Project #16WQ
  Stormwater Management Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan
  Mill Race Ecosystem Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 500$        35$         465$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,500$     200$       1,300$    
  Other -$             
Total 2,000$     35$        665$      1,300$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 7$            1$           1$           1$           1$           1$           2$           
  Personnel Costs 8$            1$          1$          1$          1$          2$           2$          
Total 15$          2$          2$          2$          2$          3$           4$          -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 1,743$     1,743$    
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 257$        257$       
  Unspecified -$             
Total 2,000$     2,000$   -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Planning and designing in 2012.  Scheduled for construction in Summer 2013

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  These projects are intended to improve stormwater quality from urban runoff in two heavily 
trafficked downtown drainage basins.  Stormwater from these basins drain to the Springfield Mill Race and the Island Park 
Slough, both of which have significantly impaired water quality.  
Justification:   These  types of projects are needed to meet the City obligations to improve the quality of urban 
stormwater under the Clean Water Act, the City's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System stormwater discharge 
permit, and support stormwater management requirements of new development downtown.  The Stormwater Facilities 
Master Plan prioritized this project for completion in 2009.

Community Mill Race restoration
Stormwater quality requirements

Attachment 2-38



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 850222

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Lower Mill Race / Mill Race Outfalls 12.7%
Map ID-SW 4

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan Stormwater Management Plan
  Economic Development Downtown Mill Race Ecosystem Plan
  Booth Kelly Stormwater Master Plan Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 100$        50$             50$         
  Engineering 162$        162$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 848$        848$       
  Other -$             
Total 1,110$     50$            1,060$   -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 14$          2$               2$           2$           2$           2$           2$           2$               
  Personnel Costs 35$          5$              5$          5$          5$          5$           5$          5$              
Total 49$          7$              7$          7$          7$          7$           7$          7$              

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 1,085$     1,085$        
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  OWEB grant -$             
  MWMC sponsorship 25$          25$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 1,110$     1,110$       -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Planning and design to continue in 2014.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Construct a daylight or diversion pretreatment structure, an offline water quality treatment facility, and 
a green pipe open channel improvement.  Additional detail for this multi-faceted project are in WQ-12 project of the 
Stormwater Facilities Master Plan.

Completion of the Mill Race Restoration Project, Completion of Mill Race Stormwater Master Plan.

Justification:  These  types of projects are needed to meet the City obligations to improve the quality of urban stormwater 
under the Clean Water Act, the City's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System stormwater discharge permit, and 
support stormwater management requirements of new development downtown.   The City's agreement with the Corps of 
Engineers (ACOE) for the Mill Race includes efforts to improve stormwater quality in this waterway.  The Stormwater 
Facilities Master Plan prioritized this project for completion in 2009.

Completion of the Phase 1 of the Mill Race Restoration Project and stormwater quality requirements for 
water entering the Mill Race.

Attachment 2-39



Stormwater Funding Programmed: Yes
Account # 850223

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Mill Race Stormwater Facility 12.7%
Map ID-SW 5

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Mill Race Project

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 100$        50$         50$          
  Engineering 250$        250$        
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,500$     1,500$    
  Other 152$        152$       
Total 2,002$     50$        452$       1,500$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 4$            1$           1$           1$           1$           
  Personnel Costs 30$          1$          1$           7$          7$          7$           7$          
Total 34$          1$          1$           8$          8$          8$           8$          -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 1,767$     1,767$    
  User Fees 425 152$        152$        
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 83$          83$         
  Unspecified -$             
Total 2,002$     1,850$   152$       -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Project is a stormwater treatment facility on land immediately north of the present Mill Pond on land 
recently acquired from McKenzie Forest Products.  The project will intercept and treat stormwater from the 
industrial/commercial sub-basin south of Main Street. The project will include open vegetative treatment for problematic 
pollutants to improve water quality in the Springfield Mill Race.  It will also provide detention for stormwater and enhance 
planned public amenities in this area.  The project will require careful phasing to coincide with projected Mill Race/Mill 
Pond work to maximize efficiencies.

Completion of the Mill Race Restoration Project, completion of Mill Race Stormwater Master Plan
Planning and design to continue in 2014

Justification:  Stormwater in this sub-basin discharges into the Mill Race, and includes various industrial pollutants from 
log yards, industrial sites, and heavy downtown vehicle traffic, resulting in periodic violations of state water quality 
standards and presenting hazards to endangered fish species.  The City's agreement with the Corps of Engineers (ACOE) 
for the Mill Race includes efforts to improve stormwater quality in this waterway.  Unique sites and facilities will enhance 
the Mill Race renovation project, and provide educational opportunity and a community amenity while improving water 
quality.  It may provide some contribution to the Mill Pond renovation project by providing fill material at a low cost.

Completion of the Phase 1 of the Mill Race Restoration Project and stormwater quality requirements for 
water entering the Mill Pond.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized this project for 
completion in 2011.

Attachment 2-40



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 810032

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Booth Kelly Drainage 0%
Map ID-SW 6

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Booth Kelly Industrial Complex Stormwater Master Plan
  Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 15$          15$         
  Engineering 45$          45$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 300$        300$       
  Other -$             
Total 360$        15$        345$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 2.5$         0.5$        0.5$        0.5$        0.5$        0.5$        
  Personnel Costs 5$            1$          1$          1$          1$           1$          
Total 7.5$         -$           1.5$       1.5$       1.5$       1.5$        1.5$       -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 310$        310$       
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Booth-Kelly 618 50$          50$         
  Unspecified -$             
Total 360$        360$      -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Planning and design to continue in 2014

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Drainage master plan implementation for the Booth-Kelly site.
Justification:   Stormwater runoff from the City-owned Booth-Kelly property is discharged to the Mill Race.  The site 
currently does not have a drainage system adequate to avoid localized flooding during the wet weather season or provide 
pretreatment of runoff prior to discharge to the Mill Race.  A site drainage master plan has been completed to address this 
issue in order to support ongoing operation of the Booth-Kelly industrial center and to comply with Clean Water Act storm 
water requirements and address Endangered Species Act concerns.

Completion of the Mill Race Restoration Project, completion of Mill Race Stormwater Master Plan.

The stormwater system in Booth Kelly is aging and under developed.  Basic drainage function and 
water quality are necessary for discharge into the Mill Race.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan 
prioritized this project for completion in 2011.

Attachment 2-41



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 850234

Construction and Preservation

1.9%
Map ID-SW 7

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facility Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 100$        100         
  Engineering 500$        100         400$       
  Land/Right of Way 300$        300$       
  Construction 2,700$     1,000      1,700$    
  Other -$             
Total 3,600$     200$      1,700$   1,700$   -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 -$             
  User Fees 425 912$        772         140$       
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Revenue Bond 425 1,128$     1,128$    
  Unspecified 1,560$     1,560$   
Total 3,600$     1,128$   772$      1,700$   -$           -$            -$           -$               

Planning Analysis and Engineering are underway

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Aged facility at the end of its useful life.  Additional capacity needs identified in Stormwater Facilities 
Identified structural problems in existing CMP.  Delay may increase City's risk.

Over-Under Channel Pipe Replacement & 
Improvements

Project Description:    The Over-Under Channel system includes about 3,900 linear feet of corrugated metal arch pipe (CMP) 
under the existing channel.  This project is intended to replace the existing CMP with a new pipe, as well as provide a parallel 
pipe for additional capacity as recommended in the 2008 Stormwater Facility Master Plan. 
Justification:   During 2010, staff became aware that some of the existing CMP has reached the end of its useful life and is 
beginning to fail.  About half of the 3,900 feet of pipe was installed in 1950 and the remainder installed in 1988/89.  The 
Stormwater Facilities Master Plan also recommends installing 8,720 feet of 36-inch diameter pipe parallel to the existing CMP 
pipe and other pipes further east to provide additional capacity to handle existing flows that are conveyed/stored in the channel 
portion of the system during high flows. This project will include evaluating alternatives for reducing the size or eliminating the 
channel by using different pipe sizes and/or configurations.

Attachment 2-42



Stormwater Funding Secured:  Yes
Account 850245

Construction and Preservation

Glenwood Blvd Bridge Drainage Improvements 0%
Map ID-SW 17

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council goals to maintain infrastructure and provide financially responsible services.

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 10$          10$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 40$          40$         
  Other -$             
Total 50$          10$        40$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                  

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                  

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 -$             
  User Fees 425 50$          50           
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 50$          50$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                  

Justification:   Glenwood Boulevard is a major transportation connection to and from I-5.  Continued erosion of the 
embankments supporting the bridge could result in the bridge becoming unable to carry traffic without load limitations.  Several 
years ago, City staff repaired the embankment erosion at the bridge's south end.  However, without addressing the drainage 
problems at that time, more erosion is occurring at the south end and erosion is also now occurring at the north end.

Project Description:   The City owns the Glenwood Boulevard Bridge over the Union Pacific Railroad tracks.  Staff has 
determined that the existing measures for collecting stormwater runoff from Glenwood Boulevard and the Bridge are insufficient 
to protect the bridge and supporting embankments from water and erosion damage.  This project involves installing new 
drainage infrastructure on the southerly approach to the Bridge to intercept the water and convey it safely down slope.  The 
project also involves repairing the eroded embankments under the south and north ends of the Bridge. The project may use 
consultant services in FY13 to provide recommendations for appropriate measures to repair the embankment erosion. 

Project Design will start in late FY 12.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Glenwood Blvd. paving rehabilitation per IGA with Lane County (Council Motion on 10/17/11) in 2014. 

Lane County has a project to rehabilitate Glenwood Boulevard pavement in 2014.  Correcting the 
drainage issues prior to that project will ensure that their work will not be compromised by the City's 
work.

Attachment 2-43



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 850233

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Jasper/Natron Drainage 83.4%
Map ID-SW 19

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:

Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 220$     220$        
  Engineering 500$     500$        
  Land/Right of Way 780$     780$     
  Construction 3,500$  1,500$  2,000$   
  Other -$          
Total 5,000$  720$       -$         2,280$ 2,000$  -$          -$         -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 145$     29$       29$        29$       29$       29$              
  Personnel Costs 15$       3$        3$         3$         3$        3$               
Total 160$     -$           -$         32$      32$       32$       32$      32$             

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$          
  Revenue Bonds 425 720$     720$        
  User Fees 425 -$          
  Federal Aid 420 -$          
  State Aid 420 -$          
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$          
  Unspecified 4,280$  2,280$ 2,000$  
Total 5,000$                   -$         2,280$ 2,000$  -$          -$         -$               

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:  Will expand the storm sewer system to service future growth.

Development within the Jasper/Natron area following completion of the Jasper Trunk Sewer 
(CIP Map ID WW-10).  Council direction.
Planning is scheduled to begin in late FY 12 or early FY 13, Construction deferred pending 
funding.

Project Description:  Construction and channel improvements along the existing drainage ways to serve new 
development in the Jasper Natron basin.  Impacts to the downstream property owners and natural drainage 
ways located beyond the City's Urban Growth Boundary will need to be assessed and mitigated in the final 
design.  The first year of the project will include additional studies to identify the downstream impacts and design 
the project and its mitigation measures.  Construction will occur in the following years.  The impact on the City's 
operations budget is estimated on the conceptual project but may change on final design.  There is an expected 
increase in both the annual maintenance and personnel budget.

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the existing Urban Growth Boundary 
(UGB) to promote future urban development.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan 
prioritized this project for completion in 2011.

Attachment 2-44



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850014

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Drainage Repair 0%
Map ID-SW 8

Project Driver:
Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Springfield Stormwater Management Plan
  Metro Waterways Project
  DEQ Stormwater Discharge Permit
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 105$        15$         15$         15$         15$         15$         15$          15$              
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,239$     185$       185$       185$       185$       129$       185$        185$            
  Other -$             
Total 1,344$     200$      200$      200$      200$      144$       200$       200$           

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs (13)$         (1)$          (1)$          (1)$          (2)$          (2)$          (3)$           (3)$               
  Personnel Costs (24)$         (3)$         (3)$         (3)$         (3)$         (4)$          (4)$          (4)$              
Total (37)$         (4)$         (4)$         (4)$         (5)$         (6)$          (7)$          (7)$              

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 420 -$             
  User Fees 425 1,078$     150$       200$       200$       161$       67$         200$        100$            
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 272$        39$        133$       100$           
Total 1,350$     150$      200$      200$      200$      200$       200$       200$           

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Regulatory requirements, minimize risk and liability, capacity needs, opportunities to reduce 
maintenance costs, citizen requests, aged facilities.

Accumulating fund for projects as developed.

Project Description: This program involves the rehabilitation of Springfield drainage system to repair or replace older 
pipe in the system and solve flooding problems and reduce street surface failures due to poor drainage.  This program also
includes rehabilitation of catch basins and culverts to prevent flooding, and the contractual cleaning of large storm sewer 
pipe.  Projects include: Repair West B St. storm outfall to Willamette River; Restore capacity in culverts on 69th St., 
Channel 6, 72nd St. and 48th St. canals; Repair damaged gutter bars causing localized flooding at 1105 S St., 1500 B St., 
and Olympic St., F St. - 9th to 10th.; Repair catch basins at various locations; Replace catch basin at 717 71st St. with 
combination catch basin/curb inlet; Replace storm line segments at Centennial Blvd at 10th St. intersection, A St. at 26th 
St. intersection, Centennial Blvd at 12th St. to Mohawk Blvd; Install storm line catch basin from intersection of 17th and S 
St. to storm system at 17th and T St.; Remove abandoned catch basin vault at 1482 T St.; Drainage repairs on Quarry 
Street and Park Street.
Justification: The program will repair and replace pipe which has reached the end of its useful life, reducing maintenance 
and operating costs of the drainage system by reestablishing stormwater efficiency.  Reduced costs would be realized in 
operational costs currently expensed by responding to localized flooding problems during rain events.  

 Citizen requests, field surveys, history of identified problem areas. 

Attachment 2-45



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 830017

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Metro Waterways Study 12.7%
No Map

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Springfield Stormwater Management Plan
  Metro Waterways Project
  DEQ Stormwater Discharge Permit
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 150$        50$         50$         50$         
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 150$        50$        50$        50$        -$           -$            -$            -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$            -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 420 -$             
  User Fees 425 75$          25$         25$         25$         
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 75$          25$         25$         25$         
  Other -$             
Total 150$        50$        50$        50$        -$           -$            -$            -$                

Accumulating fund for projects as developed

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description: Springfield is participating along with Eugene and Lane County in an ongoing Army Corps of 
Engineers General Investigation Study authorized under the Water Resources Development Act.  Springfield’s share (25%) 
of this approximately $3,500,000 project is $875,000.  The current project is a feasibility study necessary to identify future 
water quality projects within the Eugene/Springfield metropolitan watershed.  CIP projects, such as Channel Improvements, 
Floodplain Mapping (currently underway) and McKenzie Oxbow will qualify as in-kind match and satisfy the balance of the 
local obligation.  The Cedar Creek Drainage Basin has been identified as Springfield’s highest priority study area.  The 
Cedar Creek Intake reconstruction is identified as the initial project in the Metro Waterways Study.  The Intake 
Reconstruction is identified in a separate project sheet. 
Justification: This planning study will assist the City in future years to gain access to federal funding (similar to the Mill 
Race funding) for capital improvement projects that address drainage capacity, water quality, and flood control.

Future growth, stormwater management and water quality

Currently stormwater from the Thurston area outfalls into Cedar Creek.  Future developments will 
increase stormwater and impact Cedar Creek.

Attachment 2-46



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850089

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Channel Improvement 3.5%
No Map

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Springfield Stormwater Management Plan
  Metro Waterways Project
  DEQ Stormwater Discharge Permit
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 79$          7$           12$         12$         12$         12$         12$          12$              
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 264$        24$         40$         40$         40$         40$         40$          40$              
  Other 316$        28$        48$        48$        48$        48$         48$         48$             
Total 659$        59$        100$      100$      100$      100$       100$       100$           

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 10$          1$           1$           1$           1$           2$           2$            2$                
  Personnel Costs 47$          5$          6$          6$          7$          7$           8$           8$               
Total 57$          6$          7$          7$          8$          9$           10$         10$             

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 420 -$             
  User Fees 425 505$        37$         78$         78$         78$         78$         78$          78$              
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 14$          2$           2$           2$           2$           2$           2$            2$                
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 140$        20$        20$        20$        20$        20$         20$         20$             
Total 659$        59$        100$      100$      100$      100$       100$       100$           

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

The need to meet regulatory requirements and address capacity issues
Accumulating fund for projects as developed

Project Description: This project is intended to provide improvements to key drainage ways to address barriers to fish 
passage, and to correct previous channel modifications that have caused deterioration of flow capacity, water quality, and 
fish habitat functions.  These improvements include culvert replacements or retrofits, road crossing and outfall 
modifications, and channel restoration.  The adoption of the Springfield Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan 
identifies an additional temperature benefit from channel restoration and shading.
Justification: This project addresses the "Take Guidance" provided by the National Marine Fisheries Service in their 
issuance of the Environmental Species Act Section 4(d) rules to conserve and protect remaining Spring Chinook Salmon 
Habitat.  This project also enables the City to meet Clean Water Act requirements by improving water quality through 
channel restoration improvements.  The listing of the Willamette and McKenzie rivers for temperature identifies the need 
to provide riparian improvement and shading.

Regulatory and environmental requirements

Attachment 2-47



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850117

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

MS4 Permit Requirements 0%
No Map

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Stormwater Facilities Master Plan Pre-2008 and the Stormwater Management Plan
  City of Springfield Municipal and Development Codes
  Regulatory Requirements
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other 205$        25$        30$        30$        30$        30$         30$         30$             
Total 205$        25$        30$        30$        30$        30$         30$         30$             

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs 56$          8$          8$          8$          8$          8$           8$           8$               
Total 56$          8$          8$          8$          8$          8$           8$           8$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 420 -$             
  User Fees 425 105$        15$         15$         15$         15$         15$         15$          15$              
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 105$        15$        15$        15$        15$        15$         15$         15$             
Total 210$        30$        30$        30$        30$        30$         30$         30$             

Accumulating funds for projects as developed

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Develop and implement programs and projects to comply with the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Discharge requirements
Justification:  In 2003, the City applied for an MS4 permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), 
which authorizes the City to lawfully discharge stormwater to the McKenzie and Willamette Rivers and their tributaries.  
The permit requires the City to implement programs and capital projects that improve stormwater quality.  Data show that 
stormwater in Springfield waterways routinely violates water quality standards established to protect human health and 
aquatic life.  This project provides for minor capital improvements and/or capital equipment purchases necessary and 
appropriate to address high priority water quality problem areas.  In January of 2007, the City received the permit and this 
will become an ongoing program to maintain the permit.
Project Driver: Regulatory and environmental requirements

The work under the MS4 Plan in on going to address permit requirements

Attachment 2-48



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850093

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Riparian Land Management 12.7%
No Map

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Stormwater Facilities Master Plan and Stormwater Management Plan
  City of Springfield Development Code
  Clean Water Act and Endangered Species Act
  Metro Waterways identified land acquisitions
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way 102.30$   14.40$    14.65$    14.65$    14.65$    14.65$    14.65$      14.65$         
  Construction -$             
  Other 187$        12$        15$        32$        32$        32$         32$          32$             
Total 289.30$   26.40$   29.65$   46.65$   46.65$   46.65$    46.65$      46.65$        

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 13$          1$           2$           2$           2$           3$           3$             
  Personnel Costs 8$            1$          1$          1$          1$          2$           2$            
Total 21$          2$          3$          3$          3$          5$           5$            -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 105$        15$         15$         15$         15$         15$         15$           15$              
  User Fees 425 173$        10$         13$         30$         30$         30$         30$           30$              
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 11.30$     1.40$      1.65$      1.65$      1.65$      1.65$      1.65$        1.65$           
  Other -$             -$           
Total 289.30$   26.40$   29.65$   46.65$   46.65$   46.65$    46.65$      46.65$        

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Development activity impacts on storm drainage flows and water quality
Accumulating funds for projects as developed

Justification: This project facilitates community growth and property development consistent with City Development Code 
requirements and federal regulations protecting water quality and salmon habitat.  Currently, some Springfield waterways 
do not meet federal and state water quality safety standards for human and aquatic life.  In addition to the Federal Clean 
Water Act requirements to improve stormwater quality, the City Council has established a ten-year target goal for at least 
75% of Springfield's waterways to meet water quality standards.  Protected riparian areas are necessary to achieve this 
objective and some riparian protection has been established in the Development Code.  In cases where riparian area 
protection poses disproportionate constraints on private land owners, this funding will enable the City to identify priority 
areas for protection and to compensate property owners.

 Regulatory requirements and community livability

Project Description:  This project provides funding to purchase riparian area lands from private property owners where 
needed to meet City and regulatory objectives for stormwater management, flood control and habitat protection. It also 
provides funding for consultant services to evaluate riparian buffer areas, City and other activities affecting them.  Property 
acquisitions will typically result in increased operational spending to maintain city owned property. Projects developed on 
property acquired may, however, produce savings through reduced spending for flood control and water quality 
improvement activities. Project funding levels have been reduced to conform to eligibility levels for improvement SDCs. 
Council adoption and implementation of a reimbursement SDC may permit restoration of prior funding levels.

Attachment 2-49



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850237

Construction and Preservation

SCS Channel 6 FIRM Update 0%
Map ID-SW 13

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Continued Participation in the National Flood Insurance Program
  Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 20$          20$         
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 20$          20$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 -$             
  User Fees 425 20$          20$         
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 20$          20$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Programmed

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Past construction along SCS Channel 6
Citizen Request to prepare current flood plain maps

Justification:     SCS Channel 6 currently has a regulatory (100-year) flood plain depicted on FEMA's FIRMs.  Since the data 
collection was done for the original flood plain mapping in the 1960's and 1970's, numerous changes have been made to SCS 
Channel 6, including widening, narrowing, and piping.  Each of these changes was considered insignificant and was done 
independently, so detailed analysis of the affect of the change on the mapped flood plain was not performed.  However, when 
the changes are  taken in aggregate, there may be an affect on some properties.  The City has received a request from a 
citizen with property along SCS Channel 6 to re-evaluate the current 100-year flood plain boundary and prepare new maps if 
needed.  The requested funding will allow the City to hire a consultant to develop a scope document for the study and mapping 
update.  This scope will then be used to support a future request for funding the update work.

Project Description:    Using consulting services, prepare a scope document for a new flood plain study to update the Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for SCS Channel 6 from 10th Street to the I-5 Channel to incorporate numerous construction 
changes that have occurred along SCS Channel 6 in the past 40 years.

Attachment 2-50



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850238

Construction and Preservation

Mill Race FIRM Update 0%
Map ID-SW 14

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Continued Participation in the National Flood Insurance Program
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 20$          20$         
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 20$          20$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                  

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                  

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 -$             
  User Fees 425 20$          20$         
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 20$          20$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                  

Study will commence following funding approval

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Mill Race Restoration Project construction

Required by federal statute 44 CFR 65.3

Project Description:  Using consulting services, prepare a scope document for a new flood plain study to update the Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for the Springfield Mill Race from the inlet at Clearwater Park to the outlet at Island Park to 
incorporate construction changes.   
Justification:   The Springfield Mill Race currently has a regulatory (100-year) flood plain as depicted on FEMA's FIRMs.  With 
the construction of the Mill Race Restoration Project, the City is obligated under federal statute to prepare new analyses and 
maps to show the affects of the project on the 100-year flood plain.  The requested funding will allow the City to hire a consulant 
to develop a scope document for the study and mapping update.  This scope will then be used to support a future request for 
funding the update work.

Attachment 2-51



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850239

Construction and Preservation

High Banks Road (42nd St.) Dike Study 0%
Map ID-SW 15

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  National Levee Safety Program
  National Flood Insurance Program
  High Banks Road Dike Operation and Maintenance Agreement (1983)
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 50$          50$         
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 50$          50$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 -$             
  User Fees 425 50$          50$         
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 50$          50$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Study will commence following funding approval

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Study needed prior to completion of updated McKenzie River flood plain mapping under the Metro 
Waterways Project.

Federal requirements for maintaining/operating flood control levees

Project Description:   Conduct a study of the condition of the High Banks Road (42nd Street) Dike to identify any structural or 
non-structural deficiencies and to evaluate the potential for obtaining federal accreditation of this Dike as a flood control facility 
under the National Flood Insurance Program and for compliance with the National Levee Safety Program.

Justification:   In October 1983, the City entered into an Agreement with the Soil Conservation Service for the operations and 
maintenance of the High Banks Road Dike that was constructed by Lane County in the 1950's adjacent to what is now known 
as 42nd Street.  This dike provides flood control protection for areas of Springfield north of Highway 126 west of 42nd Street 
from McKenzie River flooding.  The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has developed an accreditation 
program for levees that are relied upon under the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and the National Levee Safety 
Committee has developed recommendations to Congress for a National Levee Safety Program.

Attachment 2-52



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 830018

Construction and Preservation

Stormwater Facility Master Plan Updates 50%
No Map

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Objective
  Stormwater Management Plan/NPDES MS4 Permit

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 25$          25$         
  Engineering 175$        175$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 200$        -$           200$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 -$             
  User Fees 425 100$        100$       
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 100$        100$       
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 200$        200$      -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Master Plan Update is moving ahead in phases (i.e. Jasper/Natron and Mill Race Master Plans)

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Regulatory compliance with the City NPDES MS4 permit, future growth, stormwater management and 
Council Direction to update SDC's on 5-yr cycle and regulatory requirements

Project Description:   Update of the 2008 Stormwater Facility Master Plan.  The plan itself identified areas where additional 
study work is needed.  There is also a need to address the proposed UGB amendments identified in the Commercial, 
Industrial Buildable Lands study recently completed.  The plan project list will be re-prioritized and costs will be revised to 
represent current values.  New technology for sustainable development and stormwater management at the source is 
available to reduce overall system requirements and long term costs.
Justification:   The Council directed staff to maintain and update the Facility Master plan to provide current information for 
SDC development, CIP project needs and support for the development community.  BMP DS3 of the City's NPDES MS4 
permit directs updating of the SWFMP.  The data used for the current Stormwater Facility Master Plan represents the system 
as it existed in 2005 and doesn't include new development and repairs of the existing system.  The system model needs to be 
updated to the current GIS standard NAD 83 and completed capital project and system upgrades need to be modeled.

Attachment 2-53



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

"S" and "T" Streets Drainage 12.7%
Map ID-SW 18

Project Driver:  
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  SCS Channel 6 Report
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Stormwater Facilities Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 75$          75$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 475$        25$         450$       
  Other 50$          50$        
Total 600$        -$           -$           150$      450$      -$            -$            -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs 17$          3$          3$          3$          2$          2$           2$           2$               
Total 17$          3$          3$          3$          2$          2$           2$           2$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 -$             
  User Fees 425 326$        76$         250$       
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified 274$        74$        200$      
Total 600$        -$           150$      450$      -$           -$            -$            -$                

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:  This project will expand capacity and relieve local flooding and ponding in the "S" Street area.

Redevelopment and/or completion of Channel 6 improvements and capacity issues.
Deferred pending funding

Project Description:  Construct a combination of channels and pipe drainage system along "S" and "T" Streets between 
10th and Debra Streets.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan expands upon the original Channel 6 report with a 
necessary downstream Channel 6 project.   Increasing the pipe size or pipe length will increase operational costs slightly.

Citizen complaints regarding localized flooding.  Improvement of County standard streets.

Attachment 2-54



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 850220

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Channel 6 3.5%
Map ID-SW 20

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 50$          50$         
  Engineering 210$        60$         150$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,240$     440$       800$       
  Other -$             
Total 1,500$     500$      -$           1,000$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 30$          5$           5$           5$           5$           5$           5$           5$                
  Personnel Costs 14$          2$          2$          2$          2$          3$           3$          3$               
Total 44$          7$          7$          7$          7$          8$           8$          8$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 482$        482$       
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 18$          18$         
  Unspecified 1,000$     1,000$   
Total 1,500$     500$      -$           1,000$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

Planning on hold, Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project will provide a study and master plan of the Channel 6 Drainage, defining improvements 
to the existing storm drainage pipes and channel, a proposed by-pass pipe, and construct a new regional detention facility.
Once project details are better defined, design and construction can proceed in a phased approach.  

Justification:  This project will increase capacity and help to reduce and eliminate localized flooding along the channel, 
which will lower annual operations costs.

Identified capacity and water quality needs identified in Stormwater Facilities Master Plan Project #4 
FC and #4 WQ

Flooding in area around channel 6, between I-105 and Hayden Bridge Road.  Total Maximum Daily 
Load goals for shading and channel improvement.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized 
this project for completion in 2009.

Attachment 2-55



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 850235

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Cedar Creek Intake Reconstruction 12.7%
Map ID-SW 21

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Metro Waterways Project.
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 125$        125$       
  Engineering 75$          75$         
  Land/Right of Way 100$        100$       
  Construction 300$        100$       200$       
  Other -$             
Total 600$        -$           200$      100$      100$      200$       -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 500$        500$       
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified 100$        100$      
Total 600$        500$      -$           -$           100$      -$            -$           -$                

Deferred

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The Cedar Creek drainage is the focus of a comprehensive series of stormwater system 
improvements identified in the Metro Waterways Study. Metro Waterways represents a regional  partnership which 
includes state, federal, and local partners, including the US Corps of Engineers, Bureau of Land Management and Oregon
Dept. of Fish and Wildlife, as well as local utilities and jurisdictions and the McKenzie Watershed Council.  Projects 
identified in the study focus on enhancing riparian areas and stream habitat for the benefit of endangered species, 
reducing urban pollutants, and repairing/restoring critical flood control infrastructure on the McKenzie River and Cedar 
Creek.    
This project, the first of those identified in the multi-year study, is the reconstruction of the intake structure and associated 
channel improvements to the inlet of Cedar Creek from the McKenzie River.  This work will provide for managing seasonal
flows to both reduce the potential for serious wintertime flooding from the McKenzie River, and ensure adequate 
summertime flows for fish habitat and downstream water users, including the Springfield Utility Board.  Springfield has 
participated in the Metro Waterways partnership since 2003.

Justification:   Improvements will ensure summertime stream flows in Cedar Creek to provide stormwater management 
and habitat to endangered species, and will manage high storm flows, which presently threaten citizens’ homes.  

Metro Waterways Study, Cedar Creek Partnership and Salmon Trout Enhancement Program (STEP) 
project.  The Stormwater Facility Master Plan identified this project as an ongoing need through 2018.

Implementation of the initial project developed out of the Metro Waterways Study and the STEP 
project.

Attachment 2-56



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 850177

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Woodstave Removal 0%
Map ID-SW 22

Project Driver:  
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Stormwater Facilities Master Plan Pre-2008

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 100$        50$         50$           
  Engineering 200$        100$       100$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other 50$          50$        
Total 350$        -$           -$           -$           50$        150$       150$        -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$             -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 420 -$             
  User Fees 425 50$          50$         
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified 300$        150$       150$        
Total 350$        -$           -$           -$           50$        150$       150$        -$                

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Project to take the last active portion of the S. A Street woodstave storm line out of service.  This 
line is located south of S. A Street, between S.10th Street and S. 18th Street.  Portions of this line lie under buildings and 
across properties in areas without easements.  Excavated material may be hazardous waste with special disposal 
requirements.  Initial project cost involves scoping the extent of the removal, permitting and disposal requirements and 
developing updated costs.  Additional funds will then be programmed as needed to complete the project.

Justification: This is a remnant system across private property with reverse slopes and potential maintenance problems 
and costs.

Citizen request and Council priority
Regulatory and environmental requirements. Delay may increase City's risk of regulatory violations.

Attachment 2-57



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Irving Slough Headgate to Outfalls 3.5%
Map ID-SW 23

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Stormwater Management Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 440$        440$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,757$     1,757$    
  Other 185$        185$      
Total 2,382$     -$           -$           -$           2,382$   -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs 9$            1$          2$          2$          2$           2$          
Total 9$            -$           1$          2$          2$          2$           2$          -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 635$        290$       345$       
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified 1,747$     126$      1,621$   
Total 2,382$     -$           -$           416$      1,966$   -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The project consists of open channel improvements in multiple locations for flood control and the 
construction of a stormwater storage facility.  Water quality improvements will be incorporated into the project where 
applicable to meet regulatory requirements.
Justification:   This project is identified in the Stormwater Facilities Master Plan and will help to reduce localized flooding 
and provide water quality improvements.

Regulatory requirements, minimize risk and liability from flooding incidents

Flood Control and water quality.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized this project for 
completion in 2010.

Attachment 2-58



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

South 67th Street 9.5%
Map ID-SW 24

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 10$          10$         
  Engineering 65$          65$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 250$        250$       
  Other -$             
Total 325$        -$           325$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs 2$            1$          1$          
Total 2$            1$          1$          -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             

-$             
  Unspecified 325$        325$      
Total 325$        -$           325$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:   Reduce localized flooding identified in Stormwater Facility Master Plan Project #13FC.

Minimize risk and liability, and an opportunity to reduce maintenance costs

Project Description:  Pipe improvements for flood control.  Currently, during heavy rainfall the storm system surcharges 
at 67th and Main Street flooding private property.

Citizen complaints and localized flooding.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized this project 
for completion in 2010.

Attachment 2-59



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Glenwood 8.8%
Map ID-SW 25

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Glenwood Refinement Plan
  I-5 Bridge Replacement Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Stormwater Management Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 300$        300$       
  Engineering 1,450$     700$       300$       450$       
  Land/Right of Way 1,000$     500$       500$       
  Construction 2,500$     1,200$    1,300$    
  Other 750$        500$      250$      
Total 6,000$     -$           2,000$   2,000$   2,000$   -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 100$        25$         25$         25$         25$              
  Personnel Costs 26$          2$          2$          2$          5$          5$           5$          5$               
Total 126$        2$          2$          2$          30$        30$         30$        30$             

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 210$        35$         175$       

-$             
  SEDA 429 5,790$     2,000$   1,965$   1,825$   
Total 6,000$     -$           2,000$   2,000$   2,000$   -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  To improve the stormwater system including pipe and open channel improvements, for flood control
and water quality improvements at various locations within Glenwood as identified in the Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
(SWFMP), and to support implementation of the existing refinement plan for Glenwood. The project will also involve 
evaluation and construction/enhancement of stormwater outfall structures to the Willamette River.  Specific projects will 
be implemented as development occurs, consistent with the Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP).  The City's 
current effort to update the Glenwood Refinement Plan will likely result in modifications to some of the projects identified 
in the SWFMP, and will be addressed in future system studies that will be performed as the Refinement Plan work 
proceeds.
Justification:  Provide infrastructure for new development and to correct existing deficiencies that meet current and future
water quality requirements.

Completion of the Glenwood Refinement Plan Update and development within the Glenwood Area

Stormwater quantity and quality requirements for development within the Glenwood area.  The 
Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized this project for completion in 2013.  This project may 
require reprioritization should the City receive federal funding for the Franklin Boulevard project.

Attachment 2-60



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

North Willamette Heights 12.7%

Map ID-SW 26

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 60$          8$           52$         
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 60$          8$          52$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 8$            8$           
  Unspecified 52$          52$        
Total 60$          8$          52$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Planning stage deferring pending complete funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Develop a basin plan to guide new development and redevelopment activities with respect to 
drainage and water quality.
Justification:  This is a largely undeveloped area which creates runoff to the Mill Race and the Booth Kelly site.  Provide 
a drainage study for future development including water quality elements to protect the Mill Race

Stormwater management and water quality requirements to guide new development and re-
development.

New development and re-development within the North Willamette Heights drainage basin.  The 
Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized this project for completion in 2011.

Attachment 2-61



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Jasper Slough 83.4%
Map ID-SW 27

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan
  Stormwater Management Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 10$          10$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 50$          40$         10
  Other -$             
Total 60$          -$           -$           50$        10$        -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 6$            1$           1$           1$           1$           1$           1$                
  Personnel Costs 12$          2$          2$          2$          2$           2$          2$               
Total 18$          -$           3$          3$          3$          3$           3$          3$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Asset. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 50$          50$         
  Unspecified 10$          10$        
Total 60$          50$        10$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding and development activity

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Culvert and open channel improvements for flood control, riparian enhancement and planting for 
Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDL) concerns.
Justification:   Localized filling and degradation of the channel and road crossings cause flooding and erosion.   The lack 
of riparian cover increases temperature and reduces natural resource value of a natural stream.  City stormwater currently 
discharges into the Jasper Slough at three locations.  The Jasper Slough flows into the Mill Race which has water quality 
requirements.

TMDL requirements, local flooding and future development

Localized flooding and regulatory requirements.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized this 
project for completion in 2011.

Attachment 2-62



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 850148

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Gray Creek/72nd Street 21.1%

Map ID-SW 28

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Metro Waterways
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 300$        300$       
  Engineering 600$        300$       300$       
  Land/Right of Way 500$        250$       250$       
  Construction 4,300$     2,000$    2,300$    
  Other 300$        150$      150$      
Total 6,000$     -$           -$           3,000$   3,000$   -$            -$            -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 20$          5$           5$           5$            5$                
  Personnel Costs 4$            1$          1$           1$           1$               
Total 24$          -$           -$           -$           6$          6$           6$           6$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 29$          29$         
  Unspecified 5,971$     3,000$   2,971$   
Total 6,000$     -$           -$           3,000$   3,000$   -$            -$            -$                

Deferred pending funding and development activity

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description: As outlined in Appendix E of the 2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan, this project includes 
constructing a new open channel to convey discharges from the eastern most portion of Gray Creek to a new outfall to 
Cedar Creek and regrading the existing open channel and down stream piped portions of the conveyance system to 
mitigate anticipated flooding due to future development.
Justification:   Provide anticipated flood control for future development combined with localized water quality 
improvements.

Future development

Development in the east Springfield area.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized this project 
for completion in 2013.

Attachment 2-63



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 930086

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Corporate Way Pond 12.7%
Map ID-SW 29

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 60$          35$         25$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 150$        150$       
  Other -$             
Total 210$        35$        175$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  Developer 420 35$          35$         
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified 175$        175$      
Total 210$        35$        175$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Develop a vegetation management plan for the Corporate Pond that discharges to Maple Island 
Slough.  See Stormwater Facilities Master Plan 43-WQ.  Refined construction cost will be developed with the study
Justification:   Flood control and regulatory Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) program requirements.

Identified in the Stormwater Facilities Master Plan and citizen driven
Stormwater quality requirements 

Attachment 2-64



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

Construction and Preservation

UGB Expansion Area Facility Plans - Stormwater 50%
No Map

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 

Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Metro Plan
  2008 Stormwater Facility Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 100$        100$       
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 100$        -$           100$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. 441 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified 100$        100$      
Total 100$        -$           100$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Pending City Council approval of UGB Expansion Areas and 2030 Refinement Plan and funding 
identification.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

2030 Refinement Plan acknowledgement by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and 
Development.

Council approval of UGB Expansion Area(s)

Project Description:   Develop a Stormwater Facility Master Plan for each of the areas selected by the City Council for 
expansion of Springfield's Urban Growth Boundary (UGB).
Justification:   As part of the proposed 2030 Refinement Plan Project, the City is evaluating several areas for potential UGB 
Expansion to address identified deficiencies in the Commercial and Industrial Buildable Lands Inventory (CIBL).  Urban facility 
planning will need to occur once the Council determines which area(s) are appropriate for UGB expansion.

Attachment 2-65



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

12.7%
Map ID-SW 32

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan
  Stormwater Management Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 105$        105$       
  Land/Right of Way 440$        440$       
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 545$        -$           -$           105$      440$      -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 6$            2$           2$           2$           
  Personnel Costs 15$          5$          5$           5$          
Total 21$          -$           -$           -$           7$          7$           7$          -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             
  Unspecified 545$        105$      440$      
Total 545$        -$           -$           105$      440$      -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:   Improve localized water quality and add capacity to reduce flooding problems.

Stormwater Facilities Master Plan identified and capacity issues

I-5 N. Gateway/Sports Way Channel

Project Description:  Construct a combination flood control/water quality facility.  Improve the open channel system and 
construct a 7 acre-foot combination treatment wetland facility on City owned property adjacent to the Gateway Natural 
Resource area.

Stormwater quality requirements and capacity needs related to development.  The Stormwater 
Facilities Master Plan prioritized this project for completion in 2014.

Attachment 2-66



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

"Q" Street Channel 12.7%
Map ID-SW 33

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Stormwater Management Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan
  Metro Waterways

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 100$        100$       
  Engineering 100$        100$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 300$        100$       100$       100$       
  Other -$             
Total 500$        -$           100$      100$      100$      100$       100$       -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs 16$          1$          3$          3$          3$          3$           3$          
Total 16$          1$          3$          3$          3$          3$           3$          -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             

-$             
  Unspecified 500$        100$      100$      100$      100$       100$       
Total 500$        -$           100$      100$      100$      100$       100$       -$                

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Channel repair, riparian enhancement and shading to address temperature issues in the Total 
Maximum Daily Load (TMDL)  and other water quality concerns.  Reduce impact of nuisance species on water quality and 
bank stability.  The Q Street Channel connects to the Alton Baker Canoe Canal near Autzen Stadium.  Water quality 
improvements in the Springfield portion of the system will also support other efforts to restore fish habitat in the Canoe 
Canal.
Justification:  Improve water quality and temperature on existing drainage way.

Regulatory requirements and environmental opportunities 

Stormwater quality requirements.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized this project for 
completion in 2014.

Attachment 2-67



Stormwater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, Rehabilitation, and Water Quality

Maple Island Slough 12.7%
Map ID-SW 34

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Stormwater Facilities Master Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Total Maximum Daily Load Implementation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 75$          75$         
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 475$        475$       
  Other -$             
Total 550$        -$           550$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 425 -$             
  User Fees 425 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 440 -$             

-$             
  Unspecified 550$        550$      
Total 550$        -$           550$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Conduct an engineering study to evaluate capacity needs for future development. Develop a 
vegetation management plan with the intent to improve water quality from the campus industrial portion of the North 
Gateway area.  
Justification:   Corporate Way Pond and the Sports Way stormwater channel have overflow outlets that discharge to the 
Maple Island Slough.  A study is needed to evaluate water quality and capacity needs within existing drainage ways. 

Identified in Stormwater Facilities Master Plan and new development

Stormwater quality requirements and flood control.  The Stormwater Facilities Master Plan prioritized 
this project for completion in 2011.

Attachment 2-68



 

 

TRANSPORTATION  

Overview 

Transportation projects fall into the categories noted below:   

Planning  and  Project  Development  –  These  projects  range  from  larger  facility  planning,  to  concept 
project planning, to specific project development.   Funding for these projects relies heavily on Federal 
and State funds, with City funds used to supplement project budgets and in some cases provide required 
match  funding  to  external  resources.    Current  examples  of  this  in  the  CIP  are  the  Springfield 
Transportation System Plan and the Franklin Boulevard Environmental Assessment projects. 

Maintenance and Operations – These projects are typically programmatic and can provide funding for a 
range of activities within each project.  Street Light Infill and Pole Replacement, Traffic Control Projects, 
and Intelligent Transportation System investments fall in to this category. 

Pavement  Preservation  –  These  projects  are  identified  by  the  Maintenance  Division  through  the 
Infrastructure Management System.  Funding for these projects relies heavily on local and State fuel tax 
revenues  and  are  supplemented  with  Transportation  Reimbursements  SDCs,  and  federal  dollars 
programmed at the discretion of the Central Lane Metropolitan Planning organization (MPO).  Examples 
of pavement preservation projects identified in the CIP are the Street Seal and Overlay program and the 
“A” Street and Thurston Rd.  Overlay projects. 

System  Improvement, Existing – These projects  typically either bring existing  infrastructure up  to  the 
adopted urban standards, or make capacity and safety  improvements to existing facilities.   Funding for 
these projects rely on all available resources.  A current example of these types of projects in the CIP is 
the Glenwood Connector Path project. 

System  Improvement,  New  Facilities  –  These  projects  typically  add  new  infrastructure  to  the  City’s 
transportation system and are  identified within the various planning documents.   The trigger for these 
projects  is  driven mostly  by  growth  and  an  identified  future  need  to  relieve  stress  on  the  system.  
Project funding relies on all available sources.  

Project Maps 
In Process 
TS3  Glenwood Connector Path  
TS4  Glenwood Connector Path Ext. 
TS5  Springfield Transportation System Plan 
TS6  “A” Street Overlay  
TS7  Thurston Road Overlay 
Funding Programmed 
TS11  E. 17th Avenue Pavement Preservation 
TS12  Glenwood Blvd Bridge Repairs 
TS14  Arterial/Collectors Street Seal & Overlay 
TS18  S. 48th Street Connection (Main to 

Daisy) 
TS21  Gateway/Beltline Intersection 
 
 

Funding Not Programmed 
TS31  Maple Island Improvements 
TS32  Franklin Boulevard Reconstruction 

Project Phase 1  
TS33  Franklin Boulevard Reconstruction 

Project Phase 2 
TS34  Main Street Lighting 
TS36  RRFB & PHB Installations 
TS38  Oakdale/Pheasant Bike Improvements 
TS40  Cherokee Dr. Overlay 
TS41  42nd Street Operational, Safety, and 

Mobility Improvements 
TS42  Weyerhaeuser Haul Road Acquisition 
 

   

Attachment 2-69



Attachment 2-70



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
 Total Total Total Total Total Total

  Glenwood Connector Path 2,100$          -               -                -               -                  -                  2,100          
Federal Aid 1,200$          -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   1,200            

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
State Aid 900$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   900               

  Glenwood Connector Path Ext. 325$            -               -                -               -                  -                  325             
Capital Fund (434) 90$               -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   90                

Federal Aid -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Improvement SDCs (447) 5$                 -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   5                  

Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
State Aid (420) 230$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   230               

Transportation System Plan 214$            -               -                -               -                  -                  214             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Federal Aid (420) 33$               -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   33                
State Aid (420) 181$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   181               

  "A" Street Overlay 958              -               -                -               -                  -                  958             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Federal Aid (420) 750$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   750               

Reimbursement SDCs (446) 208$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   208               

  Thurston Road 553              -               -                -               -                  -                  553             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Federal Aid (420) 400$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   400               

Reimbursement SDCs (446) 153$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   153               

  Franklin Boulevard NEPA 1,700$          -               -                -               -                  -                  1,700          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Federal Aid (420) 800$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   800               
Improvement SDCs (447) 210$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   210               

Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Other (LTD) 50$               -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   50                
SEDA (429) 200$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   200               
Unspecified 440$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   440               

  E. 17th Ave. Pavement Preservation -$                 120           -                -               -                  -                  120             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  60               -                  -                 -                   -                   60                

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  60               -                  -                 -                   -                   60                

  Glenwood Blvd. Bridge Repairs 5$                15             -                -               -                  -                  20              
Capital Fund (434) 5$                 -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   5                  

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  15               -                  -                 -                   -                   15                

  ADA Transition Projects 55$              55             55             55            55               55                330             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 55               53              -                   -                   108               

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 55$               55               -                  2                55                55                222               

  Signal System Modernization 110$            55             55             55            55               55                385             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  33               40               52              -                   -                   125               

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 110$             22               15               3                55                55                260               

Transportation and Street 
Capital Projects

In Process

Partial Funding Programmed

Funding Programmed

Attachment 2-71



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
 Total Total Total Total Total Total

Transportation and Street 
Capital Projects

  Transportation Demand Mgmt 20$              20             20             20            20               -                  100             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) 15$               5                 10               10              10                -                   50                
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 5$                 15               10               10              10                -                   50                

  Art/Collectors Street Seal & Overlay 2,000$          1,000        1,000         1,000       1,000          1,000           7,000          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Federal Aid (420) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  140             81               -                 -                   -                   221               
Unspecified 2,000$          860             919             1,000         1,000           1,000           6,779            

  Traffic Control Projects 267$            117           117           117          117             -                  735             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) 150$             35               35               35              35                -                   290               
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 117$             82               82               82              82                -                   445               

  Gateway Traffic Improvements 1,035$          416           400           500          500             500              3,351          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) 535$             -                 200             250            225              250              1,460            
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 500$             416             200             250            275              250              1,891            

  Intelligent Transportation Systems 66$              50             50             50            50               50                316             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) 41$               25               25               25              25                25                166               
Reimbursement SDCs (446) 25$               25               25               25              -                   -                   100               

Revenue Bonds (xxx) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified -$                  -                 -                  -                 25                25                50                

  South 48th Street (Main to Daisy) 175$            -               927           -               -                  -                  1,102          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified -$                  -                 752             -                 -                   -                   752               
Other (Developer) 175$             -                 175             -                 -                   -                   350               

  Bridge Preservation 20$              10             10             10            10               10                70              
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  10               10               10              -                   10                40                

Unspecified 20$               -                 -                  -                 10                -                   30                

  Gateway - Beltline Intersection 2,817$          1,418        1,249         725          1,041          1,000           8,250          
Federal Aid (420) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) 580$             605             395             355            510              -                   2,445            
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 2,237$          813             854             370            531              1,000           5,805            
Other -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

  MUTCD Compliance 170$            85             85             85            85               85                595             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) 40$               40               40               -                 -                   -                   120               

Unspecified 130$             45               45               85              85                85                475               

Attachment 2-72



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
 Total Total Total Total Total Total

Transportation and Street 
Capital Projects

  Downtown District Lighting -$                 1,100        -                -               -                  -                  1,100          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified -$                  1,100          -                  -                 -                   -                   1,100            

  Street Light Infill & LPS Replmnt 268$            268           268           268          268             536              1,876          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 268$             268             268             268            268              536              1,876            

  Local Street Seal & Overlay 600$            300           300           300          300             300              2,100          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Other -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified 600               300             300             300            300              300              2,100            

  Street Light Pole Test 80$              8               8               8              8                 8                 120             
Capital Fund (434) 25$               -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   25                

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 55$               8                 8                 8                8                  8                  95                

  Arterial/Collector Reconstruction 1,000$          1,000        1,000         1,000       1,000          1,000           6,000          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 1,000$          1,000          1,000           1,000         1,000           1,000           6,000            

  Arterial/Collector Scheduled                 
Maintenance 500$             500             500             500            500              500              3,000            

Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified 500$             500             500             500            500              500              3,000            

  Local/Residential Reconstruction 300$            300           300           300          300             300              1,800          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 300$             300             300             300            300              300              1,800            

  Local/Residential Scheduled                 
Maintenance 600$             600             600             600            600              600              3,600            

Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified 600$             600             600             600            600              600              3,600            

  Maple Island Improvements 230$            550           100           831          -                  -                  1,711          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -                   

Unspecified 230$             550             100             831            -                   -                   1,711            

  Intelligent Lighting Control -$                 688           -                -               -                  -                  688             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Other -$                  688             -                  -                 -                   -                   688               

Funding Not Programmed

Attachment 2-73



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
 Total Total Total Total Total Total

Transportation and Street 
Capital Projects

  Main Street Lighting 150$            250           100           100          100             -                  700             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 150$             250             100             100            100              -                   700               

  Wire Theft Remediation 230$            60             60             60            60               60                530             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  7                 -                  -                 -                   -                   7                  

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 28                15                43                

Unspecified 230$             53               60               60              32                45                480               

  RRFB Installations 59$              200           25             25            25               25                359             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

State Aid (420) -$                  160             -                  -                 -                   -                   160               
Other -$                  40               -                  -                 -                   -                   40                

Unspecified 59$               -                 25               25              25                25                159               

  FYA Left Turns 15$              15             15             15            15               -                  75              
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified 15$               15               15               15              15                -                   75                

  Traffic Signal Communication 25$              25             12             12            12               12                98              
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Other -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified 25$               25               12               12              12                12                98                

  UGB Expansion Area Facility -$                 75             -                -               -                  -                  75              
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Other -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified -$                  75               -                  -                 -                   -                   75                

  Cherokee Dr. Overlay -$                 -               200           -               -                  -                  200             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Other -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified -$                  -                 200             -                 -                   -                   200               

  Franklin Blvd Reconst. Phase 1 -$                 -               -                9,600       -                  -                  9,600          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Federal Aid (420) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified -$                  -                 -                  9,600         -                   -                   9,600            

  Franklin Blvd Reconst. Phase 2 -$                 -               -                -               25,000       10,400         35,400        
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Other -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified -$                  -                 -                  -                 25,000         10,400         35,400          

  Oakdale Pheasant Bike  Imp. -$                 -               -                330          -                  -                  330             
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Other -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Unspecified -$                  -                 -                  330            -                   -                   330               

Attachment 2-74



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
 Total Total Total Total Total Total

Transportation and Street 
Capital Projects

42nd Street Operational, Safety, and
Mobility Improvements -$                  -                 -                  -                 1,700           -                   1,700            

Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
State Aid (420) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Unspecified -$                  -                 -                  -                 1,700           -                   1,700            

Weyerhaeuser Haul Road Acquisition -$                 -               -                -               -                  1,200           1,200          
Capital Fund (434) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Improvement SDCs (447) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   
Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

State Aid (420) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   
Other -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   500              500               

Unspecified -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   700              700               

  Annual Totals 14,547$        9,300        7,456         16,566      32,821       17,696         98,386        
Capital Fund (434) 120$             100             95               105            -                   -                   420               

Improvement SDCs (447) 1,536$          670             665             675            805              275              4,626            
Reimbursement SDCs (446) 426$             290             156             35              28                25                960               

Unspecified 9,646$          7,352          6,365           15,751        31,988         16,896         87,998          
Other (Developer) 175$             -                 175             -                 -                   -                   350               

Other (LTD) 50$               -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   50                
SEDA (429) 200$             -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   200               
SEDA (430) -$                  -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   -                   

Federal Aid (420) 1,983$          -                 -                  -                 -                   -                   1,983            
State Aid (420) 411$             160             -                  -                 -                   -                   571               

Other -$                 728           -                -               -                  500              1,228          

Attachment 2-75



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 870008

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Glenwood Connector Path 0%
Map ID-TS 3

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger: 

Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  TransPlan Glenwood Refinement Plan
  Regional Transportation Plan WillamalaneComp Plan
  Council Goal

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 2,100$     2,100$        
  Other -$             
Total 2,100$     2,100$        -$              -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                      

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 12$          2$             2$           2$           2$           2$           2$                     
  Personnel Costs 6$            1$             1$           1$           1$           1$           1$                     
Total 18$          -$                3$             3$           3$           3$           3$           3$                     

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid* 1,200$     1,200$        
  State Aid* 900$        900$           
  Other 446 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 2,100$     2,100$        -$              -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                      
* This funding has been dedicated as part of ODOT's project to replace the Willamette Bridge and will not flow through the City's 
budget.

The project is under construction, with completion expected in calendar 2013. 

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The Glenwood Connector Path (GCP) is a multi-use path bridge located along the south bank of the Willamette 
River between the I-5 Bridge and the Oldham property on the north side of Franklin Boulevard. The GCP will connect the existing bike 
path from the south side of the Knickerbocker pedestrian/bike bridge in Eugene along the river bank to the western edge of the 
Oldham property in Glenwood.  In the future, the GCP will also be able to connect to the planned Glenwood Riverfront Path. This 
ODOT project is related to the City's Glenwood Connector Path Extension project, which is east of this project.  Upon completion of 
the project by ODOT, the path will be owned and maintained by the City.

Justification:  The GCP is a crucial link between Eugene and Springfield for bicycles and pedestrians.  The GCP provides the 
necessary link between the existing multi-use path in Eugene and the planned Riverfront Bike Path in Glenwood.  The Glenwood 
Riverfront Path is a planned bike route in TransPlan and the Regional Transportation Plan.  Currently, the bicycle lane on the north 
side of Franklin Boulevard does not connect safely to the multi‐use path, forcing cyclists to cross Franklin Boulevard without a safe 
crossing treatment to access the path. The GCP provides for the safe and continuous connection. 

A safe bicycle/pedestrian connection on the north side of Franklin Boulevard between Eugene and Springfield.

ODOT agreement to build the GCP in conjunction with the I-5 Willamette River Bridge replacement project.

Attachment 2-76



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850241

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Glenwood Connector Path Extension 50%
Map ID-TS 4

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger: 

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  TransPlan Glenwood Refinement Plan
  Regional Transportation Plan Willamalane Comp Plan
  Council Goal

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 65$          65$           
  Land/Right of Way 30$          30$           
  Construction 230$        230$       
  Other -$             
Total 325$        95$          230$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 5$            1$           1$           1$           1$           1$                
  Personnel Costs 10$          2$          2$          2$           2$          2$               
Total 15$          -$            -$           3$          3$          3$           3$          3$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 90$          90$           
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 5$            5$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 230$        230$         
  Other 446 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 325$        325$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Federal funds obligated, design complete, construction pending timing with associated projects

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The Glenwood Connector Path Extension (GCPE) is located along the south bank of the Willamette River 
between the Oldham property on the north side of Franklin Boulevard and the Glenwood Blvd. intersection. The GCPE 
temporarily connects the Glenwood Connector Path to Franklin Blvd., until the planned Glenwood Riverfront Path is constructed.

Justification:  The GCPE is a crucial mid-term temporary link between Eugene and Springfield for bicycles and pedestrians 
until the Glenwood Riverfront Path is constructed.  The Glenwood Riverfront Path is a planned bike route in TransPlan and the 
Regional Transportation Plan. The GCPE provides for the safe and continuous connection between the Glenwood Connector 
Path (viaduct) and Glenwood Blvd. 

A safe bicycle/pedestrian connection on the north side of Franklin Boulevard between Eugene and 
Springfield
City agreement to build the GCPE in conjunction with the Glenwood Connector Path, and the I-5 
Willamette River Bridge replacement project

Attachment 2-77



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 830020

Infrastructure Planning & Inventory Study

Springfield Transportation System Plan 50%
Map ID-TS 5

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 214$        214$       
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 214$        214$       -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street 434 -$             
  AFG Grant 420 -$             
  Federal - STP-U* 420 33$          33$         
  State Aid 420 181$        181$       
  Unspecified -$             
Total 214$        214$       -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                

In Process - Transportation inventory, existing conditions, current and future no-build modeling, draft 
policies and evaluation criteria have been completed by City Staff. Future build alternatives and 
planned projects prioritization underway.  Plan expected to be adopted in calendar 2013.

Statewide Planning Goal 12, Oregon Highway Plan, Oregon Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, Oregon Transportation Plan, 
Regional Transportation Plan, Oregon Freight Plan, Metro Plan, TransPlan, Lane County Transportation System Plan, 
Willamalane Comprehensive Plan, Local Refinement Plans, Springfield Bicycle Plan, Springfield Development Code, 
Springfield Engineering Design Standards Manual.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:   The Transportation System Plan (TSP) update is intended to serve as a blueprint to guide future multi-
modal transportation system improvements and investment decisions for the City of Springfield. This project includes an 
inventory and general  assessment of the existing transportation system;  a determination of existing and future needs; a road 
plan; a public transportation plan; a bicycle/pedestrian plan; a parking plan; a transportation system management and demand 
management plan; an air, rail, water, and pipeline plan; and a financing and implementation plan.
Justification:   The Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660 Division 12, requires 
jurisdictions throughout Oregon to prepare and adopt regional or local transportation plans that serve as the transportation 
element for their comprehensive plans (660 012 0015(2) (4)). Plan updates should respond to transportation, land use, 
environmental, population growth, economic and social changes that have occurred in the community since the TSP was last 
prepared. Historically, TransPlan has served as the local TSP for both Springfield and Eugene. However, since the passage of 
HB 3337, Eugene and Springfield are developing individual TSPs specific to each jurisdiction's separate UGBs. 
Project Driver:   Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) - OAR 660 Division 12

HB 3337 - Changes in land inventories and UGB boundary

Attachment 2-78



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed: Yes
Account #: 850194

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

"A" Street Overlay 0%
Map ID-TS 6

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:  
  Projects are identified by the Infrastructure Asset Management System

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 25$          25$         
  Engineering 283$        283$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 650$        650$       
  Other -$             
Total 958$        958$      -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 750$        750$       
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 208$        208$       
  Unspecified -$             
Total 958$        958$      -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Overlay "A" Street from 5th Street to Mill Street, and 4th Street from Main Street to "C" Street.  
Some locations may require more extensive base repair due to deteriorated condition

Street condition, Justice Center construction completion
Target Bid Date February 2013

Justification:   As part of the construction of the Springfield Justice Center, one block of "B" Street was closed and Lane 
Transit District (LTD) bus routes were redirected onto "A" Street.  "A" Street is due for an overlay which will also bolster 
the structure to withstand the additional stress of the added bus traffic.  This project is scheduled for construction in 2012.

Provide adequate structure to support heavier bus traffic, and to avoid costly reconstruction

Attachment 2-79



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed: Yes
Account #: 850194

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Thurston Road Overlay 0%
Map ID-TS 7

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:  
  Projects are identified by the Infrastructure Asset Management System

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 553$        553$       
  Other -$             
Total 553$        553$      -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 400$        400$       
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 153$        153$       
  Unspecified -$             
Total 553$        553$      -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Target Bid Date February 2013

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Overlay Thurston Road from 69th Street east to the City limits.  Some locations may require more 
extensive base repair due to deteriorated condition.
Justification:   This section of Thurston Road is classifies as a minor arterial in the  City of Springfield's street system.  It 
is identified in the pavement management system as a high priority for an overlay to avoid more serious deterioration 
leading to the need for more extensive reconstruction expenses.

Provide scheduled overlay to avoid more extensive repair and reconstruction.
Pavement condition report

Attachment 2-80



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #: 870010

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Franklin Boulevard NEPA 50%
No Map

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Priority
  Glenwood Refinement Plan Update
  TransPlan
  Regional Transportation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 1,040$     1,000$    40$         
  Engineering 660$        600$       60$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 1,700$     1,600$   100$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid, STP- 420 800$        800$       
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 210$        210$       
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Other (LTD) 420 50$          50$         
  SEDA 429 200$        200$       
  Unspecified 440$        440$      
Total 1,700$     1,700$   -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

NEPA analysis now underway. Currently looking at design and potential for project impacts under 
NEPA to determine the correct NEPA prpocess to pursue.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Complete project refinement, including National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) documentation 
for future improvements to Franklin Boulevard, the Franklin/Glenwood, Franklin/Henderson, Franklin/Mississippi  and 
Franklin/McVay intersections  to support Glenwood redevelopment and regional mobility for transit, bicycles/pedestrians, 
and autos.  Contribute to the required local match for any federal or state funding received.
Justification:   The segment of Franklin Boulevard in Glenwood does not meet modern design standards for sidewalks, 
bike lanes, property access, and intersection control.  This project follows the Glenwood Riverfront Area planning and 
anticipates redevelopment in the urban renewal district as directed by the Springfield Economic Development Agency.  
Project is coordinated with Glenwood Refinement Plan Update work.

City priority focus on Glenwood area redevelopment

Springfield Council goal to facilitate redevelopment in Glenwood, with a specific focus on the riverfront 
area.  Design and function of future improvements to Franklin Boulevard are critical to support planned 
Glenwood area redevelopment. 

Attachment 2-81



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Secured:  Yes
Account

Construction and Preservation

E. 17th Avenue Pavement Preservation 0%
Map ID-TS 11

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2011 IGA with Lane County
  2010 Street Conditions Report

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 120$        120         
  Other -$             
Total 120$        -$           120$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 60$          60           
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 60$          60           
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 120$        -$           120$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Project Description:   E. 17th Avenue between Glenwood Boulevard and Henderson Avenue (in Glenwood) is a city street.  
The 2010 Street Conditions Report identified this street segment as a high priority collector street for an overlay.  Under a 2011 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Lane County, the City has the option to request that the County rehabilitate, at City's 
expense, the pavement on E. 17th Avenue in 2014 concurrent with the County's project to rehabilitate the pavement on 
Glenwood Boulevard. 
Justification:   E. 17th Avenue is a collector street in Glenwood.  The condition of the pavement is such that full reconstruction 
will be needed if rehabilitation does not occur soon.  Combining this work with Lane County's project on Glenwood Boulevard 
should allow the City to realize significant cost savings by avoiding the full reconstruction and through the economies of scale 
by adding this work to the County's larger project.

Design Process starting early 2013

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

IGA with Lane County regarding Glenwood Blvd overlay and jurisdiction transfer
Glenwood Blvd. paving rehabilitation per IGA with Lane County (Council Motion on 10/17/11) in 2014 

Attachment 2-82



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Secured:  Yes
Account 850246

Construction and Preservation

Glenwood Blvd Bridge Repairs 0%
Map ID-TS 12

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2011 IGA with Lane County

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 5$            5$           
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 15$          15           
  Other -$             
Total 20$          -$           20$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 5$            5             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 15$          15           
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 20$          5$           15$         -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                

Project Description:   The City owns the Glenwood Boulevard Bridge over the Union Pacific Railroad tracks.  Staff has 
determined that the joints between the bridge deck and the adjoining pavement are insufficient to protect the bridge deck and 
pavement from damage due to thermal expansion and contraction.  Under a 2011 Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with 
Lane County, the County will rehabilitate the street pavement and resurface the bridge deck in 2014.  As part of this IGA, the 
City is responsible to pay for new bridge joints and any other repairs that may be needed to the bridge deck prior to 
resurfacing.  The project plan is to use consultant services in FY13 to provide recommendations for appropriate bridge joints 
and any other apparent repairs, then authorize and pay Lane County to implement the selected recommendations as part of 
their project in 2014.
Justification:   Installing appropriate bridge deck joints protects both the bride structure and the adjoining street pavement 
from damage caused by thermal expansion and contraction, thereby extending the service life of both the bridge and the 
pavement.  Replacing bridge joints during the planned bridge resurfacing and pavement rehabilitation project in 2014 provides 
the most efficient construction process and least disruption to the travelling public from construction activities.

Design process to begin early 2013

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

IGA with Lane County regarding Glenwood Blvd overlay and jurisdiction transfer
Glenwood Blvd. paving rehabilitation per IGA with Lane County (Council Motion on 10/17/11) in 2014

City of Springfield Capital Improvement Program 2010 ‐ 2014Attachment 2-83



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  Partial

Construction and Preservation

ADA Transition Projects 0%
No Map

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project: ADA

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 35$          5$            5$            5$            5$            5$            5$            5$                
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 350$        50$          50$          50$          50$          50$          50$          50$              
  Other -$             
Total 385$        55$         55$         55$         55$         55$          55$         55$             

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 163$        55$          53$          55$              
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 222$        55 55$         2 55$          55$         
Total 385$        55$         55$         55$         55$         55$          55$         55$             

This project is scalable and could be reduced in scope to cover only certain approaches.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The Americans with Disabilities act of 1990 requires the City to maintain a "Transition Plan" that details how 
it will bring facilities that were not in compliance at the adoption of the act, up to the newly adopted standards.  Currently, the City 
policy is to correct defects as projects occur and to make improvements as requests are received from Citizens who make their 
need known.  This project will set aside funds to be used as locations that need upgrade are identified, and will allow the City to 
respond in a timely manner to those requests.  
Justification:  Required action as per The Americans with Disabilities act of 1990.  In addition, safety and operational benefit of 
the transportation network. 

Operational Functionality

Attachment 2-84



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  Partial

Construction and Preservation

Signal System Modernization 0%
No Map

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 40$          10$          5$            5$            5$            5$            5$            5$                
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 400$        100$        50$          50$          50$          50$          50$          50$              
  Other -$             
Total 440$        110$       55$         55$         55$         55$          55$         55$             

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 180$        33$          40$          52$          55$              
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 260$        110 22$         15$         3$           55$          55$         
Total 440$        -$            55$         55$         55$         55$          55$         55$             

Project is funded

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  As technology advances, the equipment that is used within our Signal Controller Cabinets become more 
advanced.  These advancements offer certain advantages operationally but they also have impacts on the availability of 
replacement parts that are currently in use.  Some recent advances that are occurring include the upgrade to 2070 controllers, IP 
addressable conflict monitors, remote video detection interrogation, pan-tilt-zoom cameras, adaptive signal controls and a host of 
other equipment.  This project is scalable and could be reduced in scope to cover only certain approaches.
Justification:  Required action as per The Americans with Disabilities act of 1990.  In addition, safety and operational benefit of 
the transportation network. 

Operational Functionality

Attachment 2-85



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #: 870003

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Transportation Demand Management Varies
No Map

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  TDM Goals   Regional Transportation Plan
  TransPlan   State Legislation

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other 100$        20$        20$        20$        20$        20$         
Total 100$        20$        20$        20$        20$        20$         -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 50$          15$         5$           10$         10$         10$         
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 50$          5$          15$        10$        10$        10$         
Total 100$        20$        20$        20$        20$        20$         -$           -$                

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:   TransPlan was adopted with a set of Transportation Demand Management (TDM), or ‘transportation 
options’ (TO) policies and projects as required by State rules.  This project contributes to funding project costs necessary 
to meet those requirements.   At times, TDM activities include locations that are included on the Transportation System 
Development Charge Project List.  For those activities, Transportation Improvement SDC funds can be used to provide 
project funding up to the percentage that the project location is eligible per the SDC Project List.  The TDM project also 
provides resources to address state-mandated Green House Gas (GHG) reduction requirements for the transportation 
sector.

TransPlan policies, current and pending state regulatory requirements, transportation system 
management need.
Funding balance is for accumulating funds for projects as developed and or required.

Project Description:  The project includes match funding for other transportation options projects to enhance non-auto 
travel links in the community like the 60th and "E" Street multi-use path, park and ride facilities coordinated with transit 
stations, and other activities that promote non-single auto travel choices.  

Project Driver: TransPlan policies, and state land use, transportation, and GHG reduction laws, statues and rules.  
TDM and TO program activities promote alternatives to 1-person/1-car auto trips and is a growing 
aspect of system management as system demand outpaces capacity constraints and greenhouse gas 
reduction strategies are implemented.

Attachment 2-86



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #: 850008

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Arterial/Collectors Street Seal & Overlay 0%
Map ID-TS14

Commercial Ave. (496 ft., $108,000)
Marcola Rd. (2,602 ft., $547,000)

G St. 21st -28th (1,981 ft., $416,000) S. 5th St. (427 ft., $93,000)

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:

 Infrastructure Management System

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 960$        240$         120$        120$       120$       120$       120$       120$              
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 7,040$     1,760$      880$        880$       880$       880$       880$       880$              
  Other -$             
Total 8,000$     2,000$     1,000$    1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$          

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$            -$            -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                 

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 221$        140$        81$         
  Unspecified 7,779$     2,000$     860$       919$      1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$          
Total 8,000$     2,000$     1,000$    1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$          

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:  Council Goals
Ongoing Program

W. "D" St. (4,508 ft., $947,000) 
S. 2nd St. (1,765 ft., $402,000)

Justification:  This activity repairs and extends the life of the streets, providing the most cost effective long term 
preventative maintenance application.  Sealing streets before excessive deterioration occurs prolongs the street life and 
delays more costly repairs.  Overlays are effective where street surface failures have advanced beyond the point that is 
effectively treated by sealing, and prevent expensive structural base failure.

Aging facilities and programmed preventive maintenance

Projects are identified by the Infrastructure Management System which tracks maintenance and 
improvements to the City's capital infrastructure

Laura St. (2,625 ft., $449,000) 18th St. (2,069 ft., $435,000) 
E. 17th St. (945 ft., $198,000) 28th St. (5.087 ft., $1,071,000)
Q St. (1,790 ft., $376,000 ) 42nd St. (2,889 ft., $607,000) 

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Gateway St. (6,820 ft., $1,432,000)
Harlow Rd. (756 ft., $155,000) 19th St. (531 ft., $112,000) 

Project Description:  A continuing street maintenance effort of pavement sealing and/or overlay of the Arterial/Collector 
Street System performed by contract.  In order to maintain the City's arterial and collector system at the current Council 
target of 85% fair or better level, approximately $750,000 to $1,000,000 in funding is needed annually.  Following is a partial 
list with the highest priority overlays:  

Attachment 2-87



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #: 850013

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Traffic Control Projects Varies
No Map

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
 TransPlan
 Council Policy 

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 65$          25$         10$         10$         10$         10$         
  Land/Right of Way 45$          17$         7$           7$           7$           7$           
  Construction 625$        225$       100$       100$       100$       100$       
  Other -$             
Total 735$        267$      117$      117$      117$      117$       -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 33$          -$            3$           3$           6$           6$           6$           9$                
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total 33$          -$           3$          3$          6$          6$           6$          9$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 290$        150$       35$         35$         35$         35$         
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 445$        117$      82$        82$        82$        82$         
Total 735$        267$      117$      117$      117$      117$       -$           -$                

Ongoing Project. Funding is programmed as a 'sinking fund' to program resources for future projects 
as identified and/or required. A typical intersection upgrade project can range between $50,000 - 
$500,000. 

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project is for installation of new traffic signals and modification of existing signals or installation 
of roundabouts at various City intersections.  Example intersections include:  Thurston Rd. & 66th St., 42nd St. & Marcola 
Road,  South 42nd & Daisy St., South 40th & Daisy St., and 28th St. & Centennial Blvd.  Signal modifications may include 
changing phase order, adding overlaps, and other enhancements to safety or efficiency like improved pedestrian 
crossings.   Various striping and signing improvements may also be implemented under the Traffic Control Projects.  
Funding is set aside in this program and as projects are identified that fit into this category they are given an individual 
account and at that time another source of funding will be identified to match the allowable SDC funds.

Justification:   As traffic increases, additional traffic intersections will not operate in an acceptable manner with stop sign 
control.  The intersections will meet roundabout or signal warrants.  New signals or roundabouts will need to be installed.  
The modification of existing signals is needed to maintain adequate traffic safety and to enhance traffic flow.

Specific projects are based upon the amount of available funding
Citizen requests, high crash locations, congestion

Attachment 2-88



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed: Partial
Account #: 850069

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation Reserve #: 930169

Gateway Area Traffic Improvements Varies
No Map

Project Driver:  
Project Trigger:
Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Gateway Traffic Capacity Analysis
  I-5/Beltline Environmental Assessment
  Council Goals

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 655$        50$         100$       75$         80$         250$       100$       
  Land/Right of Way 350$        350$       
  Construction 1,846$     135$       400$       341$       320$       250$       400$       
  Other -$             
Total 2,851$     535$      500$      416$      400$      500$       500$       -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 1,460$     535$       200$       250$       225$       250$       
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 1,891$     500$       416$       200$       250$       275$       250$       
  Other -$             
Total 3,351$     1,035$   416$      400$      500$      500$       500$       -$                

Ongoing.  Funding balance is a 'sinking fund' to program resources for highest priority projects like 
Gateway Street operational and safety improvements.  Project may also contribute to Gateway/Beltline 
funding needs.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:   Improvements to the street network are needed to reduce traffic congestion;  to improve safety of all 
modes;  and, to support continued economic development in the area.  A study of the area several years ago resulted in a 
list of priority projects.

Gateway area development and traffic conditions

Project Description:  Transportation improvements at various locations in the Gateway area to increase capacity, relieve 
congestion, and improve safety.  Funding is set aside in this program and as projects are identified that fit into this 
category they are given an individual account and at that time another source of funding is identified to match the 
allowable SDC funds.

Community growth in the Gateway area

Attachment 2-89



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #: 870001

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Varies
No Map

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Regional ITS Operations & Implementation Plan for Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area
  TransPlan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 37$          7$           5$           5$           5$           5$           5$           5
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 329$        59$         45$         45$         45$         45$         45$         45
  Other -$             
Total 366$        66$        50$        50$        50$        50$         50$        50$             

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 6$            1$           1$           1$           1$           1$           1$           
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total 6$            1$          1$          1$          1$          1$           1$          -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 191$        41$         25$         25$         25$         25$         25$         25
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 125$        25$         25$         25$         25$         -$            25
  Unspecified 50$          25$         25$        
Total 366$        66$        50$        50$        50$        50$         50$        50$             

Ongoing Program. Use as a 'sinking fund' to accumulate resources for highest priority projects.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:  ITS projects will typically have a high benefit to reasonable cost ratio.  Operational improvements to the 
street network will help reduce traffic congestion and air pollution, improve safety, and continue to support economic 
development. 

Ongoing.  May provide matching funds to Oregon Department of Transportation projects with mutual 
benefits.

Project Description:   ITS projects in various locations to increase communications, capacity, safety and traveler 
information.  Funding is set aside in this program and as projects are identified that fit into this category they are given an 
individual account and at that time another source of funding will be identified to match the allowable SDC funds.

Deploying ITS projects enhance the ability to use the transportation system more effectively by 
extracting the maximum capacity from the system. This will delay the need for adding new lanes and 
links to the system and improve traveler safety and access to traveler information systems.

Attachment 2-90



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #: 850162

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

S. 48th Street Connection (Main to Daisy) 40%
Map ID-TS 18

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Project #901 in RTP and TransPlan
  Agreement between City and Westwind Estates, City Council Resolution 06-35, 7/17/06

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 225$        225$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 877$        877$       
  Other -$             
Total 1,102$     -$           -$           1,102$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 752$        752$       
  Other (Developer 420 350$        175$      175$      
Total 1,102$     175$      -$           927$      -$           -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding and future development activity

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Construct South 48th Street from Main to Daisy Street.  Install traffic signal at Main Street/South 
48th Street Intersection.  A portion of the cost to construct this project is an obligation of current and future development 
south of Daisy Street.  In 2010, the City received a cash payment of $175,000 to satisfy the obligation of the Westwind 
Estates development.  Remaining funding is pending.
Justification:   Construct new street to urban standards and signalized intersection at Main Street, to support planned 
land development, consistent with TransPlan.

Future development activity and funding availability

Future development and growth will create a need for connection between Daisy Street and Main 
Street to be constructed to alleviate congestion. Adds needed pedestrian crossing.

Attachment 2-91



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 850224

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Bridge Preservation and Rehabilitation 0%
No Map

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger: 

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  City Council Goals

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 80$          20$         10$         10$         10$         10$         10$         10$              
  Other -$             
Total 80$          20$        10$        10$        10$        10$         10$        10$             

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 7$            1$           1$           1$           1$           1$           1$           1$               
  Personnel Costs 35$          5$          5$          5$          5$          5$           5$          5$              
Total 42$          6$          6$          6$          6$          6$           6$          6$              

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  AFG Grant 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 50$          10$         10$         10$         -$            10$         10$              
  Unspecified 30$          20$        10$         
Total 80$          20$        10$        10$        10$        10$         10$        10$             

Monitoring bridge conditions and working to identify funding for needed repairs and maintenance.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project will address known deficiencies to City owned bridges discovered through City maintenance 
crew and/or ODOT Bridge Inspections. ODOT inspects six City bridges every two years and these inspections have identified 
at least $50k of needed repairs to preserve function and structural integrity on these six bridges. City crews inspect all 14 City 
bridges twice per year.  Staff is aware of additional maintenance needs on the remaining eight bridges not inspected by ODOT. 

Justification:  There are six bridges maintained by the City that are currently inspected by ODOT in correlation to the State 
wide transportation system.  Repair activities include bank scour beneath the bridge, rebuilding or replacement of a concrete 
nosing, grouting, secure embankment erosion, replacing split spacer block, replacing a wing wall and patching concrete 
spalling. Steps need to be taken to address the financing of these projects before they reach a critical stage.  

Aging facilities and regulatory requirements, pending funding availability

ODOT Bridge Inspection reports provided on a two year cycle - these reports identify repairs and 
deficiencies with each bridge. PW Maintenance performs semi-annual inspections to identify new 
issues and monitor existing ones.

Attachment 2-92



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #: 850151

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation Reserve #: 930151

Gateway/Beltline Intersection 49%
Map ID-TS 21

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  I-5/Beltline Environmental Assessment
  TransPlan
  Regional Transportation Plan
  Gateway Refinement Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 250$        50$         50$         50$         50$         50$         
  Engineering 750$        305$       445$       
  Land/Right of Way 5,650$     505$       5,145$         
  Construction 6,626$     6,626$         
  Other 6,745$     2,817$   1,368$   1,199$   370$      991$       
Total 20,021$   2,817$   1,418$   1,249$   725$      1,041$    1,000$    11,771$      

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 10$          2$           2$           2$           2$           2$                
  Personnel Costs 25$          5$          5$          5$           5$          5$               
Total 35$          -$           -$           7$          7$          7$           7$          7$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 2,445$     580$       605$       395$       355$       510$       
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 17,576$   2,237$    813$       854$       370$       531$       1,000$    11,771$       
  Other 420 -$             
Total 20,021$   2,817$   1,418$   1,249$   725$      1,041$    1,000$    11,771$      

Phase 2 deferred pending funding and traffic operations agreement with ODOT

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Intersection improvements at Gateway/Beltline and surrounding intersections, including 
construction of a couplet and purchase of right-of-way.  CIP project funding contributes to overall project estimate of $30 
million.  Phase 1 is complete at a cost of about $10 million.
Justification:   Needed to improve level of service at the intersection and maintain proper function of the intersection in 
relationship to the I-5/Beltline Interchange.

Project Phase 1 was completed in 2011. Project Phase 2 trigger is set by traffic operations agreement 
with ODOT.

Community growth and agreements with Federal Highways and ODOT to construct intersection 
improvements as part of the larger I-5/Beltline interchange upgrade project.

Attachment 2-93



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #: 850248

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Uniform Traffic Control Devices Compliance 0%
No Map

Project Driver:  
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
 Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices
 TransPlan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 80$          20$         10$          10$         10$         10$         10$         10$              
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 600$        150$       75$          75$         75$         75$         75$         75$              
  Other -$             
Total 680$        170$      85$         85$        85$        85$         85$        85$             

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$            -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 120$        40$         40$          40$         
  Unspecified 560$        130$      45$         45$        85$        85$         85$        85$             
Total 680$        170$       85$          85$         85$         85$         85$         85$              

OTC Manual update adoption expected in 2012

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Replace and revise signs, markings, traffic signals, beacons and other work to conform to the 
pending update of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) as supplemented by Oregon Administrative 
Rules (OAR). 
Justification: Federal Highway Administration and Oregon Department of Transportation periodically update the Manual. 
The City is required to conform to the revisions in the new Manual over specified time frames.  Failure to comply violates 
state law and jeopardizes federal highway funds.

MUTCD Update OAR adoption by the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC)
Regulatory mandate and traffic safety

Attachment 2-94



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Downtown District Pedestrian Scale Lighting 0%
No Map

Project Driver:   
Total Project Constructed Cost:
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project: Downtown District Plan and Implementation Strategy 

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 100$        100$        
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,000$     1,000$     
  Other -$             
Total 1,100$     -$            1,100$    -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SEDA 430 -$             
  Unspecified 1,100$    
Total -$             -$            1,100$    -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

This project is scalable and could be reduced in scope to cover only certain approaches

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The project will evaluate, design, and construct pedestrian level, decorative lighting consistent with the 
downtown revitalization district.
Justification:  Increased safety, comfort and appearance for pedestrians and vehicles in the district. The project will improve the 
small town feel, vitality and livability of the district. 

Operational Functionality

Attachment 2-95



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No
Account #: 850066

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

0%

No Map

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Goals
  TransPlan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$                
  Engineering 117$           13$         13$          13$          13$          13$          26$          26$              
  Land/Right of Way -$                
  Construction 2,295$        255$       255$        255$        255$        255$        510$        510$            
  Other -$                
Total 2,412$        268$      268$       268$       268$       268$        536$       536$           

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs (44)$            (2)$           (4)$           (6)$           (8)$           (10)$         (14)$             
  Personnel Costs -$                
Total (44)$            -$           (2)$          (4)$          (6)$          (8)$           (10)$        (14)$            

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$                
  Street Fund 434 -$                
  Federal Aid 420 -$                
  State Aid 420 -$                
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$                
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$                
  Unspecified 2,412$        268$      268$       268$       268$       268$        536$       536$           
Total 2,412$        268$      268$       268$       268$       268$        536$       536$           

Ongoing Program

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Installation of new street lights according to City-wide priority.  Locations are typically requested by the 
public through the CIP process and throughout the year.  Replace 2,720 existing low pressure sodium (LPS) lights with metal 
hallide or LED technology.

Implement Council Policy; Citizen Service Requests

Street Light Infill  & LPS Light 
Replacement

Justification:   Citizens request new lighting and safety studies justify new lighting. LPS lights have higher life cycle costs than 
alternatives. Replacement will reduce operations cost and improve visibility.

Specific annual projects are based upon the amount of funding programmed in the City's budget

Attachment 2-96



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No
Account #: 850008

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Local/Residential Street Slurry Seal 0%
No Map

Total Ft. = 11,577     Total =  $269,400

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:

Project Status:

  Council Goals
  Infrastructure Management System

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$           
  Engineering 320$       80$         40$       40$        40$        40$       40$        40$               
  Land/Right of Way -$           
  Construction 2,080$    520$       260$     260$      260$      260$     260$      260$             
  Other -$           
Total 2,400$    600$      300$    300$     300$     300$     300$      300$            

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$           
  Personnel Costs -$           
Total -$           -$           -$         -$          -$         -$          -$          -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$           
  Street Fund 434 -$           
  Federal Aid 420 -$           
  State Aid 420 -$           
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$           
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$           
  Unspecified 2,400$    600$      300$    300$     300$     300$     300$      300$            
Total 2,400$    600$      300$    300$     300$     300$     300$      300$            

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
Deferred pending funding

Postal Way, (880 ft., $20,200)
Gateway Lp., (1,870 ft., $43,000)
Shelly St., (2,700 ft., $62,100)
Pheasant, (610 ft., $14,000)
F St., (327 ft., $7.500)

Lindale/Pheasant (2,042 ft., $50,000)
2nd St., (273 ft., $6,300)
N. Cloverleaf, (2,040 ft., $47,000)
Dornoch, (133 ft., $3,100)
Shady Lane Dr., (702 ft., $16,200)

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:  This activity repairs and extends the life of the streets, providing the most cost effective long term 
preventative maintenance application.  Sealing streets before excessive deterioration occurs prolongs  the street life 
and delays more costly repairs.  Overlays are effective where street surface failures have advanced beyond the 
point that is effectively treated by sealing, and prevent expensive structural base failure.

Specific annual projects are based upon the amount of funding programmed. Aging facilities and 
programmed preventive maintenance.

Project Description:  A continuing street maintenance preservation effort by slurry and crack sealing of  
Local/Residential Street System performed by contract.  In order to maintain the City's local street system 
approximately 5 to 8 miles should be crack sealed and slurry sealed annually.  Following is a partial list indicating 
the highest priority sealing locations:  

Projects are identified by the Infrastructure Management System which tracks maintenance and 
improvements to the City's capital infrastructure.

Attachment 2-97



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No
Account #: 850247

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

0%

No Map

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  City Council goal to Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 25$          7$           3$           3$           3$           3$           3$           3$                
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 103$        73$         5$           5$           5$           5$           5$           5$                
  Other -$             
Total 128$        80$        8$          8$          8$          8$           8$          8$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 25$          25$         
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 103$        55$         8$           8$           8$           8$           8$           8$                
Total 128$        80$        8$          8$          8$          8$           8$          8$               

Ongoing Program

Street Light Pole Test, Treat & 
Replacement

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Test and treat light poles at 10 year intervals and replace rotting poles and broken conduits in the 
City owned street light system.
Justification:   Pole testing reveals condition of all City owned poles. Treating poles reduces rate of deterioration.  The 
proposed project replaces poles identified as at the end of useful life.  The City's light poles were last tested in 1999.

Testing and treating is recommended at 10 year intervals
Specific annual projects are based upon the amount of funding programmed in the City's budget

Attachment 2-98



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No
Account #: 850008

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Arterial/Collector Street Reconstruction 0%
No Map

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:

 Infrastructure Management System
 2010 Street Conditions Report

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 840$        120$       120$        120$       120$       120$       120$       120$            
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 6,160$     880$       880$        880$       880$       880$       880$       880$            
  Other -$             
Total 7,000$     1,000$   1,000$    1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$        

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$            -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 7,000$     1,000$   1,000$    1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$        
Total 7,000$     1,000$   1,000$    1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$        

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Within the City's Street inventory, the condition of approximately 24 miles of streets classified as a 
collector or arterial have deteriorated to the point that reconstruction of the structure is the only option.  Due to the 
reduction of available funding for preservation activities, this amount has been increasing at approximately 6 miles per year
over the last two year.  The approximate cost to eliminate the current backlog is $10.8 million in 2010 dollars. Following is 
a partial list with the highest priority reconstruction projects:  
21st St. (1,586 ft., $1,475,000) Q St. (925 ft., $500,000 )
G St. 21st -28th (1,981 ft., $900,000) B St. (486 ft., $250,000) 

Deferred pending funding
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project: 

Justification:  This activity repairs and reconstructs failed arterial and collector street segments as identified within the 
Infrastructure Management System.  The identified street segments have reached the limits of their useful life and annual 
maintenance preservation activities are no longer effective or economical. 

Projects are identified by the Infrastructure Management System which tracks maintenance and 
improvements to the City's capital infrastructure.
Structural street failures

Attachment 2-99



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No
Account #:

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Arterial/Collector Street 0%
Scheduled Life Cycle Maintenance
No Map

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
 Infrastructure Management System
 2010 Street Conditions Report

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 700$        100$       100$       100$       100 100$       100$       100$            
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 2,800$     400$       400$       400$       400$       400$       400$       400$            
  Other -$             
Total 3,500$     500$      500$      500$      500$      500$       500$       500$           

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 3,500$     500$      500$      500$      500 500$       500$       500$           
Total 3,500$     500$      500$      500$      500$      500$       500$       500$           

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  A continuing street maintenance preservation effort to complete necessary annual life cycle 
projects on the arterial and collector system.  This includes routine overlay and street seal projects.  

Street section has failed
Deferred pending funding 

Justification:   This funding is set aside to complete required life cycle maintenance and repairs on the arterial and 
collector street system throughout the City.  Projects are identified within the Infrastructure Management System.  This 
activity is critical to limiting the number of street segments that require major reconstruction or overlays

Street structure has failed and current maintenance procedures no longer provide satisfactory results

Attachment 2-100



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No
Account #: 850008

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Local/Residential Street Reconstruction 0%
No Map

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:

 Infrastructure Management System
 2010 Street Conditions Report

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 245$        35$         35$          35$         35$         35$         35$         35$              
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,855$     265$       265$        265$       265$       265$       265$       265$            
  Other -$             
Total 2,100$     300$      300$       300$      300$      300$       300$      300$           

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$            -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             -              
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 2,100$     300$      300$       300$      300$      300$       300$      300$           
Total 2,100$     300$      300$       300$      300$      300$       300$      300$           

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Within the City's Street inventory, the condition of approximately 68 miles of local/residential streets 
has deteriorated to the point that reconstruction of the structure is the only option.  Due to the reduction of available 
funding for preservation activities, this amount has been increasing at approximately 6 miles per year over the last two 
year.  The approximate cost to eliminate the current backlog is $5.5 million in 2010 dollars. Following is a partial list with 
the highest priority reconstruction projects:  
F St. (306 ft., $23,000) C St. (332 ft., $28,500)
3rd Pl. (583 ft., $43,500) Kelly Blvd. (361 ft., $25,500) 
Justification:  This activity repairs and reconstructs failed Local and Residential street segments as identified within the 
Infrastructure Management System.  The identified street segments have reached the limits of their useful life and annual 
maintenance preservation activities are no longer effective or economical. 

Projects are identified by the Infrastructure Management System which tracks maintenance and 
improvements to the City's capital infrastructure.
Structural street failures
Deferred pending funding

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project: 

Attachment 2-101



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No
Account #:

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Local/Residential Street 0%
Scheduled Life Cycle Maintenance
No Map

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
 Infrastructure Management System
 2010 Street Conditions Report

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 525$        75$         75$         75$         75$         75$         75$         75$              
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 3,675$     525$       525$       525$       525$       525$       525$       525$            
  Other -$             
Total 4,200$     600$      600$      600$      600$      600$       600$       600$           

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 4,200$     600$      600$      600$      600$      600$       600$       600$           
Total 4,200$     600$      600$      600$      600$      600$       600$       600$           

Deferred pending funding 

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  A continuing street maintenance preservation effort to complete necessary annual life cycle 
projects on the local and residential system.  This includes routine overlay and street seal projects.  
Justification:   This funding is set aside to complete required life cycle maintenance and repairs on the arterial and 
collector street system throughout the City.  Projects are identified within the Infrastructure Management System.  This 
activity is critical to limiting the number of street segments that require major reconstruction or overlays

Street structure has failed and current maintenance procedures no longer provide satisfactory results

Street section has failed

Attachment 2-102



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed: No
Account #: 850178

System Upgrades, Reconstruction, Rehabilitation, and Preservation

Maple Island Improvements 80%
Map ID-TS 31

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Goals-Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities, Community Development and Economic Revitalization
  TransPlan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 100$        100$       
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way 415$        415$       
  Construction 246$        246$       
  Other 950$        230$      550$       170$      
Total 1,711$     230$      550$       100$      831$      -$            -$            -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$            -$           -$           -$            -$            -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Unspecified 1,711$     230$      550$       100$      831$      
Total 1,711$     230$      550$       100$      831$      -$            -$            -$                

Deferred pending funding and future development activity

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project will upgrade the roundabout at Maple Island Road and International Way.  It will also 
extend the Maple Island Loop Road to the north along the Maple Island Slough.  
Justification:  The City of Springfield desires to promote growth and development in the Gateway Area which will increase 
the need for more access and connectivity to alleviate traffic congestion.  Private developer has constructed a portion of the 
north extension of Maple Island Rd., which the City can acquire at cost before 2017.

Sufficient funding to acquire north extension and/or intersection improvements

Council Goals and development within the Gateway Area

Attachment 2-103



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Intelligent Lighting Controls 0%
No Map

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Goal:  Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 56$          56$          
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 632$        632$        
  Other -$             
Total 688$        -$            688$       -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs* (450)$       (75)$         (75)$         (75)$         (75)$         (75)$         (75)$            
  Personnel Costs (56)$         (3)$          (6)$          (8)$          (11)$         (14)$        (14)$           
Total (506)$       -$            (78)$        (81)$        (83)$        (86)$         (89)$        (89)$           

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  Other 688$        688$        
  Unspecified
Total 688$        -$            688$       -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               
  *Maintenance Costs above reflect averaged annual cost to replace stolen wire.

Deferred Pending Funding Availability:  this project is scalable and could be reduced in scope to cover 
only areas of high risk of wire theft.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  An Intelligent lighting system will monitor street light performance.  The light monitoring system will monitor 
energy consumption, fixture output, light outages, generate work orders and, most importantly, alarm per set conditions.  The 
alarm  feature would be used as a wire theft prevention with the idea of alerting the Police Department when a series of lights on a 
circuit suddenly goes dark.  This would be a primary method of protecting the public infrastructure and cost of replacing stolen 
wire. 
Justification:  In the past two years the City has lost approximately $150,000 in the repair and replacement of stolen conductors 
for street light systems.  Also, current loss prevention has resulted in extra expense for our own repair of the systems that do get 
damaged.  Street light outages are currently reported by citizens and by City personnel conducting physical surveys of the existing 
system to search for outages and problems.  With the implementation of this system there would be a reduction in labor expense 
for monitoring the system, wire loss prevention, and reduced time of light outages, all improving customer service and satisfaction. 
Finally, the system has a dimming control feature that will allow for substantial energy savings by allowing the City to DIM light 
output during non-peak hours. The system will also include a data base of the lighting assets allowing much better management of 
the asset.

Opportunity to reduce operational costs and funding availability
Wire theft and street light management

Attachment 2-104



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Main Street Lighting 0%
Map ID-TS 34

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Goal: Enhance Public Safety, Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities 
  ODOT Main Street Safety Study
  TransPlan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 300$        150$        150$        
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 400$        100$        100$        100$        100$        
  Other -$             
Total 700$        150$       250$       100$       100$       100$        -$            -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 36$          6$            6$            6$            6$            6$            6$                
  Personnel Costs 18$          3$           3$           3$           3$            3$           3$               
Total 54$          -$            9$           9$           9$           9$            9$           9$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 700$        150 250$       100$       100$       100$        -$               
Total 700$        150$       250$       100$       100$       100$        -$            -$               

Deferred Pending Funding Availability (This project is scalable and could be completed in phases)

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The project will add lighting to Main Street from 20th to 69th by placing lights on existing poles where 
available and installing new poles where necessary.  The project could be incremental and done in phases or sections.
Justification:  Main Street is a major arterial and has been identified by ODOT as a corridor with significant safety issues.  A 
safety study for the corridor identified street lighting as a major component toward improving pedestrian safety.  ODOT does not 
light urban highways that are not freeways.  There have been multiple deaths and pedestrian crashes in addition to a high number 
of vehicle crashes.  The improved lighting offers a significant safety benefit.  Improved lighting also has the potential for positive 
public perception of the corridor.

Safety/Hazard condition
Project priority and funding availability

Attachment 2-105



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Wire Theft Remediation 0%
No Map

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Goals:  Enhance Public Safety, Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 50$          20$           5$            5$            5$            5$            5$            5$                
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 540$        210$         55$          55$          55$          55$          55$          55$              
  Other -$             
Total 590$        230$        60$         60$         60$         60$          60$         60$             

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$             -$            -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 7$            7$            
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 43$          28$          15$          
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 540$        230 53$         60$         60$         32$          45$         60$             
Total 590$        230$        60$         60$         60$         60$          60$         60$             

Deferred Pending Funding Availability and project priority. This project is scalable.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  In the past several years, the City has suffered theft of wire and damage to it's street lighting systems on a 
large scale.  As the losses suffered have increased, it has become an unmanageable burden for normal maintenance budgets to 
repair/replace the infrastructure.  This project would identify areas of theft or vandalism, develop plans to replace/repair the lighting 
system and have the work completed. 
Justification:  Replacement and repair of City lighting systems that were rendered inoperable due to theft, vandalism, accident or 
crash.

Safety and Citizen Requests
Response to inoperable lighting systems

Attachment 2-106



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

RRFB & PHB Installations 0%
Map ID-TS 36

Project Driver:   
Total Project Constructed Cost:
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 92$          17$          50$          5$            5$            5$            5$            5$                    
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 292$        42$          150$        20$          20$          20$          20$          20$                  
  Other -$             
Total 384$        59$          200$        25$          25$          25$          25$          25$                  

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 6$            1$            1$            1$            1$            1$            1$                    
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total 6$            -$             1$            1$            1$            1$            1$            1$                    

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 160$        160$        
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other 40$          40$          
  Unspecified 184$        59$          25$          25$          25$          25$          25$                  
Total 384$        59$          200$        25$          25$          25$          25$          25$                  

  Council Goals:  Enhance Public Safety, Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

Deferred Pending Funding Availability.  Project is scalable.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:  The City has and continues to receive numerous requests for improved safety at these crossings.  These projects 
would increase pedestrian safety and respond to public requests.

Improve safety for pedestrian crossings

Funding availability and project priority

Project Description:  Several crossings have been identified that would receive a safety benefit from the installation of a RRFB 
(Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon) or a PHB (Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon).  Those locations are: 

*S. 32nd St.@Oregon (adjacent to Willamalane Sports Complex) 
*S. 42nd St.@Daisy
*Bob Straub Parkway@Mt. Vernon
*N. 58th St.@Thurston High School

Attachment 2-107



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

0%
No Map

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 30$          5$            5$            5$            5$            5$            5$            
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 60$          10$          10$          10$          10$          10$          10$          
  Other -$             
Total 90$          15$         15$         15$         15$         15$          15$         -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 60$          15 15$         15$         15$         15$          
Total 60$          15$         15$         15$         15$         15$          -$            -$               

  Council Goals:  Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

Deferred Pending Funding Availability.  The project is scalable.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The project will evaluate traffic volumes and determine locations where the implementation of 
Protective/Permissive turn movements will benefit safety and operations.   
Justification:  Safety and operational benefit of the transportation network.  Project will result in less delay and therefore fuel 
consumption.

Improve traffic system operations and reduce vehicle delay
Funding availability and project priority

Flashing Yellow Arrow Prot/Perm Left Turns

Attachment 2-108



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Traffic Signal Communications 0%
No Map

Project Driver:   
Total Project Constructed Cost:
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  ITS Metro Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 20$          5$            5$            2$            2$            2$            2$            2$                
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 90$          20$          20$          10$          10$          10$          10$          10$              
  Other -$             
Total 110$        25$         25$         12$         12$         12$          12$         12$             

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 110$        25 25$         12$         12$         12$          12$         12$             
Total 110$        25$         25$         12$         12$         12$          12$         12$             

This project may be scalable and could be reduced in scope to cover a limited area

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  As traffic signal technology advances, so does the necessary element of communication within the signal 
network.  Improved communication offers advanced signal control, less maintenance time, and improved error identification 
capabilities.  The City system currently in place is aging and improvements will be necessary in the near future as standards 
changes.  The project will evaluate central system software, fiber optic lines, wireless radio communication, and existing copper 
connections.    
Justification:  Safety and operational benefit of the transportation network. Improved responsiveness to signal issues. 

Operational Functionality

Attachment 2-109



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

UGB Expansion Area Facility Plans - Transportation 50%
No Map

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 

Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

  Metro Plan
  TransPlan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 75$          75$         
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 75$          -$           75$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 75$          75$        
Total 75$          -$           75$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

  Council Goals:  Community and Economic Development and Revitalization
                         Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

Pending City Council approval of UGB Expansion Areas and 2030 Refinement Plan and funding 
availability

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Growth areas adopted into the 2030 Refinement Plan and acknowledged by the Oregon Department 
of Land Conservation and Development

Council approval of UGB Expansion Area(s)

Project Description:   Amend the Transportation System Plan to include areas selected by the City Council for expansion of 
Springfield's Urban Growth Boundary (UGB).
Justification:   As part of the proposed 2030 Refinement Plan Project, the City is evaluating several areas for potential UGB 
Expansion to address identified deficiencies in the Commercial and Industrial Buildable Lands Inventory (CIBL).  Urban facility 
planning will need to occur once the Council determines which area(s) are appropriate for UGB expansion.

Attachment 2-110



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Cherokee Dr. Overlay 0%
Map ID-TS 40

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
 City Council Goal to Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 40$          40$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 160$        160$       
  Other -$             
Total 200$        -$           -$           200$      -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 200$        200$      
Total 200$        -$           -$           200$      -$           -$            -$           -$               

Project Description:   Rehabilitate the street pavement on Cherokee Drive, from S. 34th Place to S. 38th Street, to restore 
the street pavement following the Cherokee Drive Sewer Local Improvement District (LID).
Justification:  The Cherokee Drive Sewer LID is complete.  During construction, staff found that the existing pavement 
structure was about 2 inches of asphalt over about 6 inches of base.  This structure is significantly less than current standards 
for a local street, and the street is exhibiting significant cracking following the LID project.   

Pending funding availability and project priority

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Pavement failures
Citizen inquiries, following LID construction which likely accelerated pavement failure.

Attachment 2-111



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #:

Construction and Preservation

Franklin Boulevard Phase 1 Reconstruction 20%
Map ID-TS 32

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Priority   TransPlan
  Glenwood Refinement Plan Update   Regional Transportation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 550$        550$       
  Engineering 450$        450$       
  Land/Right of Way 3,000$     3,000$    
  Construction 5,000$     5,000$    
  Other 600$        300$      300$       
Total 9,600$     -$           -$           -$           4,300$   5,300$    -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid, STP-U 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Other (LTD) 420 -$             
  SEDA 429 -$             
  Unspecified 9,600$     9,600$   
Total 9,600$     -$           -$           -$           9,600$   -$            -$           -$               
*City has recently made application to the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (2015-2018 STIP) for $6 million

On Hold Pending Funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Due to the pending jurisdictional transfer of Franklin Blvd. in Glenwood from ODOT to Springfield, 
Franklin Phase 1 construction will absorb the currently programmed ODOT intersection upgrade at Franklin/Brooklyn in order 
to provide a complete and permanent intersection solution and to insure seamless project design and delivery for the overall 
corridor.  
Justification:   Franklin Boulevard’s transportation challenges are many. There is limited provision for travel choice 
alternatives to the auto. Bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure is practically non‐existent, and where it has been provided it is 
substandard and unsafe. Safe pedestrian crossing opportunities are infrequent and poorly defined. Transit has been 
improved along the corridor but Franklin remains the only segment of the Lane Transit District pilot EmX bus rapid transit 
project to operate in mixed traffic, limiting travel time reliability and creating conflicts for through trips. The intersection of 
Franklin Boulevard and McVay Highway currently operates at a degraded level of service. A modern multi-modal facility 
leverages Glenwood Riverfront redevelopment, and Downtown redevelopment. 

Springfield Council goal to facilitate redevelopment in Glenwood, with a specific focus on the riverfront 
area.  Design and function of future improvements to Franklin Boulevard are critical to support planned 
Glenwood area redevelopment. 
City priority focus on Glenwood area redevelopment

Attachment 2-112



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Franklin Boulevard Reconstruction Project 20%
Map ID-TS 33

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
 Council Priority
 Franklin Blvd. Study
 Glenwood Urban Renewal Plan
 Glenwood Refinement Plan 
 TransPlan
 Regional Transportation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 2,000$      2,000$    
  Land/Right of Way 12,000$    7,000$    5,000$    
  Construction 21,400$    13,000$  8,400$    
  Other -$             
Total 35,400$    -$              -$                -$                -$               22,000$  13,400$  -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 10$           5$           5$               
  Personnel Costs 30$           15$         15$             
Total 40$           -$              -$                -$                -$               -$            20$         20$             

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund #Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 35,400$    25,000$  10,400$  
Total 35,400$    -$              -$                -$                -$               25,000$  10,400$  -$                

Unfunded.  

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The Franklin Boulevard Reconstruction Project will construct modern urban standards improvements on the old 
Hwy 99 alignment in Glenwood called Franklin Boulevard between the Franklin/Glenwood intersection and the Franklin/McVay 
intersection to support Glenwood redevelopment and regional safety and mobility for transit, bicycles/pedestrians, and autos.  
Justification:  The segment of Franklin Boulevard in Glenwood does not meet modern design standards for sidewalks, bike lanes, 
property access, and intersection control.  This project follows the Glenwood Riverfront Area planning and is integrated with the urban 
renewal plan for Glenwood.  Project is coordinated with Glenwood Refinement Plan Update work.

City priority to redevelop Glenwood riverfront area

Springfield Council goal to facilitate redevelopment in Glenwood, with a specific focus on the riverfront area.  
Design and function of future improvements to Franklin Boulevard are critical to successful Glenwood area 
redevelopment.  City, in partnership with the Lane Transit District, ODOT and Eugene continues to seek 
project funding through various federal initiatives, including a federal transportation bill reauthorization funding 
request through the Oregon Congressional Delegation.

Attachment 2-113



Transportation and Streets Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Oakdale/Pheasant Bike Improvements 0%
Map ID-TP 38

Project Driver:   
Total Project Constructed Cost:
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 30$          30$          
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 300$        300$        
  Other -$             
Total 330$        -$            -$            -$            330$       -$             -$            -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$             -$            -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  SDCs. Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  Other -$             
  Unspecified 330$        330$       
Total 330$        -$            -$            -$            330$       -$             -$            -$               

  City Council Goal - Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities 

Deferred Pending Funding availability 

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project will build bicycle facilities and sharrows along the Oakdale and Pheasant routes to improve the 
connectivity to regional and local destinations in the Gateway area.  The project will offer bicycle commuters a route choice that is 
less congested with vehicular traffic.  A portion of the project is on County owned jurisdiction and will require County participation.

Justification:  There are currently no direct routes from the I-5 pedestrian bridge to the PeaceHealth facility at RiverBend.  This 
route is one piece of that direct route connection, with the remaining piece of the route currently under county jurisdiction.

Improve alternative mode connectivity to major destinations in the Gateway area.

Attachment 2-114



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #:

System Upgrades

TBD
Map ID-TS 41

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Springfield 2030 Infrastructure Management System
  TransPlan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 75$          75$         
  Engineering 270$        170$       100$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,300$     1,300$    
  Other 55$          55$         
Total 1,700$     -$           -$           -$           -$           300$       1,400$    -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid, STP-U 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Other (Willamalane) 420 -$             
  SEDA 429 -$             
  Unspecified 1,700$     1,700$    
Total 1,700$     -$           -$           -$           -$           1,700$    -$           -$               
*City has recently made application to the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (2015-2018 STIP) for $1.513 million

On Hold Pending Funding

42nd Street Operational, Safety, and Mobility
Improvements Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Upgrade to address safety and operations, in particular for freight accessing the OR 126 Expressway-
Freight Route and OR 126B-Main St. Upgrade the UP rail crossing serving the International Paper, Sierra Pine, and 
Weyerhaeuser industrial center, upgrade intersection control at the westbound OR 126 ramp terminal, add urban level 
lighting, add ADA-accessible connections from Olympic St. and Industrial Ave. to the McKenzie Levee Path, add left turn bay 
on 42nd St. at Industrial Ave and improve traffic signals at the eastbound OR 126 ramp terminal, and the International Paper 
driveways. 
Justification:   The 42nd Street project will provide much needed safety and operations improvements along an important 
freight route in Springfield. In its current condition, 42nd St. has significant safety and operations issues that are in need of 
mitigation. The existing rail crossing on 42nd, leading into a regionally significant industrial employment site is in a constant 
state of disrepair, with asphalt that continues to buckle under the heavy weight of freight cars. Signals in the project area are 
in desperate need of adaptive coordination. Long vehicular queues exist on 42nd St. due to the existing signal system and 
cars turning left (west) onto Industrial Ave. These conditions cause congested traffic, freight delays, and difficulty for trucks 
entering and exiting the industrial sites.

Congestion and safety issues, in partiuclar freight mobility, that impact local economy. 

Operational Functionality and safety/hazard concern

Attachment 2-115



Transportation and Street Capital Projects Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #:

System Expansion

Weyerhaeuser Haul Road Acquisition TBD
Map ID-TS 42

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Willamalane Comprehensive Plan
  TransPlan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way 1,200$     1,200$    
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 1,200$     -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            1,200$    -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Street Fund 434 -$             
  Federal Aid, STP-U 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 447 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 446 -$             
  Other (Willamalane) 420 500$        500$       
  SEDA 429 -$             
  Unspecified 700$        700$      
Total 1,200$     -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            1,200$    -$               
*City has recently made application to the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (2015-2018 STIP) for $577,000

On Hold Pending Funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Acquire the Weyerhaeuser Haul Road between OR126B-Main Street and Wallace Creek Road for 
conversion to an off street pathway facility, a portion of which is anticipated to also include roadway, in order to create a multi-
modal system connection between the Jasper Natron area (east of the Bob Straub Parkway) and Main Street (OR126B), as 
well as to the planned Virginia/Daisy bike boulevard. 
Justification:   East Springfield currently has very limited access and mobility for bikes and pedestrians, including both east-
west and north-south. The Jasper-Natron area of Springfield (south of Main Street, east and west of the Bob Straub 
Parkway) is the last remaining large undeveloped area in the Springfield UGB. As this area continues to develop, it will be 
essential to have safe and efficient travel options for bikes and pedestrians. In its current condition, many local residents use 
the Weyerhaeuser Haul Road as a de facto multi-use path. However, the Haul Road is in a decayed condition and is still in 
private ownership. Acquisition of the Haul Road is the first step needed to eventually turn this road into a public multi-use 
path and partial new road with green street design elements.

Opportunity to acquire the Haul Rd. in partnership with Willamalane.  Identified east-west multi-modal 
mobility issues.

Identified need and opportunity to acquire.

Attachment 2-116



 

 

WASTEWATER  

Overview 

Wastewater projects fall into several categories: 

Preservation and Maintenance – These projects typically involve upgrading the current wastewater 
system.  Projects may include the rehabilitation of existing sanitary sewer lines, laterals and connections 
to reduce infiltration and inflow of groundwater into the system. 

New Facilities – These projects typically involve the construction of new wastewater facilities as a result, 
or in anticipation of new development.  Projects may include sanitary sewer lines built as part of a new 
subdivision and extension of sanitary sewer trunk lines. 

PROJECT MAPS 
Constructed 
WW2  Sanitary Basin #22 Rehabilitation 
In process 
WW1  Jasper Trunk Line Extension 
WW3  10th and “N” Street Upgrade 
WW4  58th Street Flow Control Facility 
WW5  S. 2nd Street Sewer Replacement 
Funding Programmed 
WW7  Hayden Lo Pump Station 
WW8  River Glen Pump Station  
WW22  E. 17th Avenue Sewer  
WW12  Franklin Boulevard System Expansion 
 
 

 
Funding Not Programmed 
WW11  Main Street Improvements Unit 1 
WW13  Nugget Way Pump Station 
WW14  Peacehealth/Riverbend Pump Station 
WW15  Main Street Improvements Unit 2 
WW16  McKenzie Highway Expansion 
WW17  “A” Street Improvements Unit 1 
WW18  “A” Street Improvements Unit 2  
WW19  “A” Street Improvements Unit 3 
WW21  19th Street Sewer Upgrade 
WW23  Marcola Rd. Sewer – 22nd to 28th 

Streets

   

Attachment 2-117



Attachment 2-118



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Wastewater Capital Projects Total Total Total Total Total Total Total

  Sanitary Basin 22 Rehabilitation 4,350$        -              -              -              -               -               4,350        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) 4,350$         -                -                -                -                -                4,350          

  Jasper Trunk Line Extension 7,400$        4,850      -              -              -               -               12,250      
Capital Fund (409) 200$            -                -                -                -                -                200             

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) 7,200$         -                -                -                -                -                7,200          
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 4,850        -                -                -                -                4,850          

  10th and "N" Sewer Upgrade 4,000$        -              -              -              -               -               4,000        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) 4,000$         -                -                -                -                -                4,000          

  58th Street Flow Control Facility 2,275$        -              -              -              -               -               2,275        
Capital Fund (409) 2,000$         -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) 275$            -                -                -                -                -                -                  

  S. 2nd Street Sewer Replacement 230$           800         -              -              -               -               1,030        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) 230$            800           -                -                -                -                1,030          

  Sewer Wet Weather Flow Abatement -$                1,000      1,000      1,000      1,000       1,000        5,000        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 1,000        1,000        1,000        1,000        500           4,500          

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                -                -                -                500           500             

  Misc. Wastewater System Repair 200$           1,000      1,000      1,000      1,000       1,000        5,200        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 212           425           537           304           500           1,978          

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) 200$            -                -                -                -                -                200             

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 788           575           463           696           500           3,022          

  Hayden Lo Pump Station 200$           -              850         -              -               -               1,050        
Capital Fund (409) 200$            -                -                -                -                -                200             

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                850           -                -                -                850             

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

  River Glen Pump Station 250$           -              -              975         -               -               1,225        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                300           -                -                300             

Revenue Bonds (409) 250$            -                -                675           -                -                925             
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

In Process

Funding Programmed

Constructed

Attachment 2-119



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Wastewater Capital Projects Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
  Master Plan Update 85$             -              -              -              -               -               85             

Capital Fund (409) 43$              -                -                -                -                -                43               
Improvement SDCs (443) 42$              -                -                -                -                -                42               

Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

  E. 17th Avenue Sewer 105$           -              -              -              -               -               105           
Capital Fund (409) 105$            -                -                -                -                -                105             

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

  Franklin Boulevard Expansion 625$           2,373      -              -              -               -               2,998        
Capital Fund (409) 625$            -                -                -                -                -                625             

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 2,373        -                -                -                -                2,373          
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

  UGB Expansion Area Facility -$                100         -              -              -               -               100           
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 100           -                -                -                -                100             

  Marcola Rd. Sewer - 22nd to 28th -$                230         -              -              -               -               230           
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 230           -                -                -                -                230             

  Main Street Improvements Unit 1 -$                -              2,102      -              -               -               2,102        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                2,102        -                -                -                2,102          

  Nugget Way Pump Station -$                -              1,443      -              -               -               1,443        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                1,443        -                -                -                1,443          

  Peacehealth-Riverbend Pump Station -$                -              3,189      -              -               -               3,189        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                3,189        -                -                -                3,189          

  Main Street Improvements 2 -$                -              1,145      -              -               -               1,145        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                1,145        -                -                -                1,145          

Partial Funding Programmed/Funding Not Programmed

Attachment 2-120



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Wastewater Capital Projects Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
  McKenzie Highway Improvements -$                -              1,683      -              -               -               1,683        

Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                1,683        -                -                -                1,683          

  "A" Street Improvements 1 -$                -              620         -              -               -               620           
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                216           -                -                -                216             
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                404           -                -                -                404             

  "A" Street Improvements 2 -$                -              85           200         -               -               285           
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                85             -                -                -                85               
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                -                200           -                -                200             

  "A" Street Improvements 3 -$                -              72           108         -               -               180           
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                72             -                -                -                72               
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                -                108           -                -                108             

  Local Sewer Extensions -$                -              1,000      1,000      1,000       1,000        4,000        
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                1,000        1,000        1,000        1,000        4,000          

  19th Street Sewer Upgrade -$                -              -              620         -               -               620           
Capital Fund (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Revenue Bonds (409) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -                  
Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                 -                -                620           -                -                620             

  Annual Totals 20,070$      10,353    14,189    4,903      3,000       3,000        35,445      
Capital Fund (409) 3,223$         1,212        1,425        1,537        1,304        1,000        6,478          

Improvement SDCs (443) 42$              -                373           -                -                -                373             
Reimbursement SDCs (442) 200$            -                850           300           -                -                1,150          

Revenue Bonds (409) 16,305$       3,173        -                675           -                -                3,848          
Special Assmt. (419) 300$            -                -                -                -                -                -                  

Unspecified Wastewater Funds -$                5,968      11,541    2,391      1,696       2,000        23,596      

Attachment 2-121



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850216

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Sanitary Basin #22 Rehabilitation 0%
Map ID-WW 2

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status: Phase I - Complete Phase II - Complete
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2001 Wet Weather Flow Management Plan
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 50$          50$         
  Engineering 400$        400$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 3,550$     3,550$    
  Other 350$        350$      
Total 4,350$     4,350$    -$                -$           -$           -$            -$            -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$                -$           -$           -$            -$            -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 4,350$     4,350$    
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 4,350$     4,350$    -$                -$           -$           -$            -$            -$               

Regulatory requirements and aged facilities.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The 2008 Wastewater Master Plan identified Sanitary Basin #22 as a primary source of Infiltration and 
Inflow (I/I), and thus a priority for rehabilitation and this basin has been identified as a high risk for sanitary sewer overflows. 
This project requires approximately 20,000 linear feet of pipe to be rehabilitated.  Nearly a third of the total was completed in 
FY 2011 with the remainder to be completed in FY 2012.  In order to simplify construction, several of the collection lines in 
Basin 22 will be constructed as part of the 10th & N Street Upgrade project.
Justification: The project improves the capacity problems in the sanitary sewer system and treatment facilities.  This is 
necessary to enable the City to maintain compliance with federal and state requirements to eliminate sanitary sewer 
overflows.  Normal maintenance and inspections will continue as schedule, thus there is a minimal net impact on the 
operations and maintenance budget.

Springfield has an obligation under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) order to maintain the 
wastewater system such that all sanitary sewer overflow (SSOs) are eliminated as well as assuring public 
health and safety.  This program is a response to the need to both reduce the peak flows to the regional 
wastewater plant, as well as address all other requirements.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this 
project for completion by 2010, it was deferred as the EPA order put an emphasis on other wastewater 
service basins.

Attachment 2-122



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850105

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Jasper Trunk Line Extension 81%
Map ID-WW 1

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:

Project Status:  

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Direction
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 200$        200$         
  Engineering 1,050$     350$         350$       350$       
  Land/Right of Way 500$        500$         
  Construction 10,500$   1,000$      5,000$    4,500$    
  Other
Total 12,250$   2,050$     5,350$   4,850$   -$           -$            -$           -$                 

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 47$          6$             6$           7$           7$           7$           7 7$                 
  Personnel Costs 151$        20$          20$        21$        21$        23$         23$          23$              
Total 198$        26$          26$        28$        28$        30$         30$          30$              

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 7,200$     7,200$      
  User Fees 409 200$        200$         
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 4,850$     4,850$   
Total 12,250$   7,400$     4,850$   -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                 

Development in the Jasper/Natron Area and the need to decommission 3 pump stations and avoid costly 
system upgrades and maintenance activities.

Construction is underway on Phase 1. Design is underway for Phase 2 with construction planned for 
2012.  Construction of future phases is deferred pending funding.  

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Installation of 18,000 feet of 10 to 27 inch diameter sewer along Jasper Road from S. 42nd Street to 
Natron and the Urban Growth Boundary.  The City is planning on borrowing the total of the project cost and collecting the 
developer share through agreements and reimbursements upon connection to the system.  Wastewater trunk lines are 
typically cleaned annually and video inspected by Maintenance every five years.  The additional impact on the operations 
and maintenance budget are shown below. 

Justification: The Jasper Trunk Line Extension project will provide sewer service to the Jasper/Natron area within the 
Urban Growth Boundary that is currently not served.  Given completion of the Bob Straub Parkway, it is a priority to extend 
sewer service to this area to serve anticipated development.  100% of project costs are proposed to be funded with City 
funds, with an estimated 50% to be reimbursed to the City by grants, developer contributions, or assessments.  The project 
is currently planned to be constructed in at least 3 phases, with the first 2 phases to be completed in 2012.  The remaining 
phase(s) will be constructed as funding becomes available and development activity resumes.  Completing the first two 
phases will allow the City to decommission three existing pump stations, thereby significantly reducing the City's annual 
operations and maintenance costs. 

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote 
future urban development.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for construction by 2010.

Attachment 2-123



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850225

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

10th and "N" Sewer Upgrade 0%
Map ID-WW 3

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 1,396$     1,250$    146$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 2,539$     2,000$    539$       
  Other 65$          65$        
Total 4,000$     3,250$   750$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 34$          6$           6$           7$           7$           8$           
  Personnel Costs 34$          6$          6$          7$          7$          8$           
Total 68$          12$        12$        14$        14$        16$         -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 4,000$     4,000$    
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Other -$             
Total 4,000$     4,000$   -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Phase 1 Construction underway, Phase 2 design complete
Regulatory requirements

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Construct approximately 6,500 linear feet of 24 inch wastewater pipe parallel to the existing 24 inch 
wastewater pipe. This project will require the line to be bored under Highway 126.  Wastewater trunk lines are typically 
cleaned annually and video inspected every five years, and increasing the City's asset inventory will increase the City's 
maintenance work load and need.  In order to simplify construction, several of the collection lines in Basin 22 will be 
constructed as part of the 10th & N Street Upgrade project.
Justification: The project improves the capacity problems in the wastewater collection system and treatment facilities.  
This is necessary to enable the City to maintain compliance with federal and state requirements to eliminate sanitary 
sewer overflows.

Springfield has an obligation under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) order to maintain the 
wastewater system such that all sanitary sewer overflow (SSOs) are eliminated as well as assuring 
public health and safety.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2010.

Attachment 2-124



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850226

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

58th Street Flow Control Facility 12%
Map ID-WW 4

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan
Compliance with Environmental Protection Agency enforcement order

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 375$        375$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,600$     1,600$    
  Other 300$        300$      
Total 2,275$     2,275$   -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 18$          2$           2$           2$           3$           3$           3 3$                
  Personnel Costs 58$          6$          8$          8$          9$          9$           9$          9$               
Total 76$          8$          10$        10$        12$        12$         12$        12$             

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 275$        275$       
  User Fees 409 2,000$     2,000$    
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Other -$             
Total 2,275$     2,275$   -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Construction underway
Regulatory requirements

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Construct approximately 4,900 linear feet of 15 inch wastewater pipe as a wet weather flow control 
facility. This project will cross the Bob Straub Parkway near Main Street and then turn north at 58th Street eventually tying 
into the Thurston Road wastewater trunk line.  Wastewater trunk lines are typically cleaned annually and video inspected 
every five years, and increasing the City's asset inventory will increase the City's maintenance work load and need. 

Justification: The project improves the capacity problems in the wastewater collection system and treatment facilities 
during wet weather and peak flow conditions.  This is necessary to enable the City to maintain compliance with federal 
and state requirements to eliminate sanitary sewer overflows.

Springfield has an obligation under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) order to maintain the 
wastewater system such that all sanitary sewer overflow (SSOs) are eliminated as well as assuring 
public health and safety.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2011.

Attachment 2-125



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850249

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

S. 2nd Street Sewer Replacement 0%
Map ID-WW 5

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 150$        75$          75$         
  Land/Right of Way 15$          15$          
  Construction 850$        850$       
  Other 15$          15$         
Total 1,030$     105$       925$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$            -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 1,030$     230$        800$       
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Other -$             
Total 1,030$     230$       800$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Planning and design is underway.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description: Replace the sanitary sewer line in S. 2nd Street, upgrading a portion of the line from 8 inch to 12 
inch to better accommodate the permitted industrial discharges, as well as the future Harbor Drive Pump Station.  The 
project will also correct identified grade issues as well as inflow/infiltration concerns
Justification: During the summer of 2012, the S. 2nd Street snaitary sewer mainline experienced a sanitary sewer 
overflow (SSO).  It was determined that cause of the overflow was a build-up of resin from an industrial customer 
connected to line as well as the age (40 to 60 yrs) of the line.

Springfield has an obligation under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) order to maintain the 
wastewater system such that all sanitary sewer overflow (SSOs) are eliminated as well as assuring 
public health and safety.  
Regulatory requirements, recent sanitary sewer overflow

Attachment 2-126



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 830010

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Sewer Wet Weather Flow Abatement 0%
No Map

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Direction
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan
  2001 Wet Weather Flow Management Plan
  Regulatory Requirements

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 1,250$     250$       250$       250$       250$       250$        
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 3,750$     750$       750$       750$       750$       750$        
  Other -$             
Total 5,000$     -$           1,000$   1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$     -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$            -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 4,500$     1,000$    1,000$    1,000$    1,000$    500$        
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 500$        500$        
Total 5,000$     -$           1,000$   1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$     -$                

Funding deferred for FY 2012 and 2013 to allow other projects to move ahead.  Funding will resume 
once additional projects are identified.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  The City of Springfield's obligations in the 2001 Wet Weather Flow Management Plan (WWFMP) 
were completed by January 2010; however it is necessary for this program to continue to fund additional wastewater 
system rehabilitation and Inflow and Infiltration (I/I) reduction projects.  These additional projects will be identified through 
the Wastewater Master Plan Update project and the upcoming Capacity, Management, Operations and Maintenance 
(CMOM) program that will likely be included in the next NPDES permit for the wastewater system.

Justification: This program deals with capacity problems in the wastewater system and treatment facilities in the most 
cost-effective manner identified by the Wastewater Master Plan and the WWFMP.  This is necessary to enable the City to 
maintain compliance with federal and state regulations requiring elimination of sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs) .  Normal 
maintenance and inspections will continue as schedule thus there is a minimal net impact on the operations and 
maintenance budget.

Regulatory requirements

Springfield has an obligation under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) order to maintain the 
wastewater system such that all sanitary sewer overflow (SSOs) are eliminated as well as assuring 
public health and safety.  This program is a response to the need to both reduce the peak flows to the 
regional wastewater plant, as well as address all other requirements.

Attachment 2-127



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 850007

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Miscellaneous Wastewater System Repair 0%
No Map

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:  Accumulating funds for projects as developed
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Direction
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 920$        20$         150$       150$       150$       150$       150$        150
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 5,280$     180$       850$       850$       850$       850$       850$        850
  Other -$             
Total 6,200$     200$      1,000$   1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$     1,000$        

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$            -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 2,478$     212$       425$       537$       304$       500$        500$            
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 700$        200$       500$            
  Unspecified 3,022$     788$      575$      463$      696$       500$        
Total 6,200$     200$      1,000$   1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$     1,000$        

Regulatory requirements

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project involves the contracted repair or replacement of sanitary sewers that require either 
emergency rehabilitation as a result of Sanitary Sewer Overflows or the prospect of impending system failures. The PW 
Maintenance Division addresses an average of four (4) emergency repairs of this nature annually.
Justification: The project will repair and/or replace pipe or other system components that have reached the end of their 
useful life or are otherwise causing problems within the collection system.  This is necessary to enable the City to maintain 
compliance with federal and state requirements to eliminate sanitary sewer overflows (SSO).  Normal maintenance and 
inspections will continue as scheduled, thus there is a minimal net impact on the operations and maintenance budget.

Springfield has an obligation under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) order to maintain the 
wastewater system such that all sanitary sewer overflow (SSOs) are eliminated as well as assuring  
public health and safety.  This program provides funding for maintenance and engineering to respond 
to any system failures or issues quickly and efficiently as they arise or are identified.

Attachment 2-128



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Hayden Lo Pump Station 0%
Map ID-WW 7

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 50$          50$         
  Engineering 150$        150$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 600$        600$       
  Other 250$        250$      
Total 1,050$     200$      -$           850$      -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 5$            1$           1$           1 1$           1$                
  Personnel Costs 10$          2$          2$          2 2$          2$               
Total 15$          -$           -$           3$          3$          3$           3$          3$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 200$        200$       
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 850$        850$       
  Unspecified -$             
Total 1,050$     200$      -$           850$      -$           -$            -$           -$                

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:  The project will deal with capacity problems in the sanitary sewer system and treatment facilities.  This is 
necessary to enable the City to maintain compliance with federal and state requirements to eliminate SSO.

Regulatory Requirements - Facilities Master Plan, Protection of Public health and safety
Programmed

Project Description:  This project is necessary to maintain system capacity for existing users and avoid the potential for 
sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs).  The 2008 Wastewater Master Plan recommends that the existing pump station be 
upgraded to provide 2 pumps with a minimum of 494 gpm capacity each.  The Master Plan further recommends additional 
flow monitoring prior to preliminary design to determine actual capacity requirements and upgrades.  Additional funding is 
needed in the operations budget for maintenance costs to allow for flow monitoring to occur.

Springfield has an obligation to maintain the wastewater system such that all SSO are eliminated.  This 
project is necessary to enable the City to maintain compliance with federal and state requirements to 
eliminate sanitary sewer overflows.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion 
by 2014.

Attachment 2-129



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

River Glen Pump Station 21%
Map ID-WW 8

Project Driver: 

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 50$          50$         
  Engineering 200$        200$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 700$        700$       
  Other 275$        275$      
Total 1,225$     250$      -$           -$           975$      -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 4$            1$           1$           1 1$                
  Personnel Costs 8$            2$          2$           2 2$               
Total 12$          -$           -$           -$           3$          3$           3$          3$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 925$        250$       675$       
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 300$        300$       
  Unspecified -
Total 1,225$     250$      -$           -$           975$      -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:  The project will deal with capacity problems in the sanitary sewer system and treatment facilities.  This is 
necessary to enable the City to maintain compliance with federal and state requirements to eliminate SSO.

Regulatory Requirements - Facilities Master Plan

Project Description:  This project is necessary to maintain system capacity for existing users and avoid the potential for 
sanitary sewer overflows (SSO).  The 2008 Wastewater Master Plan recommends that the existing pump station be 
upgraded to provide 2 pumps with a minimum of 664 gpm capacity each.  The Master Plan further recommends additional 
flow monitoring prior to preliminary design to determine actual capacity requirements and upgrades.  Additional funding is 
needed in the operations budget for maintenance costs to allow for flow monitoring to occur.

Springfield has an obligation to maintain the wastewater system such that all SSO are eliminated.  This 
is project necessary to enable the City to maintain compliance with federal and state requirements to 
eliminate sanitary sewer overflows.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion 
by 2015.

Attachment 2-130



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 830005

Construction and Preservation

Wastewater Master Plan Update 50%
No Map
Project Description:   
Justification:   

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Wastewater Master Plan, June 2008
  City Council Objective

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 85$          85$         
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 85$          85$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 43$          43$         
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 42$          42$         
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 85$          85$        -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Pending available staff resources to manage study

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

To meet 5-yr target set by Council (2013 Adoption)
Council Direction to update Project List  and Master Plan on 5-yr cycle.

Review June 2008 Wastewater Master Plan and update as necessary.
Review and revise the June 2008 Wastewater Master Plan and technical model as necessary to 
accommodate changes related to new growth, additional flow monitoring data, implementation of the 
Downtown Plan, proposed changes in Glenwood and updating the 1991 North Springfield Sewer 
Study .

Attachment 2-131



Wastewater Funding Secured:  No
Account

Construction and Preservation

E. 17th Avenue Sewer 0%
Map ID-WW 22

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2011 IGA with Lane County 

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 15$          15           
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 90$          90           
  Other -$             
Total 105$        105$      -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  User Fees 409 105$        105         
  Revenue Bond 409 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (WW) 443 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 105$        105$      -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Project Description:   Properties along the south side of E. 17th Avenue in Glenwood, between Glenwood Boulevard and 
Henderson Avenue, do not have public wastewater service available.  The City and Lane County have entered into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) in 2011 for pavement rehabilitation and jurisdiction transfer of Glenwood Boulevard.  This 
IGA includes the option for the City to pay the County for pavement rehabilitation on this segment of E. 17th Avenue if the City 
has funds available.  City desires to install the needed public wastewater line prior to the pavement rehabilitation in 2014.

Justification:   The project provides wastewater service to unserved, unannexed parcels within Springfield's Urban Growth 
Boundary in Glenwood prior to a planned project to rehabilitate the street pavement.

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Orderly and efficient provision of key urban services through constructing a needed public wastewater 
line in E. 17th Avenue prior to rehabilitating the street pavement. 
E. 17th Avenue paving rehabilitation per IGA with Lane County (Council Motion on 10/17/11) in 2014. 

Attachment 2-132



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Franklin Boulevard System Expansion 100%
Map ID-WW 12

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status: Deferred pending funding
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Direction
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 75$          75$         
  Engineering 300$        300$       
  Land/Right of Way 250$        250$       
  Construction 2,373$     2,373$    
  Other -$             
Total 2,998$     625        2,373    -            -            -             -             -                 

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 21$          3$           4$           4$           5$           5$           
  Personnel Costs 41$          7$          8$          8$          9$          9$           
Total 62$          10$        12$        12$        14$        14$         -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 2,373$     2,373$    
  User Fees 409 625$        625$       
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified -$             
Total 2,998$     625$      2,373$   -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

Development activity in the Glenwood area

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This Project expands the Glenwood wastewater system from the existing 30 inch trunk line in 
Franklin Boulevard south with approximately 3,900 feet of 15 inch pipe and 2,400 feet of 8 inch pipe.  Wastewater trunk 
lines are typically cleaned annually and video inspected by maintenance every five years. 
Justification: This project was identified as a system need to provide capacity for future growth within the existing land 
use designations in the Glenwood area.

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote 
future urban development.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2009. 
Additionally, should the City receive federal stimulus dollars for the Franklin Boulevard Project, this will 
become a priority as some of the new pipe will be under the reconstructed roadway.

Attachment 2-133



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

Construction and Preservation

UGB Expansion Area Facility Plans - Wastewater 50%
No Map

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 

Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Metro Plan
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 100$        100$       
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other -$             
Total 100$        -$           100$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 100$        100$      
Total 100$        -$           100$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Project Description:   Develop a Wastewater Facility Master Plan for each of the areas selected by the City Council for 
expansion of Springfield's Urban Growth Boundary (UGB).
Justification:   As part of the proposed 2030 Refinement Plan Project, the City is evaluating several areas for potential UGB 
Expansion to address identified deficiencies in the Commercial and Industrial Buildable Lands Inventory (CIBL).  Urban facility 
planning will need to occur once the Council determines which area(s) are appropriate for UGB expansion.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Pending City Council approval of UGB Expansion Areas and 2030 Refinement Plan and funding 
identification.

Council approval of UGB Expansion Area(s)
2030 Refinement Plan acknowledgement by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and 
Development.

Attachment 2-134



Wastewater Funding Secured:  No
Account

Construction and Preservation

Marcola Rd. Sewer - 22nd to 28th Streets 0%
Map ID-WW 23

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Marcola Meadows Master Plan approval

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 20$          20$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 210$        210$       
  Other -$             
Total 230$        -$           230$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Revenue Bond 409 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (WW) 443 -$             
  Unspecified 230$        230$      
Total 230$        -$           230$      -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Project Description:   In 1979, parcels within the Northview Subdivision, on the south side of Marcola Road between 22nd 
and 28th Streets, were annexed to the City without wastewater service.  This project will construct a public 8-inch sewer to 
provide service to each parcel.  Development of the Marcola Meadows site will include new public wastewater lines within new 
public streets, extending south from the North Springfield Interceptor, which will allow service to the Northview Subdivision 
parcels.  The approved Marcola Meadows Master Plan requires improvements to Marcola Road, including installation of the 
needed wastewater line in Marcola Road with the City paying for some or all of the cost to install this line.  The City will recoup 
its costs through the application of Sewer In-lieu of Assessment fees charged on the Northview Subdivision parcels when they 
connect to the new line.
Justification:  The project provides wastewater service to unserved, annexed parcels within Springfield concurrent with a 
planned project to improve Marcola Road. 

Deferred pending funding and development activity

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Orderly and efficient provision of key urban services through constructing a needed public wastewater 
line in Marcola Road concurrent with a planned street improvement project. 
Construction of the Marcola Meadows development

Attachment 2-135



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Main Street Improvements Unit 1 20%
Map ID-WW 11

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status: Deferred pending funding
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Direction
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 25$          25$         
  Engineering 721$        721$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,356$     1,356$    
  Other -$             
Total 2,102$     -$           -$           2,102$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 2,102$     2,102$   
Total 2,102$     -$           -$           2,102$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

Regulatory requirements and development activity in the east Springfield area

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This Project begins at 59th Street and replaces approximately 3600 linear feet of 15 and 18 inch 
wastewater pipe to the east with a 24 inch wastewater pipe to provide capacity for future growth.  To avoid capacity 
issues, the 2008 Wastewater Master Plan identifies a need to upgrade to 21 inch pipe for existing land use; however a 24 
inch pipe is recommended to provide for future growth.  The Wastewater Master Plan recommends additional flow 
monitoring prior to preliminary design.
Justification: This project was identified as a system need to provide capacity for future growth within the existing land 
use designations in the east Springfield area.

Springfield has an obligation under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) order to maintain the 
wastewater system such that all sanitary sewer overflow (SSOs) are eliminated as well as assuring 
public health and safety.  Also, Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban 
Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote future urban development.  The Wastewater Master Plan 
prioritized this project for completion by 2011.

Attachment 2-136



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Nugget Way Pump Station 0%
Map ID-WW 13

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger:
Project Status:  Deferred pending funding
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 50$          50$         
  Engineering 300$        300$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,043$     1,043$    
  Other 50$          50$        
Total 1,443$     -$           -$           1,443$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs 18$          3$          3$          3$          3$          3$           3$          
Total 18$          3$          3$          3$          3$          3$           3$          -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 1,443$     1,443$   
Total 1,443$     -$           -$           1,443$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

Regulatory Requirements and Facilities Master Plan

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project is necessary to maintain system capacity for existing users and avoid the potential for 
sanitary sewer overflows (SSO).  The 2008 Wastewater Master Plan recommends that the existing pump station be 
upgraded to provide 2 pumps with a minimum of 911 gpm capacity each.  The Master Plan further recommends additional 
flow monitoring prior to preliminary design to determine actual capacity requirements and upgrades.  Additional funding is 
needed in the operations budget for maintenance costs to allow for flow monitoring to occur.  Also, completion of the 
Franklin Expansion will most likely allow for decommissioning of this pump station as well as reducing the future 
maintenance burden.
Justification: The project will deal with capacity problems in the sanitary sewer system and treatment facilities.  This is 
necessary to enable the City to maintain compliance with federal and state requirements to eliminate SSO.

Springfield has an obligation under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) order to maintain the 
wastewater system such that all sanitary sewer overflow (SSOs) are eliminated as well as assuring 
public health and safety.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2009.  
Currently the pump station is not experiencing problems, and flow monitoring will be done to determine 
if and when future upgrades will be needed.

Attachment 2-137



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Peacehealth/RiverBend Pump Station 100%
Map ID-WW 14

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan
  Sanitary Sewer Study for RiverBend Subdivision (2005)

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 956$        956$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 2,233$     2,233$    
  Other -$             
Total 3,189$     -$           -$           3,189$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 44$          11$         11$         11$         11$         
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total 44$          -$           -$           11$        11$        11$         11$        -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 3,189$     3,189$   
Total 3,189$     -$           -$           3,189$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding

Development within the RiverBend Area - capacity issues; and/or construction of the NE link between 
RiverBend Drive and International Way.

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project is for the engineering and construction of a pump station in the RiverBend area.  The 
need for the pump station will be driven by development within the RiverBend campus area and as defined in the Sanitary 
Sewer Study for RiverBend Subdivision.
Justification: This project was identified as a system need to provide capacity for future growth within the existing land 
use designations in the RiverBend area.

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote 
future urban development.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2012.
Project construction will occur with development.

Attachment 2-138



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Main Street Improvements Unit 2 25%
Map ID-WW 15

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 406$        406$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 739$        739$       
  Other -$             
Total 1,145$     -$           -$           1,145$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 1,145$     1,145$   
Total 1,145$     -$           -$           1,145$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding
Development activity in the east Springfield area

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This Project begins at 69th Street and replaces approximately 2,300 linear feet of 12 inch 
wastewater pipe to the east with a 18 inch wastewater pipe to provide capacity for future growth.
Justification: This project was identified as a system need to provide capacity for future growth within the existing land 
use designations in the east Springfield area.

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote 
future urban development.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2012.

Attachment 2-139



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

McKenzie Highway Expansion 100%
Map ID-WW 16

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 600$        600$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,083$     1,083$    
  Other -$             
Total 1,683$     -$           -$           1,683$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 16$          4$           4$           4$           4$                
  Personnel Costs 16$          4$          4$           4$          4$               
Total 32$          -$           -$           -$           8$          8$           8$          8$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 1,683$     1,683$   
Total 1,683$     -$           -$           1,683$   -$           -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding and development activity
Development within the east Springfield Area - capacity issues

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project extends the wastewater system from the existing 21 inch trunk line east along the 
McKenzie Highway with approximately 2,000 feet of 10 inch pipe and 2,000 feet of 12 inch pipe.  Wastewater trunk lines 
are typically cleaned annually and video inspected every five years, and increasing the City's asset inventory will increase 
the City's maintenance work load and need.  
Justification: This project was identified as a system need to provide capacity for future growth within the existing land 
use designations in the east Springfield area.

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote 
future urban development.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2012.

Attachment 2-140



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

"A" Street Improvements Unit 1 35%
Map ID-WW 17

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 200$        200$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 420$        420$       
  Other -$             
Total 620$        -$           -$           620$      -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 216$        216$       
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 404$        404$      
Total 620$        -$           -$           620$      -$           -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding and development activity
Development within the east Springfield Area - capacity issues

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project replaces approximately 1,000 feet of an exiting 12 inch wastewater pipe with a 15 inch 
pipe from 66th Street east along "A" Street.  Continued flow monitoring is recommended prior to preliminary design.

Justification: This project was identified as a system need to provide capacity for future growth within the existing land 
use designations in the east Springfield area.

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote 
future urban development.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2013.

Attachment 2-141



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

"A" Street Improvements Unit 2 30%
Map ID-WW 18

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 85$          85$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 200$        200$       
  Other -$             
Total 285$        -$           -$           85$        200$      -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 85$          85$         
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 200$        200$      
Total 285$        -$           -$           85$        200$      -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding and development activity
Development within the east Springfield Area - capacity issues

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project replaces approximately 529 feet of an exiting 10 inch wastewater pipe with a 12 inch 
pipe from 69th Street east along "A" Street.  Continued flow monitoring is recommended prior to preliminary design.

Justification: This project was identified as a system need to provide capacity for future growth within the existing land 
use designations in the east Springfield area.

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote 
future urban development.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2013.

Attachment 2-142



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

"A" Street Improvements Unit 3 40%
Map ID-WW 19

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 65$          65$         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 115$        115$       
  Other -$             
Total 180$        -$           -$           65$        115$      -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 72$          72$         
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 108$        108$      
Total 180$        -$           -$           72$        108$      -$            -$           -$                

Deferred pending funding and development activity
Development within the east Springfield Area - capacity issues

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  This project replaces approximately 325 feet of an exiting 10 inch wastewater pipe with a 12 inch 
pipe from 70th Street east along "A" Street.  Continued flow monitoring is recommended prior to preliminary design.

Justification: This project was identified as a system need to provide capacity for future growth within the existing land 
use designations in the east Springfield area.

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote 
future urban development.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2013.

Attachment 2-143



Wastewater Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

System Expansion, Upgrades, and Rehabilitation

Local Sewer Extensions 0%
No Map

Project Driver:
Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Goal to provide for development.
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 250$        50$         50$         50$         50$         50$              
  Engineering 750$        150$       150$       150$       150$       150$            
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 4,000$     800$       800$       800$       800$       800$            
  Other -$             
Total 5,000$     -$           -$           1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$        

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 11$          1$           1$           2$           3$           4$                
  Personnel Costs 12$          2$          1$          2$           3$          4$               
Total 23$          -$           -$           3$          2$          4$           6$          8$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 409 -$             
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442 -$             
  Unspecified 5,000$     1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$        
Total 5,000$     -$           -$           1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$        

Deferred pending funding

Council decision - Annexation of developed areas within the UGB and/or petitions for Local 
Improvement Districts

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Within the City of Springfield's city limits and Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) are several areas that 
are fully developed, but lack wastewater service.  The project would fund extending wastewater pipes to these areas upon 
request of affected property owners or annexation, with some or all of the cost possibly reimbursable through assessments.
Increased infrastructure will increase the need for more maintenance personnel which impacts the wastewater operations 
budget. The estimated increase in the wastewater operations cost is $1,600 per 1,000 feet of new pipe.

Justification:  The City will need to provide wastewater service to all development existing and future within the city and 
the UGB.

 Environmental issues, or failing septic tanks within the City and un-annexed areas within the UGB

Attachment 2-144



Wastewater Funding Secured:  No
Account

Construction and Preservation

19th Street Sewer Upgrade 0%
Map ID-WW 21

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  2008 Wastewater Master Plan
  Compliance with Environmental Protection Agency enforcement order

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 10$          10           
  Engineering 210$        210         
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 400$        400         
  Other -$             
Total 620$        -$           -$           -$           620$      -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  User Fees 409 -$             
  Revenue Bond 409 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (WW) 443 -$             
  Unspecified 620$        620       
Total 620$        -$           -$           -$           620$      -$            -$           -$               

Project Description:   Project #3 in the 2008 Wastewater Master Plan involves replacing the existing 12-inch wastewater line 
with an 18-inch line from MH10034175 (North Springfield Interceptor) to MH10034164 (at Highway 126 westbound off ramp) in 
Justification:  The project improves capacity problems in the wastewater collection system during wet weather and peak flow 
conditions.  This is necessary to enable the City to maintain compliance with federal and state requirements to eliminate 
sanitary sewer overflows. 

Deferred pending funding

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Springfield has an obligation under the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) order to maintain the 
wastewater system such that all sanitary sewer overflow (SSOs) are eliminated as well as assuring 
public health and safety.  The Wastewater Master Plan prioritized this project for completion by 2014.

Regulatory requirements

Attachment 2-145



 

 

BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY 
Overview 

The  Buildings  and  Property  section  covers  a  variety  of  projects  that  include;  construction  of  new 
facilities; maintenance, repair or renovation of existing facilities; and the demolition of unnecessary or 
un‐maintainable  facilities.   As  the  City  of  Springfield  grows,  so  does  the  need  for municipal  public 
services.   These  services  come with  an  associated  infrastructure  that  requires  continual monitoring, 
maintenance,  replacement  and/or  additions.   In  order  to  catch  up  and  stay  current,  Buildings  and 
Property projects will continue to be a priority. 

Numerous  other  projects  are  included  in  the  Building  Preservation  sheet.   This  project  addresses 
ongoing  maintenance  issues  as  well  as  maintenance  to  begin  alleviating  the  backlog  of  deferred 
previously unfunded maintenance projects.  There are projects at all City‐owned buildings, including City 
Hall, Fire Stations, Museum, Justice Center, Depot, and Public Works Maintenance Division Facilities.   

Another project  is  for the removal of the building constructed over the Mill Race west of the spillway 
dam.  This project  is  in conjunction with an Army Corp of Engineers Millrace bank restoration project.  
Timing of the removal and related work is related to Army Corp scheduling. 

Project Maps 
 
In Process 
BP2  Building Preservation 
BP3  Firing Range Decommissioning 
Funding Programmed 
BP4  Book Kelly Internal Structural 

Improvements 
BP5  Booth Kelly Roof Replacement/Repair  
BP6  Booth Kelly Building Removal 
BP7  Booth Kelly Water Isolation Analysis 

BP8  Flags Over gateway 
Funding Not Programmed 
BP10  Fire Station #14 Relocation/Replacement 
BP13  City Storage Facility 
BP15  Renovation of City Hall 
BP16  City Hall HVAC System Replacement 
BP17  Fire Station #3 Parking Improvements   
BP20  Pioneer Memorial Cemetery Trail 
BP21  Downtown Mill Plaza 

   

Attachment 2-146



Attachment 2-147



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017
Total Total Total Total Total Total Total

  Building Preservation 500$             1,000      1,000      1,000      1,000       1,000        5,500$     
Revenue Bonds (xxx) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

Buliding Preservation Fund (420) 267$              300           300           300           300           300           1,767$      
Unspecified 233$              700           700           700           700           700           3,733$      

  Firing Range Decommissioning 125$             -              -              -              -               -               125$        
Booth Kelly (618) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

Revenue Bonds (425) 125$              -                -                -                -                -                125$         

  Booth Kelly Internal Structural Imp. 429$             50           -              -              100          -               579$        
Booth Kelly (618) 429$              50             -                -                100           -                579$         

  Booth Kelly Roof Replacement/Repair 359$             20           21           -              -               -               400$        
Booth Kelly (618) -$                   20             21             -                -                -                41$           

Unspecified 359$              -                -                -                -                -                359           

  Booth Kelly Building Removal 60$               20           10           -              -               -               90           
Drainage Improvement SDCs (440) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

Wastewater Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                
Booth Kelly (618) 60$                20             10             -                -                -                90             

Unspecified -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

  Water Isolation Analysis 10$               10           10           -              -               -               30           
Booth Kelly (618) 10$                10             10             -                -                -                30             

Unspecified -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

  City Building Maintenance 40$               40           40           40           40            40             240$        
Old SDCs (420) 17$                -                    17$           

Unspecified 23$                40             40             40             40             40             223$         

  Flags Over Gateway 28$               15           -              -              -               -               43$          
Room Tax (208) 13$                -                -                -                -                -                13$           

Other (420) 15$                
Unspecified -$                   15             -                -                -                -                15$           

  Fire Station 14 420$             -              4,400      850         -               -               5,670$     
Unspecified 420$              -                4,400        850           -                -                5,670$      

Unspecified Grant Funds (420) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

  Fire Station 4 -$                  -              -              1,150      4,800       -               5,950$     
Unspecified -$                   -                -                1,150        4,800        -                5,950$      

Unspecified Grant Funds (420) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

  Municipal Parking Lot -$                  -              665         -              -               -               665$        
Revenue Bonds (420) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

Unspecified -$                    665           -                -                -                665$         

  City Storage Facility -$                  -              -              275         -               -               275         
Unspecified -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

Unspecified Grant Funds (420) -$                   -                -                275           -                -                275           

  Library -$                  -              -              25,300    -               -               25,300$   
Booth Kelly (618) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -                

Unspecified -$                   -                -                25,300      -                -                25,300$    

  City Hall Renovation -$                  -          -          -          3,850       -               3,850$     
Booth Kelly (618) -$                   -                -          -          -           -               -                

Unspecified -$                   -                 -                3,850        -                3,850$      

Building and Property 
Maintenance Capital Projects

In Process

Funding Programmed

Funding Not Programmed

Attachment 2-148



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017
Total Total Total Total Total Total Total

Building and Property 
Maintenance Capital Projects

  City Hall  HVAC -$                  -              1,650      -              -               -               1,650$     
Unspecified -$                   -                1,650        -                -                -                1,650$      

  FS3 Parking -$                  29           -              -              -               -               29$          
Unspecified -$                   29             -                -                -                -                29$           

  Electric Vehicle Projects -$                  -              850         850         -               -               1,700$     
Unspecified -$                   -                850           850           -                -                1,700$      

  Energy Effeciency Projects -$                  20           100         50           50            50             270$        
Unspecified -$                   20             100           50             50             50             270$         

  Pioner Memorial Cemetary Trail -$                  20           50           -              -               -               70$          
Unspecified -$                   20             50             -                -                -                70$           

  Downtown Mill Plaza Design & Const. -$                  -              3,700      -              -               -               3,700$     
Unspecified -$                   -                3,700        -                -                -                3,700$      

  Annual Total 1,941$           1,224        8,796        29,790      9,840        1,090        52,681$    
Room Tax (208) 13$                -                -                -                -                -                13$           

Booth Kelly (618) 499$              100           41             -                100           -                740$         
Revenue Bonds (425) 125$              -                -                -                -                -                125$         

Springfield Sch. Dist (420) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -$              
Willamalane P&R (420) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -$              

Rainbow Water Dist. (420) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -$              
Other (420) 15$                -                -                -                -                -                15$           
Unspecified 1,035$           824           8,455        29,215      9,440        790           49,759$    

Federal Aid (420) -$                   -                -                -                -                -                -$              
Unspecified Grant Funds (420) -$                   -                -                275           -                -                275$         

Buliding Preservation Fund (420) 267$             300         300         300         300          300           1,767$     

Attachment 2-149



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 810050

Building Rehabilitation and Preservation

Building Preservation
Map ID-BP 2

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other 6,500$     500$      1,000$   1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$        
Total 6,500$     500$      1,000$   1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$        

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Capital maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs 570$        160$      80$        80$        80$        85$         85$        85$             
Total 570$        160$      80$        80$        80$        85$         85$        85$             

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Building Preservation 420 2,067$     267$       300$       300$       300$       300$       300$       300$            
  Unspecified 4,433$     233$      700$      700$      700$      700$       700$      700$           
Total 6,500$     500$      1,000$   1,000$   1,000$   1,000$    1,000$    1,000$        

City Council Goals: Financially Responsible and Stable Governmental Services, and Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and      
Facilities.  Building Condition Report.

Project Description:  Perform preservation, capital maintenance and repair projects on City-owned buildings, including City 
Hall, 5 Fire Stations, Museum, Justice Center, Jail, Depot, Carter Building and Maintenance Facilities.  Projects can include the 
repair, renovation or replacement of structural, mechanical, electrical, and plumbing systems.  Other projects can include 
systems preservation such as, painting, roofing, lighting, alarm and elevator projects as well as repair and/or upgrades to 
aesthetic and architectural elements.

Justification:  These projects are necessary to maintain and preserve City-owned buildings. Project needs, costing, and 
prioritization are identified in the Public Works Building Maintenance Work Plan and by City Staff. Deferred capital maintenance 
(backlog) and annual ongoing capital maintenance needs are identified.  Extending beyond the 5-yr CIP, funding needs will 
continue and will likely increase as facilities age and costs increase.

Council decision to increase useful life of City building/facility assets
Aged facilities, regulatory requirements (ADA), implementation of Council 5-year Work plan and 5-year 
Building Facility Strategic Plan.
Ongoing capital maintenance program

Attachment 2-150



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No
Account 810022

Construction and Preservation
Firing Range Decommissioning
Map ID-BP 3

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:  
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 5$              5$           
  Engineering 25$            25$         
  Land/Right of Way -$              
  Construction -$              
  Other 95$            95$        
Total 125$          125$      -$          -$           -$          -$         -$         -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$              
  Personnel Costs -$              
Total -$              -$           -$          -$           -$          -$         -$         -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Booth Kelly 618 -$              
  Revenue Bonds 425 125$          125$       

-$              
-$              
-$              
-$              
-$              

Total 125$          125$      -$          -$           -$          -$         -$         -$                

Completion of the Mill Race Restoration Project
Planned

  Mill Race Restoration Project

Project Description: This project involves the clean-up of the outdoor firing range formerly used by the Police Department, 
including lead mining, removal of miscellaneous materials, and overall environmental assessment of the site.

Justification:  The Police department has stopped using the  outdoor firing range and is coordinating firearms training with 
other law enforcement agencies.  The site is located above the Booth Kelly Mill Pond, which will be rehabilitated for wetlands 
and water quality purposes.  The outdoor range site must be cleaned up in association with these plans.

Completion of Phase 1 of the Mill Race Restoration Project and stormwater quality requirements for 
water entering the Mill Pond.  This project was originally prioritized for 2001.

Attachment 2-151



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account 810041

Construction and Preservation
Booth Kelly Internal Structural Improvements
Map ID-BP 4

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:  
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$              
  Engineering -$              
  Land/Right of Way -$              
  Construction 579$          429$       50$        100$     
  Other -$              
Total 579$          429$      50$       -$           -$          100$     -$         -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$              
  Personnel Costs -$              
Total -$              -$           -$          -$           -$          -$         -$         -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$              
  AFG Grant 420 -$              
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$              
  Federal Aid 420 -$              
  State Aid 420 -$              
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$              
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$              
  Booth Kelly 618 579$          429$      50$       100$     
Total 579$          429$      50$       -$           -$          100$     -$         -$               

  Booth Kelly Development Plan

Project Description: Structural repair/improvements to the Booth Kelly Center.
Justification:  This project will complete the internal structural rehabilitation of certain areas of the facility that were 
considered nonessential when the initial repairs were completed in the early 1990s.  Certain structural and/or lease space 
modifications are also anticipated due to tenant vacancies.  This project also includes new roof covering for the southeast 
portion of the facility and waterline replacement in the east-west alleyway.

Structural repair/improvements to the Booth Kelly Center
Programmed

Internal and structural improvements. This project supports the preservation of the Booth Kelly 

Attachment 2-152



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account #

Construction and Preservation

Booth Kelly Roof Replacement/Repair
Map ID-BP 5

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 

Project Status:  
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 400$        200$        200$        
  Other -$             
Total 400$        200$       -$            -$            -$            -$             200$       -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$             -$            -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  AFG Grant 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Booth Kelly 618 41$          20$          21$          
  Unspecified 359$        359$       
Total 400$        359$       20$         21$         -$            -$             -$            -$                

  This project supports the preservation of the Booth Kelly Center and is consistent with the Booth Kelly Development Plan.

Project Description:  Complete roof replacement or epoxy over coating of the existing metal roof decking of the "Saw-tooth" 
building, commonly referred to as Building G at the Booth-Kelly Center.
Justification:  The existing roof material of the "Saw-tooth" building is over 50 years old and no longer provides adequate weather 
protection for the building users or interior equipment.

The replacement or over coating of the roof decking will significantly reduce/eliminate the ongoing 
maintenance demands of the roof for a period of approximately 20 years.
Programmed

Internal and structural improvements

Attachment 2-153



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # 810043

Construction and Preservation
Booth Kelly Building Removal
Map ID-BP 6

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:  
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$                
  Engineering 20$             10$           10$         
  Land/Right of Way -$                
  Construction 70$             50$           10$         10$         
  Other -$                
Total 90$             60$           20$         10$         -$            -$            -$            -$                    

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$                
  Personnel Costs -$                
Total ‐$               ‐$             ‐$           ‐$           ‐$           ‐$            ‐$           ‐$                  

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. ‐$              
  AFG Grant 420 ‐$              
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 ‐$              
  Federal Aid 420 ‐$              
  State Aid 420 ‐$              
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 ‐$              
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 ‐$              
  Booth Kelly 618 90$            60$          20$        10$       
Total 90$            60$          20$        10$        ‐$           ‐$            ‐$           ‐$                  

  This project supports the preservation of the Booth Kelly Center and is consistent with the Booth Kelly Development Plan. 

Justification:  The existing roof cover is deteriorating and is over 50 years old and no longer provides weather protection for the building 
causing flooding in the immediate area.  The removal of the structure and fill of the loading ramp with the relocation of sump pump will 
eliminate flooding and improve drainage.

External repair/improvements to the Booth Kelly Center
Planned

Project Description:   Removal of the building structure referred to as Building D, Suite 188 open cover.  

Project Driver:              External Structural Improvements.

Attachment 2-154



Buildings and Property Funding Secured:  Yes

Infrastructure Planning and Inventory Study

Booth Kelly Water Isolation Analysis
Map ID-BP 7

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$            
  Engineering -$            
  Land/Right of Way -$            
  Construction -$            
  Other 30$         10             10$         10$         
Total 30$         10$           10$         10$         -$            -$            -$            -$                    

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$            
  Personnel Costs -$            
Total ‐$           ‐$              ‐$           ‐$           ‐$           ‐$            ‐$           ‐$                   

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. ‐$          
  AFG Grant 420 ‐$          
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 ‐$          
  Federal Aid 420 ‐$          
  State Aid 420 ‐$          
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 ‐$          
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 ‐$          
  Booth Kelly 618 30$         10            10$        10$       
  Unspecified ‐$          
Total 30$         10$          10$        10$        ‐$           ‐$            ‐$           ‐$                   

City Council Goals: Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and Facilities, and Preserve our Hometown Feel, Livability and Environmental 
Q lit

Project Description: This project will consist of a water isolation analysis to the Booth Kelly Complex grounds in order to locate a slow 
water leakage.  
Justification:  The City has been chosen as part of the Sustainable Cities Year Project. The location of the leakage will enable us to 
repair and analyze current locations of all water pipes not identified on paper. The grounds stability will be crucial as to the location of 
any future building development at Booth Kelly.  Possible upgrades or a new direction and re-use of the facility or tear-down and 
reconstruction of newer buildings would give opportunities for the site, and tying development with updated plans for the downtown area 
that are now being considered. 

Identify water leakage due to rate increase
Deferred pending funding

The future development of Booth Kelly Center

Attachment 2-155



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account # 810002

Building Rehabilitation and Preservation

City Building Maintenance
No Map

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other 240$        40$        40$        40$        40$        40$         40$        
Total 240$        40$        40$        40$        40$        40$         40$        -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Capital maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$              
Old SDCs 420 17$          17$             
  Unspecified 223$        23$        40$        40$        40$        40$         40$        
Total 240$        40$        40$        40$        40$        40$         40$        -$                

City Council Goals: Financially Responsible and Stable Governmental Services, and Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and 
Facilities.  Building Condition Report.

Project Description:  Perform major maintenance and contracted activities to address unanticipated emergency facility 
equipment and systems replacement.

Justification:  Each year we budget for preservation maintenance and ongoing repair and preventive maintenance of 
equipment and systems.  However, unanticipated breakdowns occur.  This project covers unanticipated repairs or replacements 
of equipment and or systems.

Council decision to increase useful life of City building/facility assets
Aged facility equipment and systems failures, regulatory requirements (ADA), implementation of 
Council 5-year Workplan and 5-year Building Facility Strategic Plan
Ongoing capital maintenance program

Attachment 2-156



Buildings and Property Funding Secured:  Partial
Account #

Construction

Flags Over Gateway - Entry Beautification Project

Project Driver:  Gateway Area Development and Tourism Readiness
Project Trigger: 

Project Status:  

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$            
  Engineering -$            
  Land/Right of Way -$            
  Construction 43$         43$         
  Other -$            
Total 43$         -$            43$         -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                 

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 6$           1$           1$           1$           1$           1$           1$                
  Personnel Costs -$            
Total 6$           -$            1$           1$           1$           1$           1$           1$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$            
  Room Tax 208 13$         13$         
  Downtown UR/SEDA 430 -$            
  Other (Developer) 420 15$         15$         
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$            
  Federal Aid 420 -$            
  State Aid 420 -$            
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$            
  Booth Kelly 618 -$            
  Unspecified* 15$         15$         
Total 43$         28$         15$         -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                 

Pending design and financial resources to build an suitable entry sign/monument with appropriate 
landscaping/viewing area. Original 'Flags' design was too expensive for the $15,000 provided by 
Symantec plus $12,500 set aside then in Room Tax Funds.  Permits are in hand from ODOT, the 
property owner.

Project Description: At the completion of the I-5/Gateway intersection upgrade, land located on the south west corner was 
identified for a entry beautification project.  The project is likely to include art, flags, lighting, minimal concrete work, landscaping, 
and irrigation.  Funding for this project is likely to be from multiple sources including area Room Tax Funds. 

Justification:  The Gateway area is a major entry way to the City of Springfield.  Every day, citizens from Springfield, and 
Eugene and traveling along I-5 visit the Springfield Gateway area for dining, shopping, staying in hotels, medical visits, and 
working, among many other things. The installation of an entry beautification project to signify reaching their desired destination is 
an important part of this experience. 

Suitable design & funding that would come with Chamber spearheading the design & capital campaign.

Attachment 2-157



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

Construction and Preservation

Fire Station #14 Relocation/Replacement
Map ID-BP 10

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  City of Springfield Department of Fire and Life Safety Standards  (SFLS) of Cover and Deployment Study - April 2007
  SFLS Strategic Plan.
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 15$          15$         
  Engineering 550$        200$       350$       
  Land/Right of Way 405$        405$       
  Construction 3,950$     3,950$    
  Other 750$        250$      500$      
Total 5,670$     420$      -$           4,400$   850$      -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 30$          10$         10$         10$         
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total 30$          -$           -$           -$           10$        10$         10$        -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  AFG Grant 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Unspecified 5,670$     420$      4,400$   850$      
Total 5,670$     420$      -$           4,400$   850$      -$            -$           -$               

Deferred pending funding

Development and Annexation in Jasper Natron requires relocation of fire station to provide urban level 
of service

Project Description:  The Project will be constructed in east Springfield, utilizing the site at 725 S. 57th Street. The design of 
the new facility will need to reflect the character of the neighborhood, and be an asset to the area and to the City of Springfield. 
The City intends for the completed project to meet the needs of the staff, equipment, and materials necessary to provide 
proper Fire and Life Safety services to the City of Springfield and specifically to extend Fire and Emergency services to the 
Jasper/Natron area.  Funding for this project has not been identified.

Justification:  Fire Station #14 located at 4765 Main Street, was originally constructed in 1961 and then remodeled in 1999. In 
2007, the Department of Fire and Life Safety Standards of Cover and Deployment Study was conducted by Emergency 
Services Consulting Inc.  The following evaluation of the station was observed; "while minimally functional, this station is not a 
positive environment for the staff. Storage and living space are at a critical point. The station does not meet today's standards. 
The building is not fully ADA compliant; and appears to not be in compliance with fire and life safety codes." The location of the 
station was established in 1961.  Since that time the addition of other fire stations to provide fire and emergency service for the 
expanding city has caused a significant overlap of coverage. Relocation of this station's response apparatus to the south to 
cover the Jasper Natron area will not negatively impact current coverage and will accommodate future annexations and 
development. Without relocation of this high impact Public Utility Facility, the fire department will be unable to deliver this key 
urban service to these future developments. 

Standards of Cover and Deployment Study; Annexation of Jasper/Natron

Attachment 2-158



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

Construction and Preservation

Fire Station #4 Relocation/Replacement
No Map

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  City of Springfield Department of Fire and Life Safety Standards  (SFLS) of Cover and Deployment Study - April 2007
  SFLS Strategic Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 200$        200$       
  Engineering 550$        200$       350$       
  Land/Right of Way 400$        400$       
  Construction 3,950$     3,950$    
  Other 850$        350$      500$       
Total 5,950$     -$           -$           -$           1,150$   4,800$    -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 20$          10$         10$         
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total 20$          -$           -$           -$           -$           10$         10$        -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  AFG Grant 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Unspecified 5,950$     1,150$   4,800$    
Total 5,950$     -$           -$           -$           1,150$   4,800$    -$           -$               

Deferred pending funding

Development and Annexation in Glenwood requires relocation of Fire Station #4 to provide urban level 
of service.

Project Description:  The Project will be constructed in downtown Springfield. The design of the new facility will need to 
reflect the character of the neighborhood, and be an asset to the area and to the City of Springfield. The City intends the 
completed project will meet the needs of the staff, equipment, and materials necessary to implement proper Fire and Life 
Safety services to the downtown area of the City of Springfield and specifically to extend Fire and Emergency services to the 
Glenwood area. Funding for this project has not been identified.
Justification:  Fire Station #4, located at 1475 5th Street, was originally constructed in 1973. In 2007, the Department of Fire 
and Life Safety Standards of Cover and Deployment Study was conducted by Emergency Services Consulting Inc. The 
following evaluation of the station was observed; "Age and construction type has led to increasing maintenance costs. The 
entire structure shows signs of excessive usage and wear.  The station does not meet today's standards. The building is not 
fully ADA compliant; and appears to not be in compliance with fire and life safety codes. "  The location of the station was 
established in 1973.  Since that time the acceptance of Glenwood into the City's Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) from the City 
of Eugene has created a gap in the Springfield Department of Fire and Life Safety's ability provide this key urban level of 
service to portions of Glenwood. Relocation of this station's response apparatus to the south will provide improved coverage to 
the downtown area and accommodate future annexations and developments in Glenwood with the appropriate response time. 
Without relocation of this high impact Public Utility Facility the Fire Department will be unable to deliver urban service levels to 
future annexations and developments in some areas of Glenwood. 

Standards of Cover and Deployment Study; Annexation of Glenwood

Attachment 2-159



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

Construction and Preservation

Municipal Parking Lot
No Map

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way 475$         475$       
  Construction 190$         190$       
  Other -$               
Total 665$        -$           -$           665$      -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 21$          3$           3$           3$           3$           3$           3$           3$                
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total 21$          3$          3$          3$          3$          3$           3$          3$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Unspecified 665$        665$      
Total 665$        -$           -$           665$      -$           -$            -$           -$                

City Council Goals: Community and Economic Development and Revitalization, Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and Facilities.

Project Description:  This project is for the purchase of land and construction of a 150 car asphalt parking lot with concrete 
curbs and gutters for City of Springfield employees and fleet vehicles.  This will replace the former lot at 4th and B Streets that 
was incorporated into the Springfield Justice Center as well as provide adequate parking for City Hall fleet vehicles.

Justification: Construction of the Justice Center required removal of 84 spaces previously reserved for City staff parking.  This 
loss has caused staff to park curbside in the adjacent business district, residential neighborhood, and/or in dedicated public 
parking around City Hall. Staff have received complaints from businesses and property owners and from the patrons visiting 
City facilities. By relocating staff and fleet vehicles away from City Hall, additional parking will be made available for customers 
patronizing downtown businesses and Municipal facilities.

Downtown redevelopment, citizen concerns and business accessibility
Capacity Issues, citizen concerns and business accessibility
Deferred pending funding

Attachment 2-160



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

Construction and Preservation

City Storage Facility
Map ID-BP 13

Project Driver:
Project Trigger:

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 25$          25$         
  Land/Right of Way -$              
  Construction 250$         250$       
  Other -$              
Total 275$        -$           -$           -$           275$      -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs (48)$         (16)$        (16)$        (16)$        
  Personnel Costs 3$            1$          1$           1$          
Total (45)$         -$           -$           -$           (15)$       (15)$        (15)$        -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Unspecified 275$        275$      
Total 275$        -$           -$           -$           275$      -$            -$           -$                

City Council Goals: Financially Responsible and Stable Governmental Services, and Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and 
Facilities.

Project Description:  This project is to construct a storage facility to provide long term storage for City Departments.  The 
facility construction is proposed to be a pre-engineered metal building with a concrete floor and include multiple compartments 
to accommodate the varying storage needs of Departments. The building would be weather-tight and climate controlled to 
assure proper storage of materials and equipment.

Justification:  The City owns land at the Public Works-Maintenance Shops at South 18th street that could be used to construct 
this facility.  Every Department has growing storage needs which include; long term file retention, historical items, materials, 
equipment and supplies.  Limited storage space at City facilities have caused several Departments to rent storage in the private 
sector.  This facility will reduce or eliminate the need for rental spaces.

 Limited space
Capacity Issues
Deferred pending funding

Attachment 2-161



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No
Account #:

Construction and Preservation

Library Building
No Map

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 

Project Status: 

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project: 

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$              
  Engineering 2,500$      2500  
  Land/Right of Way 2,000$      2000  
  Construction 16,800$     16800  
  Other 4,000$      4000  
Total 25,300$     -$           -$           -$           25,300$    -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 40$           10$           10$         10$         10$              
  Personnel Costs 320$         80$          80$         80$        80$             
Total 360$         -$           -$           -$           90$          90$         90$        90$             

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$              
  AFG Grant 420 -$              
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$              
  Federal Aid 420 -$              
  State Aid 420 -$              
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$              
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$              
  Unspecified 25,300$     25,300$    
Total 25,300$     -$           -$           -$           25,300$    -$            -$           -$               

Council Goals #4 - Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and Facilities and # 5 - Preserve Hometown Feel, 
Livability and Environmental Quality.

Project Description:  Construct an approximately 60k sq. ft. Library facility adequate to serve the needs of Springfield citizens 
for the next 20-30 years based on currently adopted population estimates.  The projected cost of the new library will be 
$25,300,000 including design, site preparation, construction, FF&E and landscaping.  Estimated facility size and cost were 
derived from: Standards for Oregon Public Libraries, 2008 by the Public Library Division of the Oregon Library Association; Public 
Library Space Needs: A Planning Outline, 2009, Anders C. Dahlgren, President of Library Planning Associates, Inc., Wisconsin 
Dept. of Public Instruction; Robertson/Sherwood Architects, Eugene, Oregon, Randy Nishimura - Architect.

Justification:  The Library is currently below Oregon Library Standards for both facilities and open hours for communities our 
size.  It is at "threshold" (minimum) standards for size of collection.  Recently, the Library has experienced double digit increases 
in both circulation (13%) and program attendance (20%).  It cannot expand it's collections in any meaningful way due to space 
limitations. The Library cannot keep up with public demand for programming and for community meeting space and is hampered 
in effectively deploying new technology due, in part, to the age and infrastructure of the building.  Population estimates project 
Springfield's population to grow to over 80,000 people in the next 20 years increasing the difficulty in providing services in a sub-
standard facility. In addition, a new Library building can help in the City's efforts at revitalizing the downtown core by attracting 
tens of thousands of people to the area through its services and programs and by serving as a community gathering place. 

Ability to provide library service from current facility declines to the point that both quality and quantity of 
service are impacted.  Citizen feedback and staff reporting support Council action.
Deferred pending funding

Growing demand for Library services; current facility cannot sustain current usage level nor can it 
address projected population growth into the future; ability for new Library to act as a positive factor in 
revitalizing downtown core.

Attachment 2-162



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

Construction and Preservation

Renovation of City Hall
Map ID-BP 15

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 350$         350$       
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 3,500$      3,500$    
  Other -$              
Total 3,850$     -$           -$           -$            -$           3,850$    -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$                    
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$            -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Unspecified 3,850$     3,850$    
Total 3,850$     -$           -$           -$            -$           3,850$    -$           -$                

City Council Goals: Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and Facilities, and Preserve Hometown Feel, Livability and Environmental 
Quality

Project Description: Once the Library moves out of City Hall into a building of its own, City Hall will be left with about 25,000 
square feet of empty space that will need to be reallocated to meet departmental space needs.  This project is for the renovation 
of City Hall to improve building safety, energy efficiency and space allocation.  This project includes additional seismic bracing, 
upgraded HVAC system and ductwork, better insulation and interior redesign to better utilize space.

Justification: City Hall holds the majority of City Employees and many essential municipal functions are based out of this aging, 
retrofitted building.  The building is not designed to current seismic codes and as such is vulnerable to earthquakes.  Also while 
renovations have improved some energy efficiency from the original construction, additional improvements would increase user 
comfort and increase energy efficiency and reduce energy consumption.  Finally with the space created by the Library moving to 
its own building, City Hall can be reconfigured into a more efficient space for staff and users with room for growth as the City 
grows.

Providing a safe, energy efficient and functional space for citizens and staff
Approval of funding for a new Municipal Library
Deferred pending funding

Attachment 2-163



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

Construction and Preservation

City Hall HVAC System Replacement
Map ID-BP 16

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering 150$        150$        
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,500$     1,500$     
  Other -$              
Total 1,650$     -$           -$           1,650$    -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs (20)$           (5)$           (5)$          (5)$          (5)$           
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total (20)$         -$           -$           (5)$          (5)$         (5)$          (5)$         -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Unspecified 1,650$     1,650$    
Total 1,650$     -$           -$           1,650$    -$           -$            -$           -$                

City Council Goals: Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and Facilities, and Preserve Hometown Feel, Livability and Environmental 
Quality

Project Description: This project will replace the heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) system at City Hall.  This 
project will also include the replacement of 30+ year old fiberboard ductwork with more modern, hygenic material and in a more 
effecient design to better serve offices, meeting rooms and cubical areas.  Engineering analysis will be done to determine the 
most effecient and effective system to be installed, in an effort to maximize energy effeciency and occupant comfort.  Design will 
try to accomodate maximum flexabiltiy to change easily with building use patterns.
Justification: The existing Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) system has several issues that are quickly coming 
together to require a complete change out.  First, the existing units were installed in the mid 1990's so they are approaching the 
end of their useful life.  Second, layout of the units has not changed since the original design was done in 1980.  However, the 
layout of City Hall has changed significantly and as a result the ductwork and zoning is very ineffecient and staff comfort is 
always poor.  Third, the 65 package unit heat pumps are potentially not the most effecient or effective HVAC for the building and 
additional system types should be look into.

Providing a comfortabole, energy efficient and functional space for citizens and staff
End of useful life of the existing HVAC system
Conceptual

Attachment 2-164



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No
Account #

Construction and Preservation

Fire Station #3 Parking Improvements
Map ID-BP 17

Project Driver:  
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  City of Springfield Department of Fire and Life Safety Standards  (SFLS) of Cover and Deployment Study - April 2007
  SFLS Strategic Plan
  Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 2$            2$           
  Engineering 2$            2$           
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 25$          25$         
  Other -$             
Total 29$          -$           29$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  AFG Grant 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Unspecified 29$          29$        
Total 29$          -$           29$        -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

Deferred pending funding

Project Description:  This project will expand and improve parking areas at Springfield Fire Station #3, located at 1225 28th 
Street. The project involves addition of ten (10) parking spaces for staff and relocation of the existing fence and gate to the 
south. The City intends for the completed project to meet the needs of staff, equipment, and materials related to the operation 
of the fire station. Funding for this project has not been identified.

Justification:  Fire Station #3, located at 1225 28th Street, was originally constructed in 1971. In 2008, the building was 
remodeled to provide upgraded kitchen facilities and individual sleeping rooms for 24/7 staff. This one-story addition to the 
existing 8,579 square foot facility eliminated approximately ten (10) secured parking spaces for Fire Department staff and 
equipment. This project will replace the lost parking areas and relocate the fence that secures the parking area to the South. 
Current parking availability requires some personal and staff vehicles to be parked in an unsecure area, susceptible to 
vandalism.

Capacity Issues and safety concerns
Inadequate facilities

Attachment 2-165



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Electric Vehicle Projects
No Map

Project Driver:   

Project Trigger: 

Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 150$        75$         75           
  Engineering 150$        75$         75           
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 200$        100$       100         
  Other 1,200$     600$      600       
Total 1,700$     -$           -$           850$      850$      -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  AFG Grant 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Unspecified 1,700$     850$      850       
Total 1,700$     -$           -$           850$      850$      -$            -$           -$               

City Council Goals: Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and Facilities, and Preserve our Hometown Feel, Livability and 
Environmental Quality. Energizing Oregon, a PEV Market and Community Plan, Clean Cities Community Readiness and 
Planning for Plug-in Electric Vehicles and Charging Infrastructure.

 In 2007 the Legislative Assembly set ambitious targets for the reduction of greenhouse gases 
(“GHG”) from activity in Oregon. House Bill 3543 calls for a target reduction of 10 percent below 1990 
levels by 2020 and 75 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. 
Grant funding opportunities and agency fleet replacement funds support project implementation

Project dependent on Federal/State Aid or Grant Assistance Funding

Justification:   All TEAM Springfield agencies have interests to reduce GHG emissions and a responsibility to work toward 
more energy independence and environmental sustainability. By changing some of our fleet vehicles and rolling stock to 
equipment that can operate on electricity or alternative fuels we can help to meet these independence and sustainability goals. 
The City and TEAM Springfield agencies have concluded that it is vital to reduce the use of fossil based fuels by replacing 
vehicles with those that are fueled by electricity, and to begin the process of providing solar based electricity for those vehicles, 
so that ultimately there will be no GHG impact from the fleet. The partners are now seeking supplemental grant funding to 
support existing vehicle replacement reserves and replace 30 administrative vehicles over the next three years. 

Project Description:  The City of Springfield and our TEAM Springfield partners desire to reduce reliance on fossil fuels and 
begin to transition agency fleets from fossil fuel based vehicles to electric or hybrid fueled vehicles. The project objective is to 
seek clean energy opportunities through moving our fleet to alternative fuels that promote the use of renewable and clean 
energy sources.  Priority first phase projects initiatives include development and installation of approximately 10 electric vehicle 
(EV) charging stations at the Regional Fuel Facility and other strategic locations within Springfield. 

Attachment 2-166



Buildings and Property Funding Programmed:  No

Construction and Preservation

Energy Efficiency Projects
No Map

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 20$          20$         
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 250$        100$       50$         50$         50$          
  Other -$             
Total 270$        -$           20$        100$      50$        50$         50$        -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  AFG Grant 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$             
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 -$             
  Unspecified 270$        20$        100$      50$        50$         50$        
Total 270$        -$           20$        100$      50$        50$         50$        -$               

City Council Goals: Maintain & Improve Infrastructure and Facilities, and Preserve our Hometown Feel, Livability and 
Environmental Quality

Project Description:  This project is to install energy effeciency improvements in City facilities.  These improvements could 
include; photovoltaic (PV) generation panels, passive solor water heating, geothermal HVAC systems, lighting improvements 
and building weather-proofing.  Work will take place on City facilities including, Regional Fuel Facility, City Hall, five fire 
stations, City maintenance facilities, Justice Center, Municipal Jail, and City owned rental facilities.  This is a five year plan to 
make improvements to all locations.  The first year funding is for planning and design, followed by solor hot water at high use 
facilities, and Geothermal HVAC systems at our fire stations.

Justification:   The City is working with Team Springfield partners to implement an initiative that will engage all of the 
agencies by pursuing innovative and sustainable solutions that reduce demand for electricity while at the same time reducing 
greenhouse gases (GHG). As a large energy consumer in the area we also generate a significant carbon foot print and 
contribute to greenhouse gas emissions.  There are currently regional goals that mandate or recommend reductions in 
municipal carbon footprints and greenhouse gas emissions; and as such Springfield has determined that we need to look at 
alternatives to the status quo.

Energy costs and Savings

Deferred pending funding

Attachment 2-167



Buildings and Property Funding Secured:  No

Construction and Preservation

Pioneer Memorial Cemetery Trail
Map ID-BP 20

Project Driver:   
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
City Council Goal to Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities
City Council Goal to Promote and Enhance our Hometown Feel while Focusing on Livability and Environmental Quality

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning 5$            5$           
  Engineering 10$          10$         
  Land/Right of Way 5$            5$           
  Construction 50$          50$         
  Other -$             
Total 70$          -$           20$        50$        -$           -$            -$           -$               

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$               

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Unspecified 70$          20$        50$        
Total 70$          -$           20$        50$        -$           -$            -$           -$               

Pending funding

Citizen requests 
Citizen requests and safety related incidents

Project Description:   Replace and upgrade the Pioneer Memorial Cemetery Park North Woods trail and steps.  The trail and 
steps were constructed by Lane Metro Youth Corps in 1991.  The existing steps and trail are in disrepair and need 
replacement.  In addition, poor lighting and vegetation have created an area inviting inappropriate uses.

Justification:   This project addresses a need to provide a safe access to the Park and the Willamette Heights area.  This is a 
well used trail that creates a link from the Mill Race/Booth Kelly area to the Park, which is owned by the City.  The trail 
facilitates the Willamette Height's residents access to the downtown area as there are no sidewalks along S. B Street or S. C 
Street.  The timber steps do not comply with current  ADA standards, do not include handrails, and erosion is occurring along 
the trail, affecting safe use of the trail and steps.  Enhanced lighting and vegetation replacement will enhance public safety and 
allow police officers to view into the park while on patrol.

Attachment 2-168



Buidings and Property Funding Secured: Partial
Account # 881002

Design and Construction

Downtown Mill Plaza Design and Construction

Project Driver:   Downtown Revitalization
Project Trigger: 
Project Status:  

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:

Springfield Downtown Urban Design Plan, 2010
EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$                      
  Engineering -$                      
  Land/Right of Way 1,100$              1,100$    
  Construction 2,600$              2,600$    
  Other -$                      
Total 3,700$              -$            -$            3,700$    -$            -$            -$            -$                 

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 8$                     2$           2$           2$           2$                 
  Personnel Costs 20$                   5$           5$           5$           5$                 
Total 28$                   -$            -$            -$            7$           7$           7$           7$                 

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$                      
  Room Tax 208 -$                      
  Downtown UR/SEDA 430 -$                      
  AFG Grant 420 -$                      
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 -$                      
  Federal Aid 420 -$                      
  State Aid 420 -$                      
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 -$                      
  Booth Kelly 618 -$                      
  Unspecified* 3,700$              3,700$    
Total 3,700$              -$            -$            3,700$    -$            -$            -$            -$                 

Downtown Urban Renewal Plan, Springfield Economic Development Agency, 2007
Downtown Plan, 2010

Project Description: This project suuports the Downtown Vision Plan recommendation of constructing a Downtown Plaza, referred to 
as Mill Plaza.  The Plaza is planned to sit on the block between Mill Street and Pioneer Parkway, north of Main Street and South of A 
Street.  The Plaza will require land aquisition, design, and construction.  In total, the Plaza supposes approximately .75 acres of public 
infrastructure and open space (total plaza including retail and office is 1.3 acres).  The design of the plaza includes mostly hardscape 
elements and is flexible enought to accomodate large downtown events as well as everyday uses.  The cost is estimated by consultants 
in 2010 for Plaza land aquisition ($1.1M) and Plaza construction ($2.6M) totals approximately $3.7M (Crandall Arambula, 2011, p. 49).

Justification:  Based on the Downtown Vision Plan, the Mill Plaza, park and open space enhancements serve as downtown organizing 
elements and amenities, support natural storage of downtown stormwater, and provide community access to ecologically restored public 
waterways.  The Mill Plaza planned for the west end of Main Street is a focus for creating a downtown retail destination and central 
gathering space for the community.  The Mill Plaza is identified in the Downtown Vision Plan as a "catalyst and key project." 

Completed Property Acquisition and Available Downtown Urban Renewal Funds
Pending Land Acquisition (in process), Funding, and Private Partnership 

Attachment 2-169



 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Overview 

The Miscellaneous section covers debt collection and tracking of public facilities and  infrastructure.  As 
the City of Springfield grows, so does the need for municipal public services.  These services come with 
an associated infrastructure cost that at times requires the City to acquire debt.   

Current debt  includes the Springfield Justice Center Facility bond which  included the construction of a 
jail facility to house misdemeanor offenders. 

Miscellaneous projects address ongoing facility and infrastructure upgrades, working to sustain physical 
assets  found  in the  field and electronic assets  found  in databases.  Projects  include storm, sewer, and 
transportation  facilities.   These  projects  encompass  a  variety  of  areas,  like  the  City’s  participation  in 
public  improvements of  private developments;  for  example,  the McKenzie/Gateway Corporate  Park.  
Other projects include citywide base mapping projects, such as the Topographic Remapping Project, and 
database  projects  like  the  Asset  Management  System  Replacement  Project.   Because  of  budget 
reductions, the Topographic Remapping Project is not currently funded. 

 
Projects: 
 
Asset Management System Replacement Project – This project addresses failing systems that manage 
electronic inventories and provide reliable and well‐integrated information for asset management and 
mapping functions.  Functions serve activities such as planning, designing, constructing, maintaining, 
reporting, accounting, forecasting and operating City facilities, i.e., managing the City’s billion dollars 
worth of public facilities.  The project is needed to mitigate current and future risk associated with 
outdated and failing systems (which failed twice in Fall of 2010), continue to support comprehensive 
facilities and asset management needs, and sustain support for a broad range of Public Works functions.  
During FY 2012, the City Council approved reappropriating $280,000 each from Local Wastewater and 
Stormwater capital project budgets so that this project could proceed.  Additional capital funding for 
this project is included in future years of the CIP, as well as from the Operating Budget. 

Topographic Remapping Project – This project addresses out‐of‐date topographic maps (base maps) for 
the entire City.  Current base maps are woefully out‐of‐date and as a result do not reflect significant 
development that has occurred over the last 12 years, such as the PeaceHealth RiverBend Medical 
Center and MountainGate, and other development activity such as smaller capital improvement 
projects, private developments, and natural resource changes that have occurred since the previous 
update.  Work addresses development‐induced changes that have occurred across the City and includes 
updating full topography (e.g., elevation, structures, surface facilities, vegetation and surface 
waterways) on all City base maps used to support key City functions by all Departments including a 
broad range of Public Works functions. 

Attachment 2-170



Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Miscellaneous Capital Projects Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
Debt - SLI 82$             82            82            -              -                -               246       

Drainage Improvement SDCs (440) 30$              30              30              -                -                -                91           
Wastewater Reimbursement SDCs (442) 39$              39              39              -                -                -                118         

Transportation Reimbursement SDCs (446) 12$              12              12              -                -                -                37           

Debt - Interceptor 312$           315          244          -              -                -               871       
Wastewater Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              

Wastewater Capital (409) 312$            315            244            -                -                -                871         

  City Participation 300$           199          300          300          300            300           1,699    
Drainage Improvement SDCs (440) 50$              28              33              33              33              33              210         

Drainage Reimbursement SDCs (441) -$                 -                33              33              33              33              132         
Drainage Capital (425) 50$              34              34              34              34              34              220         

Wastewater Reimbursement SDCs (442) 33$              33              33              33              33              33              198         
Wastewater Improvement SDCs (443) 34$              34              34              34              34              34              204         

Wastewater Capital (409) 33$              -                33              33              33              33              165         
Transportation Reimbursement SDCs (446) 50$              35              50              50              50              50              285         

Transportation Improvement SDCs (447) 50$              35              50              50              50              50              285         
Unspecified -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              

Topographic Remapping Project 425$           15            135          15            160            15             765       
Drainage Improvement SDCs (440) 13$              -                -                -                -                -                13           

Drainage Reimbursement SDCs (441) 21$              -                -                -                -                -                21           
Drainage Capital (425) 21$              -                -                -                -                -                21           

Wastewater Reimbursement SDCs (442) 21$              -                -                -                -                -                21           
Wastewater Improvement SDCs (443) 51$              -                -                -                -                -                51           

Wastewater Capital (409) 21$              -                -                -                -                -                21           
Street Fund (434) 21$              -                -                -                -                -                21           

Transportation Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              
Transportation Improvement SDCs (447) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              

Unspecified 256$            15              135            15              160            15              596         

Asset Management System Replacement 725$           82            280          129          129            129           1,474    
Drainage Improvement SDCs (440) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              

Drainage Reimbursement SDCs (441) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              
Drainage Capital (425) 280$            41              -                -                -                -                321         

Wastewater Reimbursement SDCs (442) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              
Wastewater Improvement SDCs (443) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              

Wastewater Capital (409) 280$            41              -                -                -                -                321         
Street Fund (434) 165$            -                -                -                -                -                165         

Transportation Reimbursement SDCs (446) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              
Transportation Improvement SDCs (447) -$                 -                -                -                -                -                -              

Unspecified -$                 -                280            129            129            129            667         

  Annual Totals 1,844$        693          1,041       444          589            444           5,055    
Drainage Improvement SDCs (440) 93$              58              63              33              33              33              314         

Drainage Reimbursement SDCs (441) 21$              -                33              33              33              33              153         
Drainage Capital (425) 351$            75              34              34              34              34              562         

Wastewater Reimbursement SDCs (442) 93$              72              72              33              33              33              337         
Wastewater Improvement SDCs (443) 85$              34              34              34              34              34              255         

Wastewater Capital (409) 646$            356            277            33              33              33              1,378      
Street Fund (434) 186$            -                -                -                -                -                186         

Transportation Reimbursement SDCs (446) 62$              47              62              50              50              50              322         
Transportation Improvement SDCs (447) 50$              35              50              50              50              50              285         

Unspecified 256$            15              415            144            289            144            1,263      

Attachment 2-171



Miscellaneous Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account #

Debt Service, City Participation, and Others

Debt - SLI 37%

Project Driver: 
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Wastewater Master Plan
  Council Direction

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other 246$        82$        82$        82$        
Total 246$        82$        82$        82$        -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 420 -$             
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 118$        39$         39$         39$         
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 91$          30$         30$         30$         
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 37$          12$         12$         12$         
  Unspecified
Total 246$        82$        82$        82$        -$           -$            -$           -$                

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:   The loan and repayment of the loan was approved by Council in 1994.

Loan secured
Projects completed.  This represents the debt service payments.

Project Description:  Oregon Special Public Works payment on a loan for a portion of the public improvements in the 
McKenzie/Gateway Corporate Park.  The total loan amount is $952,309 and is to be paid over a 20 year period.  The last 
payment will be in FY 2015.

Development and growth

Attachment 2-172



Miscellaneous Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account # NA

Wastewater System Expansion and Upgrades

Sanitary Sewer Interceptor - Debt Service 8.3%

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger:
Project Status: In repayment
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Council Direction
  1980 Wastewater Master Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other (Debt Pymt) 871$        312$      315$      244$      
Total 871$        312$      315$      244$      -$           -$            -$           -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  Revenue Bonds 420 -$             
  User Fees 409 871$        312$       315$       244$       
  Federal Aid 420 -$             
  State Aid 420 -$             
  SDCs, Imp. 443 -$             
  SDCs, Reimb. 442
  Unspecified
Total 871$        312$      315$      244$      -$           -$            -$           -$                

Bond Sale

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:  Annual payment of 20 year revenue bonds and State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan to fund the South 
Springfield Interceptor.
Justification: A portion of the South Springfield Interceptor sewer was funded with loans and bonds amortized over a 20 
year period.  The SRF loan of $1,075,000 for Phase 1 resulted in an annual payment of $75,000.  In Phase II, the $3.3 
million revenue bond sold in 1995 resulted in an annual payment of $285,000.  The payment on the $2,900,000 DEQ 
Revolving Loan for Phase III in FY 1998 equals $300,000 per year.

Springfield desires to provide services to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to promote 
future urban development

Attachment 2-173



Miscellaneous Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account #

Debt Service, City Participation, and Others

City Participation Varies

Project Driver:  
Project Trigger:
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  City participation in private developments is guided by Resolution #90-35 and Resolution #70-45.

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction 1,699$     300$       199$       300$       300$       300$       300$       
  Other -$             
Total 1,699$     300$      199$      300$      300$      300$       300$       -$                

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$           -$           -$           -$           -$            -$           -$                

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Wastewater Capital 409 165$        33$         -$            33$         33$         33$         33$         
  SDCs. Imp. (WW) 443 204$        34$         34$         34$         34$         34$         34$         
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 198$        33$         33$         33$         33$         33$         33$         
  Storm Capital 425 220$        50$         34$         34$         34$         34$         34$         
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 210$        50$         28$         33$         33$         33$         33$         
  SDCs. Reimb (Storm) 441 132$        33$         33$         33$         33$         
  SDCs. Imp (Str.) 447 285$        50$         35$         50$         50$         50$         50$         
  SDCs, Reimb. (Str.) 446 285$        50$         35$         50$         50$         50$         50$         
  Street Capital 434
Total 1,699$     300$      199$      300$      300$      300$       300$       -$                

860002, 
870004, 
880001

On-going sinking fund

Project Description:  City cost participation in public improvements constructed in private developments under the City's 
Construction Permit process.  To respond to known and potential private development projects, it is necessary to budget 
$100,000 each fiscal year in each infrastructure program area, i.e. Transportation, Local Wastewater and Stormwater. The 
programmed funds for FY13 are only those necessary to meet this estimated need.  Currently other programmed funds are not 
yet tied to specific projects. 

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:   In many cases, it is necessary for a development to oversize or deepen sewers, drainage and/or streets beyond 
a size necessary to serve the development in order to serve adjacent neighborhoods.  Such increases in capacity are paid by 
the City under Council adopted participation policies.  

Private development projects
Development and growth.  City requirement of developer to oversize infrastructure.

Attachment 2-174



Miscellaneous Funding Programmed:  Partial
Account #

Data Improvements

 Topographic Remapping Project Varies

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:

Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Most other CIP Projects Engineering Map Books (Sewer Maps)
  Mill Race Project Police Map Books
  HB 3337 Planning (UGB, Comp Plan, BLI Inventories) Fire and Life Safety Map Books
  Glenwood Refinement Plan Water Rescue Maps
  2010 FEMA Remapping Project Wastewater and Stormwater Master Plans
  Local Wetland Inventory (LWI) TransPlan
  Standard and Special Purpose Maps Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Planning -$             
  Engineering -$             
  Land/Right of Way -$             
  Construction -$             
  Other 935$        425$        15$         135$       15$         160$       15$         170$            
Total 935$        425$        15$         135$       15$         160$       15$         170$            

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs -$             
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total -$             -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                 

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt. -$             
  WW User Rate 409 21$          21$          
  STM Drainage User Rate 425 21$          21$          
  Street User Rate 434 21$          21$          
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440 13$          13$          
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442 21$          21$          
  SDCs. Imp. (WW) 443 51$          51$          
  SDC Reimb. (Street) 446 -$             -$             
  SDC Reimb. (Storm) 441 21$          21$          
  SDCs, Imp. (Str.) 447 -$             -$             
  Unspecified 766$        256$        15$         135$       15$         160$       15$         170$            
Total 935$        425$        15$         135$       15$         160$       15$         170$            

Pending funding.  (Funding estimates an approximately 53/47 split where 53% comes from various Public 
Works user rate and SDC funds and the remaining 47%  comes from other funds managed by other 
departments. )

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Justification:   Current base maps are woefully out-of-date.  Base maps do not reflect significant development that has occurred over 
the last 12 years such as PeaceHealth and MountainGate and do not reflect other development activity such as smaller capital 
improvement projects, private developments, natural resource changes, etc. that have occurred since that last update.   Many City 
functions such as facilities planning, design, construction and maintenance, current and long range land use planning, and public 
safety incident response (fire, police and ambulance) depend on current and complete base maps.  In order to serve the broad array of 
citywide needs for current and complete base map information, this topographic remapping project is required.  The acquisition of new 
orthoimagery and LiDAR data will assist with remapping efforts.  Errors and omissions on the topographic maps have already begun to 
impact functions citywide.

Topographic data have reached the end of their useful life and are now obsolete.

City wide needs for current and complete base map information are not being met because topographic 
data is 12 years old.

Project Description:   Replace out-of-date topographic maps (base maps) for the entire City that were last developed in 2000; replace 
orthoimagery and LiDAR data on a 3 year cycle.  New maps will address development induced changes that have occurred across the 
City and will include updating full topography (e.g., elevation, structures, surface facilities, vegetation and surface waterways) on all 
City base maps used to support key City functions by all Departments.  New orthoimagery and LiDAR data will inform and enhance the 
creation of new base maps.  Proposing full remapping in 2013 and then incremental remapping every 2 years to assure that from 2014 
forward, base maps for all areas of the City are current to within 3 years - all areas are remapped every three years.

Attachment 2-175



Miscellaneous Funding Programmed:  Yes
Account #

System Improvements

Asset Management System Replacement NA

Project Driver:  

Project Trigger: 
Project Status:
Specific Plans/Policies Related to this Project:
  Most CIP Projects and PW Operations Engineering Map Books (Sewer Maps)
  Mill Race Project Wastewater and Stormwater Master Plans
  HB 3337 Planning (UGB, Comp Plan, BLI Inventories) TransPlan
  Glenwood Refinement Plan Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan
  Flood Mitigation Facilities Management
  Local Wetland Inventory (LWI) Asset management 
  Standard and Special Purpose Maps Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA)

EXPENDITURE SCHEDULE ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Phase 1 Targeted Migration 642$        560$        82$         
  Phase 2 Mobile Solutions 165$        165$       
  Phase 3 Street Integration 180$        180$       
  Capital Reserve 616$        100$       129$       129$       129$       129$            
Total 1,603$     560$        247$       280$       129$       129$       129$       129$            

OPERATIONAL IMPACT ($000s)
Project Element Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Maintenance Costs 746$        74$          102$       114$       114$       114$       114$       114$            
  Personnel Costs -$             
Total 746$        74$          102$       114$       114$       114$       114$       114$            

FUNDING SOURCE ($000s)
Source Fund # Total Thru 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Beyond 2018
  Special Assmt.
  WW User Rate 409 321$        280$        41$         
  STM Drainage User Rate 425 321$        280$        41$         
  Street Capital 434 165$        165$        
  SDCs. Imp (Storm) 440
  SDCs. Reimb. (WW) 442
  SDCs. Imp. (WW) 443
  SDC Reimb. (Street) 446
  SDC Reimb. (Storm) 441
  SDCs, Imp. (Str.) 447
  Unspecified 796$        280$       129$       129$       129$       129$            
Total 1,603$     725$        82$         280$       129$       129$       129$       129$            

In Process

Improvement SDC Eligibility:

Project Description:   Replace failing Geographic Information Systems (GIS) and Facilities Management (FM) systems that manage 
electronic inventories of City infrastructure and provide reliable and well integrated information for asset management and mapping 
functions.  Functions serve activities such as planning, designing, constructing, maintaining, reporting, accounting, forecasting and 
operating City facilities, i.e., managing City facilities valued at approximately one billion dollars.  Proposing a phased approach with 1) 
targeted replacement of existing system FY12-FY13 for $984,000; 2) integration of Street system information FY14 for $200,000; and 
then ongoing system maintenance and software licensing fees are shown for informational purposes as Operational Impact for 
$242,000 per year plus adjustments for inflation beyond - note these costs are not included in the Funding Sources.

Justification:  The City faces current challenges and future risk.  Servers running the City’s GIS/FM system are old and failing.  The 
FM Server is over 4 years and the GIS server is over 5 years old.  Since November, 2010 the City has had to recover from two system 
failures.  The first required a half day to repair and the second required 5 days to repair.  As a result the system was approximately 
90% restored.  Subsequent work included moving systems to another aged server, contracting to audit the system and entering a six 
month on-call contract to assure prompt response to anticipated future failures.  System software is approximately 10 years old and no 
longer supported by vendors, except as funded under contract with the City.  Recovery from system failure averages between $5,000 
and $10,000 per event.  Migration is required to mitigate risk, contain future costs, manage City assets, and sustain facility 
management functions described above.  

The City must migrate to new systems to continue to support comprehensive facilities and asset 
management needs and sustain support for vital Public Works functions.
Systems have exceeded their useful life and are now failing.

Attachment 2-176



Drivers 1 2 3

SW1 Safety/Hazard/Risk/Liability 

Needed to address deficiencies 
which may contribute to 

documented instances of injury, 
property damage, or failure to 

comply with regulatory 
requirements which may impact 

public health and welfare 

Needed to  maintain basic health, 
safety, environmental and property 

protection conditions 

Addresses developing public 
health or safety, liability 

concerns, or concerns about 
ability to meet regulatory 

requirements or responds to 
public requests or complaints

SW2 Operational Functionality

Needed to address accessibility,  
maintain minimum system 
functionality and meet 

stormwater system management 
policies

Improves identified substandard 
operational conditions

Responds to public requests 
or complaints

SW3
Stormwater asset preservation 

and rehabilitation
Failed system or structure

 Poor condition requiring 
reconstruction, or just‐in‐time 

preservation to avoid imminent failure 
and more costly repair; and/or grant 

funds available

Scheduled life cycle 
improvements/extensions

SW4
Community Development, 
Neighborhood revitalization, 

and Environmental Restoration

System/capacity expansion or 
system restoration to meet 
identified Council priority for 

community growth; high priority 
urban renewal project

Identified in long‐range plans as needed 
generally to support community growth 

and restoration/water quality 
improvement enhancements ; and/or 

requested to support specific 
development area 

Responds to public requests, 
complaints, or community 

proposals

SW5 Operational cost/Efficiency

Rapid payback (savings) on 
investment, or other efficiency 

improvements for which external 
sources of revenue are available

Moderate payback and System 
Improvement

Identified efficiencies and 
operational cost savings

Priorities
Stormwater Project Priority Matrix

Attachment 2-177



Drivers 1 2 3

T1 Safety/Hazard/Risk/Liability 

Needed to address deficiencies 
which may contribute to 

documented instances of injury, 
property damage, or failure to 

comply with regulatory 
requirements which may impact 

public health and welfare 

Needed to  maintain basic 
health and safety conditions 

Addresses developing safety or 
liability concern or responds to 
public requests or complaints

T2 Operational Functionality

Needed to address accessibility,  
maintain minimum system 
functionality and meet 

transportation system policies

Improves identified 
substandard operational 

conditions

Responds to public requests or 
complaints

T3
Street asset preservation and 

rehabilitation
Failed system or structure

Poor condition requiring 
reconstruction, or just‐in‐time 

preservation to avoid 
imminent failure and more 
costly repair; and/or grant 

funds available

Scheduled life cycle 
improvements/extensions

T4
Community Development and 
Neighborhood revitalization

System/capacity expansion or 
system restoration to meet 
identified Council priority for 

community growth; high priority 
urban renewal project

Identified in long‐range plans 
as needed generally to 

support community growth; 
and/or requested to support 
specific development area 

Responds to public requests, 
complaints, or community 

proposals

T5 Operational cost/Efficiency

Rapid payback (savings) on 
investment, or other efficiency 

improvements for which external 
sources of revenue are available

Moderate payback and 
System Improvement

Identified efficiencies and 
operational cost savings

Priorities
Transportation Project Priority Matrix

Attachment 2-178



Drivers 1 2 3

WW1 Safety/Hazard/Risk/Liability 

Needed to address deficiencies 
which may contribute to 

documented instances of injury, 
property damage, or failure to 

comply with regulatory 
requirements which may impact 

public health and welfare 

Needed to  maintain basic 
health, safety and 

environmental quality 
conditions 

Addresses developing public 
health or safety, liability 

concerns, or concerns about 
ability to meet regulatory 

requirements or responds to 
public requests or complaints

WW2
Operational 

Functionality/Maintainability

Needed to address accessibility,  
worker safety, maintain minimum 
system functionality, and meet 
system operational policies

Improves identified 
substandard operational 

conditions

Responds to public requests or 
complaints

WW3
Wastewater asset preservation and 

rehabilitation
Failed system or structure

Poor condition requiring 
reconstruction, or just‐in‐time 

preservation to avoid 
imminent failure and more 
costly repair; and/or grant 

funds available

Scheduled life cycle 
improvements/extensions

WW4
Community Development and 
Neighborhood revitalization

System/capacity expansion or 
system restoration to meet 
identified Council priority for 

community growth; high priority 
urban renewal project

Identified in long‐range plans 
as needed generally to 

support community growth; 
and/or requested to support 
specific development area 

Responds to public requests, 
complaints, or community 

proposals

WW5 Operational cost/Efficiency

Rapid payback (savings) on 
investment, or other efficiency 

improvements for which external 
sources of revenue are available

Moderate payback and 
System Improvement

Identified efficiencies and 
operational cost savings

Priorities
Wastewater Project Priority Matrix

Attachment 2-179



Drivers 1 2 3

BP1 Safety/Hazard Conditions Code Compliance
Known Safety or Hazard 

Condition
Developing Safety Concern

BP2
Building and Systems 

Integrity
Eminent Structural or 

Systems Failure
Protection of Building 

Envelope
Preventive Maintenance and 

/or Preservation

BP3 Energy Cost/Usage
Generates Revenue; Rapid 

Payback; Grants
Moderate payback and 
System Improvement

Identified Savings Potential

BP4 Systems Reliability Just‐in‐time/Eminent Failure
Scheduled Life Cycle 

Improvements/Extension
Modernization or Correction 

of Declining Conditions

BP5 Operational Functionality
Accessibility; Min. 

Functionality; Hygiene 
Standards

Improve Conditions for Staff 
and Public

Aesthetics

Priorities

Buildings and Properties Project Priority Matrix

Attachment 2-180





 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Work Session 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Ron Bittler/DPW 

Brian Conlon/DPW 
 Staff Phone No: X4170/X3617 
 Estimated Time: 30 minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Maintain and Improve 
Infrastructure and 
Facilities 

 
ITEM TITLE: WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPACITY, MANAGEMENT, OPERATIONS, AND 

MAINTENANCE DISCUSSION 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Provide the City Council with an overview of the collaborative effort of the cities of 
Springfield and Eugene to develop a standardized and strategic approach for 
comprehensive management of our respective wastewater conveyance systems. 
Staff will introduce an industry-accepted planning framework identified as 
Capacity, Management, Operations, and Maintenance (CMOM).  
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The wastewater conveyance systems managed by the cities of Springfield and 
Eugene function together to convey our community’s wastewater to the regional 
facilities for treatment prior to discharge to the Willamette River.  Staff in both 
cities working together have determined that implementation of coordinated 
CMOM programs is the best way to cost effectively preserve the function and 
condition of the public infrastructure, protect the public health and environment, 
and ensure regulatory compliance.        .              

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Council Briefing Memorandum  
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Effective management of the wastewater conveyance systems involves flow 
monitoring, condition assessment, maintenance, and equipment rehabilitation 
and replacement activities as well as capital investment to address future 
development.  As such, there are multiple disciplines involved including 
operations, engineering, technical services (geographical information systems) 
and data management staff.  Accordingly, staff recognizes the need for a 
framework that integrates these functions under a single proactive planning and 
management system. CMOM provides this framework. 
 
Capacity Management Operations and Maintenance (CMOM) is an industry-
accepted approach applied by agencies around the country to adaptively manage 
their wastewater collection infrastructure.  Because the CMOM approach offers 
many benefits to both Springfield and Eugene, and because both collection 
systems function together and tie into the Metropolitan Wastewater 
Management Commission (MWMC) regional system, Springfield and Eugene 
staff are coordinating the development of their respective CMOM programs.  
 
Staff anticipates benefits to the community from this approach including 
improved wastewater infrastructure performance, protection of the regional 
wastewater treatment system against excessive wet weather flows and 
associated operational costs, efficient infrastructure planning for future 
development, a defensible regulatory compliance strategy, improved protection 
of the public and environment from exposure to sewer overflows and backups.  

 



 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 3/4/2013  

To: Gino Grimaldi, City Manager COUNCIL 

From: Len Goodwin, DPW Director 
Brian Conlon, Operations Division Manager 
Ron Bittler, ESD Manager 

BRIEFING 

Subject: WASTEWATER SYSTEM CAPACITY, 
MANAGEMENT, OPERATIONS, AND 
MAINTENANCE (CMOM) DISCUSSION 

MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE: The wastewater conveyance systems managed by the cities of Springfield and Eugene 
function together to convey our community’s wastewater to the regional facilities for treatment 
prior to discharge to the Willamette River.  Staff in both cities working together have determined 
that implementation of coordinated CMOM programs is the best way to cost effectively preserve 
the function and condition of the public infrastructure, protect the public health and 
environment, and ensure regulatory compliance.         

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities 
 
Wastewater collection systems operations and maintenance staff in Springfield and Eugene are 
partnering on a joint effort to coordinate implementation of Capacity Management, Operations 
and Maintenance (CMOM) programs. This industry-accepted approach provides a performance 
assessment tool based on requirements that affect the five fundamental stages of collection and 
conveyance system management:  
 

• Planning 
• Design  
• Construction 
• Operation and maintenance  
• System monitoring and assessment  

 
By implementing CMOM, each community will design an adaptive and comprehensive 
framework for management of the wastewater conveyance system integrating the various 
functions of planning, mapping, condition assessment, operations and maintenance, and capital 
improvement into a single framework.  This framework will provide standards, processes and 
procedures to ensure the interdisciplinary communication and technical analysis needed to 
maintain safe working conditions for employees, understand and prioritize risks, and allocate 
resources accordingly. Furthermore, with a CMOM program staff will have tools to predict 
system responses under the range of anticipated operating conditions allowing proactive 
management of the system rather than reacting to failures after they have occurred, lowering the 
risk of public exposure and regulatory violations.  Finally, the program will be used as a guide 
for making business decisions required to manage the conveyance system in the most cost 
effective manner and maintain up-to-date asset inventory, condition assessment, and risk 
analysis information to assist in capital improvement planning. 
  
Addressing these sources in a prioritized manner will lower operation costs, including pumping 
costs, protect the local collection system and the regional wastewater treatment facility from 
excessive high flow events, prevent avoidable sanitary sewer overflows and basement backups, 



MEMORANDUM 2/28/2013 Page 2 

and provide a defensible regulatory compliance strategy.  
 
The Regional Wastewater Policy (RWP) team (Eugene/Springfield Public Works Management) 
has met periodically since October of 2011 to discuss the approach to developing a CMOM 
program that supports both local and regional needs. After several discussions and with help 
from the MWMC, both cities are now taking steps to develop local CMOM programs. 

BACKGROUND:  
In 1996 the Oregon Environmental Quality Commission adopted the Oregon bacteria standard. 
The rule established capacity assurance standards and prohibited storm related Sanitary Sewer 
Overflows (SSOs) except during a storm greater than a one-in-five-year, 24-hour duration winter 
event and a one-in-ten-year, 24-hour duration summer storm event. The timeline for compliance 
for meeting the bacteria standard was January 1, 2010.  
 
A consequence of the Oregon bacteria rule was a requirement for municipal wastewater 
dischargers to develop wet weather flow management plans. Accordingly, the MWMC initiated 
a project to develop such a plan.  This comprehensive Wet Weather Flow Management Plan 
(WWFMP) considered the local and regional wastewater collection and treatment facilities. The 
objective of WWFMP was to develop and implement the most cost-effective set of solutions, 
considering the locally owned and MWMC owned system as a whole over a 10-year 
implementation period.  The resulting WWFMP recommendations included increasing the 
capacity of the regional Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF) as well as targeted 
rehabilitation of specific areas in Springfield and Eugene collection and conveyance systems, 
thereby offsetting the total wet weather flow capacity needed at the WPCF. The WWFMP was 
finalized in 2001 and both Eugene and Springfield completed the recommended collection 
system upgrades by the 2010 deadline.  With the completion of the WWFMP the next step to 
comply with the regional WPCF’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permit was to develop a follow-on wet weather plan to address the ongoing requirements to 
reduce inflow and infiltration into the collection system.   
 
The Capacity Management Operations and Maintenance program approach replaces the need to 
update the 2001 Wet Weather Flow Management Plan, as the program will address the ongoing 
effort to reduce inflow and infiltration in both the public and private sewer systems in a 
proactive and ongoing way. 
 
Wastewater from City of Springfield homes and businesses is conveyed through the City’s 
sanitary sewer system.  This public system—owned and operated by the City, and comprised of 
224 miles of gravity sewers, and 18 pump stations and associated force mains—must be 
managed to protect the public and environment from exposure to sewage overflows and 
backups, provide capacity for conveyance of wet weather flows, and to accommodate future 
growth within the community and also to ensure regulatory compliance. However, the City’s 
wastewater collection system was built over decades and contains components of differing ages, 
materials, and conditions. Moreover, the system continues to age and portions are replaced in an 
ongoing fashion.  City staff must address the ever changing system condition through a program 
of continuous assessment, repair, and replacement.  Finally, because this infrastructure is hidden 
underground, the condition of the system is not obvious to the public or to those to those 
managing the system without a robust and frequent inspection regime. This aging, hidden, and 
complex infrastructure presents many challenges to the operations staff that are responsible to 
manage and maintain it.   
 
In addition to challenges inherent to wastewater collection system, the city must also meet 
regulatory requirements related to collection system capacity and functional reliability.  These 
regulatory obligations are described in the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 



MEMORANDUM 2/28/2013 Page 3 

(NPDES) permit that is jointly held by the MWMC, City of Springfield, and City of Eugene, and 
which allows the two communities to discharge treated (cleaned) wastewater to the Willamette 
River. This joint regulatory obligation is yet another driver for a collaborative partnership 
between the two communities.  Included among the obligations and limits described in the 
NPDES permit is language pertaining to Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs) and wet weather 
planning, both of which relate to directly to collection system management practices. 
 
The NPDES permit is administered by the State of Oregon’s Department of Environmental 
Quality (DEQ). A violation of the NPDES permit is considered a violation of the Clean Water 
Act (CWA). However, the DEQ has “enforcement discretion” to determine if a violation has 
occurred and, if so, the severity of the violation. The processes for making these determinations 
are described in numerous Internal Management Directives (IMDs). The risk of permit violation 
has implications beyond mere fines as Oregon is home to an organized environmental advocacy 
watchdog community which is swift to move against perceived environmental abuses.   
 
In the past, the SSO language described in the NPDES permit included exceptions for SSOs 
occurring during excessive storm events.  However, beginning in fall of 2007 until August of 
2009, the EPA’s refused to approve permits containing the DEQ provision with the exceptions 
for storm related SSOs. The EPA’s objection asserted that the Oregon approach did not comply 
with the CWA and its NPDES regulations. Although the DEQ disagreed with the EPA’s 
decision, it modified the permit language and began issuing permits with the EPA-required SSO 
prohibition. All permits issued after August 20, 2009, do not contain the storm related 
exceptions to the Federal SSO prohibition meaning that any SSO could be interpreted as a 
violation of the NPDES permit pending DEQ review and application of enforcement discretion. 
 
While the current DEQ permit language prohibits all SSOs, the DEQ’s SSO Enforcement IMD 
published in November of 2010 references a CMOM program as a means of preventing SSOs 
and encourages permittees to adopt a voluntary CMOM program. It also references the EPA’s 
2003 CMOM guidance document as a tool for distinguishing avoidable from unavoidable SSOs 
thereby identifying CMOM as a factor in determining enforcement discretion. Accordingly, 
adopting a CMOM program would not only help permitees prevent SSOs from occurring, but 
would, we believe, also function to mitigate the level of enforcement action by the DEQ 
contingent upon the permittee’s application of its voluntary CMOM program. 
 
In addition, the NPDES permit directs the MWMC and its partner agencies to have in place a 
program to reduce inflow and infiltration (I/I) into the collection system.  A CMOM program for 
the City of Springfield would fulfill this requirement.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff is presenting this memorandum for Council information 
and consideration purposes and is not requesting actions or decisions from the Council at this 
time. 

 



March 4, 2013 
Springfield Upbeat 
Employee Recognition: Thelma Barone, 10 Years of Service 
 
 

1. Personnel data, promotions, career highlights, and significant accomplishments of the 
employee. 
 

• Thelma was hired in March of 2003 with funding from a partnership grant with 
Womenspace, to do victim advocacy outreach to the Latina community.  

• Thelma has done extensive work with Womenspace and the Child Advocacy 
Center assisting both English and Spanish speaking victims of crime in our 
community. 

 
2. How the Department has changed over the employee’s career. 

 
• When Thelma was hired, the Department had very few bi-lingual, and no bi-

cultural, employees.    
• Thelma’s work has dramatically improved relationships with the growing Latino 

community in Springfield. 
 

3. Significant projects or events the employee has been involved in. 
 

• Thelma has been involved with Fiesta Latina and the Lock Out Crime project 
• She actively seeks to involve the Spanish-speaking community in every 

Department event. 
 

4. Positive comments shared by Thelma’s co-workers. 
 

• Several of our detectives consistently compliment Thelma on her ability to relate 
to victims of domestic violence, and to gain their cooperation in important 
criminal investigations. 

 



March 4, 2013 
Springfield Upbeat 
2012 Groundwater Guardian Presentation to City Council  
 
Springfield Groundwater Guardians has received its designation as a Groundwater Guardian 
community for 2012, our sixteenth year.  Staff will introduce Amy Chinitz, SUB Drinking Water 
Source Protection Coordinator, who will present the Groundwater Guardians plaque to the Council.  
The Groundwater Guardians are a volunteer group made up of agencies, businesses, and private 
citizens who protect drinking water sources from contamination.  This is accomplished through 
public education, and community activities. 
 
School programs related to water continue to thrive. In elementary and middle school, they range 
from learning about the water cycle to field studies. The high school program has long been 
recognized for its application to science, mathematics, and chemistry. Older student volunteers 
even collect samples and perform water tests that are used by local utilities in monitoring water 
quality.  
 
Again, thank you so very much for the City Council’s continued support of Springfield Groundwater 
Guardians. As you can see, this volunteer organization helps fill a vital niche in continuing to keep 
the community’s drinking water clean. 
 
 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Amy Sowa/CMO 
 Staff Phone No: 726-3700 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE:  

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 
By motion, approval of the attached minutes. 
 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

 
The attached minutes are submitted for Council approval. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Minutes: 

a) February 11, 2013 – Work Session 
b) February 19, 2013 – Work Session 
c) February 19, 2013 – Regular Meeting 
 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

 
None. 
 
 

 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 
     MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
     THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 
     MONDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2013 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday, February 11, 2013 at 5:36 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg 
presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and 
Brew.  Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City 
Attorney Matt Cox, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 

 
1. Joint Meeting with the Police Planning Task Force. 
 
Police Planning Task Force (PPTF) Chair Pat Mahoney introduced the rest of the PPTF committee 
members in attendance: Diana Alldredge (Vice-Chair); Fred Simmons; Jack Martin; Quentin Hogan; 
Mechelle Clough; Christine Stole; and Wendy Polen. 
 
Ms. Mahoney thanked the Mayor and Council for meeting with the PPTF. The PPTF was originally 
established in 1994 and charged with developing a long range strategic plan for police services.  Two 
years ago the PPTF presented the third update to that plan and they continued to make progress. The 
operating levy had increased the number of police officers, call takers, dispatchers and Community 
Service Officers available to the public, as well as the Jail operations.  Property crime rate were 
considerably lower making our community safer due to the jail. 
 
Ms. Alldredge noted that last November Springfield citizens again passed an operating levy providing 
funds for almost a third of the Police Department staffing, including the Jail. During the three years 
the Jail had operated, the crime rate had declined and the operating budget remained basically what 
was estimated during planning.  Previous discussions included ways to measure successful jail 
operations. Bail postings and fine collections were up and bed rentals were adequate, but not as robust 
as anticipated. The daily housing fee was not always imposed by the Judges and the PPTF members 
would like to encourage the Judges to impose fees even at reduced rates which would help the 
financial viability of the Jail.  The Springfield Jail was the envy of many who were frustrated with the 
difficulty with funding and the ability to keep people incarcerated long enough to make an impact on 
future behavior. The impression from the community and Springfield residents was that our homes 
and streets were safer and they were thankful for City leadership. 
 
Ms. Clough said the department conducted a citizen survey each year to measure community attitudes 
in terms of safety. Past surveys had reported that over 90 % of residents were satisfied with the 
services provided by the Police Department and that the department’s speed of response numbers were 
improving. The survey also indicated that the impact of the Jail had been significant and that people 
felt safer, the overall quality of life had been improving, and that offenders were being held 
accountable. This year’s survey was currently underway and the results would help shape their work in 
the coming year.  
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 11, 2013 
Page 2 
 
Mr. Martin said as well as serving on the PPTF, he also volunteered as a fleet maintenance volunteer 
several times a week. There were about 8 volunteers who washed the cars and made sure they were 
restocked with supplies several times a week.  This service helped save the patrol officers a lot of time. 
The new Chevy Caprice patrol cars were now in service. The PPTF had a voice in helping decide 
which vehicle would replace the older Crown Victoria’s when Ford announced they were going out of 
the fleet business. Last year, the PPTF saw a presentation on the different options and had a good 
discussion about what the department should consider in a new vehicle. The transition was going very 
well and the department had just ordered the next round of Chevy’s. He was one of the people that 
drove the vehicles down from the dealership and said they drove nicely. 
 
Ms. Stole spoke about reducing dependency on the Public Safety Levy. The department had been very 
fortunate to have the support of the City Council and the voters as they had successfully passed each 
successive operating levy. The department relied on the levy more and more as the General Fund 
continued to struggle through the rough economy. The PPTF was pleased to learn that the Council had 
set a new goal to reduce future dependency on an operating levy. The PPTF would like to work with 
the Council to identify strategies and opportunities to do this, and while they didn’t believe they could 
eliminate the need for the levy entirely, over the next five years they hoped to make some progress. 
They would like to talk about ideas the Council had and ways they could help to set goals and action 
plans that might move the department away from needing to pass a ballot measure every four or five 
years. They knew that someday the economy would change, hopefully for the better, and someday the 
public would like to put their dollars for other priorities. They would like to be ready to continue to 
meet the public safety needs of the community well into the future. 
 
Chief Smith said he was very grateful to the citizens that sat on the PPTF and the work they did for the 
department. The department brought complaints that were lodged against members of the department 
or the operations of the department to the PPTF. The PPTF had been very helpful in policy review to 
insure it made sense. The survey was very helpful to the department and they had been surprised by 
the number of people who said they had contact with the Police Department. The long range planning 
was helpful as a tool to guide the department into the future. He was also grateful for the work the 
PPTF had done on the levy. 
 
Mayor Lundberg noted that the City budget process would be starting up soon so now was a good time 
to start looking at alternatives for moving the Police Department off of the levy. 
 
Councilor Moore asked staff to provide clarification on that goal for the Council.  
 
Mr. Grimaldi said Council had decided to discuss it in more detail during the budget process. 
 
Councilor Brew said there was a bill in the legislature that proposed removing the cap on local option 
levies. He noted that similar legislation had been presented for many years and cautioned against 
relying on that change. He would like Council to make their plans regardless of what the legislature 
did in that regard. He asked about the bed rentals and why the City of Eugene and Lane County didn’t 
take more advantage of leasing beds from the Springfield Jail. 
 
Chief Smith said Lane County would first use their own facility.  It was most likely an issue of funds 
for the City of Eugene. Eugene did have 15 beds available in Springfield that they could rent. 
 
Mr. Harman said Eugene was averaging about 10 bed rentals.  
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 11, 2013 
Page 3 
 
Chief Smith said when the Eugene Police Department arrested someone, they took them to Lane 
County Jail. Springfield was renting beds to other police agencies such as Oakridge and Junction City, 
but those were sporadic and only as needed.  
 
Councilor Brew asked if they had ideas in how to increase use.  If they continued to look at this 
business model, they needed to dial back their expectations on future bed rental income. 
 
Mr. Simmons said the Council had approved a daily use fee, but the Justice Committee had not evoked 
any pressure on the Judges to implement that in a way that would help trim that operational burden. It 
was true they wouldn’t be able to collect the full $60/day fee from everyone, but some cities were 
collecting a percentage of the fee which added up to a substantial amount. If someone owed the City of 
Springfield money, they would have to pay at some point.  He felt the Justice Committee needed to 
look at this and encourage the Judges to implement some of the fee.  There was inhibition on phone 
charges because of the new FCC bill. To make the levy go away, they had to find ways to make up the 
shortfall.  He felt that if the Judges imposed that fee, they would collect a fair amount of funds and it 
would discourage those people that had money from doing crimes in the City of Springfield. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked Chief Smith to address the use fee and what was being imposed. 
 
Chief Smith said occasionally the daily fee was imposed. By statute, the Court needed to consider 
financial ability to pay of the defendant and the fee could not be imposed until sentencing. At the time 
the Judge rendered the sentence, they could also impose the fee based on the ability to pay. Chief 
Smith had talked with Judge Strickland about this and pointed out that those defendants that were able 
to pay for drugs, had money to pay part of their fee. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said perhaps the Finance/Judiciary Committee meeting should meet to discuss this 
topic. 
 
Mr. Harman said the daily fee was bringing in about $7000-$8000 per year, rather than the $25,000 
that was projected. 
 
Councilor Wylie asked if the PPTF had brainstormed ideas to raise funds to replace the levy. She had 
thought of several ideas including asking the City Attorney to look into what was required to pass a 
local beer/wine tax. Other thoughts included gun permit fees, ammunition fees, and entertainment 
taxes for places that served alcohol. 
 
Councilor Ralston felt there was no direct correlation between gun fees and crimes being committed. 
He felt their needed to be a correlation between the fee and the service. 
 
Councilor Wylie said most crimes were committed while people were on alcohol or had guns. Funds 
needed to be raised. The department had good support from the public and she didn’t want to alienate 
the citizens, but they had to start somewhere. 
 
Ms. Stole said a Springfield police officer won an award for the most DUI arrests. She asked if the 
funds from those arrests came to the City. 
 
Chief Smith said the Court prescribed where the fees went. There were surcharges for the State, 
County and City. He noted that the jail housing fee was at the bottom of the list so when people paid 
their fines, it went to the other fees first. The funds that did come in to the City went to the General 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 11, 2013 
Page 4 
 
Fund, not to the Police Department.  Part of the funding model was to look at the difference between 
what was brought in prior to the Jail opening and now. That money was funded by the General Fund 
each year. The levy was not just a jail levy as more than half of those funds went to police services 
directly. The levies started in 2002 and if the department lost those levies, we would be back to less 
than 1980 staffing. The levy was very important for the success of City. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said the beer and wine tax was fairly small and a local tax would likely be opposed 
by the Restaurant Association and others. There could be some momentum if some funds were 
earmarked from the State tax to address issues such as mental health and addiction. She thought she 
had heard there was another look at doing that during the current legislative session. It would be 
beneficial if the Council collectively showed support for something like that even though it was not 
tied directly to the Jail. Those things did affect officers and the need for jail space. She would like to 
collectively be kept aware of that topic in the legislature and possibly testify in Salem. Oregon was 
low in terms of the beer and wine tax. 
 
Councilor Wylie said she had lobbied for a beer and wine tax unsuccessfully in the past, but felt the 
time had come. There was a representative that wanted to put forward a mental health bill with the 
beer and wine tax. The State knew how much the local communities were suffering, especially with 
the Rural Schools Act not being fruitful. If local communities could impose a wine and beer tax, it 
would be hard for the lobbyists to impact each community that was putting something on the ballot. 
The State wouldn’t give up their right to tax. The time could be now because of our low rate of tax on 
beer and wine. 
 
Councilor Moore said she was thinking about a safety taxing district. The City served people outside 
the City in the UGB, even if just by patrolling. She asked if there was a possibility for Springfield and 
other cities to join with the County in putting a safety measure on the ballot and sharing the revenue. 
Springfield did benefit from the public safety provided by the County. 
 
Ms. Stole said Washington had done away with State Liquor Stores. She asked how they were 
handling the tax there. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said they were still collecting the tax. The unintended consequence was that the cost of 
liquor was higher than prior to changing to privatization so many people were coming to Oregon to 
purchase liquor. 
 
Councilor Brew said he didn’t know if Lane County’s levy would pass. He had been a proponent in 
favor of a fire district, but not for Police.  It would be interesting to explore the idea of a jail district 
and providing jail services to local police departments at no cost. Because it would be spread over a 
large, yet less populated area, the costs could be lower. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said rural communities had no coverage at all, so like our fire department, people 
could pay extra to have our patrol respond. They could have agreements with water districts and could 
charge for the patrols. There seemed to be some support from the rural communities for the County 
levy as long as it was only for the jail. If that measure passed, Lane County could have more capacity 
and Springfield could offer patrol services. In an emergency, Springfield responded anyway because 
no one else would. 
 
Councilor Brew said there was a bill before the legislature that would enable water districts to contract 
for police or fire services. He wasn’t sure if that was limited to contracting with counties only. 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 11, 2013 
Page 5 
 
 
Chief Smith said the department had considered the idea of selling police services in the UGB. They 
currently contracted with Willamalane for services in their parks outside the UGB. 
 
Councilor Simmons reminded them of compression with special taxing districts. He noted the 
consequences of reaching compression and reminded them to be careful when looking at districts. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said there was a possible connection between the creation of a fire district and retiring 
the Police levy. If a fire district was formed, the fire levy would go away and there would be money 
left over in the General Fund that could be applied to the Police levy. It would mean higher taxes for 
the citizens and may not eliminate everything. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said this had been a very productive conversation with a lot of good ideas shared. 
The Council appreciated the hard work of the PPTF members and understood it was a big 
commitment. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:14 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 
     MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
     THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 
     TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Tuesday, February 19, 2013 at 6:02 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg 
presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and Brew.  
Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney 
Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
Councilor Wylie was absent (excused). 

 
1. Master Fees and Charges Schedule. 
 
Finance Director Bob Duey presented the staff report on this item.  Each year, Council and staff 
reviewed existing fees and charges for appropriateness of rates for meeting cost recovery targets as 
well as reviewing for areas where new or additional fees should be considered.  At issue in many years 
was whether certain fee increases should be automatic to meet inflationary pressures or every few 
years as cost recovery models showed an increase in subsidy.  This year, with a slower than expected 
economic recovery in the public sector, it was especially important to look at service areas where 
increased or additional fees would be considered appropriate.  These fees assisted the City Manager in 
preparing a proposed budget for review by the Budget Committee in late April.    
 
Mr. Duey said a recommended list of changes was included in the agenda packet. There were not 
many, but some that were needed for business. Attachment 3 of the agenda packet was a new format 
of the fee schedule that included all fees. He described the three ways in which fees were changed, 
some through the Municipal Code by ordinance and some by resolution. The new format would allow 
people to look in one document at all fees, while staff would track how to adjust the fees. 
 
Mr. Duey said they had met with all of the councilors, except Councilor Brew, regarding fund 
balancing.  He noted the different funds that were facing challenges. There was not a firm percentage, 
but in looking to close a $2M gap, the ratio from a fee standpoint (expenses/revenue) would be no less 
than 70/30 and no more than 60/40. Staff didn’t feel a single large fee was the answer at this time. The 
best way to approach this was to look at multiple fees at different rates. The building program fees 
were discussed a couple of weeks ago and at that time Council expressed interest in seeing the fees on 
a more regular basis so there weren’t large increases after several years. The fees to be discussed 
tonight were only those that staff was asking Council to consider increasing. There were a variety of 
ways each fee was calculated and how cost recovery was determined. 
 
Mr. Duey thanked Rhonda Rice (DPW) and Paula Davis (Finance) for their work in putting together 
the new fee format. Attachment 2 of the agenda packet included forty-one fees with slight changes. 
Only 13 of those 41 actually included a fee change. Others included changes to the wording and 
providing clarification. The new format organized the fees by department. He provided an example.  
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 19, 2013 
Page 2 
 
Councilor Ralston said under Section 7, it looked like grading permit fees were being removed. 
 
Mr. Duey said they were removing the current one and replacing it with better language. The fee was 
not being changed. It was completely reformatted so looked much different. 
 
Councilor Moore asked about rental business licensing and why that was still in the fee schedule.  
 
Mr. Duey said the original ordinance had the license in place for rentals with four units or more. The 
newer ordinance added the single family, two-part and triplexes so those were removed once that newr 
ordinance was repealed. The four unit rental remained.  
 
Councilor Moore said under Section 1, page 4 it just listed Rental Sales License $10.00 per unit. 
 
Mr. Duey said this section didn’t include the full ordinance, but just provided a summary of the 
ordinance. 
 
Councilor Moore said it was confusing and she asked if it could be clarified in the fee schedule that it 
only included rentals with four units or more. 
 
Mr. Duey said staff would add language to make it clearer. 
 
Councilor Ralston asked about the telecommunications license fee on page 64 of Attachment 3. It 
looked like the code and fee were being removed. He asked if it was being replaced. 
 
Ms. Rice said that page 63 showed the Telecommunication License Application Fee. That fee was 
being reduced to be more comparable with other cities our size. The fee listed on Page 64 was the 
annual review fee which was being removed. The license was a five-year license and was reviewed 
annually, but it became unnecessary. That fee was rarely charged. 
 
Mr. Duey said of the 13, only two or three would affect the private citizen. Most were fees that were 
assessed on businesses. 
 
Councilor Moore spoke regarding dog licensing and asked how many people actually licensed their 
dog. She asked how much that fee supported our animal control program and the contract with 
Greenhill. 
 
Chief Smith said about $28,000 was generated from licensing. The shelter fees were about $40,000.  
 
Councilor Moore asked if a small increase could help generate revenue. 
 
Mr. Duey said they could do a comparison with other cities. If it raised more funds it could help pay 
for the animal control office. It would be more beneficial to encourage people to license their dogs. 
 
Chief Smith said the dogs that went to the shelter were unlicensed. Licensed dogs were nearly always 
returned to their owners. Increasing the license fee would mean those that followed the law in getting 
their dogs licensed would be paying for those that didn’t follow the law. The dog licenses didn’t cover 
the cost of the animal control program. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 19, 2013 
Page 3 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked if staff used the City’s rising costs or the CPI when determining the 
inflation index for raising fees. 
 
Mr. Duey said they had usually tied it to wages and benefits as most services had a personnel cost 
attached.   
 
Councilor VanGordon said he was fine looking at the fees more frequently to have more, smaller 
increases. He was concerned with waiting several years and having large increases. He didn’t, 
however, want to apply an inflation increase for all fees each year, but would want Council to look at 
them to see what was appropriate. He was also concerned with increases just based on wage and 
benefit increases as they would be above inflation. He would like a description of an inflationary index 
increase and would prefer to keep it down to an inflation number. With that, keeping it down to 
inflation only could mean some catch-up every few years. 
 
Mr. Duey said major fees such as utility fees would still come to Council separately. 
 
Councilor Brew said he agreed with Councilor VanGordon. He was aware that General Fund services 
were partially out of property tax and partially out of fees. If they only increased the fees at 3% despite 
the cost of increase in wages and benefits, the burden then fell on the general taxpayer. He didn’t want 
it too out of balance. 
 
Councilor Ralston said it looked like the Pre-Scheduled Non-Emergency Basic Life Support fee was 
being removed. He asked if another service was taking its place. 
 
Mr. Duey said now that the City had a contract with Rural Metro Ambulance, we were trying not to 
provide that service. 
 
Councilor Brew asked if those types of calls were eligible for FireMed. 
 
Mr. Duey said he was not sure, but would find out. 
 
Councilor Ralston said if they had FireMed, it wouldn’t make sense for the person to call for the other 
service. 
 
Mr. Duey said this was scheduled for a public hearing in two weeks, along with the Building Program 
Fees. If the Council was ready for the fees to come back for a public hearing, staff could schedule that 
public hearing for March 4 with both fees presented, including some inflationary ideas. If Council was 
not ready, staff would pull it from the March 4 public hearing and schedule an additional work session 
to discuss the inflationary ideas.  
 
Council was fine going forward with the public hearing and inflationary ideas on March 4. 
 
Councilor Moore asked when they would bring it back if they didn’t keep the March 4 date. 
 
Mr. Duey said possibly later in the Spring after the budget process. 
 
Councilor Moore asked if that would make a lot of difference when looking at the budget. 
 
Mr. Duey said knowing prior to the budget would help staff know what they could put in the budget. 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 19, 2013 
Page 4 
 
 
Councilor Moore said she would be interested in seeing the small changes broken out. 
 
Mr. Duey said they could include that as part of the public hearing, but if they were not comfortable 
with that, they could pull it off of the March 4 public hearing. He explained how that could occur. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said they would just need to make their decision on March 4. 
 
Council agreed to having the discussion during the public hearing on March 4. 
 
2. Building Program Fees. 
 

Engineering Supervisor Matt Stouder presented the staff report on this item.  As discussed with 
Council during the February 4, 2013 work session on building fees, the City’s Building Fund was 
facing a number of challenges, including increased permit submittals, declining revenues, staffing 
reductions and depletions of reserves.  Staff presented three options for Council’s consideration to 
stabilize the Building Fund, including further staff reductions, a fee increase, or a subsidy from the 
General Fund.  As noted in work session, Springfield had not increased building permit fees since 
2009 or specialty permit fees since 2007.     

During the February 4, 2013 work session, staff discussed across the board fee increases of 7.5%, 10% 
and 12.5% for building fees.  Council reviewed those proposals and also expressed an interest in 
receiving additional information on what a tiered increase (with fees for lower value permits being 
increased more than fees for higher value permits) might look like for a range of projects.  That 
information, as well a general 10% increase, was shown in Attachment 1 of the agenda packet. 
Attachment 1 also compared those increases with current fees for Eugene and Lane County. For 
reference, Eugene last updated their fee schedule in February 2010 and were planning a 3% increase in 
April 2013.  Lane County’s last update occurred in April 2010 and they were not planning a fee 
increase this year. 

Also, as requested by Council, staff had met with the Home Builders Association (HBA) to discuss the 
proposed fee increases.  Feedback from the HBA had been supportive, and they had submitted a letter 
of support shown in Attachment 2 of the agenda packet.  Additionally, staff would be meeting with the 
Development Advisory Committee (DAC) on Thursday, February 21 and would report back to 
Council with their feedback thereafter.   
 
Based on feedback provided by Council regarding either an across the board or a tiered fee increase, 
staff would make appropriate revisions to Springfield’s Building Safety Fee Schedule shown in 
Attachment 3 of the agenda packet prior to the overall update of the City’s Master Fee and Charges 
Schedule, scheduled for public hearing on March 4, 2013.    
 
Mr. Stouder referred to Attachment 1 of the agenda packet which included the 10% increase and the 
tiered proposal. He explained the tiered proposal. The feedback from the HBA was that they were in 
agreement with the tiered approach. 
 
Councilor Ralston said during the last work session, there was agreement on the 10% increase, but a 
request to look at the tiered approach. He noticed that the tiered increase was, in most cases, higher 
than 10%. It seemed the tiered approach was more complicated and would take more time to figure 
out. 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 19, 2013 
Page 5 
 
 
Mr. Stouder said from a staff point they would be equal. 
 
Councilor Ralston said he wasn’t sure if this was fair and thought they should maybe stay with the 
10% increase. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said when comparing the 10% increase to the tiered increase, it looked like they 
would bring in about the same revenue. 
 
Mr. Stouder said from what staff anticipated the tiered approach could bring in slightly more than the 
10% increase. It would depend on the types of projects that came in to the City. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said he was fine with the tiered approach. Having the higher increase for the 
lower fees made sense since that was where most of the work was being done. 
 
Councilor Ralston said after looking more closely at each category, he agreed with the tiered approach. 
 
Councilor Brew said the tiered increase was probably fairer from a business standpoint, but previously 
Council had wanted to hold the smaller developments harmless. This was a balancing act, and would 
likely be revisited again in the future.  
 
Councilor Woodrow said she was glad they could be flexible and meet the concern of the developers. 
She was comfortable with the tiered approach. 
 
Councilor Moore agreed that the tiered approach was fine. In the future, she would like to look at a 
prediction of what could be expected. She would like to have a plan in place, although she understood 
that they couldn’t plan on the costs. Developers could expect that minimal increases could be 
happening. 
 
Mr. Stouder said that was the feedback he had received from developers that they preferred more 
feedback and more regular, smaller increases. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked how often the fees were increased. 
 
Mr. Stouder said building fees were increased in 2009 and specialty fees in 2007. Prior to that, fees 
were increased every couple of years.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said we had been responsive to the economy and that was the reason we hadn’t had 
regular increases.  It would be good to get back on track. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said it sounded like Council wanted staff to look at what was happening in the economy, 
what was happening with comparable jurisdictions, and what was happening with the cost of doing 
business. That was correct. 
 
Mr. Towery referred back to the question from Councilor Brew about whether or not Pre-Scheduled 
Non-Emergency Basic Life Support was covered by FireMed. He had contacted Fire Chief Groves and 
received a response that FireMed did cover medically necessary transports to a hospital whether they 
were emergency or non-emergency. Return transports were not covered by FireMed. Rural Metro fees 
were dependent on the type of transfer. Most of their transports were validated because they were 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
February 19, 2013 
Page 6 
 
Medicare or Medicaid eligible for reimbursement. The City had a contract with Rural Metro that set 
the amount the City would cover under FireMed. When they reached that threshold, which they 
normally did, Rural Metro paid the balance. The contracts with Rural Metro and the City of Eugene 
and City of Springfield were slightly different in terms of scope of services, but they were looking at 
making them identical in the future. 
 
Mr. Stouder noted that Attachment 3 of the agenda packet did show the fee increases occurring every 
year from 2001 to 2009, except for 2003. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:46  p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 



City of Springfield 
Regular Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2013 
 

The City of Springfield Council met in regular session in the Council Chambers, 225 Fifth Street, 
Springfield, Oregon, on Tuesday, February 19, 2013 at 7:00 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie (by conference phone), Moore, 
Ralston, Woodrow and Brew. Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager 
Jeff Towery, City Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Lundberg. 
 
SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Claims 
 

a. Approval of January 2013, Disbursements for Approval. 
 
2. Minutes 
 

a. January 26, 2013 – TEAM Springfield Annual Meeting 
b. January 28, 2013 – Work Session 
c. February 4, 2013 – Work Session 
d. February 4, 2013 – Regular Meeting 

 
3. Resolutions 
 
4. Ordinances 
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 6284 – ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 6282 BY 
DELETING THE ANNEXATION OF THE PROPERTY TO THE LANE COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN WASTEWATER SERVICE DISTRICT 

b. ORDINANCE NO. 6285 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 6107 TO 
CHANGE THE MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SPRINGFIELD 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGENCY. 

 
5. Other Routine Matters 
 

a. Approval of Liquor License Endorsement for Spyce Gentlemen’s Club, Located at 1195 Main 
Street, Springfield, Oregon. 

b. Approval of Liquor License Endorsement for Gateway Restaurant, Located at 3198 Gateway 
Street, Springfield, Oregon. 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 2 
 

c. Approval of Liquor License Endorsement for Wholesale Market, Located at 651 W. 
Centennial Blvd, Springfield, Oregon.  

 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
MOORE TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR WITH CHECKS #119562 AND 
#990610 REMOVED. THE MOTION PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED 
 
1.a.     Checks #119562 and #990610 from the January 2013 Disbursements. 
 
Councilor VanGordon recused himself from this item due to a conflict of interest as the checks were to 
his employer, United Parcel Service (UPS). 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
MOORE TO APPROVE CHECKS #119562 AND #990610.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH A 
VOTE OF 5 FOR AND 0 AGAINST (1 ABSTENTION – VANGORDON). 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request to speak cards are available at 

both entrances.  Please present cards to City Recorder.  Speakers may not 
yield their time to others. 

 
1. Springfield Development Code Amendments, Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures - File No. 

LRP 2009-00015. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 1 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT 
CODE TO IMPLEMENT THE SPRINGFIELD 2030 REFINEMENT PLAN RESIDENTIAL 
LAND USE AND HOUSING ELEMENT LAND USE EFFICIENCY MEASURES, PHASE 1, 
BY AMENDING AND/OR ADDING SECTION 3.2-100 BASE ZONING DISTRICTS; 
SECTION 3.2-205 ESTABLISHMENT OF RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 
3.2-210 SCHEDULE OF USE CATEGORIES; SECTION 3.2-215 BASE ZONE 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; SECTION 3.2-605 ESTABLISHMENT OF MIXED-USE 
ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 3.3-825 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS; SECTION 4.7-100 
SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; SECTION 4.7-140 SITING DUPLEXES IN ALL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS; SECTION 4.7-142 DESIGN STANDARDS FOR DUPLEXES 
AND ATTACHED SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS; SECTION 4.7-155 GROUP CARE 
FACILITIES; SECTION 4.7-233 SMALL LOT RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS; TABLE 5-4.1 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS; SECTION  5.12-120 
TENTATIVE PLAN SUBDIVISION SUBMITTALS; SECTION 5.12-130 TENTATIVE PLAN 
CONDITIONS; AND SECTION 6.1-110 MEANING OF SPECIFIC WORDS AND TERMS; 
AND ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. (FIRST READING) 
 

City Planner Gary Karp presented the staff report on this item.  The proposed Springfield 
Development Code (SDC) amendments implemented Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan Land Use and 
Housing Element policies by establishing: the Small Lot Residential (SLR) District; utilization of the 
term “net acre” instead of “developable acre”; and a minimum density per net acre of 6 dwelling units 
in the Low Density Residential District and 8 dwelling units in the SLR District. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 3 
 
As a result of the Oregon legislature’s adoption of HB 3337, in 2007, Springfield and Lane County 
approved Ordinances in 2011 that established a separate Springfield Urban Growth Boundary and 
adopted the Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan Land Use and Housing Element and the Springfield 
Residential Land and Housing Needs Analysis. During the early public review of these items, a range 
of potential Land Use Efficiency Measures were identified, presented to the community, evaluated and 
prioritized by the Residential Lands Stakeholder Committee, Springfield Planning Commission and 
City Council.  The Springfield and Lane County Planning Commissions conducted a public hearing on 
an earlier draft of the Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures SDC amendments in 2010.  After further 
analysis, staff refined the proposal to add minor revisions.  On December 4, 2012 the Planning 
Commission conducted a Work Session that resulted in no changes to the proposed SDC amendments. 
On January 15, 2013 the Planning Commission held a public hearing where one person testified in the 
neutral category. No one testified in favor or against the proposed SDC amendments. The Planning 
Commission voted 6 to 0, with 1 absent to recommend approval of the proposed SDC amendments to 
the City Council. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared to speak. 
 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 

 
2. An Ordinance Making it a Violation to Initiate a False Report or Provide a False Statement to an 

Animal Control Officer. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL 
CODE CHAPTER 5, PUBLIC PROTECTION, CONTROL OF DOGS AND OTHER ANIMALS, 
MAKING IT A VIOLATION OF THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE TO INITIATE A 
FALSE REPORT OR TO PROVIDE AN UNSWORN FALSIFICATION TO AN ANIMAL 
SERVICES OFFICER (FIRST READING). 
 

Police Chief Jerry Smith presented the staff report on this item.  The City provided Animal Control 
Services, operating under State Law and City Ordinance authority.  Investigations occasionally found 
individuals who knowingly provided false information to the Animal Control Officer. 
 
Oregon Statutes provided tools to deal with false information to police officers but did not provide the 
same level of accountability for such behavior to Animal Control Officers.  Lane County had an 
ordinance that provided for initiating false reports to animal control officers from which the proposed 
ordinance was modeled. 
 
There was no financial impact with adoption of the proposed ordinance. 
 
Mayor Lundberg opened the public hearing. 
 
No one appeared to speak. 
 
Mayor Lundberg closed the public hearing. 
 
 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 4 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 

1. Jill Winans, 75 West 35th Place, Eugene, OR  Ms. Winans said she was President of the 
Willamette Animal Guild’s Spay and Neuter Clinic. She had been talking to Animal Control 
Supervisor Mike Harman about Council approving funds to spay and neuter cats in 
Springfield. She offered to subsidize the program with a grant from the Foundation which she 
would like to apply for prior to the deadline date of March 26, 2013. Ms. Winans said she 
wanted to get this program in action. She and Mr. Harman were talking about concentrating on 
multiple housing units and assisting with owned cats. She displayed a chart created by her 
colleague Lisa Wall, who had subsidized many Springfield cat spays and neuters. The chart 
showed the decrease in kittens offered for free on Craig’s List from 2009 to 2012. She felt this 
was a great opportunity and would appreciate working with Springfield. 
 

COUNCIL RESPONSE 
 
Mayor Lundberg said the Mayor’s Animal Subcommittee had recently met and their goal was to get a 
program up and running. They would like to take advantage of every opportunity to make it work for 
Springfield. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS 
 
1. Correspondence from the Lane County Sheriff’s Office Regarding Letters Submitted Pertaining to 

Treatment at the Lane County Jail. 
 

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR WOODROW WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR 
MOORE TO ACCEPT THE CORRESPONDENCE FOR FILING. THE MOTION 
PASSED WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST. 
 

BIDS 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
1. Committee Appointments 
 
2. Business from Council 
 

a. Committee Reports 
 

b. Other Business. 
 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned  7:10 p.m. 



City of Springfield 
Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 5 
 
 
Minutes Recorder Amy Sowa 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
City Recorder 



AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Gary Karp/DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3777 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Community and Economic 
Development and 
Revitalization 

 
ITEM TITLE: SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENTS, PHASE 1 LAND USE 

EFFICIENCY MEASURES - File No. LRP 2009-00015 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Conduct a second reading and adopt/not adopt the following ordinance: AN 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE TO 
IMPLEMENT THE SPRINGFIELD 2030 REFINEMENT PLAN RESIDENTIAL LAND 
USE AND HOUSING ELEMENT LAND USE EFFICIENCY MEASURES, PHASE 1, 
BY AMENDING AND/OR ADDING SECTION 3.2-100 BASE ZONING DISTRICTS; 
SECTION 3.2-205 ESTABLISHMENT OF RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS; 
SECTION 3.2-210 SCHEDULE OF USE CATEGORIES; SECTION 3.2-215 BASE 
ZONE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; SECTION 3.2-605 ESTABLISHMENT OF 
MIXED-USE ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 3.3-825 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS; 
SECTION 4.7-100 SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; SECTION 4.7-140 
SITING DUPLEXES IN ALL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS; SECTION 4.7-142 DESIGN 
STANDARDS FOR DUPLEXES AND ATTACHED SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS; 
SECTION 4.7-155 GROUP CARE FACILITIES; SECTION 4.7-233 SMALL LOT 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; TABLE 5-4.1 
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS; SECTION  5.12-120 TENTATIVE PLAN 
SUBDIVISION SUBMITTALS; SECTION 5.12-130 TENTATIVE PLAN 
CONDITIONS; AND SECTION 6.1-110 MEANING OF SPECIFIC WORDS AND 
TERMS; AND ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. 

ISSUE STATEMENT: The proposed Springfield Development Code (SDC) amendments implement 
Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan Land Use and Housing Element policies by 
establishing: the Small Lot Residential (SLR) District; utilization of the term “net 
acre” instead of “developable acre”; and a minimum density per net acre of 6 dwelling 
units in the Low Density Residential District and 8 dwelling units in the SLR District.   

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1: Ordinance and Exhibit A Staff Report 
DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

As a result of the Oregon legislature’s adoption of HB 3337, in 2007, Springfield and 
Lane County approved Ordinances in 2011 that established a separate Springfield 
Urban Growth Boundary and adopted the Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan Land Use 
and Housing Element and the Springfield Residential Land and Housing Needs 
Analysis. During the early public review of these items, a range of potential Land Use 
Efficiency Measures were identified, presented to the community, evaluated and 
prioritized by the Residential Lands Stakeholder Committee, Springfield Planning 
Commission and City Council.  The Springfield and Lane County Planning 
Commissions conducted a public hearing on an earlier draft of the Phase 1 Land Use 
Efficiency Measures SDC amendments in 2010.  After further analysis, staff refined 
the proposal to add minor revisions.  On December 4, 2012 the Planning Commission 
conducted a Work Session that resulted in no changes to the proposed SDC 
amendments. On January 15, 2013 the Planning Commission held a public hearing 
where one person testified in the neutral category. No one testified in favor or against 
the proposed SDC amendments. The Planning Commission voted 6 to 0, with 1 absent 
to recommend approval of the proposed SDC amendments to the City Council. On 
February 19, 2013 the City Council conducted a first reading of the proposed 
Ordinance amending the SDC. No one spoke in favor or against the proposal.  

 
 



ORDINANCE NO. ______________ (General) 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE TO IMPLEMENT THE SPRINGFIELD 
2030 REFINEMENT PLAN RESIDENTIAL LAND USE AND HOUSING ELEMENT LAND USE EFFICIENCY 
MEASURES, PHASE 1, BY AMENDING AND/OR ADDING SECTION 3.2-100 BASE ZONING DISTRICTS; 
SECTION 3.2-205 ESTABLISHMENT OF RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 3.2-210 SCHEDULE OF 
USE CATEGORIES; SECTION 3.2-215 BASE ZONE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; SECTION 3.2-605 
ESTABLISHMENT OF MIXED-USE ZONING DISTRICTS; SECTION 3.3-825 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS; 
SECTION 4.7-100 SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; SECTION 4.7-140 SITING DUPLEXES IN ALL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS; SECTION 4.7-142 DESIGN STANDARDS FOR DUPLEXES AND ATTACHED 
SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS; SECTION 4.7-155 GROUP CARE FACILITIES; SECTION 4.7-233 SMALL LOT 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; TABLE 5-4.1 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS; 
SECTION  5.12-120 TENTATIVE PLAN SUBDIVISION SUBMITTALS; SECTION 5.12-130 TENTATIVE PLAN 
CONDITIONS; AND SECTION 6.1-110 MEANING OF SPECIFIC WORDS AND TERMS; AND ADOPTING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. 
  
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD FINDS THAT: 
 

WHEREAS, the Springfield Development Code (SDC) was adopted by the Springfield City Council 
on May 5, 1986, and amendments thereto have been subsequently adopted by Ordinance; and 
          

WHEREAS, the proposed Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures comply with the Springfield City 
Council Goal regarding Community and Economic Development and Revitalization; and 

 
               WHEREAS, in 2007, the Oregon Legislature passed and the Governor signed into law Chapter 
650, Oregon Laws 2007, codified as ORS 197.304 and commonly known as “House Bill 3337”; and 
 

WHEREAS, ORS 197.304 required Springfield, in part to: 1. Evaluate the sufficiency of its 
residential buildable land supply within its Urban Growth Boundary (UGB); and 2. Evaluate the 
sufficiency of its residential buildable land supply to accommodate estimated housing needs for 20 
years; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 31, 2009, notice regarding the proposed Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency 
Measures was mailed to the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) as specified in 
Section 5.1-140B.: and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 29, 2010, DLCD, mailed comments regarding the proposed Phase 1 Land 

Use Efficiency Measures that staff has incorporated into the text that is part of this Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the public review process for adoption of the Residential Lands Housing Needs 

Analysis (RLHNA) and the Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan (SRP) Residential Land Use and Housing 
Element included prioritized Land Use Efficiency Measures for adoption in phases began in 2010; and 

 
WHEREAS, the RLHNA, the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element and the Springfield 

UGB were adopted by the Springfield City Council, Ordinance 6268, on June 20, 2011; and by the Lane 
County Board of Commissioners, Ordinance PA 1274, on July 6, 2011; and  

 

Attachment 1-1



WHEREAS, the residential land use policies contained in the SRP Residential Land use and 
Housing Element together with  its technical supplement, the RLHNA, demonstrate, as required by ORS 
197.296, that the Springfield UGB contains sufficient lands to accommodate estimated Springfield’s 
housing needs for the plan period 2010-2030; and  

 
WHEREAS,  Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures SDC amendments implement SRP Residential 

Land Use and Housing Element Goals to plan for housing needs, choice and affordability and to 
encourage housing diversity and quality neighborhoods; and  

WHEREAS,  Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures code amendments implement SRP Residential 
Land Use and Housing Element Policies H.1, H.7, H.11, H.12 and Implementation Actions 1.1 and 7.1; 
and 

WHEREAS, in 2012 the Springfield City Council directed staff to finalize the public review process 
to adopt the proposed Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures.  

 
WHEREAS, on December 4, 2012 staff held a work session with the Springfield Planning 

Commission regarding the proposed Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures and no changes were made 
to the draft text: and 

 
WHEREAS, WHEREAS, on January 15, 2013, the Springfield Planning Commission held a public 

hearing on the proposed Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures. No one spoke in favor or against the 
proposed amendments. One person spoke under the neutral category. There was no written testimony. 
The Planning Commission voted 6 to 0 with 1 absent, with no text changed to recommend that the City 
Council approve the proposed Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures at their public hearing scheduled 
for February 19, 2013: and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 19, 2013 the Springfield City Council held a first reading on the proposed 

Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures and no one testified and no changes were made to the draft text: 
and 

 
WHEREAS, timely and sufficient notice of the Springfield Planning Commission and City Council 

public hearings, as specified in SDC Section 5.2-115B., regarding the proposed Phase 1 Land Use 
Efficiency Measures has been provided; and 

 
WHEREAS, SDC Section 5.6-100 describes procedures for SDC amendments and Exhibit A, Staff 

Repor,t is hereby incorporated into this Ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Springfield City Council is now ready to take action on this matter based upon 
the above recommendation and the evidence and testimony already in the record as well as the 
evidence and testimony presented at this public hearing; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The above findings, and the findings set forth in Exhibit A and incorporated herein 
are hereby adopted. 

 

Attachment 1-2



SECTION 2:  CHAPTER 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS, Section 3.2-100 Base Zoning Districts is hereby 
amended as follows: 

“3.2-100 Base Zoning Districts 
 
The Base Zoning Districts implement policies of the Metro Plan, Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan and 
any applicable refinement plan or plan district; regulate the use of land, structures and buildings; and 
protect the public health, safety and welfare. The following base zoning districts are established 
consistent with applicable Metro Plan and Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan designations: 
 

Section Base Zoning District Name Metro Plan Designation1 

3.2-200  Residential Zoning Districts  

 LDR Low Density Residential Low Density Residential 

 SLR Small Lot Residential Low Density Residential 

 MDR Medium Density Residential Medium Density Residential 

 HDR High Density Residential High Density Residential 

3.2-300 Commercial Zoning Districts  

 NC Neighborhood Commercial Neighborhood Commercial Facilities(1) 

 CC Community Commercial Community Commercial Centers 

 MRC Major Retail Commercial Major Retail Center 

 GO General Office  Community Commercial Center & Major 
Retail Commercial Center 

3.2-400  Industrial Zoning Districts  

 CI Campus Industrial Campus Industrial 

 LMI Light-Medium Industrial Light Medium Industrial 

 HI Heavy Industrial Heavy Industrial 

 SHI Special Heavy Industrial Special Heavy Industrial 

3.2-500 MS Medical Services District (2) 

 

 

Attachment 1-3



3.2-600 Mixed Use Districts(3)  

 MUC Mixed Use Commercial Mixed Uses 

 MUE Mixed Use Employment Mixed Uses 

 MUR Mixed Use Residential Mixed Uses 

3.2-700 PLO Public Land and Open Space Public and Semi-Public 

3.2-800 QMO Quarry and Mining Operations Sand and Gravel 

 
(1) Low, Small Lot Residential, Medium, and High Density Residential 
(2) Medium, High Density Residential, Community Commercial Center; Major Retail Center, and Mixed Use 
(3) See also Section 3.4-245 for additional Mixed-Use Districts specific to Glenwood “ 
 

SECTION 3:  CHAPTER 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS, Section 3.2-205 Establishment of Residential 
Zoning Districts is hereby amended as follows: 

“3.2-205 Establishment of Residential Zoning Districts 
 
The following residential zoning districts are established where the minimum level of urban services is 
provided: 
 

A. Low Density Residential District (LDR). Unless specified elsewhere in this Code, the LDR 
District applies within the LDR designation and:  

 
1. Establishes sites for residential development where primarily detached single-

family dwellings and duplexes are permitted with a density range of 6-14 
dwelling units per net acre. Density fractions will be rounded up to the next 
whole number.  

 
2. Provides for a limited range of neighborhood uses that provide services for 

residents. 
 

B. Small Lot Residential District (SLR). Unless otherwise directed by the City Council, 
application of the SLR District shall occur as part of a Refinement Plan and/or Master 
Plan approval process. The SLR District applies within the LDR designation and:  

 
1. Establishes sites for residential development where a mix of attached and 

detached single-family dwellings are permitted on small lots/parcels with a 
density range of 8-14 dwelling units per net acre. Density fractions will be 
rounded up to the next whole number. 
 

2. Provides for a limited range of neighborhood uses that provide services for 
residents. 

 

Attachment 1-4



C. Medium Density Residential District (MDR). The MDR District applies within the MDR 
designation and:  

 
1. Establishes sites for residential development where primarily multi-family 

dwellings are permitted and the density range is 14-28 dwelling units per net 
acre. Density fractions will be rounded up to the next whole number. As 
specified in Section 3.2-215, Footnote 16, MDR lot area and dimension 
standards may be reduced through the Subdivision application process in order 
to meet density standards. 

 
2. Provides for a limited range of neighborhood uses that provide services for 

residents. 
 

D. High Density Residential District (HDR). The HDR District applies within the HDR 
designation and: 

 
1. Establishes sites for residential development where primarily multi-family 

dwellings are permitted and the density range is 28-42 dwelling units per net 
acre. Density fractions will be rounded up to the next whole number. As 
specified in Section 3.2-215, Footnote 16, HDR lot area and dimension standards 
may be reduced through the Subdivision application process in order to meet 
density standards. 

 
EXCEPTION: The minimum and/or maximum density may be increased in the 
Nodal Development Overlay District and transit corridors as determined through 
the Refinement Plan and/or Master Plan process. 

2. Provides for a limited range of neighborhood uses that provide services for 
residents.” 

 
SECTION 4:  CHAPTER 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS, Section 3.2-210 Schedule of Use Categories is 

hereby amended as follows: 

“3.2-210 Schedule of Use Categories 
 
The following uses are permitted in the districts as indicated, subject to the provisions, additional 
restrictions and exceptions specified in this Code. Uses not specifically listed may be approved as 
specified in Section 5.11-100. 
 
“P” = PERMITTED USE subject to the standards of this Code. 
 
“S” = SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS subject to special locational and/or siting standards as 
specified in Section 4.7-100. 
 
“D” = DISCRETIONARY USE subject to review and analysis under Type III procedure (Section 5.9-100) at 
the Planning Commission or Hearings Official level. 

Attachment 1-5



 
“N” = NOT PERMITTED 
 
“N/A” = NOT APPLICABLE 
 
“*” = SITE PLAN REVIEW REQUIRED 
 

Use Categories/Uses 

Zoning Districts 

LDR SLR MDR HDR 

Residential Uses     

Dwellings     

Accessory dwelling unit (Section 5.5-100) P P N N 

Attached single-family dwellings (Section 4.7-233)   D* P  P*   P* 

Cluster subdivision (Sections 3.2-230 and 5.12-100) P P P P 

Condominiums (Section 4.7-135)   S* S  P*   P* 

Cottage cluster D* P* P* N 

Detached single-family dwellings (Section 4.7-233) P P P P 

Duplexes in the LDR District (Section 4.7-140) S N/A N/A N/A 

Duplexes and attached single-family dwellings in the SLR, 
MDR and HDR Districts  (Section 4.7-142) 

N/A S S S 

Manufactured dwelling park (Section 3.2-235) S* P* N N 

Manufactured home  P P P N 

Manufactured home as a temporary residential use (Section 
4.8-105) 

S* N N N 

Manufactured home subdivision  P P N N 

Mobile home  P N N N 

Multiple family dwelling including triplexes, 4-plexes, quads, 
quints, and apartment complexes over 4 units. 

N N   P*   P* 

Prefabricated dwellings P P P*   P* 

Attachment 1-6



Use Categories/Uses 

Zoning Districts 

LDR SLR MDR HDR 

RVs as a permanent new residential use on a lot/parcel N N N N 

RVs in existing RV or Manufactured Dwelling Parks, unless 
the park rules prohibit the replacement of RVs 

P N N N 

RV’s as a temporary residential use on a lot/parcel upon 
approval of an Emergency Medical Hardship application 
(Section 5.10-100) P N N N 

Zero Lot Line dwelling P P P P 

Group Care Facilities (Section 4.7-155)     

Foster homes for over 5 children   P*  N   P*   P* 

Halfway houses N N D* D* 

Residential care facilities with more than 15 persons include: 
Group care homes, congregate care facilities, nursing homes 
and retirement homes   D* N S* S* 

Shelter Homes for abused and battered persons P N  P* P* 

Other Care Facilities     

Adult Day Care—facilities up to 12 adults P N P P 

Adult Day Care—facilities with more than 13 adults (abutting 
an arterial street) 

P* N P* P* 

Adult Day Care—facilities with more than 13 adults (abutting 
a collector or local street) 

D* N P* P* 

Child Care Home Facility—1 to 5 children P P P P 

Child Care Group Home Facility—6 to 12 children P P P P 

Child Care Center—13 or more children (abutting an arterial 
street) (Section 4.7-125) 

S* N S* S* 

Child Care Center—13 or more children (abutting a collector 
or local street) (Section 4.7-125) 

D N S* S* 

Residential Facilities—6 to 15 persons P N P* P* 

Attachment 1-7



Use Categories/Uses 

Zoning Districts 

LDR SLR MDR HDR 

Residential Home—5 or fewer persons P P P P 

Lodging     

Bed and breakfast facilities (Section 4.7-120) S* S* S* S* 

Boarding and rooming houses  (Section 4.7-215): 1 to 2 
bedrooms 

 

P* 

 

P* 

 

P* 

 

P* 

Boarding and rooming houses  (Section 4.7-215): 3 to 5 
bedrooms 

 

S* 

 

S* 

 

P* 

 

P* 

Youth hostels N N D* D* 

Public and Institutional Uses      

Churches (Section 4.7-130) D* D* D* D* 

Educational facilities—Public/Private elementary/middle 
schools (Section 4.7-195) 

    

1 to 5 students in a private home (in a 24-hour period) P* P* P* P* 

6 or more students (Section 4.7-195) D* D* D* D* 

Parks—Neighborhood and private (Section 4.7-200) P/D* P/D* D* D* 

Commercial Uses     

Home Occupation (Section 4.7-165) S S S S 

Professional offices (Section 4.7-190) S*   S* S* S* 

Residential dwelling units as temporary sales offices (Section 
4.8-130) 

P P P P 

Miscellaneous Uses     

Accessory structures (Section 4.7-105) S S S S 

Agricultural structures P P P P 

Cultivation of undeveloped land P P P P 

Attachment 1-8



Use Categories/Uses 

Zoning Districts 

LDR SLR MDR HDR 

Temporary sales/display of produce (Section 4.8-125) S S N N 

Tree felling and removal (Section 5.19-100) P P P P 

Public Utility Facilities     

Public Utility Facilities - High impact facilities (Section 4.7-
160) 

S*   S* S* S* 

Public Utility Facilities - Low impact facilities P P P P 

Certain Wireless Telecommunications Systems Facilities  Section 
4.3-145 

Section 
4.3-145 

Section 
4.3-145 

Section 
4.3-145 

 
SECTION 5:  CHAPTER 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS, Section 3.2-215 Base Zone Development 

Standards is hereby amended as follows: 

“3.2-215  Base Zone Development Standards 

The following base zone development standards are established. 
 

 Residential Zoning District 

Development 
Standard 

Low Density 
Residential (LDR) 

Small Lot 
Residential (SLR) 

Medium Density 
Residential (MDR) 

High Density 
Residential (HDR) 

Standard Lots/Parcels  

Minimum Area:     

East-West Streets 
4,500  square feet 3,000 square feet 

4,500 square feet 
(15)  

 

4,500 square feet 
(15) 

 

North-South Streets 
5,000 square feet 3,000 square feet 

5,000 square feet 
(15) 

 

5,000 square feet 
(15) 

 
Minimum  Street 
Frontage:     

East-West Streets 45 feet 30 feet 45 feet (15) 
 

45 feet (15) 
 

North-South Streets 60 feet 30 feet 60 feet (15) 
 

60 feet (15) 
 

Duplex Corner Lots/Parcels  

 6,000 square feet 6,000 square feet 6,000 square feet 6,000 square feet 

Attachment 1-9



Minimum/Maximum 
Area: (1) 

(15) 
 

(15) 
 

Maximum Area (2)  10,000 square feet 9,000 square feet 9,000 square feet  
 

9,000 square feet  
 

Minimum  Street 
Frontage:     

East-West Streets 45 feet 45 feet 45 feet (15) 
 

45 feet (15) 
 

North-South Streets 60 feet 60 feet 60 feet (15) 
 

60 feet (15) 
 

Panhandle Lots/Parcels (See Section 3.2-220 Additional Panhandle Lot/Parcel Development Standards) 

Single Panhandle: (16) Not permitted (16) (16) 
Minimum Area in Pan 
Portion 4,500 square feet Not applicable 4,500 square feet 

 
4,500 square feet 

 
Minimum Street 
Frontage 20 feet Not applicable 20 feet 20 feet 

Multiple Panhandles: (16) Not permitted (16) (16) 
Minimum Area in Pan 
Portion 4,500 square feet Not applicable 4,500 square feet 4,500 square feet 

Minimum  Street 
Frontage 

26 feet total, each 
individual frontage 
is based upon the 
number of 
panhandles. 

Not applicable 

26 feet total, each 
individual frontage 
is based upon the 
number of 
panhandles. 

26 feet total, each 
individual frontage 
is based upon the 
number of 
panhandles. 

Lots/Parcels on bulb portion of a cul-de-sac 

Minimum Area 6,000 feet 3,000 square feet 6,000 feet (15) 6,000 feet (15) 
Minimum Street 
Frontage 35 feet 35 feet 35 feet (15) 35 feet (15) 

Lots/Parcels within the Hillside Development Overlay District (Section 3.3-500)  

< 15 percent slope:   Not Permitted   
Minimum Area 10,000 square feet Not applicable 10,000 square feet 10,000 square feet 
Minimum Street 
Frontage 60 feet Not applicable 60 feet 60 feet 

15-25 percent slope:  Not Permitted   
Minimum Area 10,000 square feet Not applicable 10,000 square feet 10,000 square feet 
Minimum Street 
Frontage 90 feet Not applicable 90 feet 90 feet 

25-35 percent slope:  Not permitted   
Minimum Area 20,000 square feet Not applicable 20,000 square feet 20,000 square feet 

Attachment 1-10



Minimum Street 
Frontage 150 feet Not applicable 150 feet 150 feet 

> 35 percent slope:  Not permitted   
Minimum Area 40,000 square feet Not applicable 40,000 square feet 40,000 square feet 
Minimum Street 
Frontage 200 feet Not applicable 200 feet 200 feet 

Lots/Parcels in the Urbanizable Fringe Overlay District (Section 3.3-800) 

Lot/Parcel Area The creation of new lots/parcels in the City’s urbanizable area shall be either 10 acres, 
5 acres or shall meet the area standards of this Section when approved through the 
Partition process specified in Section 5.12-100. 

Maximum Lot/Parcel 
Coverage (3) 45 percent 60 percent 45 percent (17) 45 percent (17) 

Minimum Setbacks for Primary Structures(4)(5)(7)(8)(9)(10) 

Front Yard 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 
Street Side Yard 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 
Rear Yard 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 
Interior Yard 
Setbacks 
Without Zero Lot 
Line 

5 feet 5 feet 5 feet 5 feet 

Interior Yard Setbacks 

With Zero Lot Line 
10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 

Front Yard Setback—
Garages  18 feet measured along the driveway from: 

and Carports (6) 1. The property line fronting the street or the back of the sidewalk, whichever is 
closest to the face of the garage or carport; or 

 2. The property line fronting the street or the back of the sidewalk, whichever is 
closest to the far wall of the garage or carport where the face of the structure is 
perpendicular to the street. 

 3. Where a garage or carport faces a panhandle driveway, the 18 feet is measured 
from the inner travel edge (pavement or gravel) within the panhandle to the face 
of the structure. 

Alley Access – Garage  For new alleys – the setback is 5 feet measured from the edge of the alley. For existing 
alleys that are less than 20 feet wide, the setback is 3 feet .  

Accessory Structures  Accessory structures shall not be located between any front or street side yards of a 
primary structure and shall be set back at least 3 feet from interior side and rear 
lot/parcel lines.  

Panhandle and 
Duplex Lots/Parcels 

All setbacks for panhandle lots/parcels are based on the orientation of the front and 
rear of the dwelling occupying the lot/parcel. All setbacks for duplexes on corner 
lots/parcels are based upon the front yard of each unit established by the street or 

Attachment 1-11



streets for address purposes.  

Base Solar Standards  Section 3.2-225.(11)  

Maximum Building 
Height 
(11)(12)(13)(14)(18) 

30 feet 35 feet 35 feet  35 feet  

 
 (1) 6,000 square feet in area for  a duplex corner lot/parcel in all residential districts. This standard may only be increased as specified in 

(2), below. 
(2) 10,000 square feet in the LDR District as specified in this Section and Section 4.7-140.   
 9,000 square feet in area for one a duplex corner lot/parcel In the SLR, MDR and HDR District as specified in this Section and Section 

4.7-140. These maximum areas shall apply only when the property owner intends divide the lot/parcel with the intent to create 
separate ownership for each half of the duplex. 

(3) The 45 percent coverage standard applies to covered structures only. On lots/parcels with more than 15 percent slope or above an 
elevation of 670 feet, the maximum impervious surface inclusive of structures, patios, and driveways, shall not exceed 35 percent, 
unless specified in Section 3.3-500. In the SLR, MDR or HDR  Districts, a lot/parcel  of 3.000 or less than 4500 square feet shall have a 
maximum impervious surface coverage of 60 percent.   

(4) Determination of all yard setbacks for duplexes on corner lots/parcels are based upon the front yard of each unit as established by 
the streets used for address purposes. 

(5) All setbacks shall be landscaped, unless a setback is for a garage or carport. 
(6) Accessory Structure Exceptions to Setback standards: 

(a) Stand alone garages and carports shall meet the street side yard, interior side yard and rear yard setback standards of the 
primary structure. 

(b) Group C Accessory structures are permitted within setbacks as specified in Section 4.7-105E. 
(7) Where an easement is larger than the required setback standard, no building or above grade structure, except a fence, may be built 

upon or over that easement. 
(8) When additional right-of-way is required, whether by City Engineering standards, the Metro Plan (including the TransPlan), or the 

City’s Conceptual Street Plan, setbacks are based on future right-of-way locations. Right-of-way shall be dedicated prior to the 
issuance of any building permit that increases parking requirements. 

(9) Architectural extensions may protrude into any 5-foot or larger setback area by not more than 2 feet. 
(10) General Exceptions to Setback standards: 

(a) Attached dwellings (zero lot line) on individual lots/parcels; and 
(b) A dwelling constructed over the common property line of 2 lots/parcels, where there is a recorded deed restriction. 
(c) In multifamily developments, the setback standards in Section 3.2-240 shall take precedence. 

(11) See Section 3.2-225 for residential building height limitations for solar protection. In the SLR District, solar protection for abutting 
LDR properties is required only for those lots/parcels north of the proposed development.  

(12) Incidental equipment may exceed the height standards. 
(13) Height limitations within the Hillside Development Overlay District may be removed provided the additional height does not exceed 

45 feet and the base residential solar standards are met. 
(14) In the MDR and HDR Districts, the building height may be increased to 50 feet as specified in Subsection 3.2-240D.3.c. 
(15) In the MDR and HDR Districts, lot area and dimensions may be reduced through the Subdivision application process as long as 

density and open space standards can be met. 
(16) Panhandle driveways are permitted where dedication of public right-of-way is impractical.  Panhandle driveways shall not be 

permitted in lieu of a public street. In order to comply with the density requirements in the applicable residential zoning district. a 
private easement as specified in Section 3.2-220B. may be permitted in lieu of the handle because the minimum lot/parcel size is 
determined based only on the pan square footage calculation. 

(17) In the MDR and HDR Districts, lot coverage standards may be increased to comply with the density requirements in the applicable 
residential zoning district. 

(18) Special building height standards may be established in Nodal Development Overlay or other special district standards (e.g. 
Glenwood Plan District), as determined through Refinement Plan and/or Master Plan processes and/or the permitted building height 
may be regulated by number of stories‘ or floors.” 

 
SECTION 6:  CHAPTER 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS, Section 3.2-605 Establishment of Mixed-Use 

Zoning Districts is hereby amended as follows: 

“3.2-605 Establishment of Mixed-Use Zoning Districts  

Attachment 1-12



The following mixed use zoning districts are established to implement areas designated Mixed Use by 
the Metro Plan, on adopted refinement plans, specific area plans and specific development plan 
diagrams and along transportation corridors designated for commercial development: 
  
A. Mixed-Use Commercial District (MUC). The MUC District is established where a mix of 

commercial with residential uses is compatible with existing nearby uses. Development within 
the MUC District shall have a commercial dominance, with residential and public uses also 
allowed. The primary development objectives of the MUC District are to expand housing 
opportunities; allow businesses to locate in a variety of settings; provide options for living, 
working, and shopping environments; facilitate more intensive use of land while minimizing 
potentially adverse impacts; and to provide options for pedestrian-oriented lifestyles.  
Development areas one acre or more in size in the MUC District shall have frontage on either an 
arterial or collector street. Access to any MUC development area may be from a local street, if 
there is no negative impact on adjacent residential uses. 

  
B. Mixed-Use Employment District (MUE). The MUE District is established where a mix of light-

medium industrial or special light industrial uses with commercial or medium-high density 
residential uses is intended. Development within the MUE District shall have an employment 
(industrial) emphasis, but may include commercial, public, and multifamily residential uses. The 
primary development objectives of the MUE District are to expand employment opportunities 
by allowing businesses to locate in a variety of locations, provide services for employees in close 
proximity to their work place, to provide options for living, working, and shopping 
environments; facilitate more intensive use of land while minimizing potentially adverse 
impacts; and to provide options for pedestrian-oriented lifestyles.  Development areas one acre 
or more in size in the MUE District shall have frontage on either an arterial or collector street. 
Access to any MUE development area may be from a local street, if there is no negative impact 
on adjacent residential uses. 

  
C. Mixed-Use Residential District (MUR). The MUR District is established where a mix of medium 

and high density residential with commercial uses is intended. The MUR District shall only be 
applied to properties that are contiguous with property designated Community Commercial, 
Mixed-Use Employment or Mixed-Use Commercial on the Springfield Zoning Map. Development 
within the MUR District shall have a multifamily residential emphasis, but may include small-
scale retail, office and service uses when they are developed as part of a mixed-use 
development in order to increase housing opportunities in close proximity to designated 
commercial zones; support the retail, office and service uses of the adjacent commercial zone; 
and to provide options for pedestrian-oriented lifestyles. Development areas one acre or more 
in size in the MUR District shall have frontage on either an arterial or collector street. Access to 
any MUR development area may be from a local street, if a Traffic Impact Study determines 
there is no negative impact on adjacent residential uses. 

 
D. The Residential Mixed-Use (RMU), Commercial Mixed-Use (CMU) and Employment Mixed-Use 

(EMU) Districts are applicable to certain portions of the Glenwood Riverfront as specified in the 
Glenwood Refinement Plan. See Section 3.4-245 for a description of these districts and Section 
3.4-250 for the schedule of permitted uses.” 

 

Attachment 1-13



SECTION 7:  CHAPTER  4 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, Section 4.7-100 Specific Development 
Standards is hereby amended as follows: 

“4.7-105 Accessory Structures 
4.7-110 Animal Overnight Accommodations 
4.7-115 Auto, Manufactured Dwelling, RV, Boat, Motorcycle and Truck Sales, Service and Rentals 
4.7-120 Bed and Breakfast Facilities 
4.7-125 Child Care Facilities 
4.7-130 Churches 
4.7-135 Condominiums 
4.7-140 Siting Duplexes in All Residential Districts 
4.7-142 Design Standards for Duplexes and Attached Single-Family Dwellings 
4.7-145 Eating and Drinking Establishments 
4.7-150 Garden Supply and Feed Stores 
4.7-155 Group Care Facilities 
4.7-160 High Impact Public Facilities 
4.7-165 Home Occupations 
4.7-170 Manufactured Dwelling as a Permanent Office 
4.7-175 Manufacturing as a Secondary Use in Commercial Districts 
4.7-180 Mixed Use Districts 
4.7-185 Night Watchman’s Quarters 
4.7-190 Professional Offices 
4.7-195 Public/Private Elementary/ Middle Schools 
4.7-200 Public and Private Parks 
4.7-203 Public Land and Open Space 
4.7-205 Recreational Facilities 
4.7-210 Residential Uses in Commercial Districts 
4.7-215 Rooming and Boarding Houses 
4.7-220 RV Park Standards 
4.7-225 RVs as a Residential Use in Manufactured Dwelling Parks in Glenwood 
4.7-230 Secondary Retail Sales in the GO District 
4.7-233 Small Lot Residential District Development Standards 
4.7-235 Small Scale Repair and Maintenance Services 
4.7-240 Transportation Facilities—Bus Terminals, Heliports and Helistops 
4.7-245 Warehouse Commercial Retail and Wholesale 
4.7-250 Wellness Centers in the PLO District” 
 

SECTION 8:  CHAPTER  4 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, Section 4.7-140 Siting Duplexes in All 
Residential Districts is hereby amended as follows: 

“4.7-140 Siting Duplexes in All Residential Districts 

A. New Duplexes in the LDR and SLR Districts. A single duplex may be located on corner 
lots/parcels as specified in Section 3.2-215. The design standards specified in Section 4.7-142 
shall only apply to duplexes in the SLR District. 

B. Pre-existing Duplexes in the LDR District. Prior to the adoption of this Code: 
 

Attachment 1-14

http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_105&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_110&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_115&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_120&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_125&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_130&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_135&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_140&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_145&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_150&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_155&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_160&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_165&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_170&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_175&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_180&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_185&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_190&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_195&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_200&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_203&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_205&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_210&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_215&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_220&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_225&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_230&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_235&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_240&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_245&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/springfield-development/view.php?topic=4-4_7_100-4_7_250&frames=on


1. Duplexes on interior lots/parcels approved as part of a Planned Unit Development shall 
not be considered to be non-conforming uses. 

2. Duplexes on interior lots/parcels approved on property previously zoned RG Garden 
Apartments shall not be considered to be a non-conforming use. 

3. Duplexes on interior lots/parcels that meet the density requirements of this zoning 
district, shall not be considered a non-conforming use.  

C. New Duplexes in the MDR and HDR Districts.  

1. A single duplex shall be permitted on corner lots/parcels as specified in Section 3.2-210. 
The design standards of Section 4.7-142 shall apply to this category of duplexes. 

2. Where more than one duplex is proposed on lots/parcels that are less than 1/2 acre in 
size and the minimum MDR or HDR density standard for the entire development area 
can be met, the design standards specified in Section 4.7-142 shall apply to this category 
of duplexes. 

3. Where more than one duplex is proposed on lots/parcels that are 1/2 acre or more and 
the minimum MDR or HDR density standard for the entire development area can be 
met, the multi-family design standards specified in Section 3.2-240 shall apply to this 
category of duplexes. 

D. Partitioning Corner Duplex Lots. A proposed or existing duplex on a corner lot/parcel in any 
residential district may be partitioned for the purpose of allowing independent ownership of 
each dwelling unit, providing the 2 platted parcels meet the minimum area standards for corner 
duplex parcels specified in Section 3.2-215. In this case, the partition shall meet the land division 
standards specified in Section 5.12-100 and the following: 

1. Utility service to each unit shall be separate. 

2. All walls connecting abutting units shall be fire resistive walls as specified in the Oregon 
Residential Specialty Code. 

3. The property line separating the 2 units shall have not more than 2 angle points. The 
angle points shall not occur within the wall between abutting units.” 

SECTION 9:  CHAPTER  4 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, Section 4.7-142 Design Standards for 
Duplexes and Attached Single-Family Dwellings is hereby added as follows: 

“4.7-142 Design Standards for Duplexes and Attached Single-Family Dwellings 

A. The following design standards are required for all duplexes in the SLR, MDR and HDR Districts 
and for all attached single-family dwellings in any residential district. The design standards shall 
be reviewed under Type I procedure.   

 

Attachment 1-15



B. In addition to all other applicable SDC development standards, each duplex and each attached 
single-family dwelling shall provide design elements to preclude large expanses of uninterrupted 
building surfaces along all elevations which are visible from the street adjacent to the property 
(i.e., front, rear and sides).  The design shall be provided by using at least 6 of the following 
architectural features on all applicable elevations, as appropriate for the proposed building type 
and style:  
 
1.  Dormers;  
 
2. Gables;  

 
3. Recessed entries;  
 
4. Covered front porches  
 
5. Pillars or posts; 
 
6. Eaves (minimum 12 inch projection);  
 
7. Window trim (minimum 3 1/2 inches wide); 
 
8. Bay windows;  
 
9. Balconies;  
 
10. Offsets in the building face by a minimum of 18 inches; 
 
11.  Offsets or breaks in roof elevation of 2 feet or greater in height. 

 
12. Decorative patterns on the exterior finish using: shingles; wainscoting; and/or board and 

batten. 
 
13.  Variation in façade building materials, including, but not limited to: tile; brick; and 

wood.”  
 

SECTION 10:  CHAPTER  4 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, Section 4.7-115 Group Care Facilities is 
hereby amended as follows: 

“4.7-155 Group Care Facilities  

Residential facilities with more than 15 people, Foster Homes for over 5 children, Shelter Homes for 
battered and abused persons and Halfway Houses. 
  
A. These facilities shall have a front yard setback of 15 feet and side and rear yard setbacks of 20 

feet. The landscaped setbacks for parking lots and driveways may be reduced to 5 feet when the 
Director determines that adequate buffering has been provided. 

 B. A minimum of 25 percent of the lot/parcel shall be landscaped. 

Attachment 1-16



  
C. No parking shall be permitted within the front yard setback. Required parking shall be screened 

from Public view. 
  
D. For structures on the Springfield Historic Inventory, any external modification shall be as 

specified in Section 3.3-900. 
  
E. The maximum density in the Low Density Residential District is 24 bedrooms per net acre.” 
 

SECTION 11:  CHAPTER  4 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, Section 4.7-115 Small Lot Residential 
District Development Standards is hereby added as follows: 

“4.7-233 Small Lot Residential District Development Standards 

The following standards are intended to promote a variety of housing types within a SLR development 
proposal: 

A. Two housing types shall be required for developments of less than 5 acres in size, whether 
phased or not.  

B. Three or more housing types shall be required for developments of 5 or more acres in size, 
whether phased or not.  

C. The following list of housing types may be used to satisfy this requirement as long as the density 
standards specified in Section 3.2-205 are met: 

1.  Single-family detached dwellings; 

2. Cottage cluster dwellings; 

3. Zero lot line dwellings; 

4  Single-family attached dwellings; and/or 

5.  Duplex dwellings, as specified in Sections 3.2-215 and 4.7-140.” 

SECTION 12:  CHAPTER  5 THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS AND APPLICATIONS, Table 5.4-
1 Development Applications is hereby amended as follows: 

“Table 5.4-1 Development Applications 

 Type of Application Decision Type Applicable SDC Sections  
Accessory Dwelling Unit Type I 5.5-100  
Amendment of Development Code Text Type IV 5.6-100  
Amendment of Refinement Plan Text or Diagram Type IV 5.6-100  
Annexation Type IV 5.7-100  
Appeal of a Type II Director’s Decision Type III 5.3-100  
Appeal of Type III Decision to City Council Type IV 5.3-100  

Attachment 1-17



Appeal of an Expedited Land Division Type III 5.3-125  
Conceptual Development Plan Type III Applicable Section 
Conceptual Development Plan Amendment Type III Applicable Section 
Demolition of Historic Landmark Type III 3.3-900  
Determination of Non-Conforming Use Status Type I 5.8-100  
Development Issues Meeting Type I 5.1-100  
Discretionary Use Type III 5.9-100  
Drinking Water Protection Overlay District Development Type I 3.3-200  
Duplex and Attached Single-Family Dwelling Design Standards  Type I                       4.7-142 
Establishment of Historic Landmark Inventory Type III 3.3-900 
Expansion/Modification of a Non-Conforming Use Type II 5.8-100  
Expedited Land Division Type II 5.1-145  
Extraterritorial Extension of Water or Sewer Service Type IV 3.3-825 
Final Site Plan Equivalent Type I 5.17-100  
Final Site Plan Review/Development Agreement Type I 5.17-100  
Floodplain Development Type I 3.3-400  
Hillside Development Overlay District Type II 3.3-500  
Historical Commission Review—Major Alteration Type II 3.3-900  
Historical Commission Review—Minor Alterations  Type I 3.3-900  
Home Occupations Type I 4.7-165  
HS Hospital Support Overlay District Type II 3.3-1100  
Interpretation involving policy Type IV 5.11-100  
Interpretation not involving policy Type II 5.11-100  
Land Use and Zoning Compatibility Statement Type I 3.1-100  
Major Variance Type III 5.21-100  
Emergency Medical Hardship Type II 5.10-100  
Manufactured Dwelling Park Type II 3.2-235  
Manufactured Dwelling Park Space Line Adjustment Type I 3.2-235  
Manufactured Home—Temporary Residential Use Type I 3.2-235  
Master Plan  Type II 5.13-100  
Master Plan Amendment Type I or II 5.13-100  
Metro Plan Amendment Type I (text) or Type II (diagram)  Type IV 5.14-100  
Minimum Development Standards Type I 5.15-100  
Minor Variance Type II 5.21-100  
Partition Replat Tentative Plan Type II 5.12-100  
Partition Tentative Plan Type II 5.12-100  
Pre-Application Report Type I 5.1-100  
Property Line Adjustment—Single Type I 5.16-100  
Property Line Adjustment—Serial Type II 5.16-100  
Site Plan Modification—Minor Type I 5.17-100  
Site Plan Review Modification—Major Type II 5.17-100  
Site Plan Review Type II 5.17-100  
Solar Access Protection Type II 5.18-100  
Subdivision Replat Tentative Plan Type II 5.12-100  
Subdivision Tentative Plan Type II 5.12-100  
Subdivision/Replat Plat Type I 5.12-100  
Tree Felling Permit Type II 5.19-100  
Vacation of Plats, Public Right-of-way, or Other Public Type IV 5.20-100  

Attachment 1-18



Property 
Vacation of Public Easements Type II 5.20-100  
Willamette Greenway Overlay District Development Type III 3.3-300  
Wireless Telecommunications Systems Facilities  Type I, II, or III 4.3-145  
Zoning Map Amendment Type III 5.22-100”  

 
SECTION 13:  CHAPTER  5 THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS AND APPLICATIONS, Section 

5.12-120 Tentative Plan Submittal Requirements is hereby amended as follows: 

“5.12-120  Tentative Plan Submittal Requirements  

A Tentative Plan application shall contain the elements necessary to demonstrate that the provisions of 
this Code are being fulfilled. 
 
E. A Future Development Plan. Where phasing and/or lots/parcels that are more than twice the 

minimum lot/parcel size are proposed, the Tentative Plan shall include a Future Development 
Plan that: 
  
1. Indicates the proposed redivision, including the boundaries, lot/parcel dimensions and 

sequencing of each proposed redivision in any residential district; and shall include a 
plot plan showing building foot prints for compliance with the minimum residential 
densities specified in Section 3.2-205.  

 
2. Addresses street connectivity between the various phases of the proposed development 

based upon compliance with TransPlan, the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), 
applicable Refinement Plans, Plan Districts, Master Plans, Conceptual Development 
Plans, or the Conceptual Local Street Map and this Code; 

 
3. Accommodates other required public improvements, including but not limited to, 

sanitary sewer, stormwater management, water and electricity; 
4. Addresses physical features, including but not limited to, significant clusters of trees and 

shrubs, watercourses shown on the Water Quality Limited Watercourse Map and their 
associated riparian areas, wetlands, rock outcroppings and historic features; and 

  
5. Discusses the timing and financial provisions relating to phasing.” 

 
SECTION 14:  CHAPTER  5 THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS AND APPLICATIONS, Section 

5.12-130 Tentative Plan Conditions, Subsection R.,  is hereby amended as follows: 

“5.12-130  Tentative Plan Conditions  

To the extent necessary to satisfy the approval criteria of Section 5.12-125, comply with all applicable 
provisions of this Code and to mitigate identified negative impacts to surrounding properties, the 
Director shall impose approval conditions. All conditions shall be satisfied prior to Plat approval. 
Approval conditions may include, but are not limited to: 
 

Attachment 1-19



R. When required as specified in Section 5.12-120E., the Final Future Development Plan shall be 
recorded at Lane County at the applicant’s expense.  The applicant shall then deliver a 
reproducible copy of the recorded Future Development Plan to the Director.” 

SECTION 15:  CHAPTER  6 DEFINITIONS, Section 6.1-110 Meaning of Specific Words and Terms 
is hereby amended as follows: 

“6.1-110            Meaning of Specific Words and Terms 

Condominium.  A form of ownership that is regulated in part by ORS 100.005 et seq. that may be 
applied to any dwelling type.  Existing and new dwellings may be converted to condominium ownership; 
however, new dwellings shall comply with the development standards specified in this Code for the 
particular type of dwelling. 

Dwelling.  A building or portion thereof, containing one or more dwelling units, intended or designed to 
be built, used, rented, leased, let, or hired out to be occupied or that are occupied for living purposes. 
This definition includes buildings constructed on-site and manufactured dwellings.  

 
Dwelling, Attached Single-Family.  A dwelling, located on its own lot/parcel that shares one or more 
common walls with one or more dwellings. The common walls may be any wall of the buildings, 
including the walls of attached garages. An attached dwelling does not share common floor/ceilings with 
other dwelling units. Attached single-family dwellings include townhouses or rowhouses. 

Attached Single-Family 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attached Single-Family Dwellings – Townhouses/Rowhouses 

 

Attachment 1-20



 

 

 

 

Dwelling, Cottage Cluster.   A development of detached single-family housing in a cluster of dwelling 
units around a central open space that has the following characteristics: each unit has the construction 
characteristics of a single-family house; units are on individual lots and/or in condominium ownership 
and may share use of common facilities such as a party room, tool shed, garden orchard, workshop or 
parking areas; the site is designed with a coherent concept in mind, including, but not limited to: shared 
functional open space, off street parking, access within the site and from the site, and consistent 
landscaping.  
 
Cottage Cluster: multiple detached dwellings on one lot 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dwelling, Detached Single-Family.  A single-family dwelling on its own lot/parcel that does not share a 
wall with any other dwelling. This dwelling may be either site built or a manufactured dwelling.  
 
Detached Single-family Dwelling 

 
 

 

 

Dwelling, Duplex. A building on its own lot/parcel that contains two independent dwelling units 
attached by a common wall. The common wall may be any wall of the building, including the wall of 
attached garages. A duplex is not considered to be a multi-family dwelling unit. 

Attachment 1-21



Duplex Dwelling 

 

 

 

 

 

Dwelling, Manufactured. 

A. Residential Trailer: a structure constructed for movement on the public highways that has sleeping, 
cooking and plumbing facilities, that is intended for human occupancy, is being used for residential 
purposes and was constructed before January 1, 1962. 

B. Mobile Home: a structure constructed for movement on the public highways that has sleeping, 
cooking and plumbing facilities, that is intended for human occupancy that is being used for 
residential purposes and was constructed between January 1, 1962 and June 15, 1976, and met the 
construction requirements of Oregon mobile home law in effect at the time of construction. 

C. Manufactured Home: a structure constructed for movement on the public highways that has 
sleeping, cooking and plumbing facilities, that is intended for human occupancy that is being used 
for residential purposes and was constructed on or after June 15, 1976 in accordance with federal 
safety standards regulations in effect at the time of construction. In addition, manufactured homes 
sited within the jurisdictional boundaries of Springfield shall be of either Type 1 or Type 2 
classification and shall comply with the following standards: 

1. Type 1 Manufactured Home: 

a. Multi-sectional configuration enclosing a minimum floor area of 1,000 square feet; 

b. Siding and roofing materials similar to the materials used in residential dwellings in the 
community or which are comparable to the predominant materials used on surrounding 
dwellings; 

c. Minimum roof pitch of 3 feet vertical in 12 feet of width; 

d. Thermal efficiency equivalent to the Oregon One- and Two-Family Dwelling Specialty Code 
excluding units built prior to the effective date of this Ordinance (5-1-94). These units shall 
meet or exceed the HUD energy standards that were in effect at the time of construction. 

2. Type 2 Manufactured Home: 

Attachment 1-22



a. Single-wide unit of not less than 12 feet wide enclosing a minimum floor area of 500 square 
feet; 

b. Siding and roofing materials similar to the materials used in residential dwellings in the 
community or which are comparable to the predominant materials used on surrounding 
dwellings minimum roof pitch of 2 feet vertical in 12 feet of width; 

c. Thermal efficiency equivalent to the Oregon One- and Two-Family Dwelling Specialty Code 
excluding units built prior to May 1, 1994. These units shall meet or exceed the HUD energy 
standards that were in effect at the time of construction. 

Note: Multi-sectional units placed on lots/parcels eligible for Type 2 units shall comply with all of the 
standards of a Type I manufactured home. 

Dwelling, Multi-Family. A building that contains 3 or more dwelling units that share common walls, 
floors/ceilings or foundations. The land underneath the building is not divided into separate lots/parcels. 
Multi-family dwelling includes, but is not limited to garden apartments, apartments, housing co-ops, loft 
conversions, and single room occupancies  A congregate care facility is not a multi-family dwelling unit 
for the purposes of determining dwelling unit density. 

Multi-family Dwelling 3 or more dwellings; one building, one lot/parcel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Dwelling, Prefabricated. A building or structural unit that has been in whole or substantial part 
manufactured at an off-site location to be wholly or partially assembled on-site, but does not include a 
mobile home, trailer or recreational vehicle. Prefabricated structures are regulated under the State of 
Oregon Structural Specialty Code and OAR 918-674. 
 
Dwelling, Single Room Occupancy (SRO). A building that provides living units that have separate 
sleeping areas and some combination of shared bath or toilet facilities. The building may or may not 
have separate or shared cooking facilities for the residents. For the purposes of determining residential 
density, 4 SRO rooms equal one dwelling, Fractional dwellings will be rounded to the next higher 

Attachment 1-23



number, e.g., 5 SRO rooms equal 2 dwellings. SROs include, but are not limited to residential hotels and 
rooming houses.   
  
Dwelling, Tri-Plex. A building that contains 3 dwelling units that share common walls or floors/ceilings. 
The land underneath the building is not divided into separate lots/parcels. A tri—plex is considered to 
be a multi-family dwelling.  

Dwelling Unit.  A single unit providing complete independent living facilities for one or more persons, 
including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating cooking and sanitation. 

 
Dwelling Unit, Accessory. A secondary, self-contained dwelling that may be allowed only in conjunction 
with a detached single-family dwelling. An accessory dwelling unit is subordinate in size, location, and 
appearance to the primary detached single-family dwelling. An accessory dwelling unit is not required to 
have its own exterior entrance and always has a separate kitchen, bathroom and sleeping area. An 
accessory dwelling may be located within, attached to or detached from the primary single-family 
dwelling. 
 
Dwelling, Zero-Lot-Line.  A single-family dwelling development on a common street frontage where 
each dwelling is shifted to one side of the lot/parcel to provide for greater useable yard space.  The 
development requires that the planning for all of the dwelling locations be done at the same time, 
typically through the land division process, where open space/maintenance easements will be required. 
Each dwelling is on one lot/parcel. 

Zero Lot Line Dwellings  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 16:  Severability Clause.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and individual provision and such holding shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 

 
 
 
 
ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield by a vote of ____ for and ___ 

against, this ____ day of ______________, 2013. 

Attachment 1-24



    
             APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield, this ____ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
Mayor     
 
 
______________________________________ 
City Recorder 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A, 
STAFF REPORT, FINDINGS AND ORDER 

Attachment 1-25



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

Proposed Springfield Development Code Amendments 
Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures 

 
Nature of the Proposal: The Planning Commission is asked to forward a recommendation 
of approval to the City Council regarding the adoption of proposed Phase 1 Land Use 
Efficiency Measures amendments to the Springfield Development Code to implement 
Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan (SRP) Residential Land Use and Housing Element policies 
and implementation measures. These  measures address Springfield’s housing needs and 
20-year residential land supply by establishing: 
 
1.  The Small Lot Residential (SLR) zoning district that facilitates development of attached 

and detached single-family dwelling types on small lots/parcels as an outright 
permitted use. These housing types provide additional affordable housing options and 
allow more residential dwelling units than would be achieved by building only detached 
homes. The SLR zoning district is intended to be a tool for future planning purposes and 
could be applied to infill opportunity sites identified in neighborhood planning 
processes or through refinement plan updates after additional analysis and as directed 
by the City Council through the Refinement Plan and/or Master Plan approval 
processes; 

 
2.    Density ranges in all residential zoning districts that will utilize the term “net” acre 

instead of “developable” or “gross” acre to be consistent with the Metro Plan and SRP 
Residential Land Use and Housing Element; 

 
3.    A minimum density of 6 dwelling units per net acre in the Low Density Residential  

(LDR) zoning district and 8 dwelling units per net acre in the SLR zoning district. 
Minimum densities ensure efficient use of the residential land supply, eliminate under 
building in residential zoning districts and make the provision of services more cost 
effective. The maximum density in these two residential zoning districts is 14 dwelling 
units per net acre. There is no change in the maximum density; 

 
4.   Base zone standards for the SLR zoning district; 
 
5.   Type I design standards for: duplexes in the SLR, Medium Density Residential (MDR) and 

High Density Residential (HDR) zoning districts; and attached single-family dwellings in 
all residential zoning districts; 

 
6.    Siting standards for duplexes in all residential zoning districts; 

7.    Additions to and/or revisions of definitions pertaining to “dwellings” in support of the 
SLR zoning district; and, in addition; 

 
8.   “Housekeeping” amendments pertaining to: RV siting standards and Future 

Development Plans. 

Springfield File 
Number: 

LRP 2009-00015* 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* This proposal was 
initiated as part of a 
larger public process 
begun in 2009. 

BACKGROUND/MANDATE/RATIONALE FOR ADOPTION OF THE PROPOSED SDC AMENDMENTS   

Attachment 1-26



 
2007  HB 3337 was enacted by the Oregon Legislature and codified as ORS 197.304. HB 3337 required 

that Springfield demonstrate, as specified in ORS 197.296, that its comprehensive plan (Metro 
Plan) provide sufficient buildable lands within its Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to 
accommodate estimated housing needs for 20 years.   

 
The Springfield Residential Land and Housing Needs Analysis (RLHNA) project began. 
 

2009 Land Use Efficiency Measures required as part of the RLHNA project were reviewed and 
prioritized by the Residential Lands Stakeholder Committee and the Planning Commission. Two 
public open houses were conducted in April-May 2009 to gather input on the proposed 
measures. The Planning Commission recommended that the City Council consider implementing 
these measures. The City Council directed staff to develop the planning tools necessary to 
implement the Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures. 

 
The City Council adopted the RLHNA by Resolution 09-54 on December 7th. 

 
2010 The public review process begins for final adoption of the RLHNA and the SRP Residential Land 

Use and Housing Element (responding to findings in the RLHNA by establishing policies and 
implementation actions).  An earlier draft of the Proposed Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures 
code amendments was included in the larger Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan (SRP) policy 
package reviewed by the Springfield and Lane County Planning Commissions in work sessions and 
a public  

 
2011 The RLHNA, the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element and the Springfield UGB were 

adopted by Springfield Ordinance 6268 on June 20, 2011. The Lane County Board of 
Commissioners adopted the above mentioned documents by Ordinance PA 1274 on July 6, 2011. 
However, the, Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures code amendments were not included as 
part of the Ordinance adopted by either jurisdiction at that time.  

 
2012 Staff was directed to finalize the public review process to adopt the proposed Phase 1 Land Use 

Efficiency Measures.  

 PROPOSED SDC AMENDMENTS PUBLIC REVIEW PROCESS 

Planning Commission Work Session   12/04/12 
 
Planning Commission Public Hearing   01/15/13 
 
City Council Public Hearing    02/19/13 
 
Land County Board of Commissioners Public Hearing To be determined 
 
 
 
 
SIMILAR REGULATIONS IN WASHINGTON AND OREGON 

Attachment 1-27



The proposed SDC amendments: 

• include establishment of the SLR zoning district, duplex regulations, cottage housing, attached 
single-family and duplex design standards, zero lot line development, minimum lot/parcel sizes, and 
minimum required densities in the LDR and SLR zoning districts; and   

• are similar to residential development standards already in effect in Washington and Oregon 
communities (ref. Municipal Research and Services Center of Washington).  

 
Washington 
 
A number of communities have established some small lot zones with reduced minimum lot/parcel size 
requirements, which tend to reduce the cost of land associated with each residence and allow 
developments with more units per acre. Other local codes provide for attached housing, corner lot 
duplexes, cottage or clustered housing, or other more flexible arrangements that may prevent potential 
dwelling units from being lost due to constraints such as a creek, or may allow a small increase in 
dwelling units without giving up a sense of open space. 

• Everett Zoning Code - Small Lot Single Family Dwelling - Small lots, duplexes  
• Kirkland Municipal Code - Lots - Small lot single-family  
• Mountlake Terrace  - Small lot housing, cottage housing, accessory dwelling units, and single family 

design standards, adopted 05/19/2008  
• Moxee Municipal Code - Cluster Development Standards - Single family attached, zero lot line and 

single family cottage housing options  
• Redmond Zoning Code - Minimum Required Density, and - Minimum Average Lot Size  
• Seattle Municipal Code - Residential Small Lot District  
• Yelm Municipal Code - Townhouse Development  

Oregon 

• Portland Zoning Code - Alternative Design Density Overlay Zone, and - Alternative Development 
Options  - Portions include duplex on corner lots, zero lot line development, and other options to 
increase density or flexibility 

• Bend Zoning Code –Design Standards - Duplexes and Triplexes – and Attached Single-family 
Townhomes 

REFINEMENT  PLAN, PLAN DISTRICT, AND SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENTS – 
CRITERIA OF APPROVAL 

SDC Section 5.6-115 applies to proposed SDC amendments and requires conformance with the following 
approval criteria:  
 

A. The Metro Plan; 
 
B. Applicable State statutes; and 
  

Attachment 1-28



C. Applicable State-wide Planning Goals and Administrative Rules. 
  
SDC Section 5.6-115  Criterion “A. The Metro Plan;” 
 
USE OF THE METRO PLAN 

“The Metro Plan is a policy document intended to provide the three jurisdictions and other agencies 
and districts with a coordinated guide for change over a long period of time. The major components of 
this policy document are: the written text, which includes goals, objectives, findings, and policies; the 
Metro Plan Diagram; and other supporting materials. These terms are defined below: 
 
• A goal is a broad statement of philosophy that describes the hopes of the people of the community 

for the future of the community.  A goal may never be completely attainable, but is used as a point 
to strive for.   

• An objective is an attainable target that the community attempts to reach in striving to meet a 
goal.  An objective may also be considered as an intermediate point that will help fulfill the overall 
goal. 

• A policy is a statement adopted as part of the Plan to provide a consistent course of action moving 
the community towards attainment of its goals.  (Ref. P. I -4) 

 
Findings 

In recognition of the fact that compliance with adopted Metro Plan policies will lead towards the 
achievement of the Metro Plan Goals and Objectives, the analysis provided in this part of the staff 
report addresses applicable Metro Plan policies exclusively.   
 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE METRO PLAN DIAGRAM AND LAND USE DESIGNATIONS 
 
“The Metro Plan Diagram is a generalized map and graphic expression of the goals, objectives, and 
recommendations found elsewhere in the Metro Plan.”   (Ref. P. I -5) 
 
“Land use designations shown in the Metro Plan Diagram are depicted at a metropolitan scale. Used 
with the text and local plans and policies2, they provide direction for decisions pertaining to 
appropriate reuse (redevelopment), urbanization of vacant parcels, and additional use of 
underdeveloped parcels.” (Ref. P. II-G-2) 
 
 Findings 

The proposed SDC amendments do not affect the Metro Plan Diagram. The Metro Plan land use 
designation involved in the proposed SDC amendments is Low Density Residential (LDR). The proposed 
SDC amendments do not amend and therefore, will not affect the Metro Plan LDR land use designation. 
What the proposed SDC amendments will achieve is the establishment of a second zoning district within 
the Metro Plan LDR land use designation. Most other jurisdictions in Oregon have more than one 
“single-family” zoning district. For example, Portland has 5, Lake Oswego has 3, Bend has 3 and Ashland 
has 4. Upon adoption of the proposed SDC amendments, the proposed SLR and the current LDR zoning 

2 The local plan and policies applicable to this application is the Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan (SPR). 
 

Attachment 1-29



district will be the two zoning districts permitted within the Metro Plan LDR land use designation. 
Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with and do not affect the current Metro Plan 
diagram and LDR land use designation.   
 
CONSISTENCY WITH METRO PLAN POLICIES  
 
C. GROWTH MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 
“1.   The UGB and sequential development shall continue to be implemented as an essential means to 

achieve compact urban growth.  The provision of all urban services shall be concentrated inside 
the urban growth boundary.” (Ref. P. II-C-3) 

Findings 

The SLR zoning district, as described in proposed SDC Section 3.2-205B., will be a tool for future planning 
purposes that could be applied to infill opportunity sites identified in neighborhood planning processes, 
or through refinement plan updates after additional analysis and as directed by the City Council through 
the Refinement Plan and/or Master Plan approval processes; SRP Residential Land Use and Housing 
Element (Implementation Actions 7.3 and 7.4) identify two areas where application of the zone shall be 
considered after additional analysis to determine applicability.  These are: Jasper-Natron lands 
constrained by wetland resources, (as part of the Jasper-Natron refinement planning process) and the 
existing residential neighborhoods south of Franklin Boulevard (as part of Glenwood Phase 2, which will 
be an update of the current Glenwood Refinement Plan). Both possible SLR implementation areas are 
outside of Springfield’s city limits, but within Springfield’s UGB. However, in order for SLR zoning district 
development to occur, land would need to be annexed to Springfield. Implementation of the proposed 
SLR zoning district will need to address how development may occur with a full range of key urban 
facilities and services prior to annexation. The growth management policies cited above will be 
addressed during the Refinement Plan and/or Master Plan approval and the Springfield Zoning Map 
amendment processes. There are no plans to implement the proposed SLR zoning district at this time. 
Nevertheless, the provision of public facilities and services to Jasper-Natron and Glenwood are 
addressed in other applicable Metro Plan policies in this staff report because these two areas are 
identified in the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element. 
 
“ 24.  To accomplish the Fundamental Principle of compact urban growth addressed in the text and on 

the Metro Plan Diagram, overall metropolitan-wide density of new residential construction, but 
not necessarily each project, shall average approximately six dwelling units per gross acre over 
the planning period.”  (Ref. P. II-C-7) 

Findings 

The RLHNA, which amended the Metro Plan in 2011, states: “The forecast indicates that Springfield will 
need about 754 net residential acres, or about 918 gross residential acres to accommodate new 
housing between 2010 and 2030. The forecast results in an average residential density of 7.9 dwelling 
units per net residential acre and 6.5 dwelling units per gross residential acre. This represents a 20% 
increase in density over the historical average of 6.6 dwelling units per net acre.” (RLHNA P. 62)  
 
The proposed SDC amendments will help achieve compact urban growth by establishing a minimum 
density of 8 dwelling units per net acre in the SLR zoning district and a minimum density of 6 dwelling 
units per net acre in the LDR zoning district.  

Attachment 1-30



 
Note:  The Metro Plan defines gross and net density as follows: “Density (gross): The number of 
dwelling units per each acre of land, including areas devoted to dedicated streets, neighborhood 
parks, sidewalks, and other public facilities.” “Density (net): The number of dwelling units per each 
acre of land in residential use, excluding from the acreage dedicated streets, neighborhood parks, 
sidewalks, and public facilities.”  (Ref. V-2)  
 
The SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element, Implementation Action 7.1 regarding the 
establishment of the proposed SLR zoning district utilizes a density range of 8-14 dwelling units per net 
acre. All of the existing residential zoning districts in proposed SDC Section 3.2-205 will be converted 
from “developable” acre to “net” acre to be consistent with the Metro Plan and the SRP Residential 
Land Use and Housing Element.  
 
A. Metro Plan Residential Land Use and Housing Element Policies 
   
 “A.2  Residentially designated land within the UGB should be zoned consistent with the Metro Plan 

and applicable plans and policies;….” (Ref. P. III-A-5) 

Findings 
 
The proposed SDC amendments implement the Metro Plan LDR land use designation. The proposed SLR 
zoning district will be Springfield’s second zoning district permitted within the current Metro Plan LDR 
land use designation. The proposed SDC amendments do not require any change to the current Metro 
Plan LDR designation. The intent of the proposed SLR zoning district is to:  
• Increase the low-end density in the LDR zoning district to 6 dwelling units per net acre and to 8 

dwelling units per net acre in the SLR zoning district. The high-end density for both the LDR and SLR 
zoning districts is 14 dwelling units per net acre (no change is proposed here); and 

• Foster housing choice and affordability. 
• Achieve compact urban development and efficient use of the residential land supply. 
 
Zoning of residentially designated land within Springfield’s UGB must be consistent with applicable local 
plans.  Therefore, upon approval of the proposed SDC amendments, the existing LDR zoning district and 
the proposed SLR zoning district will be consistent with the Metro Plan LDR land use designation and 
Metro Plan Policy A.2. The local refinement plan containing the policies applicable to this decision is the 
SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element.  Findings of consistency with the SRP begin on Page 11 
of this staff report.   
 
 “A.4  Use annexation, provision of adequate public facilities and services, rezoning, redevelopment, 

and infill to meet the 20-year projected housing demand.” (Ref. P. III-A-5) 

Findings 
 
The RLHNA and the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element adopted by Ordinance 6268 in 2011 
provides for Springfield’s 20-year projected housing demand. The proposed SDC amendments support 
future rezoning, redevelopment and infill to meet 20-year housing needs and therefore are consistent 
with Metro Plan Policy A.4. The SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element Implementation Actions 
7.3 and 7.4 indentify Jasper-Natron and Glenwood as potential locations for implementation of the 
proposed SLR zoning district, as may be directed by the City Council. Both areas are outside of 

Attachment 1-31



Springfield’s city limits, but within its UGB. Both areas would require additional analysis to determine 
applicability of the proposed SLR zoning district through the Refinement Plan and/or Master Plan 
approval, the Springfield Zoning Map amendment processes, as well as, annexation to Springfield prior 
to any proposed development. 
 
“A.9   Establish density ranges in local zoning and development regulations that are consistent with 

the broad density categories of this plan: 
 

Low Density: Through 10 dwelling units per gross acre (could translate up to 14.28 units per 
net acre depending on each jurisdiction’s implementation measures and development codes) 
 
Medium density: Over 10 through 20 dwelling units per gross acre (could translate to over 
14.28 units per net acre through 28.56 units per net acre depending on each jurisdiction’s 
implementation measures and development codes) 

 
High density: Over 20 dwelling units per gross acre (could translate to over 28.56 units per net 
acre  depending on each jurisdiction’s implementation measures and development codes)” 

 
Findings 
 
Proposed SDC Section 3.2-205 contains the following zoning districts with the following density ranges: 
 
LDR 6-14 dwelling units per net acre; SLR 8-14 dwelling units per net acre; MDR 14-28 dwelling units per 
net acre; and HDR over 28 dwelling units per net acre. These densities are consistent with the Metro 
Plan density ranges cited above as well as the density ranges cited in the SRP Residential Land Use and 
Housing Element Implementation Action 1.1. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent 
with Metro Plan Policy A.9. 
 
“A.10  Promote higher residential density inside the UGB that utilizes existing infrastructure, 

improves the efficiency of public services and facilities, and conserves rural resource lands 
outside the UGB.”  (Ref. P. III-A-7) 

 
Findings 
 
Requiring a higher initial density of 8 dwelling units per net acre in the proposed SLR zoning district and 
6 dwelling units per net acre in the existing LDR zoning district as well as building toward the maximum 
density of 14 dwelling units per net acre of both residential districts conserves rural resource lands 
outside the UGB because no UGB expansion will be necessary.  Therefore, the proposed SDC 
amendments are consistent with Metro Plan Policy A.10. 
 
“Á. 14 Review local zoning and development regulations periodically to remove barriers to higher 

density housing and to make provisions for a full range of housing options.” 
 
“A. 15 Develop a wider range of zoning options such as new zoning districts, to fully utilize existing 

Metro Plan density ranges.” 
“A. 16 Allow for the development of zoning districts which allow overlap of the established Metro 

Plan density ranges to promote housing choice and result in either maintain or increasing 

Attachment 1-32



housing density in those districts. Under no circumstances, shall housing densities be allowed 
below existing Metro Plan density ranges.” 

 
“A. 17 Provide opportunities for a full range of choice in housing type, density, size, cost, and 

location.”  
 
“A. 18 Encourage a mix of structure types and densities within residential designations by reviewing, 

and, if necessary, amending local development regulations. “ 
 
 “A.22  Expand opportunities for a mix of uses in newly developing areas and existing neighborhoods 

through local zoning and development regulations.” (Ref. P. III-A-9) 
 
“A.24 Consider adopting or modifying local zoning and development regulations to provide a 

discretionary design review or clear and objective standards, in order to address issues of 
compatibility, aesthetics, open space, and other community concerns.  

 
Findings 
 
The SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element addressed these Metro Plan policies and provides 
direction for local implementation in Springfield. 
 
The proposed SLR zoning district “Establishes sites for residential development where a mix of attached 
and detached single-family dwellings are permitted on small lots/parcels with a density range of 8-14 
dwellings per net acre….” The identified areas where the proposed SLR zoning district may be utilized 
are Jasper-Natron, a newly developing area, and Glenwood, on the south side of Franklin Boulevard 
within an existing LDR designated and zoned neighborhood. Design standards as proposed in SDC 
Section 4.7-142 for duplexes and attached single-family dwellings in the SLR District and in other 
applicable residential zoning districts are clear and objective – the applicant chooses 6 design elements 
from a larger list of design elements. Applications will be processed as a Type I staff review without the 
need for public notice. Proposed SDC Section 4.7-233 adds a requirement for a mix of housing types in 
the SLR zoning district, based upon the size of the development area. For example, development areas 
less than 5 acres will require at least 2 different housing types; development areas 5 acres and above 
will require at least 3 different housing types. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent 
with Metro Plan Policies A.14-18, 22, and 24. 
 
 “A.33  Consider local zoning and development regulations impact on the cost of housing.” (Ref. P. III-

A-12) 
 
Findings 
 
In order to meet the proposed density range of 8-14 dwelling units per net acre, the primary housing 
types that will be utilized in the proposed SLR zoning district will be attached single-family dwellings 
(town homes, row houses, etc,) and duplexes. Attached single-family dwellings and duplexes “…provide 
more than one unit under the roof. This style of housing can often be rented or sold for less than low-
density, detached single-family housing, primarily because the cost of land - one of the largest cost 
components of any new development - is distributed among a greater number of households. Building at 
a relatively higher initial density also facilitates more efficient delivery of public services and 
infrastructure, such as trash removal and sewer systems, which can then be supplied at a lower per-unit 

Attachment 1-33



cost. Neighborhoods with higher initial density also can more effectively address traffic congestion and 
transportation needs. Unlike detached single-family development, higher initial density housing is able to 
support public transportation, helping to reduce individual transportation costs and the community's 
traffic congestion. Higher initial density development can also cut down travel time for working 
individuals, reducing the time they spend in the car and providing more convenient access to services and 
amenities that can particularly be a benefit to certain populations, such as older adults.” (Ref. Housing 
Policy.org.)  
 
In addition, the proposed review process and application of design standards for duplex and attached 
single-family dwellings in the SLR zoning district is a Type I staff review, without public notice, rather 
than the Type III Discretionary Use Planning Commission review for attached single-family dwellings that 
is currently required in the LDR zoning district*. The Type I staff review process discussed above will also 
save the applicant development review costs (Type I vs. Type II Site Plan application, a staff review 
requiring public notice).  
 
*Note: The long-term policy regarding the requirement for attached single-family dwellings in the LDR 

zoning district requiring Type III Discretionary Use approval from the Planning Commission has 
been to protect the integrity of the single-family detached development pattern currently 
occurring in this zoning district. The intent of the proposed SLR zoning district is to allow a mix of 
housing types in areas within the LDR designation either in new development areas (Jasper-
Natron)  or when converting existing LDR designated and zoned areas (Glenwood, south of 
Franklin Boulevard).  This is why proposed SDC Section 3.2-205B. states that the City Council will 
determine where the proposed SLR zoning district will be applied. However, if the Planning 
Commission and/or City Council choose to reconsider the Type III Discretionary Use process 
currently required for attached single-family dwellings in the LDR zoning district, they should be 
aware that this circumstance is outside the scope of these proposed SDC amendments (Phase 1 
Land Use Efficiency Measures). Consequently, this topic could be considered during a future 
phase of the Land Use Efficiency process.    

 
The impact on the cost of housing has been considered. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are 
consistent with Metro Plan Policy A.33. 
 
E. ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN ELEMENT 
 
“E.1  In order to promote the greatest possible degree of diversity, a broad variety of commercial, 

residential, and recreational land uses shall be encouraged when consistent with other 
planning policies”. (Page III-E-3) 

 
Findings 
 
The proposed SLR zoning district applies SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element implementation 
actions. Specifically, the proposed SLR zoning district “Establishes sites for residential development 
where a mix of attached and detached single-family dwellings are permitted….” thus providing  a greater 
degree of housing diversity and, as stated above, with reduced costs, housing will be available to a wider 
range of income groups.  The proposed SDC amendments do not specifically address commercial or 
recreational land uses.  Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with Metro Plan Policy  

Attachment 1-34



 “E.3  The planting of street trees shall be strongly encouraged, especially for all new developments 
and redeveloping areas (where feasible) and new streets and reconstruction of major arterials 
within the UGB”. (Page III-E-3) 

 
Findings 
 
The proposed SLR zoning district will be implemented by primarily using the land division process 
(subdivision), specified in SDC Section 5.12-100), where the provision of utilities and the dedication of 
right-of-way for streets and alleys will be considered. SDC Section 4.2-140 currently requires the 
planting of street trees.   Depending upon the street classification, street trees are typically planted prior 
to occupancy. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with Metro Plan Policy E.3. 
 
“E.4  Public and private facilities shall be designed and located in a manner that preserves and 

enhances desirable features of local and neighborhood areas and promotes their sense of 
identity.” (Page III-E-3) 

 
Findings 
 
SDC Section 4.3-125 currently requires electrical utilities to be located underground and SDC Section 
4.3-110 requires compliance with stormwater management procedures that may require an on-site 
stormwater detention basin; these topics will be addressed during the land division process described 
above. The design and location of public and private utilities will enhance the desirable features of 
proposed SLR zoning district development areas.  In addition, the mix of housing types in the proposed 
SLR zoning district, especially in larger development areas, will create a local neighborhood with its own 
identity. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with Metro Plan Policy E.4. 
 
 “E.5  Carefully develop sites that provide visual diversity to the urban area and optimize their visual 

and personal accessibility to residents”. (Page III-E-3) 
 
Findings 
 
The SLR zoning district “Establishes sites for residential development where a mix of attached and 
detached single-family dwellings are permitted….” thus providing visual diversity as specified in 
proposed SDC Section 4.7-142 (design standards) and optimizing visual and personal accessibility to 
residents.  Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with Metro Plan Policy A.9. 
 
“E.6  Local jurisdictions shall carefully evaluate their development regulations to ensure that they 

address environmental design considerations, such as, but not limited to, safety, crime 
prevention, aesthetics, and compatibility with existing and anticipated adjacent uses 
(particularly considering high and medium density development locating adjacent to low 
density residential).” (Page III-E-3) 

 
“E.7 The development of urban design elements as part of local and refinement plans shall be 

encouraged.” 
 
“E. 8 Site planning standards developed by local jurisdictions shall allow for flexibility in design that 

will achieve site planning objectives while allowing for creative solutions to design problems. 
 

Attachment 1-35



Findings 
 
Proposed SDC Section 4.7-142 establishes design standards for duplexes in the proposed SLR and 
existing MDR and HDR zoning districts and for attached single-family dwellings in all residential districts. 
The developer is given the option of choosing 6 design elements from a larger list of design elements. 
One of the design elements on the list is a porch. Porches can provide “eyes on the street” thus 
addressing safety, crime prevention as well as aesthetics. Compatibility with existing and anticipated 
adjacent uses, especially the LDR zoning district, will be regulated by the height limitation specified in 
amended proposed SDC Section 3.2-215. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with 
Metro Plan Policies E.6-E.8. 
 
F. Transportation Element 
 
“F.13  Support transportation strategies that enhance neighborhood livability.” (Page III-F-7) 
 
 Findings 
 
The proposed SDC amendments support transportation strategies intended to that enhance 
neighborhood livability by encouraging compact growth and efficient utilization of land and 
infrastructure.   Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with Metro Plan Policies F.13 
and F.28. 
 
G. Public Facilities and Services Element 
 
“G.1  Extend the minimum level and full range of key urban facilities and services in an orderly and 

efficient manner consistent with the growth management policies in Chapter II-C, relevant 
policies in this chapter, and other Metro Plan policies.” (Page III-G-4) 

 
Findings 
 
The proposed SDC amendments support compact urban development and the orderly and 
efficient use of land and extension of services.  
 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE SRP RESIDENTIAL LAND USE AND HOUSING ELEMENT AND APPLICABLE 
POLICIES AND IMPLEMENTATION ACTIONS 
 
The policies in the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element establish Springfield’s long-term 
policies and shorter-term implementation actions for meeting identified housing needs for the plan 
period 2010-2030. The SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element provisions supplement, refine 
and support policies contained in the Metro Plan Residential Land Use and Housing Element, discussed 
under criterion A that are applicable only within Springfield’s UGB. The goals, policies and 
implementation actions were developed to respond to the findings in the RLHNA in ways that best 
implement Springfield’s preferred residential land use growth management strategies — as identified 
and prioritized through the public involvement process.  The policies and implementation actions in the 
SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element support a 20 percent increase in density over the 
historical development pattern by facilitating more dense development patterns.  Issues not addressed 
in this Element are addressed in the Metro Plan Residential Land Use and Housing Element discussed in 

Attachment 1-36



criterion A. The policies in this Element provide direction for Springfield in updating refinement plans, 
zoning and development regulations to address the community’s housing needs.  

Springfield’s residential and mixed use districts, as depicted in the Metro Plan diagram and Springfield’s 
refinement plans and as proposed in the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element Policies and 
Implementation Strategies, provide a residential land base with sufficient capacity for the market to 
develop adequate numbers of needed housing units to meet expected demand through 2030.  In 2010, 
the conclusions of Springfield’s buildable lands inventory and housing needs analysis showed that there 
was a surplus of buildable land in both the LDR and MDR  land use designations and a deficit in the HDR  
land use designation of 28 gross buildable acres.  The SRP included a mandatory commitment to amend 
the Glenwood Refinement Plan by 2012 to redesignate at least 28 gross acres of land for high density 
residential development.  This measure  was adopted to ensure that Springfield’s separate UGB will 
include enough buildable land to satisfy Springfield’s projected housing needs by type and density 
range, as determined in the RLHNA. Note: the HDR deficit discussed above was resolved by the adoption 
of Glenwood Phase 1 in September 2012 (Ord. 6279 – LRP 2008-0017; TYP411-0006; TYP411-0005; and 
TYP311-00001). 
 
The following the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element Policies and Implementation Actions 
are addressed by these proposed SDC amendments: 
 
“Policy H .1: Based on the findings in the RLHNA and to accommodate projected growth between 
2010 and 2030, Springfield has designated sufficient buildable residential land (a) for at least 5,920 
new dwelling units at an estimated density of at least 7.9 units per net buildable acre; and (b) to 
accommodate a new dwelling mix of approximately 52 percent detached single family dwellings 
(including manufactured dwellings on individual lots), seven percent attached single-family dwellings, 
one percent manufactured dwellings in parks, and 40 percent multifamily dwellings.” 
  
“Implementation Action 1.1: Convert density ranges in the Springfield Development Code from gross 
to net densities, consistent with the broad density categories of the Metro Plan. This plan converts 
Metro Plan gross densities to net densities as follows: Residential Low Density 6-14 dwelling units per 
acre; Residential Special Density 8-14 dwelling units per acre; Residential Medium Density 14-28 
dwelling units per acre; Residential High Density 28-42 dwelling units per acre;….” 
 
Findings 
 
The proposed amendments to SDC Section 3.2-205 address Implementation Action 1.1 by converting 
gross acres, as described in the Metro Plan, to net acres. Currently, SDC Section 3.2-205 utilizes the term 
“developable” acre. While both terms are “developable” acre and “net” acre are defined the same (the 
number of dwelling units per each acre of land in residential use, excluding from the acreage dedicated 
streets and alleys, neighborhood parks and public facilities), the current term “developable” acre is 
changed to “net” acre to be consistent with the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element 
terminology and is applicable to all residential zoning districts in Springfield.   
 
The proposed SDC amendments also establish a minimum density of 6 dwelling units per net acre in the 
LDR zoning district to increase utilization of the land supply and increase dwelling type options to meet 
projected housing needs. Currently, there is no minimum density standard in the LDR zoning district; 
however, single-family detached housing types averaged a density of 5.4 dwelling units per net acre 
from 2000-2008, while manufactured homes achieved a lower density of 4.6 dwelling units per net acre. 

Attachment 1-37



This includes hillside sites that require larger lot sizes and thus result in lower density. Springfield’s 
challenge is to make better utilization of land and increase the number of single-family homes (detached 
and attached) in the Metro Plan LDR land use designation to meet demand and demographic trends 
addressing housing affordability and choice. The proposed minimum would push a slightly higher 
density and a greater diversity of housing choices on flat sites.  Much of Springfield’s remaining 
buildable residential lands are in the slope-constrained Hillside Development Overlay District where the 
minimum density standard does not apply. Springfield’s “needed” overall density for single-family 
dwellings in the RLHNA is 5.5 dwelling units per net acre (p. 61). Within the Hillside Development 
Overlay District where lot/parcel sizes are regulated by percent of slope: 15-25 percent requires 10,000 
square feet; 25-35 percent requires 20,000 square feet; and over 35 percent requires 40,000 square 
feet; the density ranges from 1 to 4 dwelling units per net acre.  Therefore, the proposed SDC 
amendments are consistent with SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element Policy H.1 and 
Implementation Action 1.1. 
 
“Policy H .7: Continue to develop and update regulatory options and incentives to encourage and 
facilitate development of more attached and clustered single-family housing types in the low density 
and medium density districts. 
 
“Implementation Action 7.1: Establish a small lot (3,000 square feet minimum lot size) special low-
moderate density zoning district with a density range of 8-14 du/acre to: 
  support development of smaller single family detached and attached dwelling housing types; 
  support a greater diversity of housing mix; and 
  provide a moderate transition zone between lower and higher density neighborhoods.” 

 
“Implementation Action 7.2: Apply small lot zoning (3,000 square feet minimum lot size) to infill 
opportunity sites identified in neighborhood planning processes.” 
 
“Implementation Action 7.3: As part of the Jasper-Natron refinement planning process, conduct 
analysis to determine applicability of the Residential Small Lot zoning district to maximize efficient use 
of land constrained by wetland resources”. 
 
“Implementation Action 7.4: As part of the Glenwood refinement planning process, conduct analysis 
to determine applicability of the Residential Small Lot zoning district in the existing residential 
neighborhoods south of Franklin Boulevard.” 
 
Findings 
 
The proposed amendments to SDC Section 3.2-205B. establish the SLR zoning district that “Establishes 
sites for residential development where a mix of detached single-family dwellings are permitted on small 
lots/parcels[3.000 square feet] with a density range of 8-14 dwelling units per net acre.”  The goal is to 
apply the proposed SLR zoning district to land designated LDR during a Refinement Plan and/or Master 
Plan approval process.  The proposed SLR zoning district will provide for more intense development by 
allowing smaller lot/parcel sizes and a higher minimum density than the LDR zoning district to provide 
increased densities. The minimum density of 8 dwelling units per net acre is the minimum necessary to 
support bus transit. The proposed SLR zoning district permits attached single-family dwellings such as 
townhouses and rowhouses outright, while currently in the LDR zoning district they are permitted only 
after obtaining Discretionary Use approval from the Planning Commission. The SRP identifies two 
possible locations for implementing the proposed SLR District, Jasper-Natron and Glenwood (Phase 2) 

Attachment 1-38



and states that other infill opportunity sites shall be identified through neighborhood planning 
processes.  Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with SRP Residential Land Use and 
Housing Element Policy H.7 and Implementation Actions 7.1-7.4. 
 
 “Policy H.11:  Continue to seek ways to update development standards to introduce a variety of 
housing options for all income levels in both existing neighborhoods and new residential areas that 
match the changing demographics and lifestyles of Springfield residents.” 
“Implementation Action 11.2: Protect and enhance existing single family neighborhoods and 
affordable housing stock in the incorporated areas of Springfield where urban services currently are in 
place.” 
 
Findings 
 
The proposed amendment to SDC Section 3.2-205B. states:  ”Small Lot Residential District (SLR). Unless 
otherwise directed by the City Council, application of the SLR District shall occur as part of a Refinement 
Plan and/or Master Plan approval process.”  
 
The above reference, by limiting the application of the proposed SLR District, ensures that small lot 
developments are not permitted throughout existing low density residential districts and that they are 
sited  thoughtfully to address unique neighborhood opportunities, constraints and contexts.   
The proposed amendment to SDC Section 3.2-205B.1. states: “Establishes sites for residential 
development where a mix of attached and detached single-family dwellings are permitted on small 
lots/parcels….” The proposed amendment to SDC Section  4.7-140 states: “…duplexes are permitted 
outright on corner lots/parcels in all residential districts, including the SLR District.” 
 
The two references above refer to proposed SDC amendments that introduce a variety of housing 
options for all income levels in both existing neighborhoods and new residential areas. 
 
The proposed amendment to SDC Section  4.7-142 adds Type I design standards for: duplexes in the 
proposed SLR, and existing MDR and HDR Districts and attached single-family dwellings in all residential 
districts. 
 
Currently, a Type II staff process with public notice (Site Plan Review) is not required for single-family 
detached and duplexes on corner lots/parcels in the LDR zoning district. House plans are reviewed 
through the Building Permit process. Development in the MDR and HDR zoning districts require Site Plan 
Review. In lieu of Site Plan Review for duplexes on corner lots/parcels and attached single-family 
dwellings in the proposed SLR, and existing MDR and HDR zoning districts, Type I building design 
standards and compliance with other applicable SDC development standards, including but not limited 
to: stormwater management; wastewater management, and landscaping will be required as part of this 
review process. The developer will be required to choose any  6 standards from a list of 13 standards. 
The Type I review process will help reduce development costs.  
 
Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with SRP Residential Land Use and Housing 
Element Policy H.11. 
 
“Policy H.12:  Continue to designate land to provide a mix of choices (i.e., location, accessibility, 
housing types, and urban and suburban neighborhood character) through the refinement plan update 
process and through review of developer-initiated master plans..” 

Attachment 1-39



Findings 
 
The proposed amendment to SDC Section 3.2-205B. states: ”Small Lot Residential District (SLR). Unless 
otherwise directed by the City Council, application of the SLR District shall occur as part of a Refinement 
Plan and/or Master Plan approval process.”  
 
The reference above limits the application of the proposed SLR zoning district by requiring City Council 
direction and the Refinement Plan/Master Plan approval process. 
 
The proposed amendment to SDC Section  3.2-205B.1. states: “Establishes sites for residential 
development where a mix of attached and detached single-family dwellings are permitted on small 
lots/parcels….”  The proposed amendment to SDC Section 4.7-140 states: “…duplexes are permitted 
outright on corner lots/parcels in all residential districts, including the SLR District.” 
 
The two references above refer to proposed SDC amendments that introduce a variety of housing 
options for all income levels in both existing neighborhoods and new residential areas. 
 
Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with SRP Residential Land Use and Housing 
Element Policy H.12. 
 
“Policy H.15: Update residential development standards to enhance the quality and affordability 
of neighborhood infill development (e.g. partitions, duplex developments, transitional neighborhoods, 
rehab housing, accessory dwelling units) and multifamily development.    
 
Findings 
 
The proposed amendments to SDC Section 4.7-142 adds Type I design standards for: duplexes in the 
proposed SLR, and the existing MDR and HDR zoning districts and attached single-family dwellings in all 
residential districts. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with SRP Residential Land 
Use and Housing Element Policy H.15. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Staff has demonstrated that the proposed SDC amendments comply with all applicable Metro 
Plan and local plan policies.  SDC Section 5.6-115 Criterion A is met. 
 
SDC Section 5.6-115 “B. Applicable State statutes; and;” 
 
ORS 197.304 required Springfield to evaluate the sufficiency of its residential buildable land supply and 
to establish a separate Springfield UGB. Springfield prepared the RLHNA and local housing policies that 
meet the requirements of Oregon State-wide Planning Goal 10 (ORS 197.295 to 197.314, ORS 197.475 to 
197.490, and OAR 600-008. The RLHNA and the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element were 
adopted by Springfield and Lane County and acknowledged by DLCD in September 2011.   

Conclusion 
 
Staff has demonstrated that the proposed SDC amendments comply with all applicable State statutes. 
   

Attachment 1-40



SDC Section 5.6-115 “C. Applicable State-wide Planning Goals and Administrative Rules.” 
 
 STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 1 CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT 
 
“To develop a citizen involvement program that insures the opportunity for citizens to be involved in 
all phases of the planning process.” 
 
Findings 
 
Springfield has an acknowledged citizen involvement program, the Committee for Citizen Involvement 
(CCI), which was established in 1990 to ensure the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of 
the planning process.  The Springfield Planning Commission is the CCI. 
 
Staff prepared a Citizen Involvement Plan for adoption of the RLHNA, SRP Residential Land Use and 
Housing Element, and the establishment of a separate Springfield UGB that was reviewed and approved 
by the CCI in 2009.   
 
That Citizen Involvement Plan included the formation of a Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) and 
established a planning process to promote a dialogue and build relationships with the community. This 
Citizen Involvement Plan was discussed in the staff report for the adoption of the RLHNA, SRP 
Residential Land Use and Housing Element, and establishment of a separate Springfield UGB (Ord. 6268, 
Case No. LRP 2009-00014); it will not be discussed further in this staff report.   
A ranking of Land Use Efficiency Measures was considered and reviewed during the public review 
process for the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element and the establishment of a separate 
Springfield UGB by the: the CAC; Planning Commission; and City Council. The elements of the proposed 
SDC amendments, including the establishment of a SLR zoning district and a minimum density in the LDR 
zoning district received high priority, and therefore, are part of the proposed Phase 1 Land Use 
Efficiency Measures.  
 
DLCD Notice of these proposed SDC amendments was sent by Springfield on December 31, 2009. On 
January 29, 2010, staff received comments from DLCD that were incorporated into the public hearing 
draft amendments. The first evidentiary hearing by the Springfield and Lane County Planning 
Commissions was held on February 17, 2010. The hearing was noticed as specified in SDC Section 5.2-
115. The proposed Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures were Attachment G of the Planning 
Commission packet.  However, adoption of the proposed SDC amendments was deferred to a later date 
and was not included in Ordinance 6268 adopted by Springfield and Lane County in 2011.  The current 
version of the proposed SDC amendments has been modified by further staff review with no substantive 
changes.  
 
 A Springfield Planning Commission Work Session was held on December 4, 2012. The Planning 
Commission made no changes to the proposed SDC amendments.  Notice for the Springfield Planning 
Commission public hearing scheduled for January 15, 2013 and the Springfield City Council public 
hearing scheduled for February 19, 2013 has been provided in accordance with SDC Section 5.2-115.  
The public process for adopting the proposed SDC amendments complies with Goal 1 because it is 
consistent with Springfield’s acknowledged citizen involvement program.   
 
 
 

Attachment 1-41



STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 2 LAND USE PLANNING 
 
“To establish a land use planning process and policy framework as a basis for all decisions and actions 
related to use of land and to assure an adequate factual base for such decisions and actions” 
 
Findings 
 
Goal 2 requires that local comprehensive plans be consistent with State-wide Planning Goals and that 
implementing ordinances be consistent with acknowledged comprehensive plans. The Eugene-
Springfield Metropolitan Area Plan (Metro Plan) is the policy document (local comprehensive plan3) that 
provides a basis for all decisions and actions related to land use in the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan 
area, and for Springfield in particular. The Metro Plan was acknowledged by DLCD on August 23, 1982 to 
be in compliance with State-wide Planning Goals pursuant to ORS 197.245 and 197.250. In all cases, the 
Metro Plan is the guiding document, and any refinement plans must be consistent with the Metro Plan. 
The SDC also implements the policies and direction of the Metro Plan and adopted refinement plans and 
specifies the procedures and criteria that are necessary for development approval.  

In this case, the proposed SDC amendments do not require a Metro Plan amendment because the SLR 
zoning district will be a second zoning option in the current Metro Plan LDR land use designation.  The 
proposed amendments comply with Goal 2 because the SDC implements Metro Plan policies and 
establishes procedures to amend the SDC. 

GOAL 2 EXCEPTION 
 
Goal 2 provides procedures for Goal exceptions. An exception is a decision to exclude certain land from 
the requirements of one or more applicable State-wide Planning Goals. There are no State-wide 
Planning Goal exceptions requested for these proposed SDC amendments. Therefore, this portion of 
Goal 2 does not apply. 
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 3 AGRICULTURAL LAND 

“To preserve and maintain agricultural lands.” 

Finding 
 
Goal 3 defines "agricultural lands" by stating, in part, that they: “…do not include land within 
acknowledged urban growth boundaries….”   
 

3 “Comprehensive plan” means a generalized, coordinated land use map and policy statement of the governing body of a local 
government that interrelates all functional and natural systems and activities relating to the use of lands, including but not 
limited to sewer and water systems, transportation systems, educational facilities, recreational facilities, and natural resources 
and air and water quality management programs. “Comprehensive” means all-inclusive, both in terms of the geographic area 
covered and functional and natural activities and systems occurring in the area covered by the plan. “General nature” means a 
summary of policies and proposals in broad categories and does not necessarily indicate specific locations of any area, activity 
or use. A plan is “coordinated” when the needs of all levels of governments, semipublic and private agencies and the citizens of 
Oregon have been considered and accommodated as much as possible. “Land” includes water, both surface and subsurface, 
and the air. (Ref. ORS 197.015(5) 
 

Attachment 1-42



The proposed SDC amendments apply to property located completely within Springfield’s acknowledged 
UGB, both within and outside of the city limits.  All land in Springfield’s UGB has City zoning. Springfield 
has the authority to apply its zoning between the city limits and UGB through an Intergovernmental 
Agreement signed with Lane County in 1986. Land in Jasper-Natron and Glenwood is currently planned 
and zoned for urban use and will continue to be upon adoption of these proposed SDC amendments.  
No UGB expansion is proposed as part of these proposed SDC amendments.  
 
These proposed SDC amendments do not affect land designated for agricultural use outside of 
Springfield’s UGB.  Therefore, Goal 3 is not applicable to the adoption of the proposed SDC amendments 
because no agricultural plan designation or use is affected and Goal 3 excludes lands inside an 
acknowledged UGB from the definition of agricultural lands.  
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 4 FOREST LAND 
 
“To conserve forest lands by maintaining the forest land base and to protect the state's forest 
economy by making possible economically efficient forest practices that assure the continuous 
growing and harvesting of forest tree species as the leading use on forest land consistent with sound 
management of soil, air, water, and fish and wildlife resources and to provide for recreational 
opportunities and agriculture.” 
 
Findings 
 
OAR 660-006-0020 states: “Goal 4 does not apply within urban growth boundaries and therefore, the 
designation of forest lands is not required.” 
 
The proposed SDC amendments apply to property located completely within Springfield’s acknowledged 
UGB, both in and outside of the city limits.  All land in Springfield’s UGB has City zoning. Springfield has 
the authority to apply its zoning between the city limits and UGB through an Intergovernmental 
Agreement signed with Lane County in 1986. Land in Jasper-Natron and Glenwood is currently planned 
and zoned for urban use and will continue to be upon adoption of these proposed SDC amendments.  
No UGB expansion is proposed as part of these proposed SDC amendments.  
 
These proposed SDC amendments do not affect land designated for forest use outside of Springfield’s 
UGB.  All of these proposed SDC amendments apply to land within Springfield’s UGB; therefore, as 
specified in OAR 660-006-20, Goal 4 does not apply. 
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 5 NATURAL RESOURCES, SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS, AND OPEN 
SPACE  
 
“To protect natural resources and conserve scenic and historic areas and open spaces.”        
 
Findings 
 
Goal 5 requires communities to inventory the following natural resources: Riparian corridors, including 
Water and Riparian Areas and Fish Habitat; Wetlands; Wildlife Habitat; Federal Wild and Scenic Rivers; 
State Scenic Waterways; Groundwater Resources; Approved Oregon Recreation Trails; Natural Areas; 
Wilderness Areas; Mineral and Aggregate Resources; Energy Sources; and Cultural Areas.  
 

Attachment 1-43



Goal 5 encourages communities to maintain existing inventories of the following resources: Historic 
Resources; Open Space; and Scenic Views and Sites. Springfield has adopted a list of Goal 5 resources 
that have been acknowledged by DLCD over time.  The proposed SDC amendments do not create or 
amend Springfield’s list of Goal 5 resources, address specific requirements of Goal 5 and does not allow 
new uses that could be conflicting with a significant Goal 5 resource site. Therefore, the proposed SDC 
amendments comply with Goal 5. 
 
However, the intent of the proposed SDC amendments is to establish the SLR zoning district and 
minimum density standards as specified in the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element. That said, 
Goal 5 and applicable OARs under 660-023 will be addressed, if necessary, at the time the proposed SLR 
zoning district is implemented either in Jasper-Natron, Glenwood or other location authorized by the 
City Council as part of a Refinement Plan or Master Plan approval process.  
 
 STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 6 AIR, WATER AND LAND RESOURCES QUALITY 
 
“To maintain and improve the quality of the air, water and land resources of the state.”        
 
Findings 
 
Goal 6 addresses waste and process discharges from development, and is aimed at protecting air, water 
and land from impacts from those discharges. The proposed SDC amendments do not affect Springfield’s 
ability to provide for clean air, water or land resource.  Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are 
consistent with Goal 6. 
 
However, the intent of the proposed SDC amendments is to establish the SLR zoning district and 
minimum density standards as specified in the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element. That said, 
Goal 6 will be addressed, if necessary, at the time the proposed SLR zoning district is implemented 
either in Jasper-Natron, Glenwood or other location authorized by the City Council as part of a 
Refinement Plan or Master Plan approval process.  
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 7 AREAS SUBJECT TO NATURAL HAZARDS 
 
 “To protect life and property from natural disasters and hazards.” 
 
Findings 
 
Goal 7 requires comprehensive plans to include provisions to protect life and property based on an 
inventory of known areas of natural hazards including but not limited to floods, landslides and 
earthquakes. Goal 7 prohibits development in natural hazard areas without appropriate safeguards.   
 
 
FLOODS 
The following regulations apply in Springfield: Development within flood hazard areas is regulated by 
FEMA policy, which is then adopted into the Metro Plan (Environmental Resources Element) and the 
SDC (Section 3.3-400, Floodplain Overlay District). FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) enable 
property and business owners to qualify for federally underwritten flood insurance.  Both the named 
areas for the proposed SLR zoning district, Jasper-Natron and Glenwood, are out of the floodway. 
 

Attachment 1-44



HILLSIDES 
The Metro Hazard Plan (2009, revised) discusses areas on hillsides with high potential for surface debris 
flows (movements in which loose soils, rocks and organic matter combine with entrained water to form 
slurries that flow rapidly down slope) as well slope instability hazards. The Metro Plan states that local 
governments must require site specific soil surveys and geologic studies where potential problems exist 
(Metro Plan p. III-C-16). SDC Sections 3.3-500, Hillside Development Overlay District regulates hillside 
development; 5.12-100 Land Division; and 5.17-100 Site Plan Review, require submittal of a geological 
study that will offer proper safeguards during the development review process in a manner that 
provides protection from any potential landslide hazards for hillside areas.  
 
The southern portion of the Jasper-Natron area contains steep slopes. The proposed SLR zoning district 
is not suitable for hillside areas because these areas already require larger lots/parcels, from 10,000 
square feet to one acre, depending upon the percent slop. However, in order to increase density, the 
SLR allows lot/parcels to be reduced to 3,000 square feet.   
 
The Glenwood residential core area south of Franklin Boulevard is flat and will be able to support the 
provisions of the proposed SLR zoning district.   
 
The proposed SDC amendments do not affect Springfield’s restrictions on development in areas subject 
to natural disasters and hazards. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments comply with Goal 7. 
 
However, the intent of the proposed SDC amendments is to establish the SLR zoning district and 
minimum density standards as specified in the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element. That said, 
Goal 7 will be addressed, if necessary, at the time the proposed SLR zoning district is implemented 
either in Jasper-Natron, Glenwood or other location authorized by the City Council as part of a 
Refinement Plan or Master Plan approval process.  
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 8 RECREATIONAL NEEDS  
 
“To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and visitors and, where appropriate, to 
provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities including destination resorts.” 
 
Findings 
 
Goal 8 requires local governments to plan and provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities 
to “satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and visitors.”  The destination resort 
provisions of Goal 8 apply to counties and therefore do not apply to Glenwood Phase 1.  
 
Goal 8 defines three terms that are directly related to Glenwood Phase 1: 
 
“Open Space -- means any land that is retained in a substantially natural condition or is improved for 
recreational uses such as golf courses, hiking or nature trails or equestrian or bicycle paths or is 
specifically required to be protected by a conservation easement. Open spaces may include ponds, 
lands protected as important natural features, land preserved for farm or forest use and lands used as 
buffers. Open space does not include residential lots or yards, streets or parking areas.” 
 
“Recreation Areas, Facilities and Opportunities -- provide for human development and enrichment, 
and include but are not limited to: open space and scenic landscapes; recreational lands; history, 

Attachment 1-45



archaeology and natural science resources; scenic roads and travelers; sports and cultural events; 
camping, picnicking and recreational lodging; tourist facilities and accommodations; trails; waterway 
use facilities; hunting; angling; winter sports; mineral resources; active and passive games and 
activities.” 
 
“Recreation Needs -- refers to existing and future demand by citizens and visitors for recreations 
areas, facilities and opportunities.” 
 
The provision for parks in the Eugene/Springfield area is specified in the Metro Plan’s Parks and 
Recreation Facilities Element. 
 
Parks and recreation services are currently provided through the Willamalane Park and Recreation 
District to properties both within Springfield’s city limits and outside of the city limits, but within 
Springfield’s UGB. Willamalane’s 20-year Park and Recreation Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan) was 
adopted in 2004 by the Willamalane Board of Directors, Lane County and Springfield as a refinement to 
the Metro Plan.4  The Proposed SDC amendments do not affect Willamalane’s provisions for recreation 
facilities. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments comply with Goal 8. 
 
The intent of the proposed SDC amendments is to establish the SLR zoning district and minimum density 
standards as specified in the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element. That said, Goal 8 will be 
addressed, if necessary, at the time the proposed SLR zoning district is implemented either in Jasper-
Natron, Glenwood or other location authorized by the City Council as part of a Refinement Plan or 
Master Plan approval process.  
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 9 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
 
“To provide adequate opportunities throughout the state for a variety of economic activities vital to 
the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon's citizens.” 
 
Findings 
 
Goal 9 requires cities to maintain adequate supplies of buildable lands for projected commercial and 
industrial use.   
 
While there is a direct relationship between economic development and providing for the housing needs 
of Springfield’s citizens, the proposed SDC amendments do not change the plan designation of land in 
excess of two acres within an existing UGB from an industrial use designation to a non-industrial use 
designation, or another employment use designation to any other use designation. Thus, the proposed 
SDC amendments do not impact the supply of industrial or commercial lands. Therefore, Goal 9 does not 
apply to the proposed SDC amendments. 
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 10 HOUSING  
 
“To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the state.” 

4 Willamalane is currently updating their Comp Plan that is scheduled for Springfield City Council and 
Lane County Board of Commissioner adoption in early 2013..  

Attachment 1-46



Findings: 
 
Goal 10 requires buildable lands for residential use to be inventoried and requires plans to encourage 
the availability of adequate numbers of needed housing units at price ranges and rent levels 
commensurate with the financial capabilities of Oregon households. Oregon Administrative Rule 660 
Division 8 defines standards for compliance with Goal 10. “Sufficient buildable land shall be designated 
on the comprehensive plan map to satisfy housing needs by type and density range as determined in 
the housing needs projection. The local buildable lands inventory must document the amount of 
buildable land in each residential plan designation.” 
 
In 2007, the Oregon Legislature required Eugene and Springfield to establish separate UGBs that 
included separate 20 year residential lands inventories for each city.  In response to House Bill 3337, 
Springfield conducted a study to determine Springfield’s housing needs for 2010-2030 and to evaluate 
the sufficiency of land available for residential uses within Springfield’s UGB.  The Springfield RLHNA was 
adopted by the City Council by Resolution 09-54 on December 7, 2009. The RLHNA along with the SRP 
Residential Land Use and Housing Element and the establishment of a Springfield specific UGB was 
adopted by City Council (Ordinance 6268) on June 20, 2011 and by the Lane County Board of 
Commissioners (Ordinance PA1274) on June 6, 2011.    
 
The residential land use policies included in the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element together 
with the technical analysis included in the RLHNA address Goal 10 (ref. LRP 2009-000120), including 
goals, objectives, policies and implementation actions that supplement the Metro Plan Residential Land 
Use and Housing Element (Chapter III-A), while demonstrating Springfield’s ongoing commitment to 
increasing housing choice and residential densities within Springfield’s separate UGB. 
 
The RLHNA states: “The last step in the analysis is to add in public and semi-public land needs. Table S-5 
shows the reconciliation of land need and supply. The results show that Springfield has an overall surplus 
of residential land, but has deficits in the High-Density Residential and Parks and Open Space categories. 
 
Table S-5. Reconciliation of land need and supply, Springfield UGB, 2010 

 
Source: ECONorthwest 
The results lead to the following findings: 

• The LDR designation has a surplus of approximately 378 gross acres. 
• The MDR  designation has a surplus of approximately 76 gross acres. 
• The HDR  designation has a deficit of approximately 28 gross acres. At a minimum, the City will meet the deficit of 411 

dwellings (21 acres) through its redevelopment strategies in Downtown and Glenwood. The additional seven acres of 
public/semi-public land is intended to provide public open space for the higher density development, as well as any 
needed public facilities. This need could potentially be met through a variety of approaches—from designating seven 

Plan Designation

Residential 
Land 

Surplus/Deficit 
(From Table S-4)

Public/Semi-
Public Land 

Need
Total Surplus/ 

Deficit
Low Density Residential 455 77 378
Medium Density Residential 93 17 76
High Density Residential -21 7 -28
Parks and Open Space 300 -300
Government/Employment 62 Met through land need in EOA

Total 527 463 126

Attachment 1-47



additional acres high-density residential to ensuring that land designated park and open space is provided adjacent to 
HDR  developments. 

• The Parks and Open Space designation has a deficit of 300 acres. This need does not imply that the City should expand 
the UGB for parks and open space. The City has a surplus of buildable lands in the low and MDR  plan designations 
that can provide land for future parks within those designations, consistent with the objectives of the adopted Park 
and Recreation Comprehensive Plan. A portion of the parks and open space need can also be met on residentially 
designated land that has constraints and therefore is not counted as buildable acres (e.g., ridgeline trail systems). 
Since no surplus of land designated for HDR  uses exists, the 21-acre HDR  plan designation deficit has been increased 
by seven (7) acres to provide parkland immediately adjacent to the proposed HDR  district. 

• Government and employment land needs will be met through existing lands or land needs identified in the Springfield 
Economic Opportunities Analysis.” (Ref. pp. iv-v) 

 
The proposed SLR zoning district will be applied within the existing LDR Metro Plan land use designation 
that shows a total surplus of 378 acres.   

There are a number of applicable Oregon Administrative Rules (OARs) that must also be addressed 
concurrently with Goal 10. 
  
OAR 660-008-0010 Allocation of Buildable Land  
 
“The mix and density of needed housing is determined in the housing needs projection. Sufficient 
buildable land shall be designated on the comprehensive plan map to satisfy housing needs by type 
and density range as determined in the housing needs projection. The local buildable lands inventory 
must document the amount of buildable land in each residential plan designation.” 
 
The RLHNA applies City-wide and documents the amount of buildable land in each of the three primary 
residential land use designations in Springfield identified in Table S-5, above. The RLHNA demonstrated 
there is a surplus of land within the LDR Metro Plan designation. The intent of the proposed SLR zoning 
district is to establish a minimum density of 8 dwelling units per net acre and allow a mix of housing 
types.  Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with OAR 660-0008-0010. 
 
 660-008-0015 Clear and Objective Approval Standards Required  
 
“Local approval standards, special conditions and procedures regulating the development of needed 
housing must be clear and objective, and must not have the effect, either of themselves or 
cumulatively, of discouraging needed housing through unreasonable cost or delay.” 
 
The proposed SDC amendments contain specific building design standards for most duplexes and all 
attached single-family developments in all zoning districts (SDC Section 4.7-142). Building design 
standards include choosing 66 items from the following list: dormers;, gables; recessed entries; covered 
front porches; pillars or posts; eaves; window trim; bay windows; balconies; offsets in the building face; 
offsets or breaks in roof elevations; decorative patterns on the exterior finish; and variation  in façade 
building material. The developer may utilize different combinations of design standards to create design 
diversity within the development. The intent is to allow a developer to choose from existing building 
plans that should result in reducing housing costs. 
 
SDC Section 3.2-205 encourages a mix of housing types, specifically allowing duplexes and attached 
single family dwellings, to be permitted outright under Type I staff review. The Type I review process 
reduces unreasonable cost or delay by eliminating Planning Commission Discretionary Use approval. 
 

Attachment 1-48



Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with OAR 660-0008-0015. 
 
660-008-0020 Specific Plan Designations Required 
 
“(1) Plan designations that allow or require residential uses shall be assigned to all buildable land. 
Such designations may allow nonresidential uses as well as residential uses. Such designations may be 
considered to be "residential plan designations" for the purposes of this division. The plan 
designations assigned to buildable land shall be specific so as to accommodate the varying housing 
types and densities identified in the local housing needs projection.” 
 
The LDR, MDR and HDR Metro Plan residential land use designations have been addressed in the 
adopted RLHNA and the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element. The focal point in these 
proposed SDC amendments is the Metro Plan LDR land use designation. The RLHNA found that there is a 
surplus of 378 gross acres in the Metro Plan LDR land use designation. The proposed SLR zoning district 
will be a second permitted zoning district within the Metro Plan LDR land use designation; the LDR 
zoning district is the other zoning district.  The primary housing types that will be accommodated in the 
proposed SLR zoning district are: duplexes and attached single-family dwellings. Therefore, the 
proposed SDC amendments are consistent with OAR 660-0008-0020(1). 
 
“(2) A local government may defer the assignment of specific residential plan designations only when 
the following conditions have been met: 
(a) Uncertainties concerning the funding, location and timing of public facilities have been identified in 
the local comprehensive plan; 
(b) The decision not to assign specific residential plan designations is specifically related to identified 
public facilities constraints and is so justified in the plan; and 
(c) The plan includes a time-specific strategy for resolution of identified public facilities uncertainties 
and a policy commitment to assign specific residential plan designations when identified public 
facilities uncertainties are resolved.” 
 
The proposed SDC amendments do not require a new or modified Metro Plan residential land use 
designation, the current Metro Plan LDR land use designation will continue to be utilized. It is the 
addition of a new zoning district within the existing Metro Plan LDR land use designation that will occur 
upon approval of the adopting Ordinance. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent 
with OAR 660-0008-0020(2). 
 
660-008-0025 The Rezoning Process  
 
A local government may defer rezoning of land within an urban growth boundary to maximum 
planned residential density provided that the process for future rezoning is reasonably justified. If such 
is the case, then: 
(1) The plan shall contain a justification for the rezoning process and policies which explain how this 
process will be used to provide for needed housing. 
 
The justification for the SLR zoning district and applicable Metro Plan policies and SRP Residential Land 
Use and Housing Element policies and implementation actions have been addressed elsewhere in this 
staff report. However, staff intends to defer rezoning property to SLR until such time as the City Council 
provides direction through the Refinement Plan and/or the Master Plan approval processes. Two 
potential areas have been identified for further study to implement SLR development; one in Jasper-

Attachment 1-49



Natron and the other in Glenwood. Nevertheless, additional refinement planning must occur before the 
proposed SLR zoning district may be implemented in either of these areas. Therefore, the proposed SDC 
amendments are consistent with OAR 660-0008-0025(1). 
 
660-008-0030 Regional Coordination  
 
“(1) Each local government shall consider the needs of the relevant region in arriving at a fair 
allocation of housing types and densities”. 
 
In 2007, the Oregon Legislature required Eugene and Springfield to establish separate urban growth 
boundaries (UGB) that included separate 20 year residential lands inventories for both Eugene and 
Springfield.  In response to House Bill 3337, Springfield conducted a study to determine Springfield’s 
housing needs for 2010-2030 and to evaluate the sufficiency of land available for residential uses within 
Springfield’s UGB.  The Springfield RLHNA was adopted by the City Council and Lane County in 2011. 
Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are consistent with OAR 660-0008-0030(1). 
 
660-008-0035 Substantive Standards for Taking a Goal 2, Part II Exception Pursuant to ORS 197.303(3)  
 
“(1) A local government may satisfy the substantive standards for exceptions contained in Goal 2, Part 
II, upon a demonstration in the local housing needs projection, supported by compelling reasons and 
facts, that: 
(a) The needed housing type is being provided for elsewhere in the region in sufficient numbers to 
meet regional needs; 
(b) Sufficient buildable land has been allocated within the local jurisdiction for other types of housing 
which can meet the need for shelter at the particular price ranges and rent levels that would have 
been met by the excluded housing type; and 
(c) The decision to substitute other housing types for the excluded needed housing type furthers the 
policies and objectives of the local comprehensive plan, and has been coordinated with other affected 
units of government. 
(2) The substantive standards listed in section (1) of this rule shall apply to the ORS 197.303(3) 
exceptions process in lieu of the substantive standards in Goal 2, Part II. The standards listed in section 
(1) of this rule shall not apply to the exceptions process authorized by OAR 660-007-0360.” 
 
The RLHNA was adopted by the Springfield City Council and the Lane County Board of Commissioners in 
2011. The proposed SDC amendments include the SLR zoning district. As stated under staff’s response to 
Goal 2, there is no need for a Goal 2 exception. Therefore, OAR 660-008-0035 does not apply. 
 
660-008-0040 Restrictions on Housing Tenure  
 
“Any local government that restricts the construction of either rental or owner occupied housing on or 
after its first periodic review shall include a determination of housing need according to tenure as part 
of the local housing needs projection.” 
 
The RLHNA and the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element have been adopted by both the 
Springfield City Council and the Lane County Board of Commissioners in 2011. As stated previously, the 
SDC currently lists three primary Metro Plan residential land use designations; LDR, MDR and HDR.  The 
SDC does not restrict the construction of either rental or owner occupied housing in any of these land 
use designations. The adoption of the proposed SDC amendments will also not restrict the construction 

Attachment 1-50



of either rental or owner occupied housing in any of these land use designations. Therefore, OAR 660-
008-0040 does not apply. 
 
The proposed SDC amendments comply with Goal 10 because Springfield has an adopted RLHNA and 
SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element and the proposed SDC amendments will implement 
specific plan policies and implementation actions cited elsewhere in this staff report. 
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 11 PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES 
 
“To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and services to 
serve as a framework for urban and rural development.”        
 
Findings 
 
In order to comply with Goal 11, Springfield has adopted the following documents: 
 

• The Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan, revised 2004 
• The Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area Public Facilities and Services Plan, 2001 
• The Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area TransPlan 
• The Springfield Stormwater Management Plan, November 2008 
• The Springfield Stormwater Facilities Master Plan, October 2008 
• The Springfield Wastewater Master Plan, June 2008 
• The Springfield Conceptual Road Network Map, updated July, 2005 
• The Springfield Drinking Water Protection Plan, adopted May, 1999 
• The Springfield Development Code, September 2007 
• The Springfield Engineering Design Standards and Procedures Manual, 2002, as amended 
• The Springfield 2013-17 Capital Improvement Plan  

 
660-011-0000 Purpose  
 
“The purpose of this division is to aid in achieving the requirements of Goal 11, Public Facilities and 
Services, OAR 660-015-0000(11), interpret Goal 11 requirements regarding public facilities and services 
on rural lands, and implement ORS 197.712(2)(e), which requires that a city or county shall develop 
and adopt a public facility plan for areas within an urban growth boundary containing a population 
greater than 2,500 persons. The purpose of the plan is to help assure that urban development in such 
urban growth boundaries is guided and supported by types and levels of urban facilities and services 
appropriate for the needs and requirements of the urban areas to be serviced, and that those facilities 
and services are provided in a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement, as required by Goal 11. The 
division contains definitions relating to a public facility plan, procedures and standards for developing, 
adopting, and amending such a plan, the date for submittal of the plan to the Commission and 
standards for Department review of the plan.” 
 
OAR 660-011-0005(1) defines "Public Facility" to include: ” …water, wastewater, sanitary sewer, and 
transportation facilities. …” 
 
The Metro Plan addresses the provision of these and several other public facilities and services in 
Springfield.  The Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Public Services and Facilities Plan (PFSP), which has 

Attachment 1-51



been acknowledged by DLCD, is a refinement plan of the Metro Plan that guides the provision of public 
infrastructure, including water, wastewater, storm water management, electricity, schools and solid 
waste management within Springfield’s UGB.  
 
The two areas that have been identified for possible SLR zoning, Jasper-Natron and Glenwood are 
located within Springfield’s UGB, but outside of the city limits. In order for the SLR zoning district to 
apply in these areas, the City Council would need to direct staff to proceed. For these two areas, 
additional refinement planning will need to be completed and then a Springfield Zoning Map 
amendment will be required. Finally, prior to development of any land outside of Springfield’s city limits, 
property owners must execute an annexation agreement, which will stipulate responsibilities for 
provision of public services prior to the initiation of an annexation application.  Upon annexation, the 
public facilities and services that are required under Goal 11 and the Metro Plan can be provided to 
properties in the two areas referenced above.   
 
The proposed SDC amendments comply with Goal 11 because existing public facilities and services 
either have the capacity to serve future development in Jasper-Natron and/or Glenwood or future 
public facilities can be provided in a timely, orderly, and efficient manner as discussed elsewhere in this 
staff report.  
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 12 TRANSPORTATION  
 
“To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and economic transportation system.”        
 
Findings 
 
Applicable Transportation Regulations 
 
Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan (Metro Plan) - 2004   
 
The  Metro Plan  serves  as  Eugene,  Springfield  and  metropolitan  Lane  County’s  long  range  policy 
document (comprehensive plan),  guiding  land  use  for  all  three  jurisdictions  within  the  Plan’s 
boundaries.  The  Metro Plan  addresses  all  applicable  State-wide  planning  goals  either  in  the  Plan 
itself,  or  through  supporting  facility  or  master  plans  such  as  local  TSPs,  parks  plans,  etc.  In  order 
to  comply  with  State  regulations,  the  Metro Plan  provides  a  20-year  land  supply.  However, as part 
of compliance with HB 3337, Springfield has established its own UGB (June 20, 2011) and ultimately a 
separate,  Springfield  Transportation System Plan amendment to  the  Metro  Plan will be adopted. 
Applicable Metro Plan policies are addressed elsewhere in this staff report.    
The Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area Transportation Plan (TransPlan) - 2002   
 
TransPlan is the current transportation element of the Metro Plan.  While  adopted  as  a  refinement  to 
the  Metro Plan,  and  therefore  technically  a  land  use  plan,  TransPlan  is  also  intended  as  a  system 
plan  that  guides  local  and  regional  transportation  system  planning  and  development  in  the 
Eugene-Springfield  metropolitan  area.  TransPlan  also  serves  as  Springfield’s  facilities  plan 
(Transportation  System  Plan,  or  TSP)  for  identifying  projects  needed  to  meet  the  transportation 
demand  of  residents  over  a  20-year  planning  horizon  while  addressing  transportation  issues  and 
making  changes  that  can  contribute  to  improvements  in  the  region’s  quality  of  life  and  economic 
vitality.   In  addition  to  roadway  facilities,  TransPlan  also  calls  for  significant  increases  in  the 
amount  and  convenience  of  transit  service,  increases  in  the  amount  of  bikeways  and  sidewalks, 

Attachment 1-52



and  an  expansion  of  the  existing  program  of  transportation  demand  management  (TDM)  travel 
incentives.  Because  TransPlan  is  currently  serving  as  the  locally  adopted  TSP  for  Springfield,  all  of 
its policies  will  be  addressed  as  part  of  the  current Springfield TSP  update.  Applicable TransPlan 
policies are addressed elsewhere in this staff report.   
   
Transportation Planning Rule Analysis and Findings 

“660-012-0060  

Plan and Land Use Regulation Amendments  

(1) If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a land use 
regulation (including a zoning map) would significantly affect an existing or planned transportation 
facility, then the local government must put in place measures as provided in section (2) of this rule, 
unless the amendment is allowed under section (3), (9) or (10) of this rule. A plan or land use 
regulation amendment significantly affects a transportation facility if it would: 

(a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility (exclusive of 
correction of map errors in an adopted plan);  

(b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or  

(c) Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A) through (C) of this subsection based on 
projected conditions measured at the end of the planning period identified in the adopted TSP. As part 
of evaluating projected conditions, the amount of traffic projected to be generated within the area of 
the amendment may be reduced if the amendment includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement that 
would demonstrably limit traffic generation, including, but not limited to, transportation demand 
management. This reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the significant effect of the 
amendment.  

(A) Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional classification of an 
existing or planned transportation facility;  

(B) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such that it would not 
meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan; or  

(C) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is otherwise 
projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan.  

Findings:  

Both the existing LDR zoning district and the proposed SLR zoning district are/will be in the existing LDR 
Metro Plan land use designation. The proposed SDC amendments do not amend a functional plan, an 
acknowledged comprehensive plan (Metro Plan, including a residential land use designation) or the 
Springfield Zoning Map. This application does amend the SDC, Springfield’s land use regulation.  

The proposed SDC amendments also do not significantly affect a transportation facility because they do 
not: 

Attachment 1-53



 Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility (exclusive of 
correction of map errors in an adopted plan);  

 Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or  
 Result in any of the effects listed below:  
 Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional classification of an 

existing or planned transportation facility;  
 Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such that it would not 

meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan; or  
 Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is otherwise 

projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan.  

The primary purpose of the proposed SDC amendments is to establish: the SLR zoning district; and 
minimum densities of 6 dwelling units per net acre in the existing LDR zoning district and 8 dwelling 
units per net acre in the proposed SLR zoning district, as discussed elsewhere in this staff report. 
Minimum densities encourage efficient land use by eliminating under building in the Metro Plan LDR 
land use designation while making the provision of services more cost effective.  

The applicable guiding documents regarding transportation planning in the Eugene-Springfield 
metropolitan area cited above affect development in the Metro Plan LDR land use designation based 
upon the existing density ranges specified in the Metro Plan and the adopted SRP Residential Land Use 
and Housing Element.  There is no increase proposed for the high end of the density range of 14 
dwelling units per net acre for both the existing LDR zoning district and the proposed SLR zoning district.  

The SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element names the existing residential area on the south side 
of Franklin Boulevard in Glenwood and a still undetermined area in Jasper Natron as potential SLR sites 
However, the proposed SLR zoning district will not be initiated as part of these proposed SDC 
amendments; it must be initiated by City Council action prior to a Refinement Plan (ref. SDC 5.6-100) 
and/or Master Plan (ref. SDC 5.13-100) approval process. A Springfield Zoning Map amendment as part 
of a Refinement Plan adoption/amendment will also require City Council legislative approval (ref. SDC 
5.22-100B.). Goal 12 will be addressed during the review of these land use applications. 

Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments comply with OAR 660-12-0060(1) because they will not 
significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility. 

(7) Amendments to acknowledged comprehensive plans and land use regulations which meet all of 
the criteria listed in subsections (a)–(c) below shall include an amendment to the comprehensive plan, 
transportation system plan the adoption of a local street plan, access management plan, future street 
plan or other binding local transportation plan to provide for on-site alignment of streets or 
accessways with existing and planned arterial, collector, and local streets surrounding the site as 
necessary to implement the requirements in OAR 660-012-0020(2)(b) and 660-012-0045(3):  

(a) The plan or land use regulation amendment results in designation of two or more acres of land for 
commercial use;  

(b) The local government has not adopted a TSP or local street plan which complies with OAR 660-012-
0020(2)(b) or, in the Portland Metropolitan Area, has not complied with Metro's requirement for 

Attachment 1-54



street connectivity as contained in Title 6, Section 3 of the Urban Growth Management Functional 
Plan; and  

(c) The proposed amendment would significantly affect a transportation facility as provided in section 
(1).” 

Findings:  

The proposed SDC amendments only revise the SDC, Springfield’s land use regulations. Therefore, they 
do not:  

 Result in the designation of two or more acres of land for commercial use. The Metro Plan LDR land 
use designation is the only land use designation affected by the proposed SDC amendments; and    

 Significantly affect a transportation facility as provided in Section (1), as stated above.  

To date, the TSP requirement has been met through the local and regionally adopted TransPlan. 
However, Springfield has begun a TSP Update that will focus solely on Springfield’s jurisdiction, providing 
better local transportation system guidance for Springfield and its citizens.  The  TSP  will  support  the 
Metro  Plan  and  its  identified  land  designations.    

Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments comply with OAR 660-12-0060(7) because Springfield has a 
TSP (Subsection (b)) and the proposed SLR zoning district will not significantly affect an existing or 
planned transportation facility, as stated above (Subsection c)). Subsection (a) does not apply because 
no Metro Plan commercial land use designation or Springfield zoning district is part if this application.  

“(9) Notwithstanding section (1) of this rule, a local government may find that an amendment to a 
zoning map does not significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility if all of the 
following requirements are met.  

(a) The proposed zoning is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map designation and the 
amendment does not change the comprehensive plan map;  

(b) The local government has an acknowledged TSP and the proposed zoning is consistent with the 
TSP; and  

(c) The area subject to the zoning map amendment was not exempted from this rule at the time of an 
urban growth boundary amendment as permitted in OAR 660-024-0020(1)(d), or the area was 
exempted from this rule but the local government has a subsequently acknowledged TSP amendment 
that accounted for urbanization of the area.”  

The proposed SDC amendments will not significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility, 
as stated above, because: it is consistent with the Metro Plan LDR land use designation (Subsection (a); 
Springfield has an adopted TSP (Subsection (b); and no UGB amendment is required (Subsection c).  

The intent of the proposed SDC amendments is to establish the SLR zoning district and minimum density 
standards as specified in the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element. For the record, the 
proposed SDC amendments will not amend the Springfield Zoning Map at this time. As stated previously, 

Attachment 1-55



Jasper-Natron and Glenwood have been discussed as possible sites for SLR implementation.  staff has 
not received direction from the City Council to implement the proposed SLR zoning district in either of 
these areas. However, In both cases, either a Refinement Plan amendment, or a new Refinement Plan, 
as well as a Springfield Zoning Map amendment will be required. These actions will necessitate a 
response to Goal 12.  

The proposed SDC amendments do not: change the functional classification of an existing or planned 
transportation facility; does not change the standards implementing a functional classification, do not 
allow types or levels of land uses that would result in levels of travel or access which are inconsistent 
with the functional classification; and will not reduce the performance standards below the minimal 
acceptable level identified in the TSP.  The level of development currently permitted through existing 
and amended  SDC regulations will remain the same. Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments are 
consistent with Goal 12. 
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 13  
 
ENERGY CONSERVATION 
 
“To conserve energy. Land and uses developed on the land shall be managed and controlled so as to 
maximize the conservation of all forms of energy, based upon sound economic principles.”        
Finding 
 
When energy was cheap and easy to come by, cities were developed with little regard for energy 
consumption, in terms of travel patterns, use of renewable resources and energy efficient building 
materials and methods. As the availability of energy has decreased and costs have increased, the 
realization that resources were not in everlasting supply became evident. Cities have not traditionally 
played a major and direct role in the development of new energy supplies. However, a city government 
uses or controls energy in many ways and can develop policies and development regulations to promote 
energy conservation. With a limited supply of energy available, and demand continuing to increase, 
conservation actions can postpone costly development of new power generation.  
 
Establishment of energy efficient programs is also less expensive than building new power plants and 
avoids negative environmental impacts. 
 
Springfield has adopted the following standards/policies to address energy efficiency: 
 

• The Oregon Residential Specialty Code 2008 (Chapter 11, Energy Efficiency). 
• The Oregon Structural Specialty Code 2007 (Chapter 13, Energy Efficiency). Both codes have 

impacted building practices through stricter regulation and required performance standards and 
will play a significant role in energy conservation now and in the future. 

• OAR 660-12-(000-070) requires jurisdictions to reduce vehicle miles traveled by 10% by the year 
2015; TransPlan establishes nodes to comply with the OAR through promoting efficient 
transportation systems, mixed use development, encouraging alternatives to auto trips, and 
making the design of new development more amenable to users of alternative transportation 
such as carpooling, walking, bicycling and transit. Transportation systems and land use patterns 
are directly linked to energy conservation goals and have the potential to impact energy use. 

• The Springfield Development Code (various standards). 
 

Attachment 1-56



In addition: 
 

• The Lane County Solid Waste Management Plan emphasizes reducing, reusing, recycling and 
recovering energy from waste, before land filling. Awareness of solid waste management 
reduction, reuse, recycling and recovery of resources as a way to conserve energy has increased 
and programs have been put in place to encourage these activities. 

• SUB has an energy conservation program for residential, commercial and industrial customers. 
• The Metro Plan’s Energy Element provides policies for energy conservation. 

 
Goal 13 is primarily directed at the development of local energy policies and implementing provisions. 
There is no implementing rule that clarifies the requirements of Goal 13. However, Goal 13 lists the 
following guidelines: 
 
“A.  PLANNING 
1.  Priority consideration in land use planning should be given to methods of analysis and 

implementation measures that will assure achievement of maximum efficiency in energy 
utilization. 

2.  The allocation of land and uses permitted on the land should seek to minimize the depletion of 
non-renewable sources of energy. 

3.  Land use planning should, to the maximum extent possible, seek to recycle and re-use vacant land 
and those uses which are not energy efficient. 

4.  Land use planning should, to the maximum extent possible, combine increasing density gradients 
along high capacity transportation corridors to achieve greater energy efficiency. 

5.  Plans directed toward energy conservation within the planning area should consider as a major 
determinant the existing and potential capacity of the renewable energy sources to yield useful 
energy output. Renewable energy sources include water, sunshine, wind, geothermal heat and 
municipal, forest and farm waste. Whenever possible, land conservation and development actions 
provided for under such plans should utilize renewable energy sources. 

 
B.  IMPLEMENTATION 
1.  Land use plans should be based on utilization of the following techniques and implementation 

devices which can have a material impact on energy efficiency: 
a.  Lot size, dimension, and siting controls; 
b. Building height, bulk and surface area; 
c.  Density of uses, particularly those which relate to housing densities; 
d.  Availability of light, wind and air; 
e.  Compatibility of and competition between competing land use activities; and 
f.  Systems and incentives for the collection, reuse and recycling of metallic and nonmetallic 

waste.” 
  
While the proposed SDC amendments do not directly affect any of Springfield’s or the Springfield Utility 
Board’s energy conservation measures or programs, upon implementation, the proposed SLR zoning 
district will: 
 

• Reduce lot/parcel sizes by establishing a 3,000 square foot minimum size requirement. 
• Allow a mix of housing types, including attached single-family dwellings that will reduce energy 

consumption. 

Attachment 1-57



• Require a minimum density of 8 dwelling units per net acre in the SLR zoning district and 6 
dwelling units per acre in the LDR zoning district. 

• Promote applicable energy efficiency requirements established by the Building Specialty Codes. 
 
Therefore, the proposed SDC amendments comply with Goal 13. 
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 14  
 
URBANIZATION 
 
“To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land use, to accommodate urban 
population and urban employment inside urban growth boundaries, to ensure efficient use of land, 
and to provide for livable communities.”        
 
Finding: 
 
Goal 14 requires cities to estimate future growth and needs for land and then plan and zone enough 
land to meet those needs. Staff’s response to Goal 10 in this staff report address this topic. The 
proposed SDC amendments will apply to land already within the city limits and will not necessitate the 
need for an UGB amendment.   The proposed SDC amendments are intended to aid efficient 
development/redevelopment for urban uses, thereby facilitating the “efficient use of land” and “livable 
communities” aspects of Goal 14. Development/redevelopment in the proposed SLR zoning district 
cannot commence without City Council direction requiring a Refinement Plan and/or Master Plan 
application process and annexation to Springfield to permit connection to wastewater facilities. Future 
development approval in the SLR zoning district will increase and intensify land use within the city limits, 
alleviating pressure to urbanize rural lands. Staff’s response to Goal 11 demonstrates the areas named 
for SLR implementation, Jasper-Natron and Glenwood is either served or can be served with public 
facilities and services to allow development/redevelopment to occur as proposed.   
 
The proposed SDC amendments comply with Goal 14 because Springfield has adopted the RLHNA and 
the SRP Residential Land Use and Housing Element; all development within the SLR zoning district will 
occur within Springfield’s city limits; and no UGB expansion will be necessary.  
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 15: WILLAMETTE RIVER GREENWAY  
 
“To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the natural, scenic, historical, agricultural, economic and 
recreational qualities of lands along the Willamette River as the Willamette River Greenway.” 
Findings 
 
The Willamette River is recognized as a valuable natural resource that needs enhancement and 
protection. The Willamette Greenway is a 150-foot swath established under Goal 15 and ORS 390.318 
that runs between Glenwood on the west and the remainder of Springfield on the east from the I-5 
Bridges to the southern tip of Glenwood. SDC Sections 3.4-280 (Glenwood Riverfront) and 3.3-300 (the 
remainder of Springfield) contain regulations that apply to development within this area. Currently, any 
activity in the Willamette Greenway (WG) Overlay District involving intensification of any use, change in 
use, or development requires Type III Discretionary Use and concurrent Site Plan Review approval from 
the Planning Commission and conformance with the Willamette Greenway development criteria.  
 

Attachment 1-58



However, potential SLR sites in Jasper-Natron and Glenwood are not adjacent to the Willamette River. 
The proposed SDC amendments do not contain any changes that affect the regulation of areas within 
the Willamette River Greenway.  
 
Therefore, Goal 15 does not apply to these proposed SDC amendments.  
 
However, if in the future, the City Council directs staff to implement the proposed SLR zoning district in 
an area that is adjacent to the Willamette River; Goal 15 will be addressed as part of a Refinement Plan 
or Master Plan approval and Springfield Zoning Map amendment processes. 
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 16: ESTUARINE RESOURCES 
 
“To recognize and protect the unique environmental, economic, and social values of each estuary and 
associated wetlands; and To protect, maintain, where appropriate develop, and where appropriate 
restore the long-term environmental, economic, and social values, diversity and benefits of Oregon's 
estuaries.” 
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 17: COASTAL SHORELANDS 
 
“To conserve, protect, where appropriate, develop and where appropriate restore the resources and 
benefits of all coastal shorelands, recognizing their value for protection and maintenance of water 
quality, fish and wildlife habitat, water-dependent uses, economic resources and recreation and 
aesthetics. The management of these shoreland areas shall be compatible with the characteristics of 
the adjacent coastal waters; and To reduce the hazard to human life and property, and the adverse 
effects upon water quality and fish and wildlife habitat, resulting from the use and enjoyment of 
Oregon’s coastal shorelands”.  
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 18: BEACHES AND DUNES 
 
“To conserve, protect, where appropriate develop, and where appropriate restore the resources and 
benefits of coastal beach and dune areas; and To reduce the hazard to human life and property from 
natural or man-induced actions associated with these areas.” 
 
STATE-WIDE PLANNING GOAL 19: OCEAN RESOURCES 
 
“To conserve marine resources and ecological functions for the purpose of providing long-term 
ecological, economic, and social value and benefits to future generations.” 
 
Findings 
 
There is no estuarine, coastal, beach and dune or ocean resources in Springfield or the metropolitan 
area. The proposed SDC amendments will not affect compliance with Goals 16-19. Therefore, Goals 16-
19 do not apply.   
 
Conclusion 
 
Staff has demonstrated that the proposed SDC amendments comply with all applicable State-wide 
Planning Goals and Administrative Rules. 

Attachment 1-59



STAFF REPORT CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
Based on the findings and conclusions, the proposed amendments are consistent with the applicable 
SDC amendment criteria of approval specified in Section 5.16-115A.-C. This staff report demonstrates 
that proposed SDC amendments meet State mandated regulations regarding the implementation of 
Land Use Efficiency Measure that are required as part of the RLHNA and the SRP Residential  Land Use 
and Housing Element.  
 
Staff recommends that the Springfield Planning Commission approve the proposed SDC amendments 
and advise the City Council to approve these amendments at their public hearing scheduled for February 
19,2013.  2013.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 1-60



BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON 
     
ORDER AND RECOMMENDATION FOR:                       
 
AMENDMENTS TO THE SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE SECTIONS:]  
3.2-100; 3.2-205; 3.2-210:3.2-215; 3.2-605; 4.7-140; 4.7-140; 4.7-142;  ]  
4.7-155; 4.7-233; 5.4-100; 5.12-120; 5.12-130; and 6.1-110                      ]                            LRP 2009-00015 
 
NATURE OF THE PROPOSAL 
     
Staff is requesting that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval to the City 
Council regarding proposed amendments to the Springfield Development Code (SDC),  Phase 1 Land Use 
Efficiency Measures, which implement the Springfield 2030 Refinement Plan (SRP) Residential Land Use 
and Housing Element policies to establish: 
 
o The Small Lot Residential (SLR) zoning district that facilitates development of attached and detached 

single-family dwelling types on small lots/parcels as an outright permitted use. These housing types 
provide additional affordable housing options and allow more residential dwelling units than would 
be achieved by building only detached homes. The SLR zoning district is intended to be a tool for 
future planning purposes and will be applied on a case-by case basis as directed by the City Council 
through the Refinement Plan and/or Master Plan approval processes; 

 
o Density ranges in all residential zoning districts that will utilize the term “net” acre instead of 

“developable” or “gross” acre to be consistent with the Metro Plan and SRP Residential Land Use 
and Housing Element; 

 
o A minimum density of 6 dwelling units per net acre in the Low Density Residential zoning district 

(LDR) and 8 dwelling units per net acre in the SLR zoning district. Minimum densities reduce sprawl, 
eliminate under building in residential zoning districts and make the provision of services more cost 
effective The maximum density in these two residential zoning districts is 14 dwelling units per net 
acre. There is no change in the maximum density; 

 
o Base zone standards for the SLR zoning district; 
 
o Type I design standards for: duplexes in the SLR, Medium Density Residential (MDR) and High 

Density Residential (HDR) zoning districts; and attached single-family dwellings in all residential 
zoning districts; 

 
o Siting standards for duplexes in all residential zoning districts; 

o Additions to and/or revisions of definitions pertaining to “dwellings” in support of the SLR zoning 
district; and, in addition; 

 
o “Housekeeping” amendments pertaining to: RV siting standards and Future Development Plans. 
 
Timely and sufficient notice of the public hearing and changed hearing dates caused by the written 
record being held open has been provided, pursuant to SDC Section 5.2-115. 

Attachment 1-61



On December 4, 2012, the Planning Commission held a work session and on January 15, 2013, a public 
hearing on the proposed SDC amendments. The staff report and written comments were entered into 
the record.  
 
CONCLUSION 
     
On the basis of this record, the proposed amendments are consistent with the criteria of SDC Section 
5.6-115.  This general finding is supported by the specific findings of fact and conclusion in the Staff 
Report and Findings and the additional information submitted for the January 15, 2013 meeting. 
     
ORDER/RECOMMENDATION 
     
It is ORDERED by the Springfield Planning Commission that approval of File Numbers LRP 2009-00015 be 
GRANTED and a RECOMMENDATION for approval be forwarded to the Springfield City Council for their 
consideration on February 19, 2013. 
     

       

__________________________________       _____________ 
Planning Commission Chairperson       Date  
     
ATTEST 
 
AYES:    
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1-62



Attachment C 
 

 

The development area is 72,000 square feet or 1.65 net acres. Net acres is defined as: “The number of 
dwelling units for each acre of land in residential use, excluding, dedicated streets, parks, sidewalks and 
other public facilities.” There are 24 dwelling units in the development area that meets the 14 dwelling 
units per net acre high end of the SLR density range.  
 
This example shows:  
 Two housing types – attached single-family and duplexes; and  
 Two parking scenarios – individual parking spaces with access from the alley, and driveways with 

access from the street.  
 

Attachment 1-63



ATTACHMENT D 
CLUSTER COTTAGE DEVELOPMENT EXAMPLE 

 
Cottage Cluster Development Example. Some cities in Washington and Oregon have adopted Cottage 
Housing Development code provisions to allow the development of several small, detached cottages on 
a site that would normally be developed with fewer large homes. Cottage Housing Development codes 
are not multi-dwelling or overlay zones but instead provide another form of single-family development. 
In the City of Bainbridge, cottage housing is allowed conditionally in all single-family zones as detached 
dwellings as opposed to condominiums on a common lot. The code requires that cottages be less than 
1,000 square feet in living area and limited in height. At 2,500 square feet, lots are allowed to be smaller 
than standard single dwelling lots. Parking must be clustered and separated from open spaces rather 
than being provided at each individual cottage. Cottages must also be oriented around a landscaped 
common area that is central and serves as a gathering space. Developments are limited to a dozen units 
so as to maintain a sense of community. With careful attention to the design of units, open spaces and 
landscaping, cottage clusters could blend very well into the surrounding neighborhoods of older, 
detached homes. 
 
The development standards cited above from Bainbridge, Washington are one way of approaching this 
topic. Specific development standards for Cottage Cluster Development will be addressed as part of 
Phase 2 Land Use Efficiency Measures. At this time, staff wants to include the concept as a future 
development option.  

Attachment 1-64



 
 
Cottage cluster model code, LMN Architects 
 

 

 

Attachment 1-65



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Jerry Smith/Police 
 Staff Phone No: 726-2320 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Enhance Public Safety 

 
ITEM TITLE:   
 

AN ORDINANCE MAKING IT A VIOLATION TO INITIATE A FALSE 
REPORT OR PROVIDE A FALSE STATEMENT TO AN ANIMAL CONTROL 
OFFICER. 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Adopt/not adopt: 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 
CHAPTER 5, PUBLIC PROTECTION, CONTROL OF DOGS AND OTHER 
ANIMALS, MAKING IT A VIOLATION OF THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL 
CODE TO INITIATE A FALSE REPORT OR TO PROVIDE AN UNSWORN 
FALSIFICATION TO AN ANIMAL SERVICES OFFICER. 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

 
The City of Springfield provides Animal Control Services to the citizens of 
Springfield.  Considerable time is exhausted responding to false reports, providing 
follow up investigations and verifying facts provided by individuals who knew at 
the time they made the statement that it was false.  Oregon State Statutes (162.385) 
provides penalties for providing false information to a police officer but does not 
provide a tool for use by the Springfield Animal Control Officer. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1-Ordinance 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The City provides Animal Control Services, operating under State Law and City 
Ordinance authority.  Investigations occasionally find individuals who knowingly 
provide false information to the Animal Control Officer. 
 
Oregon Statutes provide tools to deal with false information to police officers but 
does not provide the same level of accountability for such behavior to Animal 
Control Officers.  Lane County has an ordinance that provides for initiating false 
reports to animal control officers from which the proposed ordinance was modeled. 
 
There is no financial impact with adoption of the proposed ordinance. 
 
A first reading was conducted on February 19th, 2013. 

 





 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Sophia Seban - DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-2295 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR NEW 

CHINA SUN, INC, DBA: NEW CHINA SUN 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for New China Sun a family 
style restaurant, located at 3260 Gateway Street, Springfield, OR 97477. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The owners of New China, INC, DBA: New China Sun have requested the City 
Council to endorse its OLCC Liquor License Application. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1.  OLCC Liquor License Application 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The license endorsement for New China Sun is for a change of ownership with 
Limited On-Premises Sales and applying as a Corporation. The new license 
application has been reviewed and approved by the appropriate City Departments. 
 

 







 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Sophia Seban - DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-2295 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR DARK 

INDUSTRIES, LLC DBA: GOODFELLA’S LOUNGE 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for Goodfella’s Lounge is an 
entertainment style lounge, located at 117 South 14th Street, Springfield, OR 97477. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The owners’ Jacob LaRoche and Jessica Rhiannon McKinley of Dark Industries 
LLC, DBA: Goodfella’s Lounge have requested the City Council to endorse its 
OLCC Liquor License Application. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1.  OLCC Liquor License Application 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The license endorsement for Goodfella’s Lounge is for a change of ownership with 
Full On-Premises Sales Commercial Establishment and applying as a Limited 
Liability Company. The new license application has been reviewed and approved 
by the appropriate City Departments. 
 

 







 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Sophia Seban – DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 726-2295 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR J.X. INVESTMENT, LLC, DBA: J.X. 

POP.   
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for J.X. Pop, an entertainment 
Karaoke style location, located at 525 West Centennial Blvd, Springfield, Oregon 
97477. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The owner of J.X. Investment, LLC has requested the City Council to endorse its 
OLCC Liquor License Application. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1.  OLCC Liquor License Application 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The license endorsement for J.X. Investment, LLC, DBA: J.X. Pop is for a New 
Outlet with Limited On-Premises Sales and applying as a Limited Liability 
Company.  The new license application has been reviewed and approved by the 
appropriate City Departments. 
 

 







 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Brandt Melick/PW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-4645 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Maintain and Improve 
Infrastructure and 
Facilities 

 
ITEM TITLE: ASSET MANAGEMENT SYSTEM REPLACMENT PROJECT: FIRST 

AMENDMENT FOR STREET INTEGRATION AND SYSTEM ID 
CONVERSION 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Approve or reject the following motion: 
 
Approve First Amendment to Asset Management System Replacement 
Project Contract (C587) with Autodesk, Inc. and authorize and direct the 
city Manager to execute the Amendment on behalf of the City 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

This amendment adds $45,000 to the original contract amount of $125,000 for a 
total amended amount of $170,000.  The amendment includes work to begin 
integration of street information, work to complete updating of system IDs and an 
extension to project duration to accommodate additional work. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Attachment 1: C587 Contract First Amendment 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

November of 2011 Council directed staff to proceed with a proposal that fully 
funded Phase One and Phase Two of the Asset Management System Replacement 
Project, that is, proceed with replacement of linked systems of hardware and 
software and migration of several decades of stored data about City facilities.   In 
addition, Council asked staff to return with proposals to fund Phase Three, Street 
Integration. 

Since receiving Council direction, Development and Public Works (DPW) staff has 
brought contracts for Council approval, made steady progress to complete the Asset 
Management System Replacement Project, and kept the project under budget.  As a 
result, sufficient funds exist to complete updating system IDs (an unanticipated 
need) and begin integrating street information (a component of Phase Three).  This 
amendment will be funded with current project budget (budget approved for Phase 
One and Phase Two) and completed by the vendors currently under contact.   

Street integration ties together many otherwise disparate pieces of information 
about the street system, places it all in one system, streamlines data maintenance 
and supports system wide analysis.   Many assets occur along streets such as bike 
paths, street trees, sidewalks, dividers, pavement striping, signs, signals, etc.   Street 
integration brings this information together in support of Transportation System 
Planning and related efforts to receive federal funding for local street 
improvements, pavement management functions to optimize the use of public 
funds, public safety functions to route police and fire response teams, and 
transportation analysis to help keep streets safe and functional for residential, 
commercial and industrial purposes. 

Prices included herein are consistent with costs initially shared with Council on 
November 28, 2011 or slightly below initial estimates. The Amendment has been 
approved by the City Procurement Officer and reviewed and approved as to form 
by the City Attorney.  Staff recommends that the Council approve the amendment 
and direct City Manager to sign on behalf of the City. 



  
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
AND 

Autodesk, Inc. 
Contract #587 

 
January 11, 2013 
 
Parties: 
 
The City of Springfield      “City” 
225 Fifth Street 
Springfield, OR  97477 
 
 And 
 
Autodesk, Inc.        “Independent Contractor” 
 
The Parties hereby agree that the CITY OF SPRINGFIELD INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) dated May 31, 2012, included herein as ATTACHMENT 1, and is hereby 
amended for the first time as follows: 
 
1. Payment by CITY.  CITY shall pay Independent Contractor according to the sum and schedule described in 

Attachment 1, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference and in an amount not to exceed 
$169,600 on a fixed fee basis including expenses.  Independent Contractor shall invoice City in accordance with  
each milestone payment described in Attachment 1.City shall pay invoices within thirty (30) days after date of 
invoice.  Any additional or travel related expenses must be pre-approved in writing by CITY and are a pass 
through without markup.  Independent Contractor must use CITY travel reimbursement rates.  Additionally, 
copies of all receipts must accompany invoice for all pre-approved reimbursable expenses. 

 
2. Services to be Performed by Independent Contractor.  Independent Contractor shall perform the on call 

services described in Attachment 1 and Attachment 2 attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
3. Term. This Agreement is effective as of the date first set forth above and shall continue until twelve (12) 

months from date of Agreement execution unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement or by mutual consent of the parties. 

 
Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
INDENDPENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) dated May 31, 2012, between Parties will remain in full 
force and effect. 
 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD     Autodesk, Inc. 
 
Name:________________________    Name:________________________ 
 
Title: _________________________    Title: _________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________    Date: _________________________ 
 
 

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 1 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 1 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 2 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 2 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 3 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 3 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 4 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 4 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 5 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 5 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 6 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 6 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 7 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 7 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 8 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 8 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 9 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 9 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 10 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 10 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 11 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 11 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 12 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 12 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 13 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 13 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 14 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 14 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 15 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 15 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 16 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 16 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 17 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 17 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 18 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 18 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 19 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 19 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 20 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 20 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 21 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 21 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 22 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 22 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 23 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 23 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 24 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 24 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 25 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 25 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 26 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 26 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 27 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 27 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 28 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 28 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 29 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 29 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 30 of 45



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 30 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 31 of 45



1 Introduction 

1.1 Project Overview  
 
The City of Springfield is integrating Hansen 8 (Hansen) with Autodesk Map 3D Enterprise 2013 
(Autodesk) and needs to implement Street Segment integration. The client would like to take 
advantage of Hansen’s Web Services interfacing tools to maintain the Hansen street tables from within 
the Autodesk environment. 
 
The goal of this interface is to keep street segment information current and synchronized between 
Hansen and Autodesk.  This interface will reduce redundant street segment data entry; reduce 
discrepancies and differences between data sets and to make information available in both systems 
for use in various City workflow processes. 

1.2 Project Cost 
 
Fixed Fee: Autodesk will provide the Services and Deliverables for a fixed fee of $38,400. 

1.3 Scope 
 
The Scope of this Interface is limited to the Hansen 8.2.3 Street Module tables, Autodesk industry data 
model, and the City existing GIS street data model. 

1.4 Project Information 
Autodesk Map 3D Enterprise:    2013 
Hansen Software Version:     8.2.3.1206 
Database Profile:       Oracle 11g R2 
Application Server:       Microsoft Server 2008 
Interface Development Environment:  Visual Studio .NET 2005   
Hansen Interface Methodology:    Web Services 
RLID DB:         Lane Council of Governments 

    

1.5 Assumptions 
 
The following list of general assumptions was used in the development of the Interface Design 
Document; 

1. Hansen Web Services will be used to provide the integration interface for street segments. 
2. Hansen Web Services will be used to populate domains in Autodesk environment from 

Hansen domains. 
3. Hansen street schema will define format of inbound street segment information. 
4. Street segments will be added to the existing City of Springfield industry model. 
5. Hansen synchronization will happen at the same time as storm water and wastewater features 

are synchronized with Hansen (when these features are included in the job) 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 31 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 32 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



6. New street segments and street segment properties will be created and updated with the 
Autodesk interface. 

7. Updates to street segment properties will occur in Hansen tables and Autodesk industry data 
models. 

8. Infor-Hansen technical staff will be available throughout the duration of this integration work to 
answered questions from Autodesk; needed support estimated at 10 to 20 hours.  

9. Hansen Application Programming Interface (API) for street module will be complete and 
available to Autodesk for this integration work. 

1.6 Dependencies 
The success of this interface is dependent on various processes and factors including; 

1. New street names must exist in Hansen before a street segment can be added through the 
Autodesk interface. 

2. New street names will only be added by the street name coordinator in the City’s Operations 
Division using the Hansen interface.  This follows existing workflow. 

1.7 Quantity of Data 
 
The follow table depicts the total number of Street Segments maintained by the City. 
 
 

No. Record Type Amount 
1 Street Segments <5,000 
2   
3   
   

 
 
The follow table depicts the kind of dataflow which the interface will work with on a given basis. 
 
 

No. Record Type Time Period Amount 
1 Street Segments Monthly <100 
2    
3    
    

 
 

1.8 Definitions 
 
The following table describes definitions used for this specific interface. 
 

No. Term Definition 
1 Adapter A .NET module used to access a data source 

(text file, database, web service) in a platform-
independent manner using a single 
programmatic interface. 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 32 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 33 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



No. Term Definition 
2 Street Segment Street segments break at bridges and 

intersections, where street name changes, and 
at jurisdictional boundaries.  The exception 
being that, Alleys do not break street 
segments. 

3 Street ID Created by Hansen Street Coordinator 
according to existing work flow; identifies 
unique street name 

4 Street Segment ID Created by Autodesk Street Coordinator 
according to existing workflow; identifies unique 
street segment 

5 GIS FID Created by Autodesk software; identifies 
unique street segment 

6 Regional GIS Regional Street GIS file and associated 
attribute definitions  

7 Hansen Destination Hansen V8 Street Module and associated 
attribute definitions 

8 Autodesk Attribute Autodesk Street (industry model) attribute 
definitions to be defined by Autodesk during 
design and build of interface 

 

1.9 Requirements 
 
Other than retrieving street and street segment IDs from Hansen, the Street Interface will be a 
unidirectional interface which will move data from Autodesk to Hansen. 
 

1. Migrate Street Data from City Datasets (ESRI SHP file format) Autodesk will migrate the 
City’s existing street data’. Activities performed by Autodesk for this activity are: 

i. Add data model feature for street – street segment relationship Ensure that 
Hansen fields are correctly linked (meaning that keys between the two systems 
are correct) 

ii. Create domains from Hansen values for certain GIS fields. Note that this will 
mean that the actual values stored in Hansen will be stored in the Autodesk/Oracle 
GIS. Instead of ID values for Autodesk domains, character values indicating the 
Hansen domain will be stored. 

iii. The customer must supply any mappings between existing GIS street data 
attribute values and Hansen attributes values prior to migration.  

 
2. Create Generalized Custom Control Autodesk will complete the following activities. 

i. Create generalized custom control to read domain values dynamically from 
Hansen 

ii. Develop forms that use the custom control 
 

3. Implement GIS-Hansen Interface for Streets Autodesk will implement a GIS-Hansen 
interface for streets. Activities performed by Autodesk for this activity are: 

iv. Add streets to the domain model 
i. Add adapters for GIS 
ii. Add adapters for Hansen 

 
4. Overview Training on Street Data Model and Configuration Autodesk will provide a single 
eight (8) hour overview training session to CITY covering the street data model and 
configuration. Training will take place remotely and will build on the topics covered in previous 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 33 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 34 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by sowa2378

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
xx 2



training. The number of attendees will be limited to any online limitations the system delivery 
process will support. 

1.10   Deliverables (subject to formal acceptance) 
 
Configured Map 3D geospatial solution for Streets installed on the CITY testing and production 
environments as set forth in this SDD. 
 

2 Test Scenarios 
The follow list of Test Cases are designed to fully test the Interface with the listed anticipated 
scenarios 
 
 

No. Test Description RLID Address Log 
Results 

1 Create new street segment   
2 Update existing street segment   
3 Expire street segment   
    
    
    
    
    

 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 34 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 35 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



3 Street Segment Attribute: Transferred from Autodesk to Hansen 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 35 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 36 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 36 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 37 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



4 Street Segment Attribute: To remain within Autodesk  
The following table contains fields (where indicated with “yes” in the ACAD column) to remain in Autodesk Industry Model. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 37 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 38 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 38 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 39 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 39 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 40 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 40 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 41 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 41 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 42 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



4 Roles and Timelines 
The table below indicates the tasks in reference to the Design, Development, and Testing of the 
Interface including the tentative dates, and persons responsible for completing each task. 
 
Deliverables Start Date Complete 

Date 
Owner Autodesk 

Responsibility 
Client 
Responsibility 

Street GIS Dataset February February SPFLD Acknowledge 
Receipt 

Post Data 

Mappings between 
existing GIS street 
data attribute 
values and 
Hansen attribute 
values 

February February SPFLD Acknowledge 
Receipt 

Post Data 

 February March Autodesk Migrate Street 
Data from City 
Datasets 

Be available 
for Q/A 

 February March Autodesk Create 
Generalized 
Custom Control 

Be available 
for Q/A 

 February March Autodesk Implement GIS-
Hansen Interface 
for Streets 

Be available 
for Q/A 

GIS-Hansen 
Interface for 
Streets 

March April Autodesk Provide required 
files and 
instructions for 
client to install 
interface 

Install and test 

Training on Street 
Data Model and 
Configuration 
 

March April Autodesk Schedule and 
provide (8) hours 
of remote training 

Assist with 
scheduling and 
attend training 

 
*All to occur 2013 

 

5 References 
The following documents have been used in the preparation of this document. 
 
No. Title Date Author(s) Version 
1     
2     

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 42 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 43 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



 

   

                                                            

                     
 

 
 
 

CHANGE ORDER # City_Of_Springfield-011013-02-BB-DAW 
Geospatial Solution Consulting – City of Springfield 

 
 

TO TASK ORDER # CITY_OF_SPRINGFIELD-101011-BB-BS  
Geospatial Solution Consulting – City of Springfield 

  
SERVICES TYPE: CONSULTING 

 
This Change Order No. City_Of_Springfield-011013-02-BB-DAW  to Task Order CITY_OF_SPRINGFIELD-
101011-BB-BS is issued under the terms of the City of Springfield Independent Contractor Agreement #587 
(“Agreement”) by and between Autodesk, Inc (“Autodesk”) and City of Springfield (“Customer”). The terms and 
conditions of that Agreement shall apply to this Change Order unless expressly set forth otherwise in this Change 
Order. 
 
This change order is made effective as of January 21, 2013 (“Change Order Effective Date”)  
 
Whereas both parties now desire to make certain mutually agreeable modifications to the Task Order;  
 
Now therefore, the parties agree to modify the Task Order as follows: 

1. SCOPE OF WORK CHANGE DESCRIPTION 

Autodesk and Customer hereby agree to modify to the Scope of Work set forth in the Task Order. Customer 
wishes to modify the Scope of Work P50238 for the Task Order City_of_Springfield-101011-BB-BS with the 
addition of the following tasks to Section IV: TASKS. 

 
Task 7: Springfield Entity ID Data Change 
 
Autodesk will complete the following activities to modify Entity ID data for use within the Solution.   

 
1. Review requirements specification: 

 

Scope must remain within the parameters such that the UNITID will: 

 
a) Remain NVARCHAR2 (note that the numeric type of FID is a ten digit number. It is assumed that 

this will be sufficient as long as the FID sequence is not artificially increased) 
 

b) Be automatically populated by a Feature Rule. 
 

c) Will be either the FID of the leaf feature class or the FID of the parent feature class. 
 

d) This estimate includes document review, web conferences and conference calls to ensure that 
there is complete agreement on the scope of the change. 

 

2. Prepare data for conversion by Hansen. 
 

3. Implement conversion on GIS side.  Create job to contain edits. Develop and verify update script. Perform 
update, and promote job. 
 

4. Identify Hansen Interface work 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 43 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 44 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



 

   

                                                            

                     
 

 
a) Make sure that the views and incoming and outgoing interfaces do not change significantly. 

 
5. Implement Hansen Interface changes 
 

Deliverables (subject to formal acceptance):  
 Configured Map 3D geospatial solution with modifications described in this Task installed on the CITY 

testing environment 
 

Assumptions:  
 The views need to be updated to retrieve the UNITID consistently. 
 The UNITID is used to search and update both node and edge objects - UNITIDs of connected nodes 

must be verified for the edge. 
 
 

2. DELIVERABLES CHANGE DESCRIPTION 

Autodesk and Customer hereby agree to modify the Deliverables set forth in the Task Order as follows:  

Addition of Task 7 Deliverable. 

3.  WORK LOCATION AND FACILITIES:  

 No Change 

4. PRICING CHANGE DESCRIPTION 

 
 Fixed Fee: Autodesk will provide the Services and Deliverables for a fixed fee of $6,600. This fee 

does not include courseware (hard costs or shipping charges), or applicable taxes. 
 

Autodesk shall pay the milestone payment amounts according to the following schedule: 

Milestone Milestone Payment Amount 

Completion of Task 7 $6,600 

Total: $6,600 

 
Payment is due in accordance with the Agreement. 

5. SCHEDULE CHANGE DESCRIPTION 

No Change.   

6. CHANGE ORDER ACCEPTANCE: 

Except as otherwise set forth in this Change Order, the provisions of the Agreement and the Task Order shall 
remain in full force and effect. Each party has read, understands and agrees to the terms and conditions of 
this Change Order.  
 
Each of the parties has caused this Change Order to be executed and does hereby warrant and represent 
that its respective signatory whose signature appears below has been and is on the date set forth above duly 
authorized by all necessary and appropriate corporate action to execute and make binding this Change  
Order. 

 
   

AUTODESK, INC.  City of Springfield 

ATTACHMENT 1

C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 44 of 44C587 AutoDesk First Amend Page 45 of 45

sowa2378
Typewritten Text
x 2



- AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 3/4/2013 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Bob Duey 
 Staff Phone No: X 3740 
 Estimated Time: 10 minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Financially Responsible 
and Stable Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE: MASTER FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Council is requested to hold a public hearing and a first reading of the following 
ordinance:  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGFIELD AMENDING ARTICLE 1, TABLE 3-A STRUCTURAL 
PERMIT FEES; TABLE 3-B ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES; TABLE 3-C 
PLUMBING PERMIT FEES; TABLE 3-D MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES; 
TABLE 3-F OTHER INSPECTION AND FEES OF THE “SPRINGFIELD 
BUILDING SAFETY CODE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE” OF THE 
SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT & PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT; 
COMMNITY SERVICES DIVISION “BUILDING SAFETY CODES”. 
 
Council is requested to hold a public hearing on the following resolution with no 
action requested as this time: 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGFIELD ADOPTING A  MASTER FEES AND CHARGES 
SCHEDULE FOR FEES, CHARGES,  RATES, PERMITS AND LICENSES 
AS ESTABLISHED BY THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE. 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Each year, Council and staff review existing fees and charges for appropriateness 
of the rate for meeting cost recovery targets as well as reviewing for areas where 
new or additional fees should be considered.  Council met in work sessions on 
February 4th and February 19th to discuss staff’s recommendations and is being 
asked to conduct two public hearing on this topic.  The first is for amending fees 
contained in the Building Safety Code and the second is for all other fees and 
charges authorized by the Springfield Municipal Code.  The ordinance change is a 
first reading only and staff will bring back both items for final adoption of March 
18th for an April 1 implementation date.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1:  Council Briefing Memorandum 
Attachment 2:  Master Fees and Charges Schedule  

Exhibit A: List of Fees and Charges Changes 
Exhibit B: Section 6: Building and Safety Code Changes 
Exhibit C: Section 1: General Fees Inflationary  
Exhibit D: Section 2: Fire Life and Safety Inflationary 
Exhibit E: Section 7: Engineering Inflationary  

Attachment 3:  Resolution and Springfield Municipal Code Schedule of Rates, 
Permits, Licenses, Fees and Charges 

Attachment 4:  Ordinance of the Common Council Building Safety Code 
DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

See Council Briefing Memorandum 
 
 
 

 



M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield 2/28/2013  

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 3 
 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 3/4/2013  

To: Gino Grimaldi COUNCIL 

From: Bob Duey, Finance Director BRIEFING 

Subject: MASTER FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE: Each year, Council and staff review existing fees and charges for appropriateness of the 
rate for meeting cost recovery targets as well as reviewing for areas where new or additional fees 
should be considered.  Council met in work sessions on February 4th and February 19th to discuss 
staff’s recommendations and is being asked to conduct two public hearing on this topic.  The 
first is for amending fees contained in the Building Safety Code and the second is for all other 
fees and charges authorized by the Springfield Municipal Code.  The ordinance change is a first 
reading only and staff will bring back both items for final adoption on March 18th for an April 1 
implementation date.  
 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Financially Responsible and Stable Government Services 
Adopted City policies recognize that the funding sources for different services vary greatly from 
full cost recovery to full tax subsidy to outside grants to a combination of many different 
sources.  Review of rates, sources and cost recovery models on a regular basis is important to 
ensure that citizens are able to receive maximum service for the resources available. 
 

BACKGROUND: The City’s schedule of fees and charges were established by Council action 
and were contained in several different documents.  Each of these was reviewed regularly on a 
rotating basis.  These documents were: 
 

• Master Schedule of Fees and Charges  Established by the Municipal Code 
             The Municipal Code provides the right for the City to establish a fee or charge against 

the cost of providing a particular service.  In some cases the specific amount of the fee 
itself is contained in the municipal code.  In these cases it takes the passage of an 
ordinance by the Council to change the actual fee.   Example of fees that are included in 
this category are business license, sanitary and storm water rates, technology fees and 
SaniPac franchise fees.  There are no recommended changes in these fees at this time.  

 
• Master Schedule of Miscellaneous Fees and Charges Authorized within the Municipal 

Code, Development Code or Fire Code 
             The Municipal, Development and Fire Codes provide the right for the City to establish a 

fee or charge against the cost of providing a particular service.   In these cases the 
specific amount of the fee itself is not contained in the respected codes, only the 
authorization to levy the fee.  In these cases it takes the passage of a resolution by the 
Council to change the actual fee.  Examples of major fees that are included in this 
category are the City’s planning fees, ambulance transport fees, system development 
charges and hazardous material inspection and storage fees.  The attachments describing 



MEMORANDUM 2/28/2013  

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 3 
 

the recommended changes for this section are identified below.   
 

• Master Schedule of Fees and Charges Contained by the Building Code 
             The Building Code provides the right for the City to establish a fee or charge against the 

cost of providing a particular service.  In the Building Code the specific amount of the 
fee itself is contained within the code.  In these cases in takes the passage of an 
ordinance by the Council to change the actual fee.   But prior to the passage by Council, 
all building fees that are regulated by the State Building Code must first be presented to 
the State and follow a specific public hearing notice schedule.  Examples of major fees 
that are included in this category are the City’s building permits, plumbing inspection 
and electrical inspection fees.   The attachments describing the recommended changes 
for this section are identified below.   

 
Although the authority or authorization to change fees either through an ordinance amending the 
Springfield Municipal Code, and ordinance amending the Building Safety Code or a resolution 
to adjust individual fees will not change, staff has recommended a format change to displaying 
all City fees to make the complete review more readable by Council or members of the public.  
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO EXISTING FEES AND CHARGES 
Many of the existing fees and charges by the City have been established with a certain 
percentage of cost recovery factored into the rate.  The target for cost recovery varies greatly 
from fee to fee as some services are expected to generate enough revenue to fully pay for the 
service while others may have no or a modest fee only.  When adjusting fees during this type of 
review, this is kept in mind as well as the cost factors that go into each fee.  Cost of labor is 
usually one of the most significant costs, with the City relying on consumer price indexes and 
actual labor contract terms to help make these adjustments.  Also the number of years since the 
last increase is taken into consideration as two similar type fees may have different percentage 
increases if one had been increased just last year while the other may not have been adjusted for 
2 to 3 years.   
 
Attachment 2 is the new Master Fees and Charges booklet that consolidates all City fees and 
charges, adopted by City Council resolutions and ordinances, for various services that the City 
provides.  For ease of reference and to consolidate efforts a new booklet is being prepared for 
consideration.  This updated booklet reflects all current fees and charges and the proposed 
changes.   
 
Exhibit A identifies the fees which are being considered for change in the new Master Fees & 
Charges Schedule.  Many of the fees in this attachment have not been adjusted since 2008 and 
include changes for Municipal, Non Municipal, and Building Code.   
 
Exhibit B identifies the Building Code fees that were discussed in two work session on Feb 4th 
and Feb 19th.  Under guidance by Council this exhibit is the tiered increase with fees for lower 
value permits being increased more than fees for higher value permits.   As noted in the work 
sessions, Springfield has not increased building permit fees since 2009 or specialty permit fees 
since 2007. 
 
Exhibit C Section 1 General Fees, Exhibit D Fire Life & Safety, and Exhibit E Engineering 
identify additional fees that require inflationary changes.  During the Feb 4th, 2013 work session 



MEMORANDUM 2/28/2013  

Attachment 1, Page 3 of 3 
 

Council requested the inclusion of fees that should be routinely adjusted for inflation changes in 
the market.  These exhibits list those fees that staff recommends for increase. 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO  FUTURE FEES AND CHARGES 
Additional sections in the Master Fee & Charges Schedule were considered for changes however 
it is recommended by staff that these sections be considered for changes at a later date.  For 
Section 8: Planning additional work sessions will be held to identify and seek direction from 
Council.  Section 9: Utilities the Stormwater and Wastewater fees will be reviewed in April 
2013 and Section 10: System Development Charges are annually increased by an inflationary 
rate on July 1st of each year.   
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Council is requested to hold two (2) public hearing on the 
recommended fees and charges.  The first public hearing is for Attachment 2 Exhibit B Building 
Safety Code changes.  The second public hearing is for Attachment 2 Exhibit A and the 
proposed additional inflationary changes in Exhibits C, D and E.  
 
No action is being asked of Council this evening.  A second reading of the proposed ordinance 
and final adoption of the resolution is planned for the consent calendar on March 18th for an 
effective date of April 01, 2013.  
 

 



City of Springfield
Master Fees and 
Charges Schedule

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 87



 

Attachment 2, Page 2 of 87



City of Springfield, Oregon 

Springfield is a family‐friendly community where a healthy economy and numerous historical 

aspects of Oregon’s past have blended into a vibrant place to call home.  Springfield is adjacent 

to I‐5 and nestled between two rivers.  The McKenzie River is world‐famous for fly fishing and 

summer steelhead.  The Willamette River also boasts excellent fishing and is popular for 

whitewater rafting. 

This Master Fees and Charges schedule consolidates all City fees and charges, adopted by City 

Council resolutions, for the various services that the City provides.  It is scheduled to be updated 

semi‐annually and reflects all fee resolutions passed by Council during the year.   

Fee Variance and Waiver Statement 

Based upon an unusual circumstance or event, past practices, demonstrated hardship, or public 

benefit, the City Manager is authorized to waive or decrease a fee(s) or charge(s) in a particular 

matter or establish a fee not yet authorized in this resolution. When a new fee is established by 

the City Manager it may be incorporated into this resolution. It shall be communicated to 

Council in writing to allow opportunity for comment. 

The request for a waiver or reduction may be in writing. If the City Manager or his designee 

agrees to said waiver or reduction, he/she may inform the City Council, in writing, of the request 

and his/her decision, except in minor matters. 

The City of Springfield has three types of fees and charges with different methodologies for 

changing them: 

 Master Schedule of Fees and Charges  Established by the Municipal Code 

The Municipal Code provides the right for the City to establish a fee or charge against 

the cost of providing a particular service.  In some cases the specific amount of the fee 

itself is contained in the municipal code.  In these cases in takes the passage of an 

ordinance by the Council to change the actual fee.   Example of fees that are included in 

this category are business license, sanitary and storm water rates, technology fees and 

SaniPac franchise fees.   

 Master Schedule of Miscellaneous Fees and Charges Authorized within the Municipal 
Code, Development Code or Fire Code 

The Municipal, Development and Fire Codes provide the right for the City to establish a 

fee or charge against the cost of providing a particular service.   In these cases the 

specific amount of the fee itself are not contained in the respected codes, only the 

authorization to levy the fee.  In these cases in takes the passage of a resolution by the 

Council to change the actual fee.  Examples of major fees that are included in this 

category are the City’s planning fees, ambulance transport fees, system development 

charges and hazardous material inspection and storage fees.   

 Master Schedule of Fees and Charges  Contained Established by the Building Code 

The Building Code provides the right for the City to establish a fee or charge against the 

cost of providing a particular service.  In the Building Code the specific amount of the 
Attachment 2, Page 3 of 87



fee itself is contained within the code.  In these cases in takes the passage of an 

ordinance by the Council to change the actual fee.   But prior to the passage by Council, 

all building fees that are regulated by the State Building Code must first be presented to 

the State and follow a specific public hearing notice schedule.  Examples of major fees 

that are included in this category are the City’s building permits, plumbing inspection 

and electrical inspection fees. 

 

   

Attachment 2, Page 4 of 87



 

 

Table of Contents 

Section 1: General ........................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 2: Fire Life and Safety ......................................................................................................... 9 

Section 3:  Library Services ............................................................................................................ 13 

Section 4:  Municipal Court ........................................................................................................... 15 

Section 5:  Police............................................................................................................................ 19 

Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees .............................................................................................. 21 

Section 7:  Engineering Services .................................................................................................... 29 

Section 8:  Planning Services ......................................................................................................... 37 

Section 9:  Utilities ......................................................................................................................... 51 

Section 10:  System Development Charges ................................................................................... 69 

Exhibits .......................................................................................................................................... 73 

 

Attachment 2, Page 5 of 87



   

Attachment 2, Page 6 of 87



    Section 1: General Fees 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 1 
 

Section 1: General 
The following fees shall be charged for the general activities of the City: 

(ORS 192.440 (3))  
Oregon Revised Statue authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to reimburse it 
for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for summarizing, compiling, or tailoring 
such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request. 

 

Business License 
(SMC 7.000)   Only specific businesses are required to obtain a business license.  See the following list. 
All business license applications shall be made to the city manager. If a proposed business requires a 
business license the application and approval of the license shall occur prior to operation of any business 
requiring a business license. 
See SMC 7.000 for conditions of a license 

 
Alarm System (Business) License 
(SMC 7.012, 7.024) No person shall establish, maintain or operate an alarm system, alarm business or 
alarm agent within the city unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every alarm system, 
alarm business or alarm agent, whether for hire or not, shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter. 
Each licensee shall meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. Fire alarms are exempt 
from licensing requirements.  

    Initial Fee  $50.00 
    Renewal fee  $10.00 
  Alarm Agent  Per 2‐year cycle  $30.00 
  Alarm Business  Per year  $80.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Antique/Secondhand Dealer License 
(SMC 7.102) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a used merchandise dealer business within the 
city unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a used 
merchandise dealer carries on, shall be deemed a used merchandise dealer subject to the provisions of 
sections 7.100 to 7.112. Each licensee shall meet the applicable standards as described in sections 7.000 
to 7.112. 
For further restrictions see SMC 7.102. 

    Per year   $130.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Auctioneer License 
(SMC 7.126)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate as an auctioneer within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where an auctioneer is engaged in 
auctioneering whether for hire or not, shall be deemed an auctioneer is subject to the Springfield 
Municipal Code. 

  Per year   $150.00  
    Per day   $60.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 2, Page 7 of 87



Section 1: General Fees     

Page 2      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Auto‐Wrecker License 
(SMC 7.134) No person shall establish, maintain or operate an auto wrecking business within the city 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where auto wrecking is 
carried on, whether for hire or not, is considered an auto wrecker subject to the provisions of the 
Springfield Municipal Code. 

    Per year   $60.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Carnival/Circus License 
(SMC 7.146)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate a carnival or circus within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a carnival or circus is offered, 
whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a carnival or circus is subject to the Springfield Municipal Code. 

  Per day  $300.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Christmas Tree Sales Lot/Firework Sales Lot 
(SMC 7.156) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a fireworks sales lot or a Christmas tree sales 
lot within the city unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every fireworks sales lot and 
Christmas tree sales lot, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a fireworks sales lot or Christmas tree 
sales lot. 

      Per year   $30.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Dance Hall License 
(SMC 7.168)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate a dance hall within the city unless a license for 
that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a dance hall is carried on, whether for 
hire or not, is considered a dance hall subject to the Springfield Municipal Code and each licensee shall 

meet the standards described in SMC 7.168.  Initial   $150.00  
  Renewal   $75.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Detective Agency License 
(SMC 7.180)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a detective within the city unless a license 
for that use is obtained from the city. Every private detective, whether for hire or not, is considered a 
private detective subject to the provisions of SMC 7.170 to 7.180 and shall meet the standards as 
described in SMC 7.000 to 7.006. 

  3 or more employees   per year  $300.00  
  Less than 3 employees   per year  $210.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Door to Door Solicitor License 
(SMC 7.216) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a door‐to‐door solicitor within the city 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every door‐to‐door solicitor, whether for hire or 
not, shall be deemed a door‐to‐door solicitor subject SMC 7.200 to 7.216. 

    Per year   $40.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 2, Page 8 of 87



    Section 1: General Fees 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 3 
 

Electrical Merchandise License 
(SMC 7.226) No person shall offer for sale electrical products within the city unless a license for that use is 
obtained from the city. Every place or building where electrical products are for sale is subject to the SMC 
7.220 to 7.226.     
    Per year   $31.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
First Aid Operator License 
(SMC 7.258) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a first aid vehicle business within the city 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every first aid vehicle business, whether for hire or 
not, is considered a first aid vehicle business subject to the SMC 7.240 to 7.258. 

    Per year  $200.00  
    and Per Vehicle   $50.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Garage Sales License 
(SMC 7.268) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a garage sale within the city unless a license 
for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a garage sale is held shall be 
considered a garage sale subject to the SMC.     
      No Charge 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Liquor License 
(SMC 7.304) The Oregon Liquor Control Commission requires every applicant for a license to sell spirits, 
wines, beers, and other alcoholic liquors to obtain a recommendation in writing from the city council. 

  Initial    $100.00 
  Change   $75.00 
  Renewal  $35.00 
  Special Liquor  $25.00/daily 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sale and Distribution of Tobacco and Tobacco Products to Minors‐License Fees 
 (SMC 5.300 (2) No tobacco retailer’s license shall be issued or continue to be valid unless the holder has 
paid the fees as required by this section.   

  First License   $70.00  
  Annual Renewal and/or change or ownership   $45.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park License 
(SMC 7.314) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a manufactured dwelling park within the city 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a manufactured 
dwelling park is offered, whether for hire or not, shall be considered a manufactured dwelling park 
subject to the SMC and shall meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 

  25 spaces   Per year  $25.00 
  26‐50 spaces   Per year  $50.00 
  51‐75 spaces   Per year  $75.00 
  76‐100 spaces   Per year  $100.00 
  each space over 100   Per year  $100.00+ .50 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 

Attachment 2, Page 9 of 87



Section 1: General Fees     

Page 4      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

 
Pool/Billiard Room License 
(SMC 7.326) No person shall establish, maintain or operate pool rooms and billiard rooms within the city 
unless a license for that use obtained from the city. Every place or building where pool rooms and billiard 
rooms are offered, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a pool room or billiard room  and is subject to 
the SMC 7.320 to 7.326. Each licensee shall meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006.  

  First Table   Per year  $50.00 + $25.00 
  Second Table   Per year  $20.00 
  Third Table   Per year  $15.00 
  Fourth Table   Per year  $10.00 
  Each Table Thereafter   Per year  $5.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Public Passenger License (Issued by City of Eugene) 
(SMC 7.332) No person or business may operate a public passenger vehicle company without a public 
passenger vehicle company license; however, an unlicensed public passenger vehicle operating outside 
the jurisdictional limits of Eugene and Springfield may deliver a fare from outside those limits to a location 
within the limits, and if the vehicle waits for the person, retrieve the person for the return trip back 
outside the jurisdictional limits. No unlicensed public passenger vehicle company may solicit or accept any 
passenger within the city limits except as provided in this subsection. 

 
Rental Sales License 
(SMC 7.344) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a rental property within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained. Every place or building where rentals are offered, whether for hire or not, 
is considered a rental property subject to the SMC 7.340 to 7.344 and shall meet the standards as 
described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 

  Starts at Four Plex and above  Per Unit  $10.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Shooting Area License 
(SMC 7.358) An applicant for a shooting area business license shall apply to the Development Services and 
Public Works Department prior to opening a shooting area facility. See SMC 7.358 for conditions of 
operation. 

  Per Year  $120.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sidewalk Café Permit 
(Resolution 05‐13, SMC 7.900‐7.908)  In the downtown district only, the city manager, or the manager’s 
designee, may issue a revocable permit for an outdoor café allowing for the service of food and beverages 
at facilities placed on sidewalks within the public right‐of‐way abutting an existing eating establishment.  
See SMC 7.900 for the conditions. 

    Per Permit  $25.00 
 
Social Games 
(SMC 5.254)(1)  Social Games Prohibited/Exception. “Social games,” as defined in ORS 167.117 are 
prohibited within the corporate limits of the city of Springfield, except: 
    (a)  Social games between players in private homes or social games conducted by charitable, 
fraternal, religious or non‐profit organizations where no house player, house bank or house odds exist and 
there is no house income; and 

Attachment 2, Page 10 of 87



    Section 1: General Fees 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 5 
 

    (b)  Pursuant to SMC section 5.258, The Springfield Social Gaming Code/Texas Holdem Poker 
Card Tournament. 
  (2)  “Non‐Profit Organization” Defined. For the purpose of this section, “non‐profit organization” 
means any person organized and existing for charitable, benevolent, eleemosynary, humane, 
philanthropic, educational, civic or other non‐profit purposes. The fact that an organization does qualify 
for charitable deduction for tax purposes or that organization is otherwise exempted from payment of 
federal income taxes pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, constitutes prima facie 
evidence that the organization is a non‐profit organization. 
  (3)  “House” Defined. Includes owner of business, private club, or place of public accommodation, 
and owner’s spouse, children of owner or spouse, owner’s brothers, sisters, or parents, or a business in 
which one of the foregoing named individual is associated. A license for the house is required by section 
5.258(3) of this code. 
  (4)  “Tournament Organizer” Defined. A person other than the house who organizes the tournament, 
including but not limited to provision of poker chips and playing cards. A license for the tournament 
organizer is required by section 5.258(3) of this code. 
  (5)  The offenses specified in subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) are punishable as violations and may 
include a fine not exceeding $720.00 pursuant to SMC section 1.205. [Section 5.254 amended by 
Ordinance No. 6140, enacted August 1, 2005; further amended by Ordinance No. 6169, enacted May 15, 
2006.] 

  Per year  $100.00 
  Renewal  $100.00 
 
Sound Truck/Car License 
(SMC 7.364) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a sound truck or car within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the city. Every vehicle used as a sound truck or car, whether for hire 
or not, is considered a sound truck or car subject to the provisions of the SMC and each licensee shall 
meet the standards described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 

  Per Year  $50.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Special Event License 
(SMC 7.404 (1)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate a special event within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a special event is held, 
whether for hire or not, is considered a special event subject to the provisions of SMC 7.400 to 7.422. and 
each licensee shall meet the standards set forth in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
  (2)  If the special event is to include a parade, as that term is defined in section 6.505, then a parade 
permit shall also be obtained from the Springfield police department. The city may require other licenses 
or permits if the special will include other activities requiring permits or licenses under the applicable 
sections of the Springfield code. The need for other permits shall be determined by the city during the 
departmental review process under section 7.406. 
  (3)  The granting of a special event license shall not relieve any person of the responsibility to satisfy 
all code requirements respecting the manner in which the special event is conducted. 

  Per Application  $94.00 
  Event with Liquor  $119.00 + $25.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected only on non‐liquor 
fee. 
 
Tobacco Vending License 
(SMC 7.454) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a tobacco vending machine within the city 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a tobacco vending 
machine is offered, whether for hire or not, is considered a tobacco vending machine subject to the 

Attachment 2, Page 11 of 87



Section 1: General Fees     

Page 6      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

provisions of SMC 7.450 to 7.454 and each licensee shall meet the standards as described in sections 
7.000 to 7.006. 

  Per year  $30.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Transient Merchant License 
(SMC 7.476) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a transient merchant within the city unless 
a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every transient merchant, whether for hire or not, is 
considered a transient merchant subject to the provisions of SMC 7.470 to 7.476. and each licensee shall 
meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 

  Per Day  $15.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Vending on City Streets Street Vending License 
(SMC 7.808) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a vendor within the city unless a license for 
that use is obtained from the city. Every person operating as a vendor shall be deemed a vendor on city 
streets subject to the provisions of SMC 7.800 to 7.808 and each licensee shall meet the standards as 
described in sections 7.000 to 7.006.  

  There is no license fee associated with this 
license. 
 

Other General Fees 
Bike Path Maps 
    Per map  $4.95 
Available online at no charge.  
www.springfield‐or.gov/Pubworks/EngineeringTransportation/documents/SpringfieldMap.pdf  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
GIS Rates (Standard) 
(Intergovernmental Agreement with Lane Council of Governments per ORS 190.050 providing 
authorization to impose and collect reasonable fees based on market prices or competitive bids for 
geographic data that have commercial value and are an entire formula, pattern, compilation, program, 
device, method, technique, process, database or system developed with a significant expenditure of public 
funds. 

 
Planimetrics  Hourly rate (1 hour minimum)  $66.00 
  Up to 50 acres  $90.00 
  Charge per additional acre above 45  $2.00 
  Charge per map sheet (approx. 138 acres)  $275.00 
  Charge per square mile (640 acres)  $1,280 
  Plus time in excess of 1 hour   $60/per hour 
Half foot Orthophotography   Hourly rate  $66.00 
    One image  $40.00 
    Charge per additional image  $40.00 
    Plus hourly rate   $60.00 
Plot Requests 
    Standard City Maps (without Orthos)  $49.50 
    Standard City Maps (with Orthos)  $55.00 
  Custom Plot Request: Plot Compilation and Plotting Charge/ per hour  $66.00 

Attachment 2, Page 12 of 87



    Section 1: General Fees 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 7 
 

  Custom Plot Request: Copy of a Completed Plot/per linear foot  $6.60 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Technology Fee 
(Resolution 11‐24) The Technology Fee is applied to the specific charges and fees identified in the above‐
named fee schedules when collected or imposed. 

Five percent of specific development‐related charges and fees in the Building Safety Code Fee 
Schedule, the Master Schedule of Rates, Permits, Licenses and Other Fees and Charges in the 
Municipal Code, and the Master Schedule of Miscellaneous Fees and Charges, Rates and 
Licenses. 
 

Public Records Fees 
(ORS 192.440 (3))  
Oregon Revised Statute authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to reimburse it 
for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for summarizing, compiling or tailoring 
such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request. 

 
Photocopy Charge Citywide  
(noted exceptions are Development and Public Works, Fire and Life Safety, Library, Municipal Court, Police 
reports.) 

 No Charge for first 5 pages or first half‐hour of research 
time. 

  Thereafter  $.10/page 
    Plus actual cost of City staff time and 

materials required to complete the 
request. 

 
 

Attachment 2, Page 13 of 87



Section 2 Fire Life and Safety  

Page 8      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

   

Attachment 2, Page 14 of 87



    Section 2 Fire Life and Safety  

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 9 
 

Section 2: Fire Life and Safety 
The following fees shall be charged for the Fire & Life Safety activities of the City: 

Ambulance & Emergency Services User Fees  
(Fire Code and City of Springfield resolutions) 

 
Emergency and Non‐Emergency Transport Rates 

  Base Rate   $1600 
  Base Rate (Non‐Resident)*  $1800 
*Live outside the Springfield Fire & Life Safety First‐In Response Area 
  Mileage Rate (per patient mile)**  $20 
**Pro‐rated for multiple patients transported in same medic unit. 
 

Pre‐Scheduled Non‐Emergency Basic Life Support 

  Base Rate  $400 

  Mileage Rate (per patient mile)  $20 
 

Sit‐up Patients 

  Base Rate  $800 

  Base Rate (Non‐Resident)  $900 

  Mileage Rate (per patient mile)  $20 
 

Aid Call 

  Base Rate  $800 

  Base Rate (Non‐Resident)   $900 
 

Helicopter Calls 
Helicopter Transport     Actual Vendor Charge 

In addition to helicopter and pilot direct vendor charges, base rate and mileage charges will 
apply if transported by paramedic ambulance to helicopter location for further transport. 
 

Other EMS Fees 

  Waiting Time (First ½ hour)  no charge 

  Waiting Time (per ½ hour, after first ½ hour)  $60 

  Extra Attendant  $75 

  Ambulance Stand‐by (per hour; 2 hour minimum)  $150 

  Stand‐by On Scene Coordinator (per hour)  $60 

 

FireMed Memberships 

  Regular membership, per household, per year  $62 

  Job Care membership, per household, per year  $57 

 

Attachment 2, Page 15 of 87



Section 2 Fire Life and Safety  

Page 10      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Fire Marshal’s Office Fees 

Authority to collect fees set by Springfield Fire Code. 

 

Fire Safety Inspections 

  Annual Inspection  no charge 

  1st Re‐Inspection  no charge 

  2nd Re‐Inspection  $25 

  Referral to Fire Marshal’s Office*  $60 

If referral inspection exceeds 1 hour, an additional $15 per quarter hour, or portion thereof, will 

be assessed. 

 

Fire Protection and Life Safety System Construction Permits 

  Permit Fee  $120 minimum 

Permit cost is 3% of valuation of work to be performed for the system up to a system’s contract 

value of $50,000; then $3.00 for each additional valuation of $1,000 or portion thereof. 

This formula will be applied to calculate fees for permits adopted in the City of Springfield Fire 

Code: 

105.7.1   Automatic fire extinguishing systems and appurtenances 

105.7. 1.1   Fire Suppression Sprinkler systems 

105.7. 1.2   Commercial kitchen hood suppression systems 

105.7.2   Battery Systems 

105.7.3   Compressed gases 

105.7.3.1   Detection systems, liquid and gas leak systems. 

105.7.4   Fire alarm and detection systems and related equipment. 

105.7.5   Fire pumps and related equipment.  

105.7.6   Flammable and combustible liquids.  

105.7.7   Hazardous materials.  

105.7.9   Private water mains and hydrant systems. 

105.7.10   Private fire hydrants 

105.7.11    Spraying or dipping. 

105.7.12.1  Standpipe systems. 
 

  Additional Staff Time (in excess of 2 hours)  $15 per qtr/hour 

Fees will be collected by the Development and Public Works department at issuance of the 

building permit as an additional fee. 

Fire Department New Construction Square Footage Fees 

    Residential Square Footage  $0.05/per sq ft 

    Commercial Square Footage  $0.10/per sq ft 

Applies to each square foot created requiring a building permit. Example: 1550 sq ft 

house x $0.05 = $77.50.  

Fees will be collected by the Development and Public Works department at issuance of the 

building permit as an additional fee. 

Attachment 2, Page 16 of 87



    Section 2 Fire Life and Safety  

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 11 
 

 
Operational Permit Fees 
Fee for inspection of occupancies requiring  

    Operational Permits (Annual)  $375 per permit 

Fee for inspection of occupancies requiring 

    Operational Permits (other than annual)  $375 per permit 

 

Licensed Facility Inspection Fees 

Fire Code compliance inspections are required as a condition of State licensing for various types 

of licensed facilities. Fees will be charged based on occupancy type as follows: 

 

Flat Rate 

Occupancy 
Type 

Inspection  Per hour after 2 
hrs 

1st Re‐
inspection 

2nd Re‐
inspection 

OT Rate per 
hour 

B, E  $175  $95 Included $95 $110 

I  $375  $95 Included $95 $110 

SR  $375  $95 Included $95 $110 

 

General Fees 

First Response Fees 

Fee applies when a fire engine company responds to a motor vehicle accident involving medical 

or rescue response. Only applies to residents outside the Springfield Fire & Life Safety First‐In 

Response Area. FireMed eligible. 

  Fire engine company response to Motor Vehicle Accident  $450 

 

Classes 

  CPR Training (non‐FireMed member)  $25 

  CPR Training (FireMed member)  $10 

 

Photocopy Charges 

(ORS 192.563) Oregon Revised Statute authorizes a health care provider that receives 

authorization to disclose protected health information (PHI) to be reimbursed according to 

the statute’s fee schedule. Therefore, the following photocopy charges apply: 

  Up to 10 pages  $10 

  Pages 11‐50  $0.50 per page 

  Each page over 50 pages  $0.25 per page 

  Postage costs to mail PHI  Actual cost 

  Preparation of summary of PHI (requested by individual)  Actual cost 

 

  (ORS 192.440(3)) Oregon Revised Statute authorizes the public body to establish fees 

reasonably calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available, 

including costs for summarizing, compiling or tailoring such records, either in organization or 

media, to meet the person’s request. The following charges apply: 

Attachment 2, Page 17 of 87

davi1275
Highlight



Section 2 Fire Life and Safety  

Page 12      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

    Fire reports  $10 per report 

    Other reports or documents  no charge for first 5 pages 

  $0.10 per page after 5 pages, plus actual cost of City staff time and materials required 

to complete the request.

   

Attachment 2, Page 18 of 87



    Section 3: Library 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 13 
 

Section 3:  Library Services 
The following fees shall be charged for the Library services of the City. 

General Fees  
(ORS 357.490 & 192.440) 
(SMC 2.462) Any and all fines and penalties received by the library in pursuance of the rules and 
regulations to be reviewed and recommended by the library board shall be collected by the library 
director and delivered to the city finance director at reasonable intervals. 

 
 Interlibrary Loans    $3.00 per item 
 
Non‐Resident Fee for Library Card    $80.00 per year 

    $46.00 per six months 
    $23.00 per three months 
    $9.00 per one month 
 

Overdue Item Fee 
  Videos     $0.50 per day per item, maximum of $5.00 per item 
  All other items   $0.25 per day per item, maximum of $5.00 per item 
 
   Photocopy Charge    $0.15 per copy (coin operated) 
 
   Printing Fee    $0.15 per page from public computers 
 
  Replacement Fee   Replacement of lost or damaged item – list price of item 
 
Re‐shelving fee 
  Unclaimed Hold  $1.00 each 
  Unclaimed Interlibrary Loan  $1.00 each 
 
Test Proctoring Fee    $25.00 per exam for out of city residents 
   

Attachment 2, Page 19 of 87



    Section 3: Library Services 

Page 14      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

 

 

   

Attachment 2, Page 20 of 87



    Section 4: Municipal Court 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 15 

Section 4:  Municipal Court 
The following fees shall be charged for the Municipal Court activities of the City. 

General Fees 

Certified Copies 
ORS 192.440 (3) authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to reimburse it for its 
actual costs in making such records available including costs for summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such 
records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request.  ORS 194.164 establishes the 
authority to charge notary fees up to the maximum fees provided in OAR 160‐100‐400. 

  Per file $500 plus $5.00 notary fee 
Collection Fees 
ORS 137.118 (a) provides the authority to charge and stipulates the maximum fee allowed to be 25% but 
not to exceed $250.00.  HB3737A (Admin), (Chapter 801) OR LOAWS 1997 Section 99 permits a municipal, 
justice, district, circuit court to recoup the cost of collection action made necessary by the failure of 
judgment debtors in criminal actions to pay timely deferred payment agreements. 

    25% but not to exceed $250.00 
Fee is to be assessed when payment is delinquent.  Fee assessment is not dependent upon 
assignment to a collection agency. 
 
Conviction Fee 
Graduated Fee schedule based on fine amount imposed or forfeiture amount.  Whenever the 
court forfeits money or imposes a sentence of a fine, including a sentence imposed and 
thereafter suspended, excluding parking violations, a fee in addition to such sentence shall be 
collected.  The fee is not part of the penalty or in lieu of any part thereof.   
The amount of the fee shall be as follows: 
   $5.00 to $14.99  $5.00 
  $15.00 to $49.00  $15.00 
  $50.00 to $99.99  $18.00 
  $100.00 to $249.00  $25.00 
  $250.00 to $499.99  $30.00 
  $500.00 or more  $66.00 
The court is not required to impose the fee if it finds that the defendant is indigent or that 
imposition of the assessment would constitute an undue hardship.  Payment to the court shall 
not be credited to the fee pursuant to ORS 137.295 until after crediting category 1 
(compensatory fines), category 2 (victim restitution) and category 3 (unitary assessment have 
been credited in full. 
 
Court Appointed Attorney Fee 
ORS 151.485 and ORS 161.665 provide the authority to collect and pay.  
  For failure to appear  $50.00 per case 
  If settled pre‐trial   $75.00 per case  
  If case goes to trial   $150.00 per case 
 
Deferred Prosecution Diversion Fee (non‐DUII) 
ORS 135.881 and ORS 161.665.  Determined by the Judge and/or City Prosecutor on a case by case 
basis 
         

Attachment 2, Page 21 of 87



Section 4: Municipal Court 

Page 16      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Distribution Fee 
ORS 137.309 (7) (b)  

15% administrative fee for collection of county assessment 
 
DUII Diversion Agreement Administrative Fee 
ORS 813.240 (b)  
ORS sets fee at $100.00 to be treated as provided for disposition of fines, costs, and forfeited 
bail under ORS 153.630. 
    $100 per case 
 
Jury Fee  
(SMC 2.370) Each juror shall be paid a fee for every day’s attendance at court to which that juror has been 
summoned and, in fact, attends, whether or not the juror actually serves as a juror at that trial.  

  Per day  $10.00  
 
Payment Agreement Fee 
(ORS 1.202) Authorizes fee for establishing and administering account for judgment that includes 
monetary obligation; fee for judgment.  (1) All circuit courts and appellate courts of this state and all 
commissions, departments and divisions of the judicial branch of state government, shall add a fee of not 
less than $25.00 and not more than $50.00 to any judgment that includes a monetary obligation that the 
court or judicial branch is charged with collecting.  

  For amounts up to $249.00 and/or first payment agreement  $25.00 
  For amounts $250.00 and above and/or for any 

payment agreement issued more than once as a result 
of delinquent action    $50.00 

  For any revision to an existing payment agreement 

  Per revision  $25.00 

 
Probation Court Supervision 
(ORS 137.540(a)) The court may sentence the defendant to probation, which shall be subject to the 
following general conditions unless specifically deleted by the court.  The probationer shall: (a) Pay 
supervision fees, fines, restitution or other fees ordered by the court.  

  Per month fee for probation supervision and monitoring of probation cases.  Will not 
apply to DUII or Deferred Prosecution Diversion cases.  $5.00 

 
Probation Violation Fee 
(ORS 137.540(a))  The court may sentence the defendant to probation, which shall be subject to the 
following general conditions unless specifically deleted by the court.  The probationer shall:  (a) pay 
supervision fees, fines, restitution or other fees ordered by the court. 

  For violation proceeding (appearance and show cause order) depending on 
complexity of proceeding.    $25.00‐$50.00 
Appearance orders:  generally    $25.00 
Show Cause: one issue only or first proceedings: generally  $25.00 
Show Cause; multiple issue or prior probation violation proceeding:  generally 
  Per Order  $50.00 

Fee will apply on any DUII Diversion or Deferred Prosectuion Diversion 
cases.  Fee may be waived at the discretion of the Judge. 
 
Re‐Open Fee 

Attachment 2, Page 22 of 87



    Section 4: Municipal Court 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 17 
 

Fee to reopen a case; to include costs to retrieve case, process documents for DMV to recall 
abstracts or retrieve disposition sheets. 
(ORS 192.440(3)) Oregon Revised Statute authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably 
calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for 
summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 
request. Resolution 11‐24 

    Per case  $30.00 
Security Releases 
(ORS 135.265) Oregon Revised Statute sets the fee 

    Of fee  15% 
    But not less than   $5.00 
    Or more than   $200.00 
 
Special Computer Reports 
(ORS 192.440(3))  Oregon Revised Statute authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably 
calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for 
summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 
request.  

    Per hour  $30.00 
    With minimum  $20.00 
 
Suspension Fee 
(ORS 809.267) sets amount of fee. 

      $15.00 
 
Warrant Fee 
(Criminal Code 161.665)  $50.00 

   

Attachment 2, Page 23 of 87



Section 4: Municipal Court 

Page 18      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

 
 

   

Attachment 2, Page 24 of 87



    Section 5: Police 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 19 
 

Section 5:  Police  
The following fees shall be charged for the Police activities of the City: 

Inmate Housing Fee 
Resolution 09‐15, ORS 169.151, ORS 137 540(1) 
    Per Day  $60.00 
Police Reports 
Photocopies 
    first 4 pages   $10.00 
    each page thereafter.   $0.50 
Certified Copies   
    first 4 pages   $15.00 
    each page thereafter.   $0.50 
 
Criminal History Requests   
    One original   $10.00 
    for first 4  $5 
    plus . each addl.   .75 
    Notarized original    $15.00 
    Each additional original   $1.00 
 
Military Police Record Checks   
    per request  $0.00 
 
Microfilm Reports   
    for the first 4 pages   $15.00 
    for each page   $0.50 
    thereafter. per report    $15 
 
Non‐Sufficient Funds Fee    $25.00 
 
Photographs    Actual cost with $5.00 minimum 
 
Special Computer Reports   
    Per hour   $30.00, with $20.00 minimum  
   
 
Video/Telephone/Radio Tapes      $25.00 per hour with $25.00 minimum 
 
Misc. Photocopies   
    first 5 pages   No charge 
    6 pages and more, plus research time   $0.10 per page 
 
Vehicle Impound Recovery    $125.00 
 

Warrant Fee 
(Criminal Code 161.665)    $50.00 

Attachment 2, Page 25 of 87



Section 5: Police 

Page 20      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

 
Dog Licenses  
(SMC 5.426 (3)) (3)  Fees. Dog license fees are due and payable upon the issuance of licenses. Fees 
shall be determined by council resolution. The types of licenses/fees required to be paid under the 
provisions of this code shall be as follows: 
  (a)  Dog License Fee—General. 
  (b)  Dog License Fee—Neutered. Dog keepers applying for this reduced fee must present a 

certificate from a licensed veterinarian stating that the dog to be licensed has been neutered. 
  (c)  Dog License Fee—Keepers, 60 Years of Age or Older. Dog owners applying for this reduced fee 

must present proper proof of age as well as proof of rabies vaccination for the dog to be 
licensed. 

  (d)  Duplicate License. 
  (e)  Commercial Kennel. 
  (f)  Impoundment. 
  (g)  Daily Care. 
  (h)  Watchdog. 
  (i)  Permits.   
    General Issue   $20.00  
    Neutered License   $10.00  
    Keeper 60+ years old   $5.00  
    Commercial License   $75.00  
    Duplicate License   $5.00  
    Watchdog License (in addition to dog license fee)  $20.00  
    Guide Dog/ADA companion dog license   FREE  
 
License Vietnamese Pig. 
(SMC 5.426 (6)) (6) (a)  Every keeper of a Vietnamese Pig as set forth in section 5.416 shall obtain a 
license for the pig. In order to obtain the license, the owner or keeper shall submit to the city the 
veterinarian’s certificate specified in section 5.416(2)(b). The license fee shall be the same as a license fee 
for a dog as specified in subsection (3). 
  (b)  Licenses shall be valid for one year from the date of issuance or until the sale or gift of the pig, 
whichever first occurs. 
  (c)  Pig keepers shall renew the pig license before it becomes delinquent for as long as they keep or 
harbor the pig. 
  (d)  A license tag issued to a pig keeper shall be attached securely to a collar or harness of the pig for 
which it was issued. In addition to a collar or license, a microchip identification shall be utilized. If a license 
tag is lost, the keeper may obtain a duplicate license tag upon satisfactory proof of loss and payment of 
the required fee. 
  (e)  Failure to comply with any term or requirement of section 5.416 or this section by a pig keeper is 
punishable as a violation and may include a fine not exceeding $720.00 pursuant to SMC section 1.205. 
  (f)  In the event that the keeper or the individual designated in section 5.416(2)(e) is unavailable and 
short term housing for the pig is required, the keeper shall be responsible for such short term housing and 
food costs and shall reimburse the city or city’s designee for all costs expended. [Section 5.426 amended 
by Ordinance No. 5902, enacted December 7, 1998; further amended by Ordinance No. 6169, enacted 
May 15, 2006; further amended by Ordinance No. 6271, enacted July 18, 2011.] 

     General Issue   $20.00  
    Neutered License   $10.00  
    Keeper 60+ years old   $5.00  
    Commercial License   $75.00  
    Duplicate License   $5.00  

Attachment 2, Page 26 of 87



    Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 21 
 

Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 
The following fees shall be charged for the Building and Safety activities of the City: 

 
Site Plan Review 
Reduction in fee, Resolution 10‐51 
 

Building Permits 
(ORS 455.447) 

 
Structural, Commercial and Mechanical Permit Fees 
Table No. 3‐A 

 
TOTAL VALUE    FEE 
$1.00 ‐ $2,000    $58.00 
$2,001 ‐ $25,000  for the first $2,000 in value  $58.00 
  plus for each additional $1000 or fraction thereof.   $9.75 
$25,001 ‐ $50,000  for the first $25,000 in value   $282.25 
  plus for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof  $7.32 
$50,001 ‐ $100,000  for the first $50,000 in value   $465.25 
  plus  for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof  $4.87 
$100,001 and Up  for the first $100,000 in value   $708.75 
  plus for each additional $1,000 or portion thereof  $4.07 

 
In addition to the Building Permit Fee, the Plan Check Fee shall be 65% of the Building Permit 
fee. 
For the purpose of defraying the cost of applying regulations as provided in ORS 455.447 a 
surcharge of 1% to the total fees collected for essential, hazardous, major and special occupancy 
structures shall be collected. 

 
To the following fees, please add 12% State Surcharge 

 

Electrical Permits 
Table No. 3‐B 

 

Description   Fee 

Residence wiring less than 1000 square feet  $134.00 

Each additional 500 sq.ft. or portion thereof  $25.00 

Manufactured Home or Modular Dwelling (Service or Feeder)   $63.00 

Temporary Power – 200 amps or less  $63.00 

Temporary Power – 201 to 400 amps  $87.00 

Temporary Power – 401 to 600 amps  $126.00 

Permanent Service or Feeder – 200 amps or less  $81.00 

Permanent Service or Feeder – 201 to 400 amps  $95.00 

Permanent Service or Feeder – 401 to 600 amps  $158.00 

Permanent Service or Feeder – 601 to 999 amps  $205.00 

Attachment 2, Page 27 of 87



Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

Page 22      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Permanent Service or Feeder – 1000 amps or volts  $469.00 

Electrical Service Reconnection with no changes to existing service size  $63.00 

One new/alteration/extension of circuit  $55.00 

Each Additional Circuit  $6.00 

Each Irrigation Pump  $63.00 

Each Electrical Sign or Outline Lighting  $63.00 

Each Signal Panel  $63.00 

Limited Energy – Residential  $32.00 

Limited Energy – Commercial/Multi‐Family  $58.00 

Inspections not covered by this schedule minimum 1 hour  $58.00 

Re‐inspection Fee  $58.00 

Partial Inspection  $58.00 

Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours  $86.00 

Minimum Permit Fee  $58.00 

Investigation Fee  $58.00 

Inspections For Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated  $58.00 

Electrical Quick Permits (sold in 10 only) No longer in Use  $‐0 

Building Without Permit Penalty  $ Permit Fee 

Electrical Plan Review  25% of Permit Fee 

 

To the Following Fees, Please Add 12% State Surcharge 

Mechanical Permits (Residential) 

Mechanical Permit Fees 
Table No. 3‐D 

 

Description  Fee 

First Appliance  $79.00 

HVAC 
Up to 100,000 btu  $17.00 

More than 100,000  $20.00 

Unit Heater  $17.00 

Boiler/Compressor 
Up to 100,000 btu$  17.00 

3‐15 Horsepower or 100,001 – 500,000 btu  $29.00 

Over 15 to 30 Horsepower or  500,001 – 999,000 btu  $43.00 

Over 30 to 50 Horsepower or 1,000,000 – 1,750,000 btu  $57.00 

Over 50 Horsepower or over 1,750,001 btu  $95.00 

Air Handling Unit 
Up to 10,000 cfm  $11.00 

10,001 cfm and over  $20.00 

Attachment 2, Page 28 of 87



    Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 23 
 

Evaporative Cooler/Fan  $13.00 

Vents 
Hood and Exhaust  $13.00 

Vent Fan to One Duct  $9.00 

Appliance Vent  $9.00 

Gas Piping 
Each Piping System 1‐4 Outlets  $7.00 

Each Outlet over 4  $4.00 

Air, Oxygen, Other Medical Specialty Piping 
Each Piping System 1‐4 Outlets  $7.00 

Each Outlet over 4  $4.00 

LP Gas Tank and Piping  $17.00 
Miscellaneous 

Domestic Incinerator  $20.00 

Commercial Incinerator  $75.00 

Wood/Pellet Stove  $38.00 

Heat Pump  $17.00 

Preliminary Inspection  $58.00 
Each Appliance Not Listed on this Schedule  $13.00 
Inspections Not Covered by this Schedule  $58.00 
Re‐inspection Fee  $58.00 
Supplemental Mechanical Fee *Not In Use*  $‐0‐ 
Minimum Permit Fee  $79.00 
Partial Inspection  $58.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours  $86.00 
Investigation Fee  $58.00 
Building Without Permit Penalty  $ Permit Fee 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Tables  $58.00 
Mechanical Plan Review Fee  25% of Permit Fee 
Mechanical Quick Permits (sold in 10 only) No Longer Available  $‐0‐ 
Commercial/Industrial/Public Mechanical System including installation costs  Value 
 

To the following fees, please add 12% State Surcharge 
 

For the purpose of defraying the cost of applying regulations as provided in ORS 455.447 a 
surcharge of 1% to the total fees collected for essential, hazardous, major and special occupancy 
structures shall be collected. 

 
Plumbing Permits 
Plumbing Permit Fees 
Table No. 3‐C 

 
Fees for the construction, alteration or repair of plumbing on one and two family dwellings, shall 
be calculated as described below.  Fees include drain, waste and vent installation, water 
distribution piping, the first 100 feet of water service. 

Attachment 2, Page 29 of 87



Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

Page 24      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

One or two family with one bath  $238.00 

One or two family with two bath  $374.00 

One or two family with three bath  $439.00 

Each Additional Bath  $95.00 

Each Additional Kitchen  $95.00 

Single Plumbing Fixture  $19.00 

Sanitary Sewer: 

For the first 100 feet of line  $76.00 

Each additional 100 feet of line or portion  $19.00 

Water Service: 

the first 100 feet of line  $76.00 

Each additional 100 feet of line or portion  $19.00 

Storm and Rain Drain: 

For the first 100 feet of line  $76.00 

Each additional 100 feet of line or portion   $19.00 

Sewage Ejector Pump  $19.00 

Special Waste Connection  $19.00 

Manufactured Home hook up on improved lot  $58.00 

Backflow Prevention Device  $19.00 

Relocated Structure  $58.00 

Sanitary or Storm Sewer Cap  $58.00 

Any trap or waste not connected to a fixture  $19.00 

Any plumbing installation not listed in this schedule with  

sanitary waste or portable water supply  $19.00 

Minimum Plumbing Permit Fee  $58.00 

Partial Inspection fee   $58.00 

Re‐inspection Fee  $58.00 

Inspections Not Covered By Schedule  $58.00 

Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours  $86.00 

Investigation Fee  $58.00 

Building Without Permit Penalty  $ Permit Fee 

Accessible Minor Plumbing Labels NO LONGER AVAILABLE  $ ‐0‐ 

Not Accessible Minor Plumbing Labels NO LONGER AVAILABLE  $ ‐0‐ 

Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Table  $58.00 

Medical Gas System Inspection Fees – Inspection fees for medical gas systems are a  

combination of:Base Fee  $ Value 

  + Plus Each inlet or outlet 

Plan Review Fee for Med Gas  $58.00/hr  

Attachment 2, Page 30 of 87



    Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 25 
 

but shall not exceed 30% of the total plumbing permit fee for the building 

or structure under review.  When plans are incomplete or substantially 

changed so as to require additional plan review, additional plan review 

fees may be charged based on the additional time required. 

Plumbing Plan Review Fee  30% of Permit Fee 

Residential Fire Sprinklers 

0001 – 2000 Square feet  $58.00 

2001 – 3600 Square feet  $116.00 

3601 – 7200 Square feet  $174.00 

7201 Square feet and greater  $232.00 

 

To the following fees, please add 12% State Surcharge 

Additional Miscellaneous Fees 
 
Miscellaneous Building Fees 
Table No. 3‐F 
 
Please add 12% State Surcharge (Where Applicable) 

Description  Fee 

Investigative Fee  $58.00 
Inspection For Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated  $58.00 
Moving a Building or Structure  $291.00 
Demolition of a Building or Structure  $58.00 
Mobile Home Accessory Structure  $Value 
Prefabricated Structures  $Value 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Table  $58.00 
Address Assignment, each new or change unless requested by city staff  $38.00 
Temporary Occupancy Permit Approval Shall Not Exceed 30 Days Without Renewal.  
Renewal Fee is the Same Fee As Original Temporary Occupancy Permit Fee: 

1 & 2 Family Dwellings  $126.00 

Triplex & 4‐Plex  $248.00 

Apartment Buildings  $248.00 + $30/unit 

Remodels Commercial/Industrial Buildings & Tenant Infill  $126.00 

Commercial/Industrial Buildings  $374.00+10% of Bldg Permit Fee 

Same As Plan Review Submittal  $250.00 
Building Without Permit Penalty Fee  $Bldg Permit 
Manufactured Home Placement  $397.00 
Replacement Plans + copies @ $.75 for first copy + $.50 for each additional copy for  
8 ½” x 11” copies, minimum total fee of $20.00  $58.00/hr 
Fire & Life Safety Plan Review When Required  40% of Building Permit Fee 
Additional Plan Review Due To Changes In Plans  $58.00/hr 
Hazardous Technical Report with No Plan Review  $58.00/hr 

Attachment 2, Page 31 of 87



Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

Page 26      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Site Investigation and Posting of NSF Check  $58.00 
Administrative Fee for Non‐Sufficient Funds Check  $126.00 
Administrative Fee – Non Specialty Code Permits  10% 
Administrative Fee for Cash Deposits  10% 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours – 1 hour minimum  $86.00 
Re‐inspection Fee  $58.00 
Quick Start  $189.00 
Not in Use 
Research Requests 

Technical (15‐30 minutes)  $25.00 

Technical (31‐60 minutes)  $51.00 

Non‐Technical   (15‐30 minutes)  $17.00 

Non‐Technical   (31‐60 minutes)  $31.00 

Any copy fee is in addition to research fees.  30 Minutes is minimum fee 

Posting Substandard Structures  $58.00 
Monthly Reports – Yearly “Mailing” List  $64.00/mailed 

  $37.00/faxed 

Weekly Issued Reports – Yearly “Mailing” List  $276.00/mailed 
  $153.00/faxed 

Addressing Information –Non Agency‐Government Yearly “Mailing” List  $64.00/mailed 
  $37.00/faxed 

Fire Department Process/Application Fee  10% of Fire fee 
 

Signs 
 
Sign Code Plan Review 
(SMC 8.218(1)) 
Permit Applications. Two complete sets of plans, engineering calculations, diagrams and other data shall 
be submitted with each application for a permit. The building official may require plans, computations 
and specifications to be prepared and designed by an engineer or architect. 
  (a)  A scaled plot plan with building dimensions, setback and location of proposed signs shall be 
submitted with the sign permit application. A photograph of each facade of the building shall be 
submitted. 
  (b)  A scaled elevation drawing shall be submitted in addition to the above requirements if a wall 
mounted sign will be erected. 
  (c)  A description of materials, anchors, footings and attachment systems shall be provided. 
  (d)  For all freestanding, pole or projecting signs over 20 feet in height, plans shall be submitted, 
drawn by a registered engineer. 
  (e)  Each application shall include photographs of existing signage on the property associated with 
the business. 
  (f)  If the application is for a billboard, the application must include an approved permit from the 
state of Oregon under the Oregon Motorists Information Act of 1971 (ORS 377.700 et seq.) prior to the 
erection of the billboard. 

  Per Sign  $42.00 
 

Attachment 2, Page 32 of 87



    Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 27 
 

Sign Permit Fees 
(SMC 8.218(2)) (2)   
Permit‐Fees. Sign permit fees for permanent and temporary signs, excluding electrical, shall be set by 
resolution of the council. Only one face of a double‐faced sign will be used for calculation purposes. Each 
sign shall be considered separately when calculating plan review and sign permit charges. 

  0‐35 square feet  $80.00 
  36‐to 60 square feet  $110.00 
  61 to 100 square feet  $140.00 
  101 to 150 square feet  $160.00 
  151 to 200 square feet  $200.00 
  201 to 300 square feet  $250.00 
  301 to 400 square feet  $300.00 
 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Temporary Sign Permit Fee‐Banner 
(SMC 8.218 (4)(3))  
Temporary Sign Permit Fees. Four permits for each approved development area shall be permitted per 
calendar year. The fee for each permit shall be set by resolution by the council. No temporary sign(s) shall 
be larger than 60 square feet and be erected for a maximum of 30 consecutive days per each permit. The 
temporary sign(s) shall be located completely on private property and shall be in compliance with the 
required setbacks as identified in this code. A security deposit is required when this permit is issued. If the 
applicant fails to remove the temporary sign(s) by the date specified on the permit, the deposit shall be 
forfeited and the city may remove the temporary sign(s). If any temporary signs are erected without first 
obtaining a permit, the permit fee shall be doubled. Temporary signs erected by or for the city for city 
sponsored events, authorized by the city, or for the park district, utility company, or hospital for 
community events are exempt. 

  Per permit  $100.00 
  Plus security deposit  $100.00 
 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Modification Fee 
(SMC 8.238(2)) 
A modification is defined as a request for a sign that complies with the provisions of this sign code in all 
respects except size or height and the proposed request is not more than 15 percent greater than 
otherwise allowed. If the applicant chooses to apply for a modification to the sign code, they may apply 
through the development services department for a cost set by resolution of the council. This 
modification request will be reviewed, and a decision reached by the development services director 
within 30 days of the application, providing the application is complete. 
The following criteria must be met in order for a modification to be approved: 
  (a)  Locational and/or dimensional problems have been identified; and 
  (b)  The proposed adjustment will not cause any of the following adverse effects on neighboring 

properties: 
    (i)  Creates a vision clearance hazard for pedestrians, motor vehicles or bicyclists; or 
    (ii) Creates a hazard for fire prevention or fire suppression; or 
    (iii) Public safety is compromised; and 
  (c)  The hardship is not self‐imposed. 

Attachment 2, Page 33 of 87



Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

Page 28      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

  Per application  $200.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Appeal Fee (Building Board of Appeals) 
(SMC 8.238(5))  An applicant who is denied a modification request may appeal the decision of the DSD to 
the building board of appeals for a cost set by resolution of the council. The request will be reviewed by 
the board and a decision reached within 30 days of the application date. 

  Per Application  $150.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Appeal Fee (City Council Appeal) 
(SMC 8.238(6))  An applicant may appeal the decision of the Board of Appeals regarding an Appeal of a 
modification or a variance to the city council for a cost set by resolution of the council. The city council’s 
decision is final except that or a writ of review to circuit court is available to appeal the city council’s 
decision pursuant to Oregon law. [Section 8.238 amended by Ordinance No. 6008, enacted March 18, 
2002.] 

  Per application  $100.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Variance Fee  
(SMC 2.568(5)) Hear appeals from the sign code as provided in chapter 8, section 8.238 of the Springfield 
Municipal Code. 
  Per Application  $300.00 

 

   

Attachment 2, Page 34 of 87



    Section 7: Engineering 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 29 
 

Section 7:  Engineering  
The following fees shall be charged for the Engineering activities of the City: 

 
Land Drainage Alteration Permit  
(Resolution 11‐23, SMC 8.332(1), 8.332(2))   
Plan Checking Fee 

For excavation and fill on the same site, the fee shall be based on the volume of the excavation or fill, 
whichever is greater. Before accepting a set of plans and specifications for checking, the director of public 
works shall collect a plan‐checking fee. Where not covered by the approved improvement plans for the 
development, separate permits and fees may apply to retaining walls or major drainage structures in 
accordance with the state building code. There shall be no separate charge for standard terrace drains 
and similar facilities. The amount of the plan checking fee for grading plans shall be based on the average 
actual costs as set forth by resolution of the city council. The rates and charges herein provided are for 
incurred costs based upon the use or availability for use of the public right‐of‐way and/or the storm sewer 
system, as well as for meeting the routine obligations of ownership, which is necessary for the regulation 
of and provision for, the public health, safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by the user’s or 
potential user’s request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. The plan‐checking fee for a 
grading permit authorizing additional work to that under a valid permit shall be the difference between 
such fee paid for the original permit and the fee shown for the entire project. 

Grading Permit Fees 

A fee for each grading permit shall be paid to the director of public works based on the average actual 
costs as set forth by resolution of the city council. The rates and charges herein provided are for incurred 
costs based upon the use or availability for use of the public right‐of‐way and/or the storm sewer system, 
as well as for meeting the routine obligations of ownership, which is necessary for the regulation of, and 
provision for, the public health, safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by the user’s or potential 
user’s request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. The fee for grading permit authorizing 
additional work to that under a valid permit shall be the difference between the fee paid for the original 
permit and the fee shown for the entire project. 

      Per application  $80.00 
    Grading Plan Check  Base fee of  $450.00 
    Plus volume fee of   Up to 100 cubic yards  $225.00 
      Plus $ per 100 cubic yards over 100  $45.00 
      (101‐1000 cubic yards) 
      1001 to 25,000 cubic yards  $650.00 
      Plus $ per 100 cubic yards over 1000  25.00 
      (1001 to 25,000 cubic yards)   
Greater than 25.000 cubic yards‐Actual recorded staff costs, overhead and project expenses 
base fee of $4,500.00 plus $4,500.00 deposit and additional deposits as required. 
Corrective LDAP Fee in addition to the normal LDAP fees, based on an estimate of the work 
performed to the time of the corrective LDAP, the corrective LDAP shall pay for actual recorded 
staff costs, overhead, and project expenses in the administration thereof.  Initial deposits shall 
be $3000.00 for parcels less than one acre and $3000.00 plus $1500.00 per acre for parcels 
more than one acre.  Additional deposits as required. 
      Per Re‐inspection  $91.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
    Combined Grading Plan & Permit Fee for Single Family/Duplex   
      Non‐Sensitive Area  $450.00 

Attachment 2, Page 35 of 87



Section7: Engineering 

Page 30      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

      Sensitive Area  $900.00 
Note:  Sensitive area equals greater than 15% slope, work in or near drainage way or swale, 
wetland on site, or site in floodplain. 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
    Grading Permit Fee for other than Single Family/Duplex 
      Up to 100 cubic yards  $225.00 
      101‐1000 cubic yards  $225.00 
      Plus $ per 100 cubic yards over 100  $75.00 
      1001‐25,000 cubic yards  $900.00 
      Plus $ per 100 cubic yards over 1001  $150.00 
Greater than 25.000 cubic yards‐Actual recorded staff costs, overhead and project expenses 
base fee of $4,500.00 plus $4,500.00 deposit and additional deposits as required. 
Corrective LDAP Fee in addition to the normal LDAP fees, based on an estimate of the work 
performed to the time of the corrective LDAP, the corrective LDAP shall pay for actual recorded 
staff costs, overhead, and project expenses in the administration thereof.  Initial deposits shall 
be $3000.00 for parcels less than one acre and $3000.00 plus $1500.00 per acre for parcels 
more than one acre.  Additional deposits as required. 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Single Family/Duplex Residential 
“Short Form” fee (Non‐sensitive areas:  i.e. lot slope less than 15%; no work in or near a 
drainageway or swale; no wetlands on site; not in a flood plain) = 
  flat fee of   $450.00 
“LDAP” fee (Work within sensitive areas: i.e. any of the following:  lot slope equal to or greater 
than 15%; work in or near a drainageway or swale; wetlands on site; site in flood plain)  
  flat fee of   $900.00 
 
Commercial/Industrial/Multifamily/Other 
  Plan Check Fee  $450.00 
plus Volume Fee per following schedule:  Up to 100 cubic yards  $225.00 
  101 to 1,000 cubic yards  $225.00 
  Plus per 100 cubic yards over 100  $45.00 
  1,001 to 25,000 cubic yards  $630 
  per 1,000 cubic yards over 1,000  $75 
Greater than 25,000 cubic yards‐Actual recorded staff costs, overhead and project expenses 
  $2550 minimum + $4500 deposit and additional 
deposits as required –(Greater than 25,000 cubic yards). 
 
Plus permit administration/inspection fee 
  Up to 100 cubic yards  $225 
  101 to 1,000 cubic yards  $225  
  Plus per 100 cubic yards over 100  $75 
  1,001 to 25,000 cubic yards  $900  
  Plus per 1,000 cubic yards over 1,000  $150 

  Greater than 25,000 cubic yards‐Actual recorded staff 
costs, overhead and project expenses 

Attachment 2, Page 36 of 87



    Section 7: Engineering 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 31 
 

   $4500 minimum + $4500 deposit and additional 
deposits as required – (Greater than 25,000 cubic 
yards). 

 
Corrective LDAP 
Any LDAP processed after work is conducted without required City approvals is considered a 

corrective LDAP.  In addition to the normal LDAP fees, calculated based on an estimate of the 

work performed at the time of the corrective LDAP, the corrective LDAP shall also pay for actual 

recorded staff costs, overhead and project expenses in the administration of the corrective 

LDAP.  The initial deposits for the corrective LDAP, in addition to the standard LDAP fees, shall 

be $3,000 for parcels less than one acre and $3,000 + $1,500 per acre for parcels more than one 

acre.  If the deposit is insufficient to cover City expenses for the project, additional deposits will 

be required.  

 
Re‐Inspection Fee  $91.00 

5% technology fee will be added to the total amount due. 

 
Asphalt Damage Deposit  
(SMC 3.212(3) The amount of security deposit required in section 3.210 and the temporary storage fee 
required in section 5.052(2)(a), if applicable, will be determined during the plan checking process and will 
be due at the time the permit is issued. 

        $880.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Comprehensive Fee for Use of Public Ways; Non‐Utility 
(SMC 3.224) No structure or device shall be placed in, upon, over or under the public way unless the 
owner of such structure or device shall have received a placement permit authorizing the placement of 
such structure or device. Any violation of this provision shall be an infraction within the meaning of 
Chapter 5 of this code. 
  Per foot‐Annual rental of City Conduit    $2.00 
  Per foot‐Annual placement fee for conduit four inches or less in diameter   $5.00 
  and for each inch of diameter in excess of four inches.  $1.00 per foot 

5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Encroachment Permit 
(SMC 3.212(1))  Applications for the encroachment permit shall be on the form prescribed by the public 
works director, and accompanied by the fee therefore, in an amount fixed by the council by resolution. 

        $267.00 
      Re‐inspection Fee  $91.00 
 
Sign Permit Fee‐Banners (Over Street) 
(City Policy, SOPP T‐8.7)The City’s policy on banners is that only governmental or special district 
organizations (specifically including McKenzie‐Willamette Hospital) be allowed to have banners placed 
over the public right‐of‐way, and further, that such banners advertise public, not for profit events only.   
  Per permit  $100.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Attachment 2, Page 37 of 87



Section7: Engineering 

Page 32      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Comprehensive Telecommunication Placement Plan Review Fee 
(SMC 3.226(6)  At the election of the applicant, the applicant may file a comprehensive 
telecommunications placement plan which describes all facilities it presently intends to install. Such plan 
is subject to approval of the Public Works Director and may be modified from time to time by the 
applicant with the approval of the public works director. The fee for review of such plan shall be fixed by 
the council by resolution. 

        $704.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Curb Cut Fee 
(SMC 3.256)  In case the permit shall be granted, it shall be the duty of the applicant to pay a fee based on 
the average actual costs as set forth by resolution of the council. The same fee shall be charged for new 
construction or repair. The rates and charges herein provided are incurred costs based upon the use or 
availability for use of the public right‐of‐way, the availability of which is necessary for the regulation of, 
and provision for, the public health, safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by the user’s (or potential 
user’s) request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. 

      First curb cut  $97.00 
      Second curb cut  $51.00 
  Re‐inspection fee  per re‐inspection  $91.00 
 
Curb Cut Fee and Sidewalk Construction Permit‐Multiple Permit Discount 
(SMC 3.256, 3.300(1))  Before any sidewalk in a public right of way is started, a permit shall be obtained 
from the building official. At the time the permit is issued, the applicant shall pay a fee based on the 
average actual costs for permit administration and sidewalk inspection as set forth by resolution of the 
council for the sidewalk, for either new construction or repair. These requirements do not apply, 
however, when such work is done under contract with the city or covered by a subdivision agreement 
with the city. The rates and charges herein provided are incurred costs based upon the use or availability 
for use of the public right‐of‐way, the availability of which is necessary for the regulation of, and provision 
for, the public health, safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by the user’s (or potential user’s) 
request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. 

Discount when applicant obtains up to three Curb Cut or Sidewalk Construction Permits in same 
location.        $33 .00 
 
Placement Permit for Standard Mailbox; No Sidewalk Construction 
(SMC 3.226)         $51.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Placement Permit 
(SMC 3.226 (2)  Prior to placing a structure or device in the right‐of‐way, the owner of such structure or 
device shall secure a placement permit, which permit shall also serve as an encroachment permit. 

        $267.00 
    Per Re‐Inspection    $91.00 
    plus and Asphalt Damage Deposit (SMC 3.214(2)(b)  $880.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sidewalk Construction Permit     
      Per square foot  $97.00 
      Re‐inspection fee  $91.00 
      Sidewalk Repair Permit  $17.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 

Attachment 2, Page 38 of 87



    Section 7: Engineering 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 33 
 

 

Sewer Connection Fee‐Unassessed (Sewer In Lieu of Assessment Fee) 
(SMC 3.356(3))  Upon making an application as herein provided, such person shall pay to the city an 
amount based upon the city’s established rate per square foot of benefited property. This rate is based on 
the average actual sewer construction costs per square foot of benefited property, as set by resolution of 
the council. Any rate adjustment shall be determined by the previous year’s sewer construction costs and 
projected inflation to the next construction season. The depth of the benefited property shall not exceed 
150 feet from the street or 150 feet from the sanitary sewer line if the sewer line is not within the street 
right‐of‐way, except by special authorization by the Director of Public Works and based upon reasonable 
judgment, such as 
  (a)  The location of the building in relation to the referenced 150 foot line; 
  (b)  The possibility of future development for the building sites beyond the 150 foot depth. 
Except as provided by (a) and (b) immediately preceding, a reduced charge will be charged for that area 
beyond the 150 foot line. The sum so paid may be deposited against any future sanitary sewer 
assessment which may be made against said property. In the event the sum paid exceeds the assessment 
any excess will be refunded to the property owner. 

  Per square foot for first 150 fee of depth  $.64 
  And per square foot thereafter  $.32 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 

 
Sewer Construction Permit   
(SMC 3.358(4)) An application for a permit to construct a sanitary sewer shall be accompanied by a fee set 
by resolution of the council. If more than 50 percent of an existing sewer line is to be reconstructed, then 
it shall be classed as new construction. 

        No Charge 
 

Sewer Reconstruction Permit 
(SMC 3.358(5))  An application for a permit to reconstruct any sanitary sewer shall be accompanied by a 
fee set by resolution of the council. If less than 50 percent of an existing sewer line is to be reconstructed, 
then it shall be classed as repairs. 

        No Charge 
Temporary Storage Fee 
(SMC 3.214 2(b)) Pay the fee for the temporary storage of articles in the public right‐of‐way during 
construction as provided for in section 5.052(2)(a), if applicable; 

    Per square foot with a $275.00 minimum charge   $2.00 
    plus and Asphalt Damage Deposit (SMC 3.214(2)(b)  $880.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

General Engineering Fees 

Public Improvement Permit (PIP) Plan Approval and Deposits 
Schedule of deposits pertaining to PIP plan approval and permit 

(SMC 3.018 (1))  From time to time the council shall, on recommendation of the city engineer, by 

resolution, adopt a schedule of deposit amounts which shall categorize projects and the required deposit. 

In determining the recommended amount of a deposit, the city engineer shall consider the actual costs of 

performing review for approval and preliminary testings, and the costs of inspection, testing and other 

services provided to projects of similar cost of construction in the immediately preceding fiscal year, 

adjusted by the change in the Construction Cost Index during the past twelve months. 

Attachment 2, Page 39 of 87



Section7: Engineering 

Page 34      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

(2)  Such actual costs shall include the employee’s base salary; other direct project expenses such as 

copies, project documentation, the use of consultants, the cost of materials testing and an allowance for 

indirect costs based on percentages determined by the finance director. Deposits shall be in accordance 

with such schedule except where the city engineer determines, in writing, that unusual circumstances 

associated with the project require a deposit of a greater or lesser amount 

Post Monumentation Deposit for Subdivision and Partition 
(ORS 92.065(1))   
  Base deposit  $2,800.00 
  Plus monument  $120.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Project Bid Books and Project Draft Plans 
(ORS 192.440(3)) Oregon Revised Statute authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably 
calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for 
summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 
request.  

  Minimum, but may vary by project  $25.00 
  Bid books on Compact disc  $25.00/per disc 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Real Property Compensation Application Fee 
(SMC 2.930(11)) A demand shall include payment of a fee in the amount established by separate 
resolution of the city council to at least partially cover the city’s cost of processing the demand. The city 
manager may waive the fee if the owner is unable to pay the fee or for other purpose necessary for the 
public health, safety and welfare; 
  (b)  The city manager shall maintain a record of the city’s actual cost of processing the demand, 
including the cost of obtaining any information required by section 2.930 which the owner does not 
provide to the city; 
  (c)  In the event that the fee is not sufficient to cover all of the city’s costs or in the event the owner 
fails to pay any fees not waived, then the owner shall pay the fee or balance owed, if any, upon receipt of 
an appropriate billing statement from the city; 
  (d)  If the fee paid is more than the amount of the city’s actual costs in processing the demand, then 
the excess shall be returned to the owner; 
  (e)  In the event that the fee is not paid in full within 30 calendar days after receipt of billing, the city 
may take any enforcement actions provided by law to collect such fee including but not limited to filing a 
lien on the property. 
  (f)  If a demand is determined to be a valid demand the city shall reimburse the owner for any fee 
paid.  

  Per Application  $500.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Re‐Apportionment Fee 
(SMC 3.154) Apportionment or reapportionment shall only be made upon the written request of the 
record owner of the tract or parcel of property involved directed to the finance director. The request shall 
be accompanied by a survey map of the parcels to receive the assessment liens as reapportioned, 
together with a legal description thereof. Apportionment or reapportionment shall only be made upon 
the written request of the record owner of the tract or parcel of property involved directed to the finance 
director. The request shall be accompanied by a survey map of the parcels to receive the assessment liens 
as reapportioned, together with a legal description thereof. 

    First two lots  $25.00 

Attachment 2, Page 40 of 87



    Section 7: Engineering 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 35 
 

    Extra per lot  $10.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Standard Construction Specification or Engineering Design Standards and Procedures Books 
(ORS 192.440(3)) Oregon Revised Statute authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably 
calculated to reimburse it for its actual costs in making such records available including costs for 
summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such records, either in organization or media, to meet the person’s 
request.  

      $40.00/each 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

Other Engineering Fees 

Asphaltic Job Mix Testing Fee   
  Each Public Improvement Project using asphaltic paving  $385.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Local Improvement District Assessment Service Fee 
(SMC 3.072) An assessment service fee of 6.2 percent of the cost of direct construction, advertising, 
testing and engineering of local public improvement projects shall be added and included in the 
assessment made to each benefiting property owner in order to cover the origination, billing and 
collection cost on assessment. 

    Per Assessment  6.2% of Assessment 
 
Reimbursement District Application Fee 
(SMC 3.610 (1)) A person who is required to or chooses to finance some or all of the cost of an 
infrastructure improvement which will be available to provide service to property, other than property 
owned by the person, may, by written application filed with the city public works director, request that 
the city establish a reimbursement district. The infrastructure improvements must include improvements 
in addition to or in a size greater than those which would otherwise ordinarily be required in connection 
with the application for permit approval and must be available to provide service to property other than 
property owned by the applicant. Examples include, but shall not be limited to, intersections, full street 
improvements instead of half street improvements, traffic signals, off‐site sidewalks, connection of street 
sections for continuity, extension of water lines and extension of sewer lines. The city may also initiate 
formation of a reimbursement district. The application shall be accompanied by a fee, as established by 
resolution, sufficient to cover the cost of administrative review and notice pursuant to this section. 

    Per Benefitted Parcel  $500.00 Each 
 
Reimbursement District Administration Fee 
(SMC 316(2))  The city may charge a fee for administration of the agreement. The administration fee shall 
be fixed by the council in the resolution approving and forming the reimbursement district. The 
administration fee is due and payable to the city at the time the agreement is signed (or, if specified as a 
percentage, shall be paid quarterly based upon the reimbursement fees paid during that quarter). 

  For Reimbursement Districts with 10 or fewer 10 Benefitted Parcels  $500.00 each 
  For Reimbursement Districts with more than 10 Benefitted Parcels 
    6.2% of the Reimbursement Fees collected from a District each 

quarter 
   

Attachment 2, Page 41 of 87



    Section 7: Engineering 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 36 

 
   

Attachment 2, Page 42 of 87



    Section 8: Planning Services 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 37 
 

Section 8:  Planning Services 
The following fees shall be charged for the Planning activities of the City: 
 

Development Code Application Fees 
(Resolution 10‐51, Springfield Development Code 5.4‐100) 

Any applications being processed before the Hearings Official (except an appeal) shall pay an 
additional fee of $5,000.  Any amount not expended by the Hearings Official shall be returned to 
the applicant.  Charges in excess of this additional fee shall be assessed to the applicant.   
Note: Low Income Fee Reduction:  any application fee related to the development of low income 
housing or facilities may be reduced pursuant to the criteria of Section 1.070(4)of the Springfield 
Development Code. 
 

General Applications 
 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 
(SDC 5.5‐100) 
  Type 1  City and Urban Growth Boundary:   $726.00 
  Technology fee  $36.30 
 
Amendment of Development Code Text 
(SDC 5.6‐100) 
*Ballot Measure 56 mailing & postage = staff time at hourly rate of $75.00 plus materials and postage. 
  Type IV  City  $7,405.00 
    UGB  $11,171.00 
  Technical Fees  City  $370.25 
    UGB  $558.55 
  Postage  City  $543.00 
    UGB  $543.00 
 
Annexation 
(SDC 5.7‐100) 
Annexation to the City of Springfield, UGB Only 

Type IV  Owner occupied single family dwellings on LDR property of less 
than 10,000 square feet  $1000.00 

      Technical Fee  $50.00 
    <1 acre     $2,142.00 
      Technical Fee  $107.10 
    1 acre > 5 acres    $2,740.00 
      Technical Fee  $137.00 
    5 acres > 10 acres   $3,657.00 
      Technical Fee  $182.85 
    10 acres> 25 acres   $4,614.00 
      Technical Fee  $230.70 
    25 acres > 50 acres   $5,727.00 
      Technical Fee  $286.35 
    50 acres > 100 acres   $6,592.00 
      Technical Fee  $329.60 
    100 acres or more $  $9,085.00 

Attachment 2, Page 43 of 87



Section 8: Planning Services 

Page 38      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

      Technical Fee  $454.25 
  UGB Only  Comprehensive Planning Fee per acre  $1,959/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
  Postage Fee for all Type IV    $543.00 
Type IV ‐ Annexation Special District Boundary Adjustments/ Withdrawals fee is 10% of the paid 
annexation fee, (exclusive of postage).   
      Technology Fee   5% 

UGB Only  Concurrent Special District Boundary Adjustments and/or 
Withdrawals, including but not limited to:  Park and Recreation 
Districts; Water Districts; Fire Districts; Library Districts, etc  

  10% of applicable annexation fee regardless of the number of 
Districts. 

 
Appeals 
(SDC 5.3‐100) 
Type III*  Appeal of Expedited Land Division 
    City & UGB    $320.00 
Type III*  Appeal of Type II Director's Decision, ORS227.175 
    City & UGB    $250.00 
Type IV  Appeal of Type III Decision to City Council 
    City    $2,322.00 
    UGB    $3,502.00 
*This fee is established by ORS 227.175.  Council acknowledges Neighborhood Associations shall be 
charged a fee for an appeal. 

 
Conceptual Development Plan 
(SDC 3.4‐315) 
Type III    City    $13,674.00 
      Technical Fee  $683.70 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $20,627.00 
      Technical Fee  $1,031.35 
      Postage  $385.00 
 
Conceptual Development Plan Amendments 
(SDC 3.4‐315) 
Type III    City    $5,297.00 
      Technical Fee  $264.85 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $7.991.00 
      Technical Fee  $399.55 
      Postage  $385.00 
 
Department of Motor Vehicle Licensing 
(Permit) 
New Permit    City    $704.00 
      Technical Fee  $35.20 
    UGB    $844.00 

Attachment 2, Page 44 of 87



    Section 8: Planning Services 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 39 
 

      Technical Fee  $42.20 
Renewal Permit   City    $281.00 
      Technical Fee  $14.05 
    UGB    $340.00 
      Technical Fee  $17.00 
 
Determination of Non‐Conforming Use Status 
(SDC 5.8‐100) 
Type I    City     $107.00 
      Technical Fee  $5.35 
    UGB    $160.00 
      Technical Fee  $8.00 
 
Development Issues Meeting 
(SDC 5.1‐100(a)) 
    City & UGB    $521.00 
 
Discretionary Use 
(SDC 5.9‐100) 
Type III    City    $3,828.00 
      Technical Fee  $191.40 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $5,774.00 
      Technical Fee  $288.70 
      Postage  $385.00 
 
Drinking Water Protection Overlay District 
(SDC 3.3‐200) 
Type I    City & UGB    $1,020.00 
      Technical Fee  $51.00 
 
Expedited Land Division 
(SDC 5.1‐145) 
Type II:  The fee for an Expedited Land Division (ELD) shall be twice the fee calculated for a regular land 
division plus an appeal fee established in ORS 197.380 to defray costs in the event the decision is 
appealed.  If the decision is not appealed, the appeal fee for ELD shall be refunded.  A separate postage 
fee is required for an ELD. 
 

Final Site Plan Inspection for Occupancy/LUC/Change of Use 
(Permit) 
Permit    City & UGB    $281.00 
      Technical Fee  $14.05 
 
Floodplain Development Base Fee 
(SDC 3.3‐400) 
Type I   A Floodplain permit processed after land use activity is conducted without 
required City approvals shall be charged an additional fee of $500 per acre in addition to the 
regular application fee.  The City establishes these fees based on the average cost of providing 
programmatic service for activities conducted without permits.   

Attachment 2, Page 45 of 87



Section 8: Planning Services 

Page 40      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

  Floodplain‐  Subdivision     $200.00 per lot  
    Partitions and site plans   $400.00 per acre in addition to the base fee 
    For development areas >5 acres  $13,650.00 deposit is required. 
    City    $1,105.00 
      Technical Fee  $55.25 
    UGB    $1,667 
      Technical Fee  $83.25 
 
Formal Interpretation 
(SDC 5.11‐100) 
Type II    City    $1,769.00 
      Technical Fee  $88.45 
      Postage  $160.00 
    UGB    $2,299.00 
      Technical Fee  $114.95 
      Postage  $160.00 
   
Type IV *Ballot Measure 56 mailing & postage = staff time at hourly rate of $75 plus materials 
and postage. 
  Formal Interpretation Involving Policy 
    City    $4,742.00 
      Technical Fee  $237.10 
      Postage  $543.00 
    UGB    $7,154.00 
      Technical Fee  $357.70 
      Postage  $543.00 
 
Hillside Overlay District (HD) 
(SDC 3.3‐500) 
Type II    City & UGB    $915.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
 
Historic 
(SDC 3.3‐900) 
Type III‐Demolition of Historic Landmark 
    City    $3,472.00 
      Technical Fee  $173.60 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $5,239.00 
      Technical Fee  $261.95 
      Postage  $385.00 
Type III‐Establishment of Historic Landmark Inventory 
    City & UGB    $1,922.00 
      Technical Fee  $96.10 
      Postage  $385.00 
Type I‐Historic Commission Review Under Type I 
    City    $60.00 

Attachment 2, Page 46 of 87



    Section 8: Planning Services 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 41 
 

      Technical Fee  $3.00 
    UGB    $157.00 
      Technical Fee  $7.85 
Type II‐Historic Commission Review Under Type II 
    City    $176.00 
      Technical Fee  $8.80 
      Postage  $160.00 
    UGB    $467.00 
      Technical Fee  $23.35 
      Postage  $160.00 
 
Hospital Support Overlay District (HS) 
(SDC 3.3‐1100) 
Type II    City Only    $2,919.00 
      Plus  $585.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
 
Land Use Compatibility Statement/Letter 
(SDC 3.1‐100) 
Permit    City    $281.00 
      Technical Fee  $14.05 
    UGB    $304.00 
      Technical Fee  $15.20 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park 
(SDC 3.2‐235) 
Type II    City    $9,867.00 
      Technical Fee  $493.35 
      Postage  $160.00 
    UGB    $14,885.00 
      Technical Fee  $744.25 
      Postage  $160.00 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park Space Line Adjustment 
(SDC 3.2‐235) 
Type I    City    $375.00 
      Technical Fee  $18.75 
    UGB    $994.00 
      Technical Fee  $49.70 
 

Master Plan 
(SDC 5.13‐100) 
Master Plan Approval Preliminary 
Type II    City    $13,674.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 

Attachment 2, Page 47 of 87



Section 8: Planning Services 

Page 42      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

    UGB    $20,627.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
Type III    City    $18,814.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $28,323.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $385.00 
Final Master Plan Approval 
Type III‐ Final Master Plan Approval fee is 10% of the paid master plan approval fee (exclusive of 
postage).   
A 5% Technology Fee will apply. 
Master Plan Modification 
Type 1    City    $2,631.00 
      Technical Fee  $131.55 
    UGB    $3,944.00 
      Technical Fee  $197.20 
Type II    City    $5,297.00 
      Technical Fee  $264.85 
      Postage  $160.00 
    UGB    $7,991.00 
      Technical Fee  $399.55 
      Postage  $160.00 
Type III    City    $9,672.00 
      Technical Fee  $483.60 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $14,141.00 
      Technical Fee  $707.05 
      Postage  $385.00 
 
Metro Plan Amendment 
(SDC 5.14‐100) 
(acre fee for diagram amendment) 

Type I, special instruction Type IV 
    City    $21,753.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $543.00 
    UGB    $32,815.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $543.00 
Type II, special instruction Type IV 
    City    $10,549.00 

Attachment 2, Page 48 of 87



    Section 8: Planning Services 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 43 
 

      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $543.00 
    UGB    $13,531.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $543.00 
 
Minimum Development Standards‐Minor 
Type I    City Only    726.00 $1000.00 
      Technical Fee  36.30 $50.00 
 
Minimum Development Standards‐Major 
Type I    City Only    726.00 $1000.00 
      Technical Fee  36.30 $50.00 
 
Non‐Conforming Use Expansion/Modification 
Type II    City    $3,828.00 
      Technical Fee  $191.40 
      Postage  $160.00 
    UGB    $5,774.00 
      Technical Fee  $288.70 
      Postage  $160.00 
 

Partitions 
(SDC 5.12‐100) 
Pre‐Submittal Meeting‐Tentative 
Pre‐Submittal Meeting‐Plat 
Required prior to submittal of Partition ‐ Tentative Plan and Partition – Plat applications. 
    City    $346.00 
    UGB    $520.00 
Partition Tentative Plan 
Type II*    City    $4,871.00 
      Technical Fee  $243.55 
      Postage  $160.00 
    UGB    $8,915.00 
      Technical Fee  $445.75 
      Postage  $160.00 
Partition Plat 
Type I* 
*A reconfiguration of lots or a decrease in the number of lots in a platted partition or subdivision shall be 
charged the tentative replat/replat plat fee for either subdivision or partition as appropriate.  An Increase 
in the number of lots in a platted partition or subdivision shall be charged either the partition tentative 
plan/partition plat or subdivision tentative/ subdivision plat. 

    City & UGB    $2,677.00 
      Technical Fee  $133.85 
 

Attachment 2, Page 49 of 87



Section 8: Planning Services 

Page 44      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Pre‐Application Report 
(SMC 5.1‐100) 

    City & UGB    $3,553.00 
 
Pre‐Submittal Meeting 
(SMC 5.1‐100) 

    City    $346.00 
    UGB    $520.00 
 
Property Line Adjustment 
(SMC 5.16‐100) 

Type I    City    $623.00 
      Technical Fee  $31.15 
    UGB    $939.00 
      Technical Fee  $46.95 
 
Property Line Adjustment‐Serial 
Type II    City    $1,246.00 
      Technical Fee  $62.30 
      Postage  $160.00 
    UGB    $1,877.00 
      Technical Fee  $93.85 
      Postage  $160.00 
 

Replat 
(SDC 5.12‐100) 
Pre‐Submittal Meeting‐Tentative 
Pre‐Submittal Meeting‐Plat 
Required prior to submittal of Major Replat Tentative Plan and Major Replat Plat applications. 
    City    $346.00 
 
Minor Replat Tentative Plan 
Type II    City    $3,117.00 
      Technical Fee  $155.85 
      Postage  $160.00 
Minor Replat Plat 
Type I    City    $1,834.00 
      Technical Fee  $91.70 
 
Major Replat Tentative Plan 
Type II    City    $5,066.00 
      Technical Fee  $253.30 
      Postage  $160.00 
Major Replat Plat 
Type I    City    $1,835.00 
      Technical Fee  $91.75 
 
Refinement Plan Amendment 

Attachment 2, Page 50 of 87



    Section 8: Planning Services 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 45 
 

(SDC 5.6‐100) 
(acre fee for diagram amendment) 

Type IV    City    $10,549.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $543.00 
    UGB    $16,232.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $543.00 

Site Plan Review 
(SDC 5.17‐100) 
Pre‐Submittal Meeting 
Required prior to submittal of Site Plan Review and Site Plan Review Modification – Major applications. 

    City    $346.00 
    UGB    $520.00 
Site Plan Review 
Type II  
  <10,000 sq, ft, impervious surface 
    City & UGB    $4,222.00 
      Technical Fee  $211.10 
      Postage  $160.00 
  10,000 sq. ft or greater impervious surface 
    City & UGB    $4,222.00 
      Plus   $50.00/1000 sq. ft 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
Site Plan Review Modification‐Major 
Type II    City & UGB    $4,074.00 
      Technical Fee  $203.70 
      Postage  $160.00 
Site Plan Review Modification‐Minor 
Type I    City    $1,241.00 
      Technical Fee  $62.05 
    UGB    $1,873.00 
      Technical Fee  $93.65 
Final Site Plan Equivalent 
Type I    City & UGB    $3,761.00 
      Technical Fee  $188.05 
Final Site Plan Review/Development Agreement 
(SMC 5.17‐100) 

Type I ‐ Final site plan and development agreement fee is 10% of the paid site plan fee (exclusive 
of postage).  
A 5% Technology Fee will apply. 
 

Attachment 2, Page 51 of 87



Section 8: Planning Services 

Page 46      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Solar Access Guarantee 
(SMC 5.18‐100) 

Type II    City    $781.00 
      Technical Fee  $39.05 
      Postage  $160.00 
    UGB    $945.00 
      Technical Fee  $47.25 
      Postage  $160.00 
 
Street Name Change 
    City Only    $4,742.00 
      Technical Fee  $237.10 
 

Subdivisions 
(SDC 5.12‐100) 
Pre‐Submittal Meeting‐Tentative 
Pre‐Submittal Meeting‐Plat 
Required prior to submittal of Subdivision – Tentative Plan and Subdivision – Plat Applications. 
    City Only    $346.00 
Subdivision‐LDR‐Tentative Plan 
Type II    <2 acres    $5,518 
      Plus  $237.00/lot 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
    2 acres to 5 acres  $7,810.00 
      Plus  $390.00/lot 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
    5 acres to 10 acres  $10,332.00 
      Plus  $620.00/lot 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
    10 acres to 20 acres  $10,899.00 
      Plus  $632.00/lot 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
    Greater than 20 acres  $11,467.00 
      Plus  $689.00/lot 
      Postage  $160.00 
Subdivision‐LDR‐Plat 
Type I        $762.00 
      Plus  $476.00/lot 
      Technical Fee  5% 
Subdivision‐Non‐LDR‐Tentative Plan 
Type II        $9,742.00 
      Plus  $585.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 

Attachment 2, Page 52 of 87



    Section 8: Planning Services 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 47 
 

Subdivision‐Non‐LDR‐Plat 
Type I        $3,904.00 
      Plus  $634.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
 
Temporary Use 
(SMC 5.10‐100) Fee Waiver:  The Director may reduce or waive the fee for Temporary Use‐Emergency 
Medical Hardship upon verification of low income status of the owner occupant. 

Type II‐Emergency Medical Hardship 
    City & UGB    $276.00 
      Technical Fee  $13.80 
      Postage  $160.00 
Type I‐Manufactured Dwelling‐After a Disaster   
    City & UGB    $371.00 
      Technical Fee  $18.55 
 
Time Extension for Certain Improvements 
    City    $321.00 
    UGB    $1,044.00 
 
Tree Felling Permit 
(SDC 5.19‐100) 
Type II –  
Any Tree Felling processed after land use activity is conducted without required City approvals shall be 
charged an additional fee of $200 per tree in addition to the regular application fee.  The City establishes 
these fees based on the average cost of providing programmatic service for activities conducted without 
permits. 

  City & UGB 
    Base Fee    $985.00 
      Technical Fee  $49.25 
      Postage  $160.00 
    6‐10 Trees    $985.00 
      Plus  $50.00/tree 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
    >10 Trees    $985.00 
      Plus  $500.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $160.00 
    Filbert Orchards  Base Fee Only 
      Technical Fee  $49.25 
      Postage  $160.00 
    Less than five (5) trees  No Charge/Application 
 

Vacation 
(SDC 5.20‐100) 
Public Easement‐Type II    City  $1,241.00 
      Technical Fee  $62.05 

Attachment 2, Page 53 of 87



Section 8: Planning Services 

Page 48      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

      Postage  $160.00 
    UGB    $1,873.00 
      Technical Fee  $93.65 
      Postage  $160.00 
ROW, Subdivision Plat and other public property‐Type IV 
    City     $4,742.00 
      Technical Fee  $237.10 
      Postage  $543.00 
    UGB    $7,154.00 
      Technical Fee  $357.70 
      Postage  $543.00 
 
Variance 
(SDC 5.21‐100) 
Type II‐Minor Variance (up to 30%) 
    City & UGB    $2,433.00 
      Technical Fee  $121.65 
      Postage  $160.00 
Type III‐Major Variance 
    City    $6,349.00 
      Technical Fee  $317.45 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $9,577.00 
      Technical Fee  $478.85 
      Postage  $385.00 
 
Willamette Greenway 
(SMC 3.3‐300) 

Type III‐Greenway Setback Line already established 
    City    $2,888.00 
      Technical Fee  $144.40 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $6,114.00 
      Technical Fee  $305.70 
      Postage  $385.00 
Type III‐Greenway Setback Line not already established 
    City    $5,772.00 
      Plus  $585.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $8,256.00 
      Plus  $585.00/acre 
      Technical Fee  5% 
      Postage  $385.00 
 
Zoning Map Amendment 
(SDC 5.22‐100) 
Type III  

Attachment 2, Page 54 of 87



    Section 8: Planning Services 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 49 
 

The Development will process citizens‐initiated zoning map amendments, for properties where the zoning 
and plan designation are in conflict, three times a year beginning in January.  There will be no application 
fee for applicants who choose to utilize this program, however a Type III notification fee will be required 
for each application. 

    City    $5,178.00 
      Technical Fee  $258.90 
      Postage  $385.00 
    UGB    $10,154.00 
      Technical Fee  $507.70 
      Postage  $385.00 
 

For a copy of the City Council ordinance please contact the Planning Current Development 
Division at (541)726-3753. 

   

Attachment 2, Page 55 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 50 

   

Attachment 2, Page 56 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 51 
 

Section 9:  Utilities 
The following fees shall be charged for the Utilities activities of the City: 
 

User Fees 
 
Wastewater and Regional Wastewater (Sewer) Rates  
Resolutions 12‐08 

Beginning with bills rendered on or after July 1, 2012 wastewater (sewer) charges shall be as 
follows:  

 
   

Wastewater Monthly Fee Schedule 

Wastewater Flow‐Based Fee (per unit – 748 gallons) 

  Residentia
l 

Customer 

Commercial/Industrial Customers 

Low 
Strength 
400* 

Medium 
Strength 
800* 

High 
Strength 
1200* 

Very High 
Strength 
1600* 

Super High 
Strength 

Over 1600* 

MWMC  $1.687  $2.268  $3.305  $4.688  $6.077     $7.462 

City of 
Springfield 

$2.995  $2.995  $2.995  $2.995  $2.995     $2.995 

Total  $4.682  $5.263  $6.300  $7.683  $9.072  $10.457 
*  Average total biological oxygen demand and suspended solids in milligrams per liter (mg/L) 

Base Charge:  A regional (MWMC) monthly base charge of $11.34 is also applied to each account. 

Attachment 2, Page 57 of 87



Section 9: Utilities 

Page 52      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Stormwater (Drainage) Rates  
Resolutions 12‐08 

 
Beginning with bills rendered on or after July 1, 2012 stormwater (drainage) charges shall be as 
follows: 
 

Stormwater Monthly Fee Schedule 

*Residential:  $12.13 

**Commercial  Very Heavy 
>70% 

Heavy 
40‐70% 

Moderate 
20‐39% 

Light 
<20% 

None 
0% 

Per 1000 sq ft of Property  $3.525  $2.644  $1.763  $1.410  $0.000 

Base Rate  $1.400  $1.400  $1.400  $1.400  $1.400 

Total  $4.925  $4.044  $3.163  $2.810  $1.400 

*Includes Single Family Residential and Duplex Households 
**Commercial based on percentage of property development (impervious area) 

 

 

 

Attachment 2, Page 58 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 53 
 

 
Industrial Pre‐Treatment  
(SMC 4.020) (1)   
Purpose. It is the purpose of this section to reduce the city’s cost of implementation of the pretreatment 
program through a system of equitable charges or fees to be paid by the industrial users of the city 
sewerage system who are subject to this section for certain service. The applicable charges or fees shall 
be set forth on a schedule of fees adopted by resolution of the council. 
  (2)  Adoption. 
    (a)  Setting up and operating the pretreatment program. 
    (b)  Sampling, monitoring, inspections, and surveillance procedures. 
    (c)  Reviewing accidental discharge procedures and construction. 
    (d)  Reviewing and acting upon permit applications. 
    (e)  Other services as the city manager may deem necessary to carry out the requirements 

contained herein. 
 
(SMC 4.008, 4.070) No industrial user shall discharge wastewater containing restricted substances into the 
city sewerage system, in excess of limitations specified by conditions of its discharge permit or published 
by the city manager. The city manager shall publish and revise from time to time rules which designate 
and establish limits for restricted substances. At all times, these rules shall cover and be at least as strict 
as those for pollutants as defined in state or federal regulations. Discharge limits or rules in effect and 
incorporated into any discharge permit shall remain in effect for that permit until it expires, except as 
modified pursuant to section 4.024. The city manager is authorized and directed to promulgate such rules 
and regulations as may be deemed necessary or proper to carry out the purposes or provisions of sections 
4.002 to 4.094. Nothing in these sections shall prevent the city manager from seeking judicial or 
governmental agency assistance to implement the purposes and provisions of this code. 
 

Annual Permit Fee.   
Administrative Rule 4.0503 R4.0503‐C (1) A nonrefundable annual permit fee in the amount listed in the 
most recent amendment of the Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 340‐045‐0075:  Permit Fee Schedule 
Table 70E (Annual Pretreatment Fees‐Significant Industrial User) shall be paid to the City by each 
permitted Significant Industrial User(SIO).  The fee shall be due annually on August 1 and will be applied 
to each SIU specified in the City’s annual DEQ Pretreatment Report for the previous calendar year. 

 
OAR 340‐045‐0075 Permit Fee Schedule 
Table 70E Annual Pretreatment Fee 
    Significant Industrial User  $523 per industry 

 

Administrative Rule 4.0503, Appendix B 

Resample and Analytical Cost 
  Barometer  Sample Type  Cost 
  Metals1 (except Mercury)  Composite  $118.00 
  Metals1  (except Mercury)  Grab  $152.00 
  Mercury2    Composite  $122.00 
  Mercury2    Grab  $182.00 
  Silica Gel Treated Hexane Ext. Material Grab    $274.00 
  Cyanide    Composite  $148.00 

                                                            
1 The above cost for metals includes the cost of analysis for one metal; each additional metal analysis 
would cost $14. 
2 Cost for mercury includes sampling.  If mercury is included with sampling for other metals, additional 
cost for mercury is $18. 

Attachment 2, Page 59 of 87



Section 9: Utilities 

Page 54      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

  Cyanide  Grab  $182.00 
  pH  Grab  $149.00 
  Phenols  Composite  $146.00 
  Phenols  Grab  $181.00 
  Volatile Organics (EPA 624)  Grab  $283.00 
  Semi‐volatile Organics (EPA 625)  Grab  $433.00 
  BTEX  Grab  $163.00 

The costs in the above table will be reviewed annually, and adjusted when necessary 

Administrative Rule 4.0503, Appendix A 
Enforcement Response Guide 
Effluent Limitations or General Discharge Prohibitions (See Notes 2, 3, 4, 5, 6. 7. 8. 11. 12) 
 
Nature of Violation 
  First month with violation(s) in a 12 month period 
    Response     Notice of Noncompliance 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Second month with violation(s) in a 12‐month period   
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty     $100 per pollutant per day 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Third month with a violation(s) in a 12‐month period 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty     $200 per pollutant per day 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Fourth month with violation(s) in a 12‐month period 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty     $300 per pollutant per day 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Fifth month with violation(s) in a 12‐month period 
    Response   Notice of Violation Administrative Compliance 
Order 
    Penalty     $500 per pollutant per day 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Sixth to twelfth month with violation(s) in a 12‐month period 
    Response   Notice of Violation (Administrative Compliance Order remains in 
effect) 
    Penalty     $500 per pollutant per day 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Any series of violations of effluent limitations which meet the definition of Significant 

Noncompliance  
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order 
    Penalty     See Note 5 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Any exceedance of effluent limitations which causes danger, interference, pass‐through, 

or sludge contamination 

Attachment 2, Page 60 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 55 
 

    Response   Administrative Compliance Order or civil 
litigation or terminate service   

    Penalty     $2500 per pollutant per day 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 
Failure to Report Noncompliance 
(See Note 12) 
Nature of Violation 
  Failure to immediately report any slug load, spill or discharge that could cause 

interference or pass‐through, (no harm)  
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty     $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to immediately report any spill, slug load, or discharge causing interference or 

pass‐through, or other harm  
  Response     Administrative Compliance Order 

    Penalty     $2500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to report a violation of a permit effluent limitation within 24 hours  
    Response     Notice of Noncompliance 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to report a violation of a permit effluent limitation within 3 days  
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty     $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to provide a certified laboratory report and written report within 5 days of a 

permit effluent limitation violation 
    Response     Notice of Violation  
    Penalty     $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to provide a written report of an effluent limitation violation as required by a 

Notice of Violation   
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty     $300 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Any noncompliance report late by more than 30 days (SNC) 
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order 
    Penalty     $500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 
Failure to Submit Other Required Reports 
Nature of Violation 
  Failure to notify the City of a substantial change in volume or character of pollutants in 

discharge 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty     $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 

Attachment 2, Page 61 of 87



Section 9: Utilities 

Page 56      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

  Failure to notify the City of a batch discharge   
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to report a slug discharge within 24 hours   
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to notify the City of the disposal of over 500 gallons of wastewater to any other 

person in a period of 12 consecutive months 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to obtain prior written permission for discharge of any hazardous waste, subject 

to exemptions in City Code 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $1000 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to report the discharge of any hazardous waste within 180 days, subject to 

exemptions in City Code   
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Two or more failures to submit required reports or notifications in a 12‐month period 
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order (See Note 2) 
    Penalty    $500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to report all monitoring data   
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 
General Reporting Requirements 
Nature of Violation 
  Any report (other than a noncompliance report) late by more than 5 days but less than 

15 days  
    Response     Telephone Call 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Any report (other than a noncompliance report) late by 15 to 30 days 
    Response     Notice of Noncompliance 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Any report (other than a noncompliance report) late by more than 30 days (SNC)   
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order 
    Penalty    $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Any incomplete or inaccurate report, or any report improperly signed or certified 

Attachment 2, Page 62 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 57 
 

    Response     Telephone Call 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Any incomplete or inaccurate report, or any report improperly signed or certified after 

telephone notice by City 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $100 
    Personnel     City Manager 
Pollution Management Practices 

Nature of Violation 
  Failure to implement required pollution management practices (first notice) 
    Response     Notice of Noncompliance 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to implement required pollution management practices (second notice) 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $200 per month 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 
Record Keeping 

Nature of Violation 
  Failure to maintain required records for three years 

Response   Notice of Violation 
    Penalty  $200 
    Personnel   City Manager 
 

Monitoring 
Nature of Violation 
  Failure to conduct self‐monitoring as required in permit 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $200 per sample day and conduct monitoring 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Improper sampling or analytical procedures used, no intent 
    Response       Notice of Noncompliance 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Improper sampling or analytical procedures used, intent 
    Response   Administrative Compliance Order (See Note 10, 

Page 12) 
    Penalty    $2500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to install required monitoring equipment or facilities, delay less than 30 days   
    Response     Notice of Noncompliance 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to install required monitoring equipment or facilities, delay more than 30 days 

Attachment 2, Page 63 of 87



Section 9: Utilities 

Page 58      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to install required monitoring equipment or facilities, delay more than 90 days   
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order 
    Penalty    $500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 
Falsification 
Nature of Violation 
  Making any false statement, representation, or certification in any application, record, 

report, plan or other document; or falsifying, tampering with or rendering inaccurate 
any monitoring device 

    Response     Notice of Violation (See Note 9) 
    Penalty    $2500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 
Unpermitted Discharge 
Nature of Violation 
  Industrial User unaware of requirement; no harm    
    Response     Telephone call. Permit application sent 
    Penalty     None   
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Industrial User unaware of requirement; results in harm 
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order 
    Penalty    $500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to apply for permit within 30 days after notice from City 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to apply for permit within 30 days after Notice of Violation 
    Response     Terminate Service 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Industrial User aware of requirement; no harm 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $300 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Industrial User aware of requirement, results in harm 
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order 
    Penalty    $2500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 

Attachment 2, Page 64 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 59 
 

Permit Reissuance 
Nature of Violation 
  Application for permit reissuance late by more than 15 days (due 90 days prior to 

expiration date) 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $100 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 
Dilution 
Nature of Violation 
  Waste stream diluted in lieu of treatment; initial violation 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $300 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Waste stream diluted in lieu of treatment; recurring 
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order 
    Penalty    $2500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 
Entry Denial 
Nature of Violation 
  Entry to premises or access to sampling location denied 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $2500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 
Compliance Schedules 
Nature of Violation 
  Compliance date missed by less than 30 days   
    Response     Notice of Noncompliance 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Compliance date missed by more than 30 days 
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $200 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Compliance date missed by more than 90 days (SNC) 
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order 
    Penalty    $500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to meet a compliance date listed in an Administrative Compliance Order 
    Response     Administrative Compliance Order in effect 
    Penalty    $500 per day 
    Personnel     City Manager 
 

Attachment 2, Page 65 of 87



Section 9: Utilities 

Page 60      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Mobile Waste Hauler 
(See Note 10) 
Nature of Violation 
  Discharge of wastes at unpermitted discharge point (first violation)   
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $1000 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Discharge of wastes at unpermitted discharge point (second violation)   
    Response   Notice of Violation, Permit revoked; unauthorized 
      to discharge at WPCF; letter of notification to 

hauler; copy of letter to DEQ 
    Penalty    $2500 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Discharge of wastes at unpermitted time (first violation in 12 months) 
    Response     Notice of Noncompliance 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Discharge of wastes at unpermitted time (second and subsequent violations in 12 
months)   
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to submit or properly complete manifest at time of disposal 
    Response     Notice of Noncompliance 
    Penalty     None 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to submit or properly complete manifest within 10 days of Notice of 
Noncompliance  
    Response     Notice of Violation 
    Penalty    $50 per manifest 
    Personnel     City Manager 
  Failure to submit or properly complete manifest at time of disposal two or more times in 

one calendar month 
Response     Notice of Violation 
Penalty    $200 
Personnel     City Manager 

  Discharge of other than domestic or septage wastes without prior approval 
Response     Notice of Violation 
Penalty    $500 
Personnel     City Manager 

  Failure to supply copies of required documents to City by due date 
Response     Notice of Violation 
Penalty    $200 
Personnel     City Manager 

  Failure to clean up spilled material at disposal site 
Response     Notice of Violation 
Penalty    Twice cost to City of labor and materials to clean up site 
Personnel     City Manager 

Attachment 2, Page 66 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 61 
 

  Mobile Waste Hauler discharging without a permit  
Response     Notice of Violation 
Penalty     $1000 
Personnel     City Manager 

  Failure to pay waste disposal charges within 30 days of mailing date 
Response    Letter regarding delinquent account with copy of billing 
Penalty    $5.00 or 5% of past due amount, whichever is greater 
Personnel     City Manager 

  Failure to pay waste disposal charges within 60 days of mailing date   
Response   Certified letter, demanding payment within 10 days; cash,  

money order, cashiers check only 
Penalty    $5.00 or 5% of past due amount, whichever is greater 
Personnel     City Manager 

  Failure to pay waste disposal charges within 10 days of mailing date of above certified 
demand letter 

Response   Permit revoked, unauthorized to discharge at 
WPCF; letter of notification to hauler; copy of 
letter to DEQ   

Penalty   Unauthorized to discharge at WPCF (See Note 10) 
Personnel     City Manager 

 
Other Violations 
Nature of Violation 
  Failure to comply with any other condition or requirement of a Wastewater Discharge 

Permit or Mobile Waste Hauler Permit not included above (no intent) 
Response     Notice of Noncompliance 
Penalty     None 
Personnel     City Manager 

  Failure to comply with any other condition or requirement of a Wastewater Discharge 
Permit or Mobile Waste Hauler Permit (intent) 

Response     Notice of Violation 
Penalty    $200 
Personnel     City Manager 

 
NOTES:  Definitions (for other definitions see Springfield City Code 4.004), City Manager: City of Springfield 
City Manager, SNC: Significant Noncompliance (Springfield City Code 4.068), WPCF: Eugene/Springfield 
Water Pollution Control Facility, DEQ: Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, POTW: Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works 
 

Other Rates 
Solid Waste 
(SMC 4,408, Resolution 12‐03) (1)  Charges for the collection of garbage and refuse as established herein 
shall be payable monthly in advance. In the event that any person fails to pay the collector of garbage and 
refuse for the services rendered by the collector for a period of 45 days, then the collector may prepare a 
statement to that effect, and to the effect that he is terminating the service to such person and shall 
deliver a copy thereof to the city manager. The city shall thereupon have the burden of seeing to it that 
such person for whom the service is terminated disposes of his garbage in accordance with the terms of 
sections 4.400 to 4.430. The collector shall have no duty to commence serving such person again until the 
collector shall have been reimbursed for the delinquent payments. 

Attachment 2, Page 67 of 87



Section 9: Utilities 

Page 62      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

 

Attachment 2, Page 68 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 63 
 

 
   

Attachment 2, Page 69 of 87



Section 9: Utilities 

Page 64      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

 

 

Attachment 2, Page 70 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 65 
 

 

Attachment 2, Page 71 of 87



Section 9: Utilities 

Page 66      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

   

Attachment 2, Page 72 of 87



    Section 9: Utilities 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 67 
 

Fuel Tax 
Motor Vehicle Fuel Dealer’s Business License 
(SMC 7.504(b)) No dealer shall sell, use or distribute any motor vehicle fuel until he/she has secured a 
dealer’s license as required herein. [Section 7.506 added by Ordinance 6042, enacted March 10, 2003.] 

  Per gallon of such motor vehicle sold, used or distributed   .03 
 
Failure to Secure (Motor Fuel Dealer’s Business) License 
(SMC 7.510(b))   If a dealer sells, distributes or uses any motor vehicle fuel without first filing the 
certificate and obtaining the license required by section 7.506 

      Amount of tax determined to be due plus a penalty of 100% of the tax. 
 
Payment of (Motor Fuel Dealer’s) Tax and Delinquency 
(SMC 7.518(2), 7.518 (3))  Except as provided in subsections (3) and (4) of this section, if payment of the 
license tax is not paid as required by subsection (1) of this section, a penalty of 1 percent of such license 
tax shall be assessed and be immediately due and payable. Except as provided in subsection (4) of this 
section, if the payment of the tax and penalty, if any, is not made on or before the 1st day of the next 
month following that month in which payment is due, a further penalty of 10 percent of the tax shall be 
assessed. Said penalty shall be in addition to the penalty provided for in subsection (2) of this section and 
shall be immediately due and payable. 

 
Failure to File (Motor Fuel Dealer’s) Monthly Statement 
(SMC 7.522) If a dealer fails to file any statement required by section 7.520, the tax administrator shall 
proceed forthwith to determine from as many available sources as the tax administrator determines 
reasonable the amount of motor vehicle fuel sold distributed or used by such dealer for the period 
unreported, and such determination shall in any proceeding be prima facie evidence of the amount of fuel 
sold, distributed or used. The tax administrator shall immediately assess the dealer for the license tax 
upon the amount determined, adding thereto a penalty of 10 percent of the tax. The penalty shall be 
cumulative to other penalties provided in this code 

 

Franchise Fees and Utility License 

Comprehensive Telecommunication Placement Plan Review Fees   
(SMC 3.266 (5)) At the election of the applicant, the applicant may file a comprehensive 
telecommunications placement plan which describes all facilities it presently intends to install. Such plan 
is subject to approval of the Public Works director and may be modified from time to time by the 
applicant with the approval of the Public Works director.  

  $704.00 
Compensation Fee for Use of Public Ways   
(SMC  4.706 Ordinance No. 6203, enacted July 16, 2007; amended by Ordinance No. 6270, enacted July 5, 

2011 See also SMC 4.602 Utility License Required.)   (1)(a)  All persons not parties to a franchise or 

public way use agreement and using facilities, whether owned by the user or by another, occupying the 

public ways for delivery of utility service shall pay to the city of Springfield a utility fee in the amount of 

five percent of gross revenues, as herein defined, subject to limitations in other state or federal laws. 

(b) All persons not parties to a franchise or public way use agreement and occupying the public ways for 
placement of utility facilities but not providing utility service within the city shall pay a fee, in an amount 
fixed by resolution of the council for each foot or portion thereof occupied, subject to limitations in other 

state or federal laws.   Gross revenue  5% 
(c) All utilities owned and operated by the city of Springfield, except a municipal utility as defined in ORS 
757.005(1), shall pay to the city of Springfield a utility fee fixed by resolution of the council.   

  Gross revenue  3% 

Attachment 2, Page 73 of 87



Section 9: Utilities 

Page 68      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Telecommunication License Application Fee 
(SMC 4.702, Ordinance No. 5891, enacted May 18, 1998; amended by Ordinance No. 6203, enacted July 
16, 2007) 
Any applicant for a license, including a renewal or amendment of an existing license. An applicant whose 
license or franchise application has been withdrawn, abandoned or denied within 60 days of its 
application and review fee written request, shall be refunded the balance of its deposit under this section, 
less: 

    New and including renewal of existing License(s)  $1000.00 50.00 
 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

 
Telecommunications License Fee  $500.00  
(SMC 4.708 Ordinance No. 5891, enacted May 18, 1998; amended by Ordinance No. 6203, enacted July 
16, 2007.)  

Each license grantee shall pay an annual license fee to the city in an amount fixed by council resolution as 

reimbursement for the city’s costs in administering this chapter and in connection with reviewing, 

inspecting and supervising the use and occupancy of the public ways on behalf of the public and existing or 

future users. 

 
Compensation for City Property    
(SMC 4.710 Ordinance No. 5891, enacted May 18, 1998; amended by Ordinance No. 6203, enacted July 16, 
2007) If the right is granted, by lease, license, franchise or other manner, to use and occupy city property 
other than the public ways for the installation of facilities. 

    $620.00 
   

Attachment 2, Page 74 of 87



    Section 10: System Development Charges 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 69 
 

Section 10:  System Development Charges 
The System Development Charges are annually increase by an inflationary rate on July 1 of each 
year.  
The following fees shall be charged for the Development activities of the City: 
 
Calculating the SDC 
The SDC charges for each development is calculated using the worksheet shown as Exhibit 2. 
 
The Storm Sewer SDC is based on Square Feet of Impervious Surface Area.  The Sanitary Sewer 
SDC is based on Drainage Fixture Units as defined by the April 2000 Oregon Amendments to the 
1997 Uniform Plumbing Code.  The Transportation SDC is based on Average Weekday Trip 
Generation rates as published in the latest edition of the Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip 
Generation Manual.  More detailed information on calculating the fees for each system is shown 
below: 
 
Storm Drainage 
The storm drainage SDC is paid by all new residential, commercial, and industrial development.  
The charge is based on the square footage of the impervious surface area of the development.  
Impervious surfaces typically consist of concrete, asphalt, and roofing.  The cost per square foot 
of impervious surface area is 0.583.  In applying the SDC, the cost per square foot is applied to 
the amount of impervious surface area measured at the time the building permit is issued. 
 

FORMULA: STORM DRAINAGE SDC = IMPERVIOUS SQUARE FEET x $0.583/SQUARE FOOT 
 
A 50% credit will be given for the portion of impervious area served by a drywell sized and 
constructed to City of Springfield Standard Construction Specifications.  A SDC credit will also be 
give for peak ten‐year runoff reduction based on documentation provided by the developer and 
approved by the City.  
 
Sanitary Sewer‐City 
The charge is paid by all new commercial, industrial, and residential development.  To calculate 
the impact of new development on the sanitary sewer system, the City uses the number of 
drainage fixture units (DFU) as the basis of the charge.   
 
FORMULA: Residential rate increases to $201.50. Residential city sanitary sewer SDC = number 

of DFU x $201.50 
FORMULA: Commercial/Industrial is $201.50 per DFU. Commercial/industrial city sanitary 

sewer SDC = number of DFU x $201.50 
 

Drainage fixture unit (DFU) calculation table 
  Fixture type    Unit Equivalent 
  Bathtub   3 
  Drinking Fountain  1 
  Floor Drain, Floor Sink  3 
  Interceptors for Grease/Oil/Solids/Etc  3 
  Interceptors for Sand/Auto Wash/Etc.  6 
  Laundry Tub  2 

Attachment 2, Page 75 of 87



Section 10: System Development Charges 

 

Page 70      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

  Clothes washer/Mop Sink  3 
  Clothes washer‐ 3 or more (ea)  6 
  Mobile Home Park trap (1 per trailer)  12 
  Receptor for Refrigerator  1 
  Receptor for Commercial sink/dishwasher/etc  3 

  Shower, Single stall  2 
  Shower, Gang (number of heads)  2 
  Sink:  Commercial, Residential Kitchen  3 
  Sink: Commercial bar  2 
  Sink: Wash basin/Double lavatory  2 
  Sink: Single lavatory/Residential bar  1 
  Urinal, Stall/Wall  5 
  Toilet, Public installation  6 
  Toilet, Private installation  3 
 

Transportation  
This SDC is charged on new commercial, industrial, professional, and residential development or 
change of use.  It helps support expansion of arterial and collector roads, traffic signals, and 
street lighting.  The SDC is based on the trip rate of the specific type of development and the 
cost per trip.  The cost per trip is $247.98 for all use types.   A new trip factor is applied to omit 
short pass‐by trips, diverted trips, and other linked trips. Trip rates for developments are based 
on the current Institute for Transportation Engineers' (ITE's) Trip Generation Manual, or the 
developer can submit a trip generation study outlined and approved by the City of Springfield.  A 
partial list of trip rates is in the Transportation Fee Schedule, Exhibit 3. 
 

FORMULA: Number of Trips X Unit X $247.98 X New Trip Factor 
 
Sanitary Sewer (MWMC) 
The Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) Facility Equalization Charge 
is a reimbursement fee for the reserve capacity that was constructed to serve new growth.  This 
fee is designed to reimburse the community for its equity in the treatment plant's reserve 
capacity.  Newly developed properties, change of use, or other properties that are connecting to 
the wastewater treatment system for the first time will pay the equalization charge.  New 
development receives credit for past bond payments on existing debt and for contributions to 
qualified offsite public improvements.  See Exhibit 4, Attachments C.  The Flow Estimation Units 
(FEU) is used for the MWMC Facility Equalization Charge. 
 

Formula: NUMBER OF FEU x COST PER FEU + $10 ADMIN. FEE 
 
Administrative Cost 
The SDC legislation allows the City to recover its costs for complying with the required changes.  
A five percent (5%) administrative fee will be added to cover the cost of developing the SDC, 
establishing accounting mechanisms and administering the ongoing program. 
 

Attachment 2, Page 76 of 87



    Section 10: System Development Charges 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 71 
 

Residential SDC Payment Deferral Program 
(SMC 3.412) (4)  The purchaser of a home or multifamily dwelling may elect to finance system 
development charges over a period of 10 years, billed in equal semiannual installments, plus interest and 
fees 
    Interest Rate ‐UnbondedAverage City Earnings Rate plus 2% 
  Interest Rate – Bonded  Bond Rate plus 1.5% 
  Deferral Administrative Fee  $50.00 
  Installment Late Payment Fee 10% of Overdue Installment 

 
Short‐Term SDC Payment Deferral Program 
(City Policy)  Whenever the total SDC due for a Building Permit exceeds $10,000, the applicant may elect to 
enter into a short‐term SDC Deferral Agreement.  The Agreement is in the form of a potential lien and must 
be signed prior to Building Permit issuance.  The SDC Deferral Agreement allows the applicant to pay a 
minimum of $10,000 toward the total SDC due prior to the City issuing the Building Permit.  The balance of 
the SDC due must be paid in full prior to the City issuing a Certificate of Occupancy for the building. 

    Initial SDC Payment  $10,000.00 at Building Permit Issuance 
    Final SDC PaymentBalance of SDC Due prior to Certificate of Occupancy 
 
SDC Credit Certificate Administration Fees 
(SMC 3.417)  (1)In the event a credit authorized under section 3.416(2) is greater than the amount of 
the charge due, the city shall upon request of the developer, issue to the developer a certificate, 
documenting the amount of the credit in excess of the charge. 
  (2)  Such certificate may be redeemed by the developer and applied to future charges for 
that type of capital improvement, provided such redemption shall occur not later than 10 years after the 
date of issuance of the certificate. 
  (3)  Any developer issued a certificate shall pay to the city, at the time of issuance, and 
annually thereafter until such certificate is redeemed, an administrative fee fixed by resolution of the 
council. Failure to timely pay such annual fee shall not invalidate a certificate, but no certificate shall be 
transferred or redeemed until all annual fees shall have been paid. 
  (4)  The certificate may be redeemed in whole or in parts. If the certificate is redeemed in 
part, the city shall, upon delivery of the certificate, issue a new certificate documenting the remaining 
credit available. Such reissued certificate shall expire 10 years after the date of the original certificate, and 
shall be considered a new certificate for purposes of the administrative fee. 
  (5)  Such certificate may be transferred, in whole or in part, to another person, provided, 
however, that no such transfer shall be effective until the holder of the certificate shall surrender the 
same and a new certificate or certificates issued. 
    Initial SDC Credit Certificate Fee  $250.00  
    Annual Certificate Maintenance Fee  $250.00 
   

Attachment 2, Page 77 of 87



Section 10: System Development Charges 

 

Page 72      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

 

   

Attachment 2, Page 78 of 87



    Exhibits 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 73 
 

Exhibits 
Exhibit 1 

 

Attachment 2, Page 79 of 87



Section 10: System Development Charges 

 

Page 74      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Exhibit 2 

 

Attachment 2, Page 80 of 87



    Exhibits 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 75 
 

   

Attachment 2, Page 81 of 87



Section 10: System Development Charges 

 

Page 76      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

Code Land Use 
Trip        
Rate Unit

New Trip 
Factor (NTF)

0 0 0
30 TRUCK TERMINAL 81.90 ACRE 1
90 BUS PARK & RIDE 4.50 PARKING SPACE 1
110 GENERAL LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 6.97 TGSF 0.95
120 GENERAL HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 1.50 TGSF 1
130 INDUSTRIAL PARK 6.96 TGSF 1
140 MANUFACTURING 3.82 TGSF 0.95
150 WAREHOUSING 3.56 TGSF 0.95
151 MINI-WAREHOUSE 2.50 TGSF 0.95
170 UTILITIES BUILDING 2.50 TGSF 0.95
210 SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING / DUPLEX 9.57 DU 1
220 GROUND FLOOR APARTMENT 6.65 DU 1
221 LOW-RISE APARTMENT (2 FLOORS) 6.59 DU 1
222 HIGH-RISE APARTMENT (10 OR MORE FL) 4.20 DU 1
230 RES. CONDOMINIUM/TOWNHOUSE 5.81 DU 1
240 MOBILE HOME PARK 4.99 DU 1
251 ELDERLY HOUSING - DETACHED 3.71 DU 1
252 ELDERLY HOUSING - ATTACHED 3.48 DU 1
253 CONGREGATE ELDERLY CARE FACILITY 2.02 DU 1
254 ASSISTED LIVING 2.74 BEDS 1
310 HOTEL 8.17 ROOM 0.85
320 MOTEL 9.11 ROOM 1
411 CITY PARK 1.59 ACRE 1
412 COUNTY PARK 2.28 ACRE 1
430 GOLF COURSE 5.04 ACRE 1
435 MULTIPURPOSE RECREATION FACILITY 90.38 ACRE 1
437 BOWLING ALLEY 33.33 TGSF 1
440 ADULT CABARET * TGSF 1
441 LIVE THEATER * TGSF 1
443 MOVIE THEATER W/O MATINEE * SEAT 1
444 MOVIE THEATER W/MATINEE * MOVIE SCREEN 1
445 MULTIPLEX MOVIE THEATER * MOVIE SCREEN 1
488 SOCCER COMPLEX 71.33 FIELD 1
490 TENNIS COURT 31.04 COURT 0.85

Transportation Fee Schedule

Exhibit 3 
 

   

Attachment 2, Page 82 of 87



    Exhibits 

2012 Master Fees and Charges     Page 77 
 

 
   

Code Land Use 
Trip        
Rate Unit

New Trip 
Factor (NTF)

491 RACQUET CLUB 38.70 COURT 0.85
492 HEALTH/FITNESS CLUB 32.93 TGSF 0.85
495 RECREATIONAL COMMUNITY CENTER 22.88 TGSF 0.85
520 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1.29 STUDENT 0.85
522 MIDDLE SCHOOL 1.62 STUDENT 0.85
530 HIGH SCHOOL 1.71 STUDENT *
540 JUNIOR/COMM. COLLEGE 1.20 STUDENT *
560 CHURCH/SYNAGOGUE/MOSQUE 9.11 TGSF 1
565 DAY CARE FACILITY 79.26 TGSF 0.7
590 LIBRARY 56.24 TGSF 0.5
591 LODGE/FRATERNAL ORGANIZATION 46.90 TGSF 0.85
610 HOSPITAL 16.50 TGSF 0.85
620 NURSING HOME 2.37 BED 0.95
630 MED/DENTAL CLINIC 31.45 TGSF 0.95
710 GENERAL OFFICE BUILDING 11.01 TGSF 0.9
714 CORPERATE HEADQUARTERS BLDG 7.98 TGSF 0.9
715 SINGLE TENANT OFFICE BLDG 11.57 TGSF 0.9
720 MEDICAL/DENTAL, VET. OFFICE 36.13 TGSF 0.85
730 GOVERNMENT OFFICE BUILDING 68.93 TGSF 0.9
732 US POST OFFICE 108.19 TGSF 0.75
733 GOVERNMENT OFFICE COMPLEX 27.92 TGSF 0.9
750 OFFICE PARK 11.42 TGSF 0.9
770 BUSINESS PARK 12.76 TGSF 0.9
812 BLDG. MATERIALS & LUMBER 45.16 TGSF 0.75
813 DISCOUNT SUPERSTORE 53.13 TGSF 0.72
814 SPECIALTY RETAIL CENTER 44.32 TSFGLA 0.75
815 FREE STANDING DISCOUNT STORE 57.24 TGSF 0.65
816 HARDWARE/PAINT STORE 51.29 TGSF 0.65
817 NURSERY (GARDEN CENTER) 36.08 TGSF 0.75
818 NURSERY (WHOLESALE) 39.00 TGSF 0.75
820 SHOPPING CENTER <10TGSF 152.00 TGFGLA 0.35
821 SHOP.CNTR.<50TGSF 86.51 TSFGLA 0.35
822 SHOP.CNTR.<100TGSF 67.91 TSFGLA 0.45
823 SHOP.CNTR.<200TGSF 53.28 TSFGLA 0.5
824 SHOP.CNTR.<300TGSF 46.23 TSFGLA 0.55
825 SHOP.CNTR.<400TGSF 41.80 TSFGLA 0.6
826 SHOP.CNTR.<500TGSF 38.66 TSFGLA 0.6
827 SHOP.CNTR.<600TGSF 36.27 TSFGLA 0.65
828 SHOP.CNTR.<800TGSF 32.80 TSFGLA 0.65
829 SHOP.CNTR.<1.0MTGSF 30.33 TSFGLA 0.65
841 NEW CAR SALES 33.34 TGSF 0.85
843 AUTO PARTS SALES 61.91 TGSF 0.9
848 TIRE STORE 24.87 TGSF 0.5
850 SUPERMARKET 102.24 TGSF 0.48

Transportation Fee Schedule

Attachment 2, Page 83 of 87



Section 10: System Development Charges 

 

Page 78      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

 
 

Code Land Use 
Trip        
Rate Unit

New Trip 
Factor (NTF)

851 CONVENIENCE MARKET(Open 24 hours) 737.99 TGSF 0.3
852 CONVENIENCE MARKET(15-16 hours) * TGSF 0.38
853 CONVENIENCE MARKET with Gas pumps 542.60 VFP 0.38
870 APPAREL STORE 66.40 TGSF 0.55
880 PHARMACY W/O DRIVE-THRU 90.06 TGSF 0.75
881 PHARMACY W/ DRIVE-THRU 88.16 TGSF 0.75
890 FURNITURE STORE 5.06 TGSF 0.65
895 VIDEO ARCADE 106.40 TGSF 0.9
896 VIDEO RENTAL STORE 136.00 TGSF 0.85
897 ADULT VIDEO RENTAL 50.00 TGSF 0.85
911 WALK-IN BANK 156.48 TGSF 0.75
912 DRIVE-IN BANK 148.15 TGSF 0.55
931 QUALITY RESTAURANT 89.95 TGSF 0.8
932 HIGH TURNOVER (SITDOWN) REST 127.15 TGSF 0.8
933 FAST FOOD RESTAURANT- no drivethru 151.20 TGSF 0.5
934 FAST FOOD Rest. (or coffee cart)- with drivethru 496.12 TGSF 0.5
935 FAST FOOD with drivethru-no indoor seating 1400.00 TGSF 0.4
936 DRINKING PLACE 113.40 TGSF 0.5
941 QUICK LUBE SHOP 40.00 SVC POSIT 0.85
942 AUTO SERVICE 41.90 TGSF 0.9
944 SERVICE STATION 168.56 VFP 0.5
945 SERVICE STATION W/MARKET 162.78 VFP 0.5
946 SERV.STA.W/MARKET & CAR WASH 152.84 VFP 0.5
947 SELF SERVICE CAR WASH 108.00 STALL 0.65

*  Require Study from Applicant

DU Dwelling Unit VFP
TGSF Thousand Gross Square Footage SVC POSIT Service Position
TSFGLA Thousand Square Footage Gross Leasable Area 

ABBREVIATIONS                             

Vehicle Fueling Positions

Transportation Fee Schedule

Attachment 2, Page 84 of 87



    Exhibits 

Page 79    2012 Master Fees and Charges     
 

Exhibit 4 
   

Attachment 2, Page 85 of 87



Section 10: System Development Charges 

 

Page 80      2012 Master Fees and Charges  

 
Where used in this guide, a twelve‐month period means a moving twelve‐month window, including the month for the current violation and the 
preceding eleven months.  The enforcement response for violations of effluent limitations varies according to the past compliance history of the 
industrial user.  The number of months containing violations in the twelve‐month window is determined, and the enforcement response and penalty 
assessed accordingly. 

1. Analytical results between 3 and 9 times the limitation will be subject to a multiplier of 2.  Analytical results 10 times the limitation or greater 
will be subject to a multiplier of 3.  For example, for a discharge with an effluent limitation of 0.5 mg/L, and an analytical result of 5.1 mg/L, 
the multiplier is 3, (5.1/0.5) = 10.2. 

2. For violations of effluent limitations where the analytical result is less than or equal to 1.2 times the permitted effluent limitation, or is less 
than 0.2 pH units above or below a permitted effluent pH range, the City will not assess an administrative penalty for that violation. The viola‐
tion will, however, be recorded and treated as a permit violation for all other purposes, including the calculation of Significant Non‐
compliance. 

3. For any series of violations of effluent limitations which meet the definition of Significant Noncompliance, the enforcement response will be 
the issuance of an Administrative Compliance Order.  The penalty assessed will be as listed above, according to the number of months with 
violations, or as specified in the Order. 

4. Penalties listed for effluent violations are per pollutant per day, and apply to results obtained from City or industrial user monitoring.  The 
City may conduct monitoring as often as necessary to determine compliance.  For the purposes of assessing an administrative civil penalty for 
a violation of effluent limitations, general discharge prohibitions, or specific restricted substance limitations, the term "day" shall have one of 
the following meanings: 

5. If the violation is determined from data obtained from a grab sample, or a series of grab samples, day means calendar day. 
6. If the violation is determined from data obtained from an automatic pH recording instrument, day means calendar day. 
7. If the violation is determined from data obtained from a composite sample collected by an automatic sampling device, day means the 24‐

hour period beginning at the time sampling is initiated. 
8. A violation of a monthly average, weekly average, or 4‐day average effluent limitation will be considered as one violation for the purpose of 

calculating the administrative penalty, or other enforcement response.  
9. Other enforcement orders available besides those listed in the guide above include: Stipulated Enforcement Order; Cease and Desist Order; 

and Termination and Revocation Order.  These orders can be issued separately or in conjunction with any other order in the guide. 
10. In addition to the enforcement response listed above, the matter will be referred for criminal prosecution where deemed appropriate by the 

City Manager. 
11. A Mobile Waste Hauler Permit may be reinstated when account is made current; only cash, money order, or cashiers check will be accepted 

for six month period following permit revocation.  A $50.00 reconnection fee will be charged. 
12. For industries with more than one regulated waste stream, the escalated response to effluent violations is applied separately.  For example, if 

an industry has three consecutive months of violations at one waste stream and then the following month a violation occurs at a separate 
waste stream, this would count as the industry’s first violation for that waste stream assuming there were no other violations at this location 
during the past 12 months. 

13. For slug discharges, notification to the POTW shall occur within 60 minutes of the industrial user becoming aware of it. 

 

Attachment 2, Page 86 of 87



 

Attachment 2, Page 87 of 87



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit A, Page 1 of 6 

LIST OF FEES & CHARGES CHANGES TO THE NEW MASTER FEES & CHARGES SCHEDULE 
 
Page 1, Alarm System (Business) License (SMC 7.012, 7.024) 
Adding fee to schedule 
Alarm Agent Per 2-year cycle, $30.00 
Alarm Business Per year, $80.00 
 
Page 2, Christmas Tree Sales Lot/Firework Sales Lot (SMC 7.156) 
Name addition of Firework 
 
Page 3, Liquor License ((SMC 7.304) 
Addition of Special Liquor  $25.00/daily 
Removal of the “A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected.” 
 
Page 3, Sale and Distribution of Tobacco and Tobacco Projects to Minors-License Fees (SMC 5.300 (2)) 
Addition of the “A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected.” 
 
Page 3, Manufactured Dwelling Park License (SMC 7.314) 
Addition of omitted 51-75 spaces, Per year, $75.00 
 
Page 4, Sidewalk Café Permit (Resolution 05-13, SMC7.900-7.908) 
Addition of this fee permit onto schedule 
 
Page 4, Social Games (SMC 5.254 (1)) 
Addition of the fee permit onto the schedule 
 
Page 5, Special Event License (SMC 7.404 (1)) 
Define  the “5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected only on non-
liquor fee.” fee for non-liquor only 
 
Page 6, Vending on City Streets Street Vending License (SMC 7.808) 
Name change from Street Vending License to Vending on City Streets 
 
Page 9, Pre-Scheduled Non-Emergency Basic Life Support 
Removing from fee schedule 
 
Page 10, Fire Protection and Life Safety System Construction Permits 
Addition of Construction 
 
Page 11, Operational Permit Fees 
Removal of language, inspection of  for the definition of the fee 
 
Page 11, Licensed Facility Inspection Fees 
Adding new fee 
 
Page 13, Re-Shelving Fee (ORS 357.490) 
Addition of a re-shelving fee for unclaimed holds and unclaimed interlibrary loans 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit A, Page 2 of 6 

 
 
 
Page 19, Criminal History Requests (Resolution 09-15, ORS 169.151, ORS 137.540(1)) 
Addition of fee on Criminal History Requests records 
for first 4 $5.00 
plus . each addl. .75 
 
Page 19, Military Police Record Checks (Resolution 09-15, ORS 169.151, ORS 137.540(1)) 
Reduction of fee on Military Police Record Checks, per request $0.00 
 
Page 19, Microfilm Reports (Resolution 09-15, ORS 169.151, ORS 137.540(1)) 
Definition of fee, thereafter, per report   $15.00 
 
Page 19, Special Computer Reports (Resolution 09-15, ORS 169.151, ORS 137.540(1)) 
Definition of fee, Per hour $30.00, with $20.00 minimum 
 
Page 19, Vehicle Impound Recovery (Resolution 09-15, ORS 169.151, ORS 137.540(1)) 
Addition of fee 
Vehicle Impound Recovery $125.00 
 
Page 20, Dog Licenses (SMC 5.426 (3) (3)) 
Addition of fee for Duplicate License, $5.00 
 
Page 20, License Vietnamese Pig (SMC 5.426 (6)) 
Addition of fee for Duplicate License  $5.00 
 
Pages 21-26 Building Permit fees (ORS 455.447) 
Increase in Building Permit fees 
 
Page 26, Sign Code Plan Review (SMC 8.218 (1)) 
Updating the schedule with current fee, Per Sign $42.00 
 
Page 27, Sign Permit Fees (SMC 8.218 (2)) 
Addition of “10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected.” fee. 
 
Page 27, Temporary Sign Permit Fee-Banner (SMC 8.218 (3)) 
Name change removing Banner and addition Temporary. 
Addition of fees to schedule 
Per permit $100.00 
Plus security deposit $100.00 
Addition of “10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected.” fee. 
 
 

 

 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit A, Page 3 of 6 

 

Page 29-31, Grading Permit Fees (Resolution 11-23, SMC 8.332 (1) (2)) 

Change in fee 
Removing 
Per application $80.00 
  Grading Plan Check Base fee of $450.00 
  Plus volume fee of  Up to 100 cubic yards $225.00 
   Plus $ per 100 cubic yards over 100 $45.00 
   (101-1000 cubic yards) 
   1001 to 25,000 cubic yards $650.00 
   Plus $ per 100 cubic yards over 1000 25.00 
   (1001 to 25,000 cubic yards)  
Greater than 25.000 cubic yards-Actual recorded staff costs, overhead and project expenses base fee of 
$4,500.00 plus $4,500.00 deposit and additional deposits as required. 
Corrective LDAP Fee in addition to the normal LDAP fees, based on an estimate of the work performed 
to the time of the corrective LDAP, the corrective LDAP shall pay for actual recorded staff costs, 
overhead, and project expenses in the administration thereof.  Initial deposits shall be $3000.00 for 
parcels less than one acre and $3000.00 plus $1500.00 per acre for parcels more than one acre.  
Additional deposits as required. 
   Per Re-inspection $91.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
  Combined Grading Plan & Permit Fee for Single Family/Duplex  
   Non-Sensitive Area $450.00 
   Sensitive Area $900.00 
Note:  Sensitive area equals greater than 15% slope, work in or near drainage way or swale, wetland on 
site, or site in floodplain. 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
  Grading Permit Fee for other than Single Family/Duplex 
   Up to 100 cubic yards $225.00 
   101-1000 cubic yards $225.00 
   Plus $ per 100 cubic yards over 100 $75.00 
   1001-25,000 cubic yards $900.00 
   Plus $ per 100 cubic yards over 1001 $150.00 
Greater than 25.000 cubic yards-Actual recorded staff costs, overhead and project expenses base fee of 
$4,500.00 plus $4,500.00 deposit and additional deposits as required. 
Corrective LDAP Fee in addition to the normal LDAP fees, based on an estimate of the work performed 
to the time of the corrective LDAP, the corrective LDAP shall pay for actual recorded staff costs, 
overhead, and project expenses in the administration thereof.  Initial deposits shall be $3000.00 for 
parcels less than one acre and $3000.00 plus $1500.00 per acre for parcels more than one acre.  
Additional deposits as required. 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
Adding  
Single Family/Duplex Residential 
“Short Form” fee (Non-sensitive areas:  i.e. lot slope less than 15%; no work in or near a drainageway or 
swale; no wetlands on site; not in a flood plain) = 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit A, Page 4 of 6 

 flat fee of  $450.00 
“LDAP” fee (Work within sensitive areas: i.e. any of the following:  lot slope equal to or greater than 
15%; work in or near a drainageway or swale; wetlands on site; site in flood plain)  
 flat fee of  $900.00 
Adding  
Commercial/Industrial/Multifamily/Other 
 Plan Check Fee $450.00 
plus Volume Fee per following schedule: Up to 100 cubic yards $225.00 
 101 to 1,000 cubic yards $225.00 
 Plus per 100 cubic yards over 100 $45.00 
 1,001 to 25,000 cubic yards $630 
 per 1,000 cubic yards over 1,000 $75 
Greater than 25,000 cubic yards-Actual recorded staff costs, overhead and project expenses 
 $2550 minimum + $4500 deposit and additional 
deposits as required –(Greater than 25,000 cubic yards). 
 
Adding 
Plus permit administration/inspection fee 
 Up to 100 cubic yards $225 
 101 to 1,000 cubic yards $225  
 Plus per 100 cubic yards over 100 $75 
 1,001 to 25,000 cubic yards $900  
 Plus per 1,000 cubic yards over 1,000 $150 

 Greater than 25,000 cubic yards-Actual recorded staff costs, 
overhead and project expenses 

  $4500 minimum + $4500 deposit and additional deposits as 
required – (Greater than 25,000 cubic yards). 

Adding 
Corrective LDAP 
Any LDAP processed after work is conducted without required City approvals is considered a corrective 
LDAP.  In addition to the normal LDAP fees, calculated based on an estimate of the work performed at 
the time of the corrective LDAP, the corrective LDAP shall also pay for actual recorded staff costs, 
overhead and project expenses in the administration of the corrective LDAP.  The initial deposits for the 
corrective LDAP, in addition to the standard LDAP fees, shall be $3,000 for parcels less than one acre and 
$3,000 + $1,500 per acre for parcels more than one acre.  If the deposit is insufficient to cover City 
expenses for the project, additional deposits will be required.  
 
Adding 
Re-Inspection Fee, $91.00 
 
Page 31, Sign Permit Fee-Banners (Over Street) (City Policy, SOPP T8.7) 
Removal of fee 
The City’s policy on banners is that only governmental or special district organizations (specifically 
including McKenzie-Willamette Hospital) be allowed to have banners placed over the public right-of-
way, and further, that such banners advertise public, not for profit events only.  
Per permit, $0.00 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit A, Page 5 of 6 

 
Page 35, Local Improvement District Assessment Service Fee (SMC 3.072) 
Addition of fee to schedule 
An assessment service fee of 6.2 percent of the cost of direct construction, advertising, testing and 
engineering of local public improvement projects shall be added and included in the assessment made 
to each benefiting property owner in order to cover the origination, billing and collection cost on 
assessment. 
Per Assessment, a fee of 6.2% of Assessment is charged 
 
Page 35, Reimbursement District Application Fee (SMC 3.610 (1)) 
Addition of fee to schedule 
A person who is required to or chooses to finance some or all of the cost of an infrastructure 
improvement which will be available to provide service to property, other than property owned by the 
person, may, by written application filed with the city public works director, request that the city 
establish a reimbursement district. The infrastructure improvements must include improvements in 
addition to or in a size greater than those which would otherwise ordinarily be required in connection 
with the application for permit approval and must be available to provide service to property other than 
property owned by the applicant. Examples include, but shall not be limited to, intersections, full street 
improvements instead of half street improvements, traffic signals, off-site sidewalks, connection of 
street sections for continuity, extension of water lines and extension of sewer lines. The city may also 
initiate formation of a reimbursement district. The application shall be accompanied by a fee, as 
established by resolution, sufficient to cover the cost of administrative review and notice pursuant to 
this section. 
Per Benefitted Parcel, $500.00 each 
 
Page 35, Reimbursement of District Administration Fee (SMC 3.665 (2)) 
Addition of fee to schedule 
The city may charge a fee for administration of the agreement. The administration fee shall be fixed by 
the council in the resolution approving and forming the reimbursement district. The administration fee 
is due and payable to the city at the time the agreement is signed (or, if specified as a percentage, shall 
be paid quarterly based upon the reimbursement fees paid during that quarter). 
For Reimbursement Districts with 10 or fewer 10 Benefitted Parcels, $500.00 each 
For Reimbursement Districts with more than 10 Benefitted Parcels, 6.2% of the Reimbursement Fees 
collected from a District each quarter 
 
Page 37, Annexation (SDC 5.7-100)  
Addition of fees 
Type IV, Owner occupied single family dwellings on LDR property of less than 10,000 square feet ,  
$1000.00 
Technical Fee 50.00 
 
Page 43, Minimum Development Standards-Major, (SDC 5.15-100) 
Changing fee 
Type I City Only, removing 726.00 adding 1000.00 
Technical Fee, removing 36.30, adding 50.00 
 
 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit A, Page 6 of 6 

Page 68, Telecommunication License Application Fee 
Reduction in fee 
New and including renewal of existing License(s), from $1000.00 to 50.00 
 
Page 68, Telecommunications License Fee, (SMC 4.708, Ordinance 5891) 
Removing code and fee 
Removing  “Each license grantee shall pay an annual license fee to the city in an amount fixed by council 
resolution as reimbursement for the city’s costs in administering this chapter and in connection with 
reviewing, inspecting and supervising the use and occupancy of the public ways on behalf of the public 
and existing or future users” and fee $500.00 
 
Page 71, Residential SDC Payment Deferral Program (SMC 3.412 (4)) 
Addition of fee to Master Fees and Charges Schedule 
 
Page 71, Short-Term SDC Payment Deferral Program (City Policy) 
Addition of fee to Master Fees and Charges Schedule 
 
Inclusion of state rules into Master Fees and Charges Schedule 
Industrial Pre-Treatment 
Page 53, OAR 340-045-0075 Permit Fee Schedule 
Page 53, Administrative Rule 4.0503, Appendix B 
Page 54, Administrative Rule 4.0503, Appendix A 
 
Upcoming changes 
Page 51, Wastewater and Regional Wastewater (Sewer) Rates  
Page 52, Stormwater (Drainage) Rates 
 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit B, Page 1 of 8 

Section 6:  Building and Safety Fees 
The following fees shall be charged for the Building and Safety activities of the City: 
 
Site Plan Review 
Reduction in fee, Resolution 10-51 
 
Building Permits 
(ORS 455.447) 
 
Structural, Commercial and Mechanical Permit Fees 
Table No. 3-A 

 
TOTAL VALUE  Fee 
$1.00 - $2,000  $58.00 $80.00 
$2,001 - $25,000 for the first $2,000 in value $58.00 $80.00 
 plus for each additional $1000 or fraction thereof. $9.75 $11.00 
$25,001 - $50,000 for the first $25,000 in value  $282.25 $317.50 
 plus for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof $7.32  $8.25 
$50,001 - $100,000 for the first $50,000 in value  $465.25 $511.75 
 plus  for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof $4.87 $5.36 
$100,001 and Up for the first $100,000 in value  $708.75 $761.91 
 plus for each additional $1,000 or portion thereof $4.07 $4.38 

 
In addition to the Building Permit Fee, the Plan Check Fee shall be 65% of the Building Permit fee. 
For the purpose of defraying the cost of applying regulations as provided in ORS 455.447 a surcharge of 
1% to the total fees collected for essential, hazardous, major and special occupancy structures shall be 
collected. 

 
To the following fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and 5% Technology Fee 

 
Electrical Permits 
Table No. 3-B 

 
Description  Fee 

Residence wiring less than 1000 square feet $134.00 $147.50 
Each additional 500 sq.ft. or portion thereof $25.00 $27.50 
Manufactured Home or Modular Dwelling (Service or Feeder)  $63.00 $69.00 
Temporary Power – 200 amps or less $63.00 $69.00 
Temporary Power – 201 to 400 amps $87.00 $96.00 
Temporary Power – 401 to 600 amps $126.00 $138.50 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 200 amps or less $81.00 $89.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 201 to 400 amps $95.00 $104.50 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 401 to 600 amps $158.00 $174.00 
Permanent Service or Feeder – 601 to 999 amps $205.00 $225.50 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit B, Page 2 of 8 

Permanent Service or Feeder – 1000 amps or volts $469.00 $516.00 
Electrical Service Reconnection with no changes to existing service size $63.00 $69.00 
One new/alteration/extension of circuit $55.00 $60.50 
Each Additional Circuit $6.00 $6.50 
Each Irrigation Pump $63.00 $69.00 
Each Electrical Sign or Outline Lighting $63.00 $69.00 
Each Signal Panel $63.00 $69.00 
Limited Energy – Residential $32.00 $35.00 
Limited Energy – Commercial/Multi-Family $58.00 $80.00 
Inspections not covered by this schedule minimum 1 hour $58.00  $80.00 
Re-inspection Fee $58.00  $80.00 
Partial Inspection $58.00  $80.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours $86.00 $94.50 
Minimum Permit Fee $58.00  $80.00 
Investigation Fee $58.00  $80.00 
Inspections For Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated $58.00  $80.00 
Electrical Quick Permits (sold in 10 only) No longer in Use $-0 
Building Without Permit Penalty $ Permit Fee 
Electrical Plan Review 25% of Permit Fee 

 

To the Following Fees, Please Add 12% State Surcharge and 5% Technology Fee 

Mechanical Permits (Residential) 

Mechanical Permit Fees 
Table No. 3-D 

 
Description Fee 

First Appliance $79.00 $80.00 
HVAC 

Up to 100,000 btu $17.00 $18.50 
More than 100,000 $20.00 $22.00 
Unit Heater $17.00 $18.50 

Boiler/Compressor 
Up to 100,000 btu$ $17.00 18.50 
3-15 Horsepower or 100,001 – 500,000 btu $29.00 $32.00 
Over 15 to 30 Horsepower or  500,001 – 999,000 btu $43.00 $47.50 
Over 30 to 50 Horsepower or 1,000,000 – 1,750,000 btu $57.00 $62.50 
Over 50 Horsepower or over 1,750,001 btu $95.00 $104.50 

Air Handling Unit 
Up to 10,000 cfm $11.00 $12.00 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit B, Page 3 of 8 

10,001 cfm and over $20.00 $22.00 
Evaporative Cooler/Fan $13.00 $14.50 

Vents 
Hood and Exhaust $13.00 $14.50 
Vent Fan to One Duct $9.00 $10.00 
Appliance Vent $9.00 $10.00 

Gas Piping 
Each Piping System 1-4 Outlets $7.00 $7.50 
Each Outlet over 4 $4.00 $4.50 

Air, Oxygen, Other Medical Specialty Piping 
Each Piping System 1-4 Outlets $7.00 $7.50 
Each Outlet over 4 $4.00 $4.50 

LP Gas Tank and Piping $17.00 $18.50 
Miscellaneous 

Domestic Incinerator $20.00 $22.00 
Commercial Incinerator $75.00 $82.50 
Wood/Pellet Stove $38.00 $42.00 
Heat Pump $17.00 $18.50 

Preliminary Inspection $58.00 $80.00 
Each Appliance Not Listed on this Schedule $13.00 $14.50 
Inspections Not Covered by this Schedule $58.00 $80.00 
Re-inspection Fee $58.00 $80.00 
Supplemental Mechanical Fee *Not In Use* $-0- 
Minimum Permit Fee $79.00 $80.00 
Partial Inspection $58.00 $80.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours $86.00 $94.50 
Investigation Fee $58.00 $80.00 
Building Without Permit Penalty $ Permit Fee 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Tables $58.00 $80.00 
Mechanical Plan Review Fee 25% of Permit Fee 
Mechanical Quick Permits (sold in 10 only) No Longer Available $-0- 
Commercial/Industrial/Public Mechanical System including installation costs Value 
 

To the following fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and 5% Technology Fee 
 

For the purpose of defraying the cost of applying regulations as provided in ORS 455.447 a surcharge of 
1% to the total fees collected for essential, hazardous, major and special occupancy structures shall be 
collected. 
 
Plumbing Permits 
Plumbing Permit Fees 
Table No. 3-C 

 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit B, Page 4 of 8 

Fees for the construction, alteration or repair of plumbing on one and two family dwellings, shall be 
calculated as described below.  Fees include drain, waste and vent installation, water distribution piping, 
the first 100 feet of water service. 

One or two family with one bath $238.00 $262.00 
One or two family with two bath  $374.00 $411.00 
One or two family with three bath $439.00 $483.00 
Each Additional Bath $95.00 $104.50 
Each Additional Kitchen $95.00 $104.50 
Single Plumbing Fixture $19.00 $21.00 
Sanitary Sewer: 

For the first 100 feet of line $76.00 $83.50 
Each additional 100 feet of line or portion $19.00 $21.00 

Water Service: 
the first 100 feet of line $76.00 $83.50 
Each additional 100 feet of line or portion $19.00 $21.00 

Storm and Rain Drain: 
For the first 100 feet of line $76.00 $83.50 
Each additional 100 feet of line or portion  $19.00 $21.00 

Sewage Ejector Pump $19.00 $21.00 
Special Waste Connection $19.00 $21.00 
Manufactured Home hook up on improved lot $58.00 $80.00 
Backflow Prevention Device $19.00 $21.00 
Relocated Structure $58.00 $80.00 
Sanitary or Storm Sewer Cap $58.00 $80.00 
Any trap or waste not connected to a fixture $19.00 $21.00 
Any plumbing installation not listed in this schedule with  

sanitary waste or portable water supply $19.00 $21.00 
Minimum Plumbing Permit Fee $58.00 $80.00 
Partial Inspection fee  $58.00 $80.00 
Re-inspection Fee $58.00 $80.00 
Inspections Not Covered By Schedule $58.00 $80.00 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours $86.00 $94.50 
Investigation Fee $58.00 $80.00 
Building Without Permit Penalty $ Permit Fee 
Accessible Minor Plumbing Labels NO LONGER AVAILABLE $ -0- 
Not Accessible Minor Plumbing Labels NO LONGER AVAILABLE $ -0- 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Table $58.00 $80.00 
Medical Gas System Inspection Fees – Inspection fees for medical gas systems are a  

combination of:Base Fee $ Value 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit B, Page 5 of 8 

 + Plus Each inlet or outlet 
Plan Review Fee for Med Gas $58.00 $80.00/hr  

but shall not exceed 30% of the total plumbing permit fee for the building or 
structure under review.  When plans are incomplete or substantially changed so 
as to require additional plan review, additional plan review fees may be charged 
based on the additional time required. 

Plumbing Plan Review Fee 30% of Permit Fee 
Residential Fire Sprinklers 

0001 – 2000 Square feet $58.00 $80.00 

2001 – 3600 Square feet $116.00 $128.00 

3601 – 7200 Square feet $174.00 $192.00 

7201 Square feet and greater $232.00 $255.00 

 
To the following fees, please add 12% State Surcharge and 5% Technology Fee 

Additional Miscellaneous Fees 
 
Miscellaneous Building Fees 
Table No. 3-F 
 
Please add 12% State Surcharge (Where Applicable) 

Description Fee 
Investigative Fee $58.00 $80.00 
Inspection For Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated $58.00 $80.00 
Moving a Building or Structure $291.00 $320.00 
Demolition of a Building or Structure $58.00 $80.00 
Mobile Home Accessory Structure $Value 
Prefabricated Structures $Value 
Hourly Inspection Fee for Requests Not In Permit Table $58.00 $80.00 
Address Assignment, each new or change unless requested by city staff $38.00 $42.00 
Temporary Occupancy Permit Approval Shall Not Exceed 30 Days Without Renewal.  Renewal 
Fee is the Same Fee As Original Temporary Occupancy Permit Fee: 

1 & 2 Family Dwellings $126.00 $138.50 
Triplex & 4-Plex $248.00 $273.00 
Apartment Buildings $248.00 + $30/unit  $273.00 + $33/unit 
Remodels Commercial/Industrial Buildings & Tenant Infill $126.00 $138.50 
Commercial/Industrial Buildings $374.00 $411.00+10% of Bldg Permit Fee 

Same As Plan Review Submittal $250.00 $275.00 
Building Without Permit Penalty Fee $Bldg Permit 
Manufactured Home Placement $397.00 $437.00 
Replacement Plans + copies @ $.75 for first copy + $.50 for each additional copy for  
8 ½” x 11” copies, minimum total fee of $20.00 $58.00/hr  $80.00/hr 
Fire & Life Safety Plan Review When Required 40% of Building Permit Fee 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit B, Page 6 of 8 

Additional Plan Review Due To Changes In Plans $58.00/hr  $80.00/hr 
Hazardous Technical Report with No Plan Review $58.00/hr  $80.00/hr 
Site Investigation and Posting of NSF Check $58.00 $80.00 
Administrative Fee for Non-Sufficient Funds Check $126.00 $138.50 
Administrative Fee – Non Specialty Code Permits 10% 
Administrative Fee for Cash Deposits 10% 
Inspections Outside Normal Business Hours – 1 hour minimum $86.00 $94.50 
Re-inspection Fee $58.00 $80.00 
Quick Start $189.00 $208.00 
Not in Use 
Research Requests 

Technical (15-30 minutes) $25.00 $27.50 
Technical (31-60 minutes) $51.00 $56.00 
Non-Technical   (15-30 minutes) $17.00 $18.50 
Non-Technical   (31-60 minutes) $31.00 $34.00 
Any copy fee is in addition to research fees.  30 Minutes is minimum fee 

Posting Substandard Structures $58.00 $80.00 
Monthly Reports – Yearly “Mailing” List $64.00/mailed $70.00/mailed 

 $37.00/faxed $41.00/faxed 
Weekly Issued Reports – Yearly “Mailing” List $276.00/mailed $303.00/mailed 

 $153.00/faxed $168.00/faxed 
Addressing Information –Non Agency-Government Yearly “Mailing” List  
  $64.00/mailed $70.00/mailed 

 $37.00/faxed $41.00/faxed 
Fire Department Process/Application Fee 10% of  Fire fee 

 
Signs 
 
Sign Code Plan Review 
(SMC 8.218(1)) 
Permit Applications. Two complete sets of plans, engineering calculations, diagrams and other data shall be 
submitted with each application for a permit. The building official may require plans, computations and 
specifications to be prepared and designed by an engineer or architect. 
 (a) A scaled plot plan with building dimensions, setback and location of proposed signs shall be submitted 
with the sign permit application. A photograph of each facade of the building shall be submitted. 
 (b) A scaled elevation drawing shall be submitted in addition to the above requirements if a wall mounted 
sign will be erected. 
 (c) A description of materials, anchors, footings and attachment systems shall be provided. 
 (d) For all freestanding, pole or projecting signs over 20 feet in height, plans shall be submitted, drawn by a 
registered engineer. 
 (e) Each application shall include photographs of existing signage on the property associated with the 
business. 
 (f) If the application is for a billboard, the application must include an approved permit from the state of 
Oregon under the Oregon Motorists Information Act of 1971 (ORS 377.700 et seq.) prior to the erection of the 
billboard. 
 Per Sign $42.00 
 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit B, Page 7 of 8 

Sign Permit Fees 
(SMC 8.218(2)) (2)  
Permit-Fees. Sign permit fees for permanent and temporary signs, excluding electrical, shall be set by resolution of 
the council. Only one face of a double-faced sign will be used for calculation purposes. Each sign shall be 
considered separately when calculating plan review and sign permit charges. 
 0-35 square feet $80.00 
 36-to 60 square feet $110.00 
 61 to 100 square feet $140.00 
 101 to 150 square feet $160.00 
 151 to 200 square feet $200.00 
 201 to 300 square feet $250.00 
 301 to 400 square feet $300.00 
 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Temporary Sign Permit Fee-Banner 
(SMC 8.218 (4)(3))  
Temporary Sign Permit Fees. Four permits for each approved development area shall be permitted per calendar 
year. The fee for each permit shall be set by resolution by the council. No temporary sign(s) shall be larger than 60 
square feet and be erected for a maximum of 30 consecutive days per each permit. The temporary sign(s) shall be 
located completely on private property and shall be in compliance with the required setbacks as identified in this 
code. A security deposit is required when this permit is issued. If the applicant fails to remove the temporary 
sign(s) by the date specified on the permit, the deposit shall be forfeited and the city may remove the temporary 
sign(s). If any temporary signs are erected without first obtaining a permit, the permit fee shall be doubled. 
Temporary signs erected by or for the city for city sponsored events, authorized by the city, or for the park district, 
utility company, or hospital for community events are exempt. 
 Per permit $100.00 
 Plus security deposit $100.00 
 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
10% Administrative Fee will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Modification Fee 
(SMC 8.238(2)) 
A modification is defined as a request for a sign that complies with the provisions of this sign code in all respects 
except size or height and the proposed request is not more than 15 percent greater than otherwise allowed. If the 
applicant chooses to apply for a modification to the sign code, they may apply through the development services 
department for a cost set by resolution of the council. This modification request will be reviewed, and a decision 
reached by the development services director within 30 days of the application, providing the application is 
complete. 
The following criteria must be met in order for a modification to be approved: 
 (a) Locational and/or dimensional problems have been identified; and 
 (b) The proposed adjustment will not cause any of the following adverse effects on neighboring properties: 
  (i) Creates a vision clearance hazard for pedestrians, motor vehicles or bicyclists; or 
  (ii) Creates a hazard for fire prevention or fire suppression; or 
  (iii) Public safety is compromised; and 
 (c) The hardship is not self-imposed. 
 Per application $200.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 



  Section 6: Building and Safety Fees 

 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit B, Page 8 of 8 

 
Sign Code Appeal Fee (Building Board of Appeals) 
(SMC 8.238(5))  An applicant who is denied a modification request may appeal the decision of the DSD 
Development and Public Works Director to the building board of appeals for a cost set by resolution of the council. 
The request will be reviewed by the board and a decision reached within 30 days of the application date. 
 Per Application $150.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Appeal Fee (City Council Appeal) 
(SMC 8.238(6))  An applicant may appeal the decision of the Board of Appeals regarding an Appeal of a 
modification or a variance to the city council for a cost set by resolution of the council. The city council’s decision is 
final except that or a writ of review to circuit court is available to appeal the city council’s decision pursuant to 
Oregon law. [Section 8.238 amended by Ordinance No. 6008, enacted March 18, 2002.] 
 Per application $100.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sign Code Variance Fee  
(SMC 2.568(5)) Hear appeals from the sign code as provided in chapter 8, section 8.238 of the Springfield 
Municipal Code. 
 Per Application $300.00 

 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit C, Page 1 of 7 

Section 1: General 
The following fees shall be charged for the general activities of the City: 

 (ORS 192.440 (3))  
Oregon Revised Statue authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to reimburse it for its 
actual costs in making such records available including costs for summarizing, compiling, or tailoring such records, 
either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request. 
 
Business License 
(SMC 7.000)  Only specific businesses are required to obtain a business license.  See the following list. 
All business license applications shall be made to the city manager. If a proposed business requires a business 
license the application and approval of the license shall occur prior to operation of any business requiring a 
business license. 
See SMC 7.000 for conditions of a license 
 
Alarm System (Business) License 
(SMC 7.012, 7.024) No person shall establish, maintain or operate an alarm system, alarm business or alarm agent 
within the city unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every alarm system, alarm business or alarm 
agent, whether for hire or not, shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter. Each licensee shall meet the 
standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. Fire alarms are exempt from licensing requirements.  
  Initial Fee $50.00 $53.00 
  Renewal fee $10.00 
 Alarm Agent Per 2-year cycle $30.00 
 Alarm Business Per year $80.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Antique/Secondhand Dealer License 
(SMC 7.102) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a used merchandise dealer business within the city 
unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a used merchandise dealer 
carries on, shall be deemed a used merchandise dealer subject to the provisions of sections 7.100 to 7.112. Each 
licensee shall meet the applicable standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.112. 
For further restrictions see SMC 7.102. 
  Per year  $130.00 $137.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Auctioneer License 
(SMC 7.126)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate as an auctioneer within the city unless a license for 
that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where an auctioneer is engaged in auctioneering 
whether for hire or not, shall be deemed an auctioneer is subject to the Springfield Municipal Code. 
 Per year    $150.00 $158.00 
  Per day  $60.00 $63.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit C, Page 2 of 7 

Auto-Wrecker License 
(SMC 7.134) No person shall establish, maintain or operate an auto wrecking business within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where auto wrecking is carried on, whether 
for hire or not, is considered an auto wrecker subject to the provisions of the Springfield Municipal Code. 
  Per year  $60.00 $63.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Carnival/Circus License 
(SMC 7.146)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate a carnival or circus within the city unless a license for 
that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a carnival or circus is offered, whether for hire or 
not, shall be deemed a carnival or circus is subject to the Springfield Municipal Code. 
 Per day $300.00 $315.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Christmas Tree Sales Lot/Firework Sales Lot 
(SMC 7.156) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a fireworks sales lot or a Christmas tree sales lot within 
the city unless a license for that use is obtained from the city. Every fireworks sales lot and Christmas tree sales lot, 
whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a fireworks sales lot or Christmas tree sales lot. 
   Per year  $30.00 $32.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Dance Hall License 
(SMC 7.168)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate a dance hall within the city unless a license for that use 
is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a dance hall is carried on, whether for hire or not, is 
considered a dance hall subject to the Springfield Municipal Code and each licensee shall meet the standards 
described in SMC 7.168. Initial  $150.00 $158.00  
 Renewal  $75.00 $79.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Detective Agency License 
(SMC 7.180)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a detective within the city unless a license for that 
use is obtained from the city. Every private detective, whether for hire or not, is considered a private detective 
subject to the provisions of SMC 7.170 to 7.180 and shall meet the standards as described in SMC 7.000 to 7.006. 
 3 or more employees  per year $300.00 $315.00 
 Less than 3 employees  per year $210.00 $221.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Door to Door Solicitor License 
(SMC 7.216) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a door-to-door solicitor within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the city. Every door-to-door solicitor, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed 
a door-to-door solicitor subject SMC 7.200 to 7.216. 
  Per year  $40.00 $42.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit C, Page 3 of 7 

Electrical Merchandise License 
(SMC 7.226) No person shall offer for sale electrical products within the city unless a license for that use is 
obtained from the city. Every place or building where electrical products are for sale is subject to the SMC 7.220 to 
7.226.   
  Per year  $31.00 $33.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
First Aid Operator License 
(SMC 7.258) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a first aid vehicle business within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the city. Every first aid vehicle business, whether for hire or not, is considered 
a first aid vehicle business subject to the SMC 7.240 to 7.258. 
  Per year $200.00 $210.00 
  and Per Vehicle  $50.00 $53.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Garage Sales License 
(SMC 7.268) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a garage sale within the city unless a license for that 
use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a garage sale is held shall be considered a garage sale 
subject to the SMC.   
   No Charge 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Liquor License 
(SMC 7.304) The Oregon Liquor Control Commission requires every applicant for a license to sell spirits, wines, 
beers, and other alcoholic liquors to obtain a recommendation in writing from the city council. 
 Initial  $100.00 
 Change  $75.00 
 Renewal $35.00  
 Special Liquor $25.00/daily 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sale and Distribution of Tobacco and Tobacco Products to Minors-License Fees 
 (SMC 5.300 (2) No tobacco retailer’s license shall be issued or continue to be valid unless the holder has paid the 
fees as required by this section.  
 First License  $70.00 $74.00 
 Annual Renewal and/or change or ownership $45.00 $47.00  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Manufactured Dwelling Park License 
(SMC 7.314) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a manufactured dwelling park within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a manufactured dwelling park is 
offered, whether for hire or not, shall be considered a manufactured dwelling park subject to the SMC and shall 
meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
 25 spaces  Per year $25.00 $26.00 
 26-50 spaces  Per year $50.00 $53.00  
 51-75 spaces  Per year $75.00 
 76-100 spaces  Per year $100.00 $105.00 
 each space over 100  Per year $100.00+ .50 $105+ .55 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit C, Page 4 of 7 

 
Pool/Billiard Room License 
(SMC 7.326) No person shall establish, maintain or operate pool rooms and billiard rooms within the city unless a 
license for that use obtained from the city. Every place or building where pool rooms and billiard rooms are 
offered, whether for hire or not, shall be deemed a pool room or billiard room  and is subject to the SMC 7.320 to 
7.326. Each licensee shall meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006.  
 First Table  Per year $50.00 + $25.00 $53.00 + $26.00 
 Second Table  Per year $20.00 $21.00 
 Third Table  Per year $15.00 $16.00 
 Fourth Table  Per year $10.00 $11.00 
 Each Table Thereafter  Per year $5.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Public Passenger License (Issued by City of Eugene) 
(SMC 7.332) No person or business may operate a public passenger vehicle company without a public passenger 
vehicle company license; however, an unlicensed public passenger vehicle operating outside the jurisdictional 
limits of Eugene and Springfield may deliver a fare from outside those limits to a location within the limits, and if 
the vehicle waits for the person, retrieve the person for the return trip back outside the jurisdictional limits. No 
unlicensed public passenger vehicle company may solicit or accept any passenger within the city limits except as 
provided in this subsection. 
 
Rental Sales License 
(SMC 7.344) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a rental property within the city unless a license for 
that use is obtained. Every place or building where rentals are offered, whether for hire or not, is considered a 
rental property subject to the SMC 7.340 to 7.344 and shall meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 
7.006. 
 Starts at Four Plex and above Per Unit $10.00 $15.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Shooting Area License 
(SMC 7.358) An applicant for a shooting area business license shall apply to the Development Services and Public 
Works Department prior to opening a shooting area facility. See SMC 7.358 for conditions of operation. 
 Per Year $120.00 $126.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sidewalk Café Permit 
(Resolution 05-13, SMC 7.900-7.908)  In the downtown district only, the city manager, or the manager’s designee, 
may issue a revocable permit for an outdoor café allowing for the service of food and beverages at facilities placed 
on sidewalks within the public right-of-way abutting an existing eating establishment.  See SMC 7.900 for the 
conditions. 
  Per Permit $25.00 
 
Social Games 
(SMC 5.254)(1)  Social Games Prohibited/Exception. “Social games,” as defined in ORS 167.117 are prohibited 
within the corporate limits of the city of Springfield, except: 
  (a) Social games between players in private homes or social games conducted by charitable, 
fraternal, religious or non-profit organizations where no house player, house bank or house odds exist and there is 
no house income; and 
  (b) Pursuant to SMC section 5.258, The Springfield Social Gaming Code/Texas Holdem Poker Card 
Tournament. 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit C, Page 5 of 7 

 (2) “Non-Profit Organization” Defined. For the purpose of this section, “non-profit organization” means any 
person organized and existing for charitable, benevolent, eleemosynary, humane, philanthropic, educational, civic 
or other non-profit purposes. The fact that an organization does qualify for charitable deduction for tax purposes 
or that organization is otherwise exempted from payment of federal income taxes pursuant to the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, constitutes prima facie evidence that the organization is a non-profit 
organization. 
 (3) “House” Defined. Includes owner of business, private club, or place of public accommodation, and 
owner’s spouse, children of owner or spouse, owner’s brothers, sisters, or parents, or a business in which one of 
the foregoing named individual is associated. A license for the house is required by section 5.258(3) of this code. 
 (4) “Tournament Organizer” Defined. A person other than the house who organizes the tournament, 
including but not limited to provision of poker chips and playing cards. A license for the tournament organizer is 
required by section 5.258(3) of this code. 
 (5) The offenses specified in subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) are punishable as violations and may include a 
fine not exceeding $720.00 pursuant to SMC section 1.205. [Section 5.254 amended by Ordinance No. 6140, 
enacted August 1, 2005; further amended by Ordinance No. 6169, enacted May 15, 2006.] 
 Per year $100.00 $105.00 
 Renewal $100.00 $105.00 
 
Sound Truck/Car License 
(SMC 7.364) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a sound truck or car within the city unless a license for 
that use is obtained from the city. Every vehicle used as a sound truck or car, whether for hire or not, is considered 
a sound truck or car subject to the provisions of the SMC and each licensee shall meet the standards described in 
sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
 Per Year $50.00 $53.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Special Event License 
(SMC 7.404 (1)  No person shall establish, maintain or operate a special event within the city unless a license for 
that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a special event is held, whether for hire or not, is 
considered a special event subject to the provisions of SMC 7.400 to 7.422. and each licensee shall meet the 
standards set forth in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
 (2) If the special event is to include a parade, as that term is defined in section 6.505, then a parade permit 
shall also be obtained from the Springfield police department. The city may require other licenses or permits if the 
special will include other activities requiring permits or licenses under the applicable sections of the Springfield 
code. The need for other permits shall be determined by the city during the departmental review process under 
section 7.406. 
 (3) The granting of a special event license shall not relieve any person of the responsibility to satisfy all code 
requirements respecting the manner in which the special event is conducted. 
 Per Application $94.00 $99.00 
 Event with Liquor$119.00 + $25.00 $125.00 + $26.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected only on non-liquor fee. 
 
Tobacco Vending License 
(SMC 7.454) No person shall establish, maintain or operate a tobacco vending machine within the city unless a 
license for that use is obtained from the city. Every place or building where a tobacco vending machine is offered, 
whether for hire or not, is considered a tobacco vending machine subject to the provisions of SMC 7.450 to 7.454 
and each licensee shall meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
 Per year $30.00 $32.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit C, Page 6 of 7 

Transient Merchant License 
(SMC 7.476) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a transient merchant within the city unless a license 
for that use is obtained from the city. Every transient merchant, whether for hire or not, is considered a transient 
merchant subject to the provisions of SMC 7.470 to 7.476. and each licensee shall meet the standards as described 
in sections 7.000 to 7.006. 
 Per Day $15.00 $16.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Vending on City Streets Street Vending License 
(SMC 7.808) No person shall establish, maintain or operate as a vendor within the city unless a license for that use 
is obtained from the city. Every person operating as a vendor shall be deemed a vendor on city streets subject to 
the provisions of SMC 7.800 to 7.808 and each licensee shall meet the standards as described in sections 7.000 to 
7.006.  
 There is no license fee associated with this license. 
 
Other General Fees 
Bike Path Maps 
  Per map $4.95 $5.00 
Available online at no charge.  
www.springfield-or.gov/Pubworks/EngineeringTransportation/documents/SpringfieldMap.pdf  
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
GIS Rates (Standard) 
(Intergovernmental Agreement with Lane Council of Governments per ORS 190.050 providing authorization to 
impose and collect reasonable fees based on market prices or competitive bids for geographic data that have 
commercial value and are an entire formula, pattern, compilation, program, device, method, technique, process, 
database or system developed with a significant expenditure of public funds. 
 
Planimetrics Hourly rate (1 hour minimum) $66.00 $69.00 
 Up to 50 acres $90.00 $95.00 
 Charge per additional acre above 45 $2.00 
 Charge per map sheet (approx. 138 acres) $275.00 $289 
 Charge per square mile (640 acres) $1,280 $1340 
 Plus time in excess of 1 hour  $60/per hour $63/per hour 
Half foot Orthophotography  Hourly rate $66.00 $69.00 
  One image $40.00 $42.00 
  Charge per additional image $40.00 $42.00 
  Plus hourly rate  $60.00 $63.00 
Plot Requests 
  Standard City Maps (without Orthos) $49.50 $52.00 
  Standard City Maps (with Orthos) $55.00 $58.00 
 Custom Plot Request: Plot Compilation and Plotting Charge/ per hour$66.00 $69.00 
 Custom Plot Request: Copy of a Completed Plot/per linear foot $6.60 $7.00 
A 5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 

http://www.springfield-or.gov/Pubworks/EngineeringTransportation/documents/SpringfieldMap.pdf


 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit C, Page 7 of 7 

Technology Fee 
(Resolution 11-24) The Technology Fee is applied to the specific charges and fees identified in the above-named 
fee schedules when collected or imposed. 
Five percent of specific development-related charges and fees in the Building Safety Code Fee Schedule, 
the Master Schedule of Rates, Permits, Licenses and Other Fees and Charges in the Municipal Code, and 
the Master Schedule of Miscellaneous Fees and Charges, Rates and Licenses. 
 
Public Records Fees 
(ORS 192.440 (3))  
Oregon Revised Statute authorizes the public body to establish fees reasonably calculated to reimburse it for its 
actual costs in making such records available including costs for summarizing, compiling or tailoring such records, 
either in organization or media, to meet the person’s request. 
 
Photocopy Charge Citywide  
(noted exceptions are Development and Public Works, Fire and Life Safety, Library, Municipal Court, Police reports.) 

 No Charge for first 5 pages or first half-hour of research time. 
 Thereafter $.10/page $.15/page 
  Plus actual cost of City staff time and materials 

required to complete the request. 
 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit D, Page 1 of 1 

Section 2: Fire Life and Safety 
The following fees shall be charged for the Fire & Life Safety activities of the City: 

Fire Marshal’s Office Fees 
  
Operational Permit Fees 
Fee for inspection of occupancies requiring  

  Operational Permits (Annual) $375 $394 per permit 
Fee for inspection of occupancies requiring 
  Operational Permits (other than annual) $375 $394 per permit 
 



 
Attachment 2,  Exhibit E, Page 1 of 1 

Section 7:  Engineering  
The following fees shall be charged for the Engineering activities of the City: 
 
Encroachment Permit 
(SMC 3.212(1))  Applications for the encroachment permit shall be on the form prescribed by the public works 
director, and accompanied by the fee therefore, in an amount fixed by the council by resolution. 
    $267.00 $280.00 
   Re-inspection Fee $91.00 $96.00 
 
Curb Cut Fee 
(SMC 3.256)  In case the permit shall be granted, it shall be the duty of the applicant to pay a fee based on the 
average actual costs as set forth by resolution of the council. The same fee shall be charged for new construction 
or repair. The rates and charges herein provided are incurred costs based upon the use or availability for use of the 
public right-of-way, the availability of which is necessary for the regulation of, and provision for, the public health, 
safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by the user’s (or potential user’s) request and choice of the kind, 
nature and quantity of use. 
   First curb cut $97.00 $102.00 
   Second curb cut $51.00 $54.00 
 Re-inspection fee per re-inspection $91.00 $96.00 
 
Curb Cut Fee and Sidewalk Construction Permit-Multiple Permit Discount 
(SMC 3.256, 3.300(1))  Before any sidewalk in a public right of way is started, a permit shall be obtained from the 
building official. At the time the permit is issued, the applicant shall pay a fee based on the average actual costs for 
permit administration and sidewalk inspection as set forth by resolution of the council for the sidewalk, for either 
new construction or repair. These requirements do not apply, however, when such work is done under contract 
with the city or covered by a subdivision agreement with the city. The rates and charges herein provided are 
incurred costs based upon the use or availability for use of the public right-of-way, the availability of which is 
necessary for the regulation of, and provision for, the public health, safety and welfare. The charge is controlled by 
the user’s (or potential user’s) request and choice of the kind, nature and quantity of use. 
Discount when applicant obtains up to three Curb Cut or Sidewalk Construction Permits in same 
location.    $33 .00 $35.00 
 
Placement Permit for Standard Mailbox; No Sidewalk Construction 
(SMC 3.226)     $51.00 $54.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Placement Permit 
(SMC 3.226 (2)  Prior to placing a structure or device in the right-of-way, the owner of such structure or device 
shall secure a placement permit, which permit shall also serve as an encroachment permit. 
    $267.00 $280.00 
  Per Re-Inspection  $91.00 $96.00 
  plus and Asphalt Damage Deposit (SMC 3.214(2)(b) $880.00 $924.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 
 
Sidewalk Construction Permit   
   Per square foot $97.00 $102.00 
   Re-inspection fee $91.00 $96.00 
   Sidewalk Repair Permit $17.00 $18.00 
5% Technology Fee (surcharge) will be applied when imposed or collected. 






































	2013-03-04 Council Agenda Packet
	WORK SESSION
	Item 1  2014-2018 Capital Improvement Program, a Community Reinvestment Plan
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memo
	ATT2 - Draft 2014-2018 Capital Improvement Program
	ATT3 - Planning Commission Approval Document

	Item 2  Wastewater System Capacity, Management, Operations, and Maintenance Discussion
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memorandum

	REGULAR MEETING
	SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT
	Item 1  Employee Recognition, Thelma Barone Ten Year
	Item 2  2012 Groundwater Guardians Presentation
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Item 2  Council Minutes
	Item 2a - February 11, 2013 Work Session
	Item 2b - February 19, 2013 Work Session
	Item 2c - February 19, 2013 Regular Meeting

	Item 4  Ordinances
	Item 4a -  Springfield Development Code Amendments, Phase 1 Land Use Efficiency Measures
	ATT 1 -Ordinance and Exhibit A, Staff Report

	Item 4b -  An Ordinance Making it a Violation to Initiate a False Report or Provide a False Statement to an Animal Control Officer
	ATT1 - Ordinance

	Item 5  Other Routine Matters
	Item 5a -  Liquor License Endorsement for New China Sun
	ATT1 - OLCC Liquor License Application

	Item 5b -  Liquor License Endorsement for Goodfella's Lounge
	ATT1 - OLCC Liquor License Application

	Item 5c -  Liquor License Endorsement for J.X. Pop
	ATT1 - OLCC Liquor License Application

	Item 5d -  Asset Management System Replacement Project, First Amendment for Street Integration and System ID Conversion
	ATT1 - C587 Contract First Amendment

	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	Item 1  Master Fee and Charges Schedule
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memorandum
	ATT2 - Master Fees and Charges Schedule
	Title Page
	Table of Contents
	Section 1-General 
	Section 2-Fire Life and Safety
	Section 3-Library
	Section 4-Municipal Court
	Section 5-Police
	Section 6-Building and Safety Fees
	Section 7-Engineering
	Section 8-Planning Services
	Section 9-Utilities
	Section 10-System Development Charges
	Exhibits
	ATT 2 Exhibit A- FIN Master Fees and Charges List
	ATT 2 Exhibit B-FIN Fees and Charges-Building Fees
	ATT 2 Exhibit C-FIN Fees and Charges-General Section
	ATT 2 Exhibit D-FIN Fees and Charges-Section 2 Fire Life Safety-Inflationary
	ATT 2 Exhibit E-FIN Fees and Charges-Section 7 Engineering Fees-Inflationary


	ATT3 - Resolution and Springfield Municipal Code Schedule of Rates, Permits, Licenses, Fees and Charges
	ATT4 - Ordinance of the Common Council Building Safety Code




